26 July 2019

Securities & Exchange Commission
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex
Roxas Blvd, Metro Manila

Philippine Stock Exchange

Disclosure Department

6/F PSE Tower, 28" Street corner 5™ Avenue,
BGC, Taguig City, Metro Manila

Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corporation
37" Floor, Tower 1, The Enterprise Center
6766 Ayala Ave. corner Paseo de Roxas
Makati, 1226 Metro Manila, Philippines

Attention:  Hon. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenio, Jr.
Director, Market and Securities Regulation Division
Securities & Exchange Commission

Ms. Janet Encarnacion
Head — Disclosure Department
Philippine Stock Exchange

Atty. Joseph B. Evangelista
Head — Issuer Compliance and Disclosure Department (ICDD)

Gentlemen and Madam:

We refer to our previous disclosure dated 12 July 2019 regarding our filing with the
Securities and Exchange Commission of a Notice of Offer of the Second Series of
Commercial Papers under the PHP10 Billion Commercial Papers Program (“CP Series B”) of
P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.

In relation thereto, please be advised that the CP Series B shall be issued at a discount to face
value of 7.00% per annum. Copies of the Issue Supplement and the Information
Memorandum relating to the offer of the CP Series B are attached herewith as Annex “A”
and Annex “B” respectively.

Thank you and warm regards.

Very/truly % /
\ _
NS N

ORRO ERMAC CABREROS
for Corporate Legal and Corporate Secretary




Final Issue Supplement dated 26 July 2019

P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.
Issue of up to £3,500,000,000 CP Series B
under the P10,000,0006,000
Commercial Papers Program

This document constitutes the Issue Supplement relating to the issue of Commercial Papers
described herein. Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein shall have
the definitions set forth in the Master Trust Indenture dated 13 December 2018 by and among
P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. and PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK
TRUST BANKING GROUP.

This Issue Supplement comprises the final terms of the Commercial Papers and must be read
in conjunction with the Terms and Conditions. In case of any inconsistencies between the
Terms and Conditions and this Issue Supplement, the Issue Supplement shall prevail. Full
information on the Issuer and the offer of the CP Series B is only available on the basis of the
combination of the final [ssue Supplement, the Prospectus dated 13 December 2018 (the
“Prospectus”) and the Information Memorandum dated 26 July 2019 (the “IM” and, together
with the Prospectus, collectively the “Selling Materials™).

1. Issuer : P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES,
INC.
2. (8) CP Series : CP Series B
(b) Subseries (if any) : Not applicable

3. Aggregate Principal Amount

{a) CP Series : CP Series B: up to PHP3,500,000,000
(b) Subseries (if any) : Not applicable
4. Discount Rate : 7.00% per annum
5. Issue Price : Discount to face value
8. (a) Offer Period ; 10:00 a.m. of 29 July 2019 until 5:00 p.m. 31 July
2019
(b) Issue Date : 5 August 2019 (or the immediately succeeding

Business Day if such date is not a Business Day)
or such other daie as may be agreed upon by
the Issuer and the Sole Issue Manager

7. Net Proceeds : Approximately PHP3,231,842,905 (assuming
the Offer is fully subscribed)

8. Use of Proceeds : Primarily to refinance existing short-term loans
of the Issuer, which were used to finance
working capital requirements by the Issuer for
the regular importation of fuels and lubricants by
the Company, as set out in the schedule set
forth in the Information Memorandum




9. Denormination : #1,000,000 each, as a minimum, and in
muitiples of #100,000 thereafter

10. (a) Maturity Date : 360 days from Issue Date or 30 July 2020
(b) Maturity Value : 100% of face value

11. Listing : The Issuer intends {o list the CP Series B on the
PDEX on Issue Date.

12. Method of disfribution : Public offer

13. Sole Issue Manager : PNB CAPITAL AND INVESTMENT
CORPORATION

13. Arranger : PNB CAPITAL AND INVESTMENT
CORPORATION

14. Selling Agents : Not applicable

15. Trustee : PHILIPPINE  NATIONAL BANK TRUST
BANKING GROUP

16. Registrar and Paying Agent : PHILIPPINE DEPOSITORY & TRUST CORP.

17. Issuer Rating : PRS Aa minus (corp.), with stable outlook as
assigned by the Philippines Rating Services
Corp.

18. Governing Law : Philippine law

INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS

There are significant risks associated with the Commercial Papers, including counterparty risk,
country risk, price risk and liquidity risk. In making an investment decision, a prospective
purchaser must rely on their own investigation, examination and analysis of the Issuer and the
terms of the Commercial Papers, including, without limitation, the merits and risks involved,
an assessment of the Issuer's creditworthiness, such prospective purchasers own
determination of the suitability of any such investment with particular reference to its own
investment objectives and experience, and any other factors which may be relevant to it in
connection with such investment. The Issuer does not make any representation to any
prospective purchaser regarding the legality of participating in the Commercial Papers
Program under any law or regulation. Each person should be aware that it may be required to
bear the financial risks of any participation in the Commercial Papers Program for an indefinite
period of time. Prospective purchasers should consult their own counsel, accountants or other
advisors as fo legal, tax, business, financial and related aspects of the purchase of the
Commercial Papers, among others. Investing in the Commercial Papers involves certain risks.
Any decision to invest in the Commercial Papers must be based on the information contained
in the Selling Materials.



Signed:

P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.
By:
bh—

DENNIS A. UY
President and Chief Executive Officer







P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.
Stella Hizon Reyes Road,

Bo. Pampanga, Lanang

Davao City, Philippines

Telephone No. +6382 235 8888

P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (“Phoenix”, the “Issuer”, or the “Company”) is
offering for public distribution and sale in the Philippines (the “Offer” or “Offering”) commercial
papers with an aggregate principal amount of up to £3,500,000,000 (the “CP Series B”). The CP Series
B shall be issued on August 5, 2019 (the “Issue Date”), or such other date as may be agreed upon by
the Issuer and the Sole Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner.

The CP Series B is the second series of the Ten Billion Pesos (210,000,000,000) commercial papers
program of Phoenix (the “Commercial Papers Program™), which was rendered effective by the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) pursuant to SEC MSRD Order No. 36 (series of 2018)
on December 18, 2018. On the same date, the SEC issued a corresponding certificate of permit to offer
securities for sale allowing the issuance and reissuance of the Commercial Papers, in whole or in part,
in one or more series, within a three (3) year period commencing from December 18, 2018.

The CP Series B shall be issued at a fixed discount rate of 7.00% per annum and shall have a term
ending three hundred sixty (360) days from the Issue Date (or on July 30, 2020) (the “Maturity Date™).
Subject to the consequences of default as contained in the Master Trust Indenture, and unless otherwise
redeemed prior to the Maturity Date, the CP Series B will be redeemed at par (or 100% of face value)
and the CP Series B shall be repaid in full on the Maturity Date (or the subsequent Banking Day! if
such day falls on a day that is not a Banking Day without adjustment on the principal amount to be
repaid).

The CP Series B shall constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of
Phoenix and shall at all times rank pari passu and ratably without any preference or priority amongst
themselves and at least pari passu with all other present and future unsecured and unsubordinated
obligations of Phoenix, other than obligations preferred by law. The CP Series B shall effectively be
subordinated to the right of payment to, among others, all of Phoenix’s secured debts to the extent the
value of the assets securing such debt and all of its debt that is evidenced by a public instrument under
Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code of the Philippines (the “Civil Code™) without a waiver of preference
or priority.

The Company has appointed Philippine Depository & Trust Corp. (“PDTC™) as the registrar of the CP
Series B. It is intended that upon issuance, the CP Series B shall be issued in scripless form, with PDTC
maintaining the electronic registry of the holders of the CP Series B (the “CP Series B Holders”). The
CP Series B shall be listed on PDEx.

Assuming that the Offer is fully subscribed, the net proceeds of the Offer are estimated to be at least
P3,231,842,905 after deducting fees, commissions and expenses relating to the issuance. Net proceeds
of the CP Series B are intended to be used to refinance existing short-term loans of the Issuer which
were used to finance working capital requirements in relation to the regular importation of fuels and
lubricants by the Issuer (see the section entitled “Use of Proceeds” of this Information Memorandum).
The Sole Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner shall receive a fee of 0.30% on the final
aggregate nominal principal amount of the CP Series B.

The CP Series B shall be offered to the public at a discount to face value through the Sole Issue Manager,

' The term “Banking Day” shall mean a day, other than Saturday, Sunday and public holidays, on which facilities
of the Philippine banking system are open and available for clearing and banks are generally open for the
transaction of business in the city of Makati







that there is no material misstatement or omission of facts which would make any statement in this
Information Memorandum misleading in any material respect and that Phoenix hereby accepts full and
sole responsibility for the accuracy of the information contained in this Information Memorandum and
the Prospectus (the “Selling Materials™) with respect to the same.

Phoenix confirms that it has made all reasonable inquiries in respect of the information, data and
analysis provided to it by its advisors and consultants or which is otherwise publicly available for
inclusion into the Selling Materials. Phoenijx, however, has not independently verified any such publicly
available information, data or analysis.

Moreover, market data and certain industry data used throughout the Selling Materials, as applicable,
were obtained from market research, publicly available information and industry publications. Industry
publications generally state that the information contained therein has been obtained from sources
believed to be reliable, but that the accuracy and completeness of such information are not guaranteed.
Similarly, industry forecasts and market research, while believed to be reliable, have not been
independently verified, and Phoenix nor the Sole Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner
does not make any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness
of such information.

Unless otherwise indicated, all information in a Selling Material is as of the date of the relevant Selling
Material. Neither the delivery of the relevant Selling Material nor any sale made hereunder shall, under
any circumstance, create any implication that the information contained herein is correct as of any date
subsequent to the date hereof or that there has been no change in the affairs of Phoenix since such date.

Neither the delivery of the relevant Selling Material nor any sale made pursuant to the Offer shall, under
any circumstance, create any implication that the information contained or referred to in this
Information Memorandum is accurate as of any time subsequent to the date hereof. The Sole Issue
Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner does not make any representation or warranty, express
or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in the Selling Materials.

No person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation not contained in
any of the Selling Materials. If given or made, any such information or representation must not be relied
upon as having been authorized by Phoenix or the Sole Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole
Bookrunner. The Selling Materials do not constitute an offer of any securities, or any offer to sell or a
solicitation of any offer to buy any of the securities of Phoenix in any jurisdiction, to or from any person
to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation in such jurisdiction.

Before making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of the Company
and the terms of the CP Series B, including the risks involved (see the section entitled “Risks Factors”
of the Prospectus). These risks include:

e risks related to the Company’s business;

¢ risks relating to the Philippines; and

s  risks relating to the Commercial Papers.

The contents of the Selling Materials are not to be considered as definitive legal, business, investment,
or tax advice. Each prospective purchaser of the CP Series B receiving a copy of the Selling Materials
acknowledges that he has not relied on the Sole Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner in
his investigation of the accuracy of such information or in his investment decision. In making an
mvestment decision, a prospective purchaser must rely on their own investigation, examination and
analysis of the Company and the terms of the CP Series B, including, without limitation, the merits and
risks involved, an assessment of the Company’s creditworthiness, such prospective purchaser’s own
determination of the suitability of any such investment with particular reference to its own investrnent
objectives and experience, and any other factors which may be relevant to it in connection with such
investment. Neither Phoenix nor the Sole Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner makes




any representation to any prospective purchaser regarding the legality of participating in the Offer under
any law or regulation. Each person should be aware that it may be required to bear the financial risks
of any participation in the Offer for an indefinite period of time. Prospective purchasers should consuit
their own counsel, accountants or other advisors as to legal, tax, business, financial and related aspects
of the purchase of the CP Series B, among others. Investing in the CP Series B involves certain risks.

Any decision to invest in the CP Series B must be based on the information contained in the Selling
Materials.

Each person receiving the Selling Materials acknowledges that such person has not relied on the Sole
Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner or any person who controls it, or any director,
officer, employee, agent, affiliate or adviser of any such person, in connection with its investigation of
the accuracy of such information or its investment decision.

No dealer, salesman or other person has been authorized by Phoenix and the Sole TIssue Manager, Lead
Arranger and Sole Bookrunner to give any information or to make any representation concerning the
CP Series B other than as contained herein and, if given or made, any such other information or
representation should not be relied upon as having been authorized by Phoenix or the Sole Issue
Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner.

The financial information included in this Information Memorandum has been derived from the
unaudited consolidated financial statements of Phoenix and its subsidiaries. Unless otherwise indicated,
the description of the Company’s business activities in this Information Memorandum is presented on
a consolidated basis. Unless otherwise indicated, financial information in this Information
Memorandum has been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
(“PFRS™).

In this Information Memorandum, references to “Pesos” or “P” are to the lawful currency of the
Philippines. This Information Memorandum contains translations of certain amounts into U.S. Dollars
at specified rates solely for the convenience of the reader. In addition, unless otherwise indicated, US
Dollar/Philippine Peso exchange rates referred to in this Information Memorandum are Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas (“BSP”) reference exchange rates for the indicated period or on the applicable date, as
relevant. No representation is made that the Peso, U.S. Dollar, or other currency amounts referred to
herein could have been or could be converted into Pesos, U.S. Dollars, or any other currency, as the
case may be, at this rate, at any particular rate or at all. Figures in this Information Memorandum have
been subject to rounding adjustments. Accordingly, figures shown for the same item of information
may vary and figures which are totals may not be an arithmetic aggregate of their components.

This Information Memorandum includes forward-looking statements. Phoenix has based these forward-
looking statements largely on its current expectations and projections about future events and financial
trends affecting its business. The words “believes,” “may,” “will,” “estimates,” “continues,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “expects” and similar words are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. In light of these risks and uncertainties associated with forward-looking statements,
investors should be aware that the forward- looking events and circumstances discussed in this
Information Memorandum might not occur. Phoenix’s actual results could differ substantially from

those anticipated in Phoenix’s forward-looking statements.

Phoenix is organized under the laws of the Philippines. Its principal office address is Stella Hizon Reyes
Road, Bo. Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City, Philippines, with telephone number +6382 235 8888.

Any inquiries regarding this Information Memorandum should be addressed to P-H-O-E-N-I-X
Petroleurn Philippines, Inc. (Attention: Office of the Corporate Secretary) at Stella Hizon Reyes Road,
Bo. Pampanga, LLanang, Davao City, Philippines, with telephone number +6382 235 8888.




A REGISTRATION STATEMENT RELATING TO THESE SECURITIES HAS BEEN
FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (“SEC”),
WHICH REGISTRATION STATEMENT HAS BEEN RENDERED EFFECTIVE
PURSUANT TO SEC MSRD ORDER NO. 36 (SERIES OF 2018). IN ADDITION, A
CERTIFICATE OF PERMIT TO OFFER SECURITIES FOR SALE RELATING TO
THE SECURITIES HAS BEEN ISSUED BY THE SEC ON DECEMBER 18, 2018.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

All statements contained in this Information Memorandum that are not statements of historical fact
constitute “forward-looking statements.” This Information Memorandum contains forward-looking
statements that are, by their nature, subject to significant risks and uncertainties. These forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, statements relating to:

e known and unknown risks:

* uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results (financial or otherwise),
performance or achievements of Phoenix to be materially different from any expected future
results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements
or other projections.;

* cxpectations and projections of Phoenix or its management of future operating performance
and business prospects;

* the Company’s expected financial condition and results of operations, business, plans and
prospects;

» the Company’s business strategy, its revenue and profitability (including, without limitation,
any financial or operating projections or forecasts), planned projects and other matters
discussed in this Information Memorandum regarding matters that are not historical facts; and

* performance or achievements expressed or implied by forward-looking statements or other
projections.

The words “believe”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “project”, “foresee”, “may”, “plan”, “intend”,
“will”, “shall”, “should”, “would” and similar words identify forward-looking statements. However,
these words are not the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements. Such forward-
looking statements are based on assumptions regarding the present and future business strategies and
the environment in which Phoenix will operate in the future.

Significant factors that could cause some or all of the assumptions not to oceur or cause actual results,
performance or achievements to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements include,
among other things:

Changes in the prices of petroleum products and raw materials used by Phoenix;
General economic and business conditions in the Philippines, Asian or global economies;
Terms on which Phoenix finances its working capital and capital expenditure requirements;
The ability of Phoenix to successfully implement its strategies;
Any future political instability in the Philippines, Asia or other regions;
Industry risk (including accidents, natural disasters) in the areas in which Phoenix, its
subsidiaries and affiliates operate;
¢ Changes in government regulations, including those pertaining to regulation of the oil industry,
zoning, tax, subsidies, operational health, safety and environmental standards or licensing
requirements in the Philippines, Asia and other regions;
» Changes in interest rates, inflation rates and in the value of the Philippine Peso;
+ Changes in foreign exchange control regulations in the Philippines;
Increasing competition in the industries and segments in which Phoenix, its subsidiaries and
affiliates operate;
Holding company structure; and
e Changes in availability and supply of petroleum products and other raw materials used by
Phoenix, its subsidiaries and affiliates.

Prospective purchasers of the CP Series B are urged to consider these factors carefully in evaluating the
forward-looking statements. Should one or more of these uncertainties or risks, among others,
materialize, actual results may vary materially from those estimated, anticipated or projected as well as
from historical results. Specifically, but without limitation, revenues could decline, costs could increase,




capital costs could increase, capital investments could be delayed and anticipated improvements in
performance might not be realized fully or at all. Although Phoenix believes that the expectations of its
management as reflected by such forward-looking statements are reasonable based on information
currently available to it, no assurances can be given that such expectations will prove to have been
correct. Accordingly, prospective purchasers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on the forward-
looking statements herein. In any event, the forward-looking statements included herein are made only
as of the date of this Information Memorandum or the respective dates indicated herein, and Phoenix
and the Sole Issu¢ Manager, Lead Arranger and Sole Bookrunner expressly disclaim any obligation or
undertaking to release, publicly or otherwise, any updates or revisions to such forward-looking
statements contained herein to reflect subsequent events or circumstances.

The Sole Issue Manager, Lead Armranger and Sole Bookrunner does not take any responsibility for, or
give any representation, warranty, or undertaking in relation to any such forward-looking statements.




COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Company is engaged in the business of trading refined petroleum products, lubricants and other
chemical products, operation of oil depots and storage facilities and allied services. Its operations started
in Southern Mindanao and soon expanded in the islands of Luzon and Visayas. Its products and services
are distributed and marketed under the PHOENIX Fuels Life™ trademark. With a market share of 6.9%
of the Philippine oil market as of December 31, 2018, the Company is the largest independent oil
company in the Philippines that is engaged in all aspects of the local downstream oil industry.

The Company’s operations are divided between trading, and terminalling and hauling services. Under
trading, the Company offers its refined petroleum products and lubricants to retailers and industrial
customers. The Company sells its products through its network of retail service stations and has a total
of 615 retail service stations as of March 31, 2019. The retail service stations are classified as company-
owned-dealer-operated service stations (“CODO™), which account for 50.2% of the stations, dealer-
owned-dealer-operated service stations (“DODO?), which account for 48.9% of the stations, and
company-owned-company-operated service stations (“CQCO”), which account for the remaining
0.8%. For CODOs, the Company buys or leases the land and owns the retail service station structures
and equipment, but are operated by a third-party dealer. For DODOs, a third-party dealer buys or leases
the land, builds the retail service station structure according to Company specifications, leases the retail
service station equipment from the Company, and operates the DODOs. For COCOs, the Company
buys or leases the land, owns the retail service station structures and equipment, and operates the
stations. Its main areas of retail operations are in Luzon and Mindanao which account for 47.8 % and
38.7%, respectively, of the retail service stations established as of March 31, 2019, while its Visayas
operations account for the remaining 13.5% of the network.

The Company’s terminalling and hauling services involve leasing of storage space in its terminal depot,
hauling and into-plane services (hauling of Jet A1 fuel to airports and refueling of aircraft) in 18 airports,
including Davao, Cagayan de Oro, General Santos City, Cotabato City, Ozamis City, Pagadian City,
Zamboanga City, Dumaguit, Bacolod, Kalibo, lloilo, Caticlan, Tacloban, Cebu Mactan, Roxas City,
San Jose, Mindoro and Ninoy Aquino International Airport. Since 2005, the Company has been
providing all of Cebu Pacific’s terminal, hauling and into-plane requirements for its Mindanao
operations. The Company currently provides services to Cebu Pacific in a total of 18 domestic airports
consisting of two in Luzon, eight in Visayas, and eight in Mindanao.

The Company presently has a nationwide network of depots and retail service stations. Its industrial
customers include air, land and sea fransport companies and other industrial users.

Since its commercial operations in 2005, the Company has expanded rapidly and developed into the
fourth largest oil company in the Philippines as of December 30, 2018. The Company has achieved
these on the back of strong compounded annual sales volume growth of approximately 40.0% since its
public listing in 2007. As of March 31, 2019, the Company had a market capitalization of 17,148
million, based on the Company’s commeon share closing price of P12.22 on March 29, 2019, the last
trading day of the said month.

As at December 31, 2016, 2017 and 2018, the Company’s total assets were £26,538 million, 44,166
million and 64,660 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31,2016, 2017 and 2018, the
Company’s total revenues were $30,451 million, P44,543 million and 88,611 million, respectively,
and net profit was 1,092 million, £1,521 million and $2,767 million, respectively.

Recent Developments

The following are some of the significant developments involving the Company since December 13,
2018:




On December 20, 2018, the Company redeemed all of its issued and outstanding PNXP Preferred Shares
at a redemption price of P100 per share.

On December 27, 2018, the Company issued the first series of the Commercial Papers Program (CP
Series A) with an aggregate principal amount of £7,000,000,000.

On January 7, 2019, the stockholders of the Company representing a majority of the Corporation’s
issued and outstanding capital stock assented to the issuance by the Company of perpetual preferred
shares of up to $5,000,000,000, at an issue price of 1,000 per share, by way of public offering, subject
to registration with the SEC and listing with the PSE.

In February 2019, Phoenix Vietnam Pte. Ltd. (“PVPL”) acquired 75% equity interest in Origin LPG
(Vietnam) Limited Liability Company (“Origin Vietnam™), a company engaging in LPG marketing
and distribution in Vietnam. The remaining 25.0% equity interest is retained by Cong Ty Tnhh Cong
Nghiep (“CNI”), a local Vietnamese company specializing in the fabrication of pressurized vessels, as
the joint venture partner of PVPL. PVPL is wholly-owned by PNX Energy International Holdings Pte
Ltd (“PEIH™), which is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

On February 28, 2019, the Company entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (the “MOU”} with
Philippine National Oil Co. (“PNOC”) and CNOOC Gas and Power. The MOU provides that the three
companies shall explore and discuss business opportunities and cooperation in relation to their equity
investments in Tanglawan and other companies relating to the project, PNOC facilities, market
development, PNOC banked gas, and future energy projects.

On June 5, 2019, the Company redeemed 500,000 preferred shares. The said preferred shares form part
of the 2,000,000 preferred shares issued by the Company on December 5, 2018 through private
placement.

Strengths

The Company believes that its principal competitive strengths which contribute to its success include
the following:

e Largest independent oil player;

* Rapid and sustainable network expansion;

Strategic import terminal, depot and retail service station locations;
Integrated supply chain and logistics infrastructure;

Diverse and comprehensive service experience driving retail volumes;
Experienced management team and employees;

Strong brand recall.

Strategy Pillars
The Company’s principal strategies are set out below:

»  Strengthen the “brand;

¢ Grow position in markets with strong structural, macro drivers;

* Improve operational efficiency and drive synergies across the Group;

* Invest in future growth and innovation through partnerships and acquisition of new businesses
that have growth potential and synergies with its portfolio;

* [Enhance the quality of its cash flow generation




RISKS OF INVESTING

Before making an investment decision, prospective CP Series B Holders should carefully consider all
of the information set forth in this Information Memorandum and, in particular, prospective
Commercial Paper Holders should evaluate the risks associated with an investment in the Commercial

Papers.

See section entitled “Risk Factors™ of the Prospectus for a more detailed discussion on the risk

factors, These risks include:

Risks Relating to the Company’s Business and Operations

Internal Facrors

1.

The growth of the Company is dependent on the successful execution of its expansion plans;

2. The Company depends on experienced, skilled and qualified key personnel and senior
management, and its business and growth prospects may be disrupted if their services are lost;

3. Any significant disruption in operations or casualty loss at the Company’s storage and
distribution facilities could affect its business and results of operations and result in potential
liabilities;

4. The business requires significant capital expenditures and financing, which are subject to a
number of risks and uncertainties, that may affect the leverage position and profitability of the
company if it depends heavily on debt financing;

5. If the number or severity of claims for which the Company is insured increases, or if it is
required to accrue or pay additional amounts because the cost of damages and claims prove to
be more severe than its insurance coverage, the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations may be materially affected;

6. The Company’s controlling shareholder may have interests that may not be the same as those
of other shareholders;

7. The Company may fail to integrate acquired businesses properly, which could adversely affect
the Company’s results of operations and financial condition;

8. The Company’s public float is below 20%; and

9. The Company from time to time considers business combination alternatives.

External Factors

1. Volatility of the price of petroleum products may have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition;

2. The Company’s business, results of operations and financial condition may be affected by
intense competition in the downstream oil industry;

3. Regulatory decisions and changes in the legal and regulatory environment could increase the
Company’s operating costs and affects its business, results of operations and financial
condition;

4. The Company currently benefits from income tax holidays on the operation of certain depots.
If the Company did not have the benefit of income tax holidays, its profitability will be affected,
as it will have to pay income tax at the prevailing rates;

5. The Company may be affected by the Comprehensive Tax Reform Program;

6. The Company’s exposure to costs and liabilities arising from compliance with safety, health,
environmental and zoning laws and regulations may adversely affect its business, results of
operations and financial condition;

7. The Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations may be impacted by the
fluctuations in the value of the Philippine Peso against the U.S. Dollar;

8. Existing and future claims against the Company and its subsidiaries, or directors or key
management may pose as a reputational risk to the Company and its business;

9. The Company relies primarily on a small number of suppliers for a significant portion of its
petroleum products;

10. Failure to respond quickly and effectively to product substitution or government-mandated

product formulations may adversely affect the Comnpany’s business and prospects; and




11. Changes in applicable accounting standards may impact the Company’s businesses, financial

condition and results of operations.

Risks Relating to the Philippines

1.

2.

The Company’s business and sales may be negatively affected by slow growth rates and
economic instability globally and in the Philippines;

Political instability, acts of terrorism, military conflict, or changes in laws or government
policies in the Philippines could destabilize the country and may have a negative effect on the
Company;

The occurrence of natural or man-made catastrophes or major power outages may materially
disrupt the Company’s operations;

If foreign exchange controls were to be imposed, the Company’s ability to access foreign
currency to purchase petroleum, petroleum products, raw materials, equipment and other
imported products could be affected; and

Territorial and other disputes with China and a number of Southeast Asian countries may
disrupt the Philippine economy and business environment.

Risks Relating to the Commercial Papers

L.

(%)

The Company cannot guarantee that there will be an active or liquid trading market for the
Commercial Papers;

The Company may be unable to redeem the Commercial Papers;

The holder of the Commercial Papers may face a possible gain or incur a loss when they decide
to sell the Commercial Papers;

The Issuer may not be able to retain its credit rating; and

The Commercial Papers have no preference under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code.



SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following table sets forth financial and operating information of the Company. The information set
out below should be read in conjunction with, and is gualified in its entirety by reference to, the relevant
consolidated financial statements of the Company, including the notes thereto. The summary financial
data as of March 31, 2019 and 2018 and December 3 1, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were derived from the
Company's unaudited and audited consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto, which
are included in this Information Memorandum and from the Company’s 2018 annual report.

The consolidated financial statements as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016 were audited by
Punongbayan & Araullo. The consolidated financial information of the Company as of and for the three
months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 have not been audited by the Company’s independent auditor.
As a resull, the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the three months ended
March 31, 2019 and 2018 should not be relied upon by potential investors to provide the same quality
of information associated with information that has been subject to an audif. Potential investors must
exercise caution when using such data to evaluate the Company’s financial condition and results of
operations. The Company’s financial information included in this Information Memorandum were
prepared in accordance with the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards ( “PFRS"). The summary
Jinancial information set out below does not purport to project the resulls of operations or financial
condition of the Company for any future period or date. The Sole Issue Manager, Lead Arranger and
Sole Bookrunner and any of its affiliates, directors, officers and advisers disclaim all and any liability
whether arising in tort or contract or otherwise which it might otherwise have in respect of any financial
information of the Company.

Balance Sheet Data As at March 31 As at December 31
(Amounts in P Thousands) 2019 2018 2017 2016
Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 5,182,048 7,889,709 1,831,558 2,338,781
Trade and other receivables — net 14,591,618 15,030,715 7,705,308 8,789,006
Inventories — net 1,152,646 11,135,494 12,416,237 2,998,780
Due from related parties 937,904 937,904 518,005 1,506,998
Restricted deposits 53,422 52,719 51,282 50,925
Input value-added tax — net 1,282,592 1,517,537 1,773,091 731,736
Prepayments and other current assets 1,607,633 695,699 610,271 595,964
Total Current Assets P34,807,862 P37.259,777 P24,905,752] ¥P17,012,189
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment — net 21,797,612 18,715,995 13,399,980 9,002,313
Investment properties 1,738,846 1,739,021 1,114,780 .
Intangible assets — net 298,881 328,054 295,458 275,037
Investment in joint ventures 461,722 455,436 . .
Goodwill — net 5,070,794 4,418,843 3,990,667 10,222
Deferred tax assets — net 151,160 147,485 235,996 46,192
Other non-current assets 1,527,603 1,595,668 223,467 192,084
Total Non-current Assets P31,046,618 P27,400,501 P$19,260,348 $9,525,848
TOTAL ASSETS P65,854,480 P64,060.279 P44,166,100 P26,538,038
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES




CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 26,410,495 26,309,487 16,796,874 11,262,859
Trade and other payables 7,570,620 7,434,839 3,584,624 3,232,653
Income tax payable 12 99,381 3,671 100,283
Total Current Liabilities P33,981,127 P33,843,707 P$20,385,169 P14,595,795
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 13,327,193 13,590,520 11,374,560 1,921,565
Deferred tax Habilities — net 615,104 631,776 225,027 -
Other non-current liabilities — net 1,480,747 620,602 497 806 258,584
'Total Non-current Liabilities P15,423,044 14,842,899 P12,097,393  P2,180,149
TOTAL LIABILITIES P49,404,171 P48,686,606 P32,482,562] P16,775,944
EQUITY

Capital stock 1,112,004 1,112,004 1,456,538 1,123,097
\Additional paid-in capital 7,233,692 7,233,692 5,709,303 5,320,816
Revaluation reserves 827,510 827,510 {2,306 (12,148
Other reserves (730,362 (730,362) (730,362) (730,362
Accumulated translation adjustment (3,896) 24,928 (3,791) .
Retained earnings 8,039,690 7,542 844 5,254,155 4,060,690
Non-controlling interest (28,331) (36,945 . -
Total Equity P16,450,309 P15,973,673 ¥11,683,53§ P$9,762,094
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P65,854,480 64,660,279 P44.166,1000 ¥P26,538,038

Income Statement Data For the three months For the years ended

ended March 31 December 31
(Amounts in P Thousands, 2019 2018 2018 2017 2016
except Earnings per share) Unaudited | Unaudited Audited Audited Audited
Revenues 24,092,632 18,082,679 88,610,768 44,542,982 30,450,958
Cost and Expenses 23,071,473 17,277,042 84,580,715 42,552,1320 28,451,015
Other Charges 555,087 315,782 656,323 61,359 737,665
Profit Before Tax 466,072 489,855 3,373,730 1,929,490 1,262,278
Tax Expense 51,401 51,165 606,588 408,067 165,803
Net Profit 414,671 438,690 2,767,142 1,521,423 1,092,475
Other Comprehensive Income (28,824 26,064 801,097 6,051 10,753
Total Comprehensive Income 385,847 464,754 3,568,238 1,527,473 1,103,227
Basic Earnings per share 0.24 0.27 1.72 0.97 0.64
Diluted Earnings per share 0.24 0.27 1.72 0.96 0.64




The Offer relates to the second series of the Commercial Pap
to Three Billion Five Hundred Million Pesos (¥3,500,000,
its entirety by, and should be read in conjunction with, th
Information Memorandum, the Master Trust Indenture d

SUMMARY OF THE OFFERING

ers Program with a principal amount of up
000). The following summary is qualified in
& more detailed information appearing in the
ated December 13, 2019 between the Issuer

and the Trustee and the relevant issue supplement. The CP Series B is part of the Issuer’s Commercial
Papers Program. For a detailed discussion on the Commercial Papers Program, please refer to the
section entitled “Overview of the Commercial Papers Program” in pages 28 to 32 of the Prospectus).

Issuer

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (“Phoenix” or the “Issuer™)

Issue

The second series under the Issuer’s up to Ten Billion Pesos
($10,000,000,000) Commercial Papers Program (the “CP Series B™).

Issue Amount

Aggregate principal amount of up to Three Billion Five Hundred Million
Pesos (P3,500,000,000)

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds of the Issue are intended to be used for working capital
requirements and/or to refinance existing short-term loans of the Issuer.

Issue Price

The CP Series B will be issued at a discount to face value.

Manager, I.ead
Arranger and Sole

Form and The CP Series B shall be issued in scripless form in denominations of
Denomination P1,000,000 each, as a minimum, and in multiples of £100,000 thereafter.
Soie Issue PNB Capital and Investment Corporation (“PNB Capital”)

Bookrunner

Offer Period The Offer shall commence at 10:00 a.m. on July 29, 2019 and end at 5:00
p-m. on July 31, 2019, or on such other date as the Issuer and PNB Capital
may agree upon.

Issue Date August 5, 2019 or the immediately succeeding Business Day, if such Issue
Date is not a Business Day, or such other date as may be agreed upon by the
Issuer and PNB Capital.

Maturity Date Three hundred sixty (360) days from Issue Date or July 30, 2020; provided

that, in the event that such Maturity Date falls on a day that is not a Business
Day, the Maturity Date shall be the immediately succeeding Business Day.

Discount Rate

The CP Series B will be issued at a fixed discount rate of 7.00% per annum.

The Discount Rate shall be computed on a true-discount basis.

Final Redempticn

The CP Series B will be repaid in full (or 100% of face value) on the
Maturity Date.

If the principal repayment on the CP Series B is due on a day that is not a
Business Day, the principal repayment date shall be made on the
immediately succeeding Business Day. No additional interest will be paid
in such case.




Redemption for
Taxation Reasons

If payments under the CP Series B become subject to additional or increased
taxes other than the taxes and rates of such taxes prevailing on the Issue Date
as a result of certain changes in law, rule or regulation, or in the
interpretation thereof, and such additional or increased rate of such tax
cannot be avoided by use of reasonable measures available to the Issuer, the
Issuer may redeem the CP Series B in whole, but not in part, (having given
not more than sixty (60) nor less than thirty (30) days® prior written notice
to the Trustee) at par or 100% face value.

Status

The CP Series B shall constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and
unsubordinated Peso-denominated obligations of the Issuer and shall at all
times rank pari passu and ratably without any preference or priority amongst
themselves and at least pari passu with all other present and future unsecured
obligations of the Issuer, other than obligations mandatorily preferred by
law. The CP Series B shall effectively be subordinated to the right of
payment to, among others, all of Issuer’s secured debts to the extent the
value of the assets securing such debt and all of its debt that is evidenced by
a public instrument under Article 2244(14) of the Civil Code without a
waiver of preference or priority.

Negative Pledge

The CP Series B shall have the benefit of a negative pledge on all ex1st1ng
and future assets of the Issuer, subject to certain permitted liens.

Taxation

Except: (i) tax on a CP Series B Holder’s interest income on the CP Series
B which is required to be withheld by the Issuer, and (ii} capital gains
tax/income tax, documentary stamp tax and other taxes on the transfer of CP
Series B (whether by assignment or donation), if any and as applicable,
which are for the account of the CP Series B Holder, all payments of
principal and interest will be made free and clear of any deductions or
withholding for or on account of any present or future taxes or duties
imposed by or on behalf of the Republic of the Philippines or any political
subdivision, agency or instrumentality thereof, including, but not limited to,
issue, registration, or any similar tax or other taxes and duties, including
interest and penalties. If such taxes or duties are imposed, the same shall be
for the account of the Issuer; provided, however, that the Issuer shail not be
liable for, and will not gross-up the payments of interest on the principal
amount of the CP Series B so as to cover any final withholding tax
applicable on interest eamned on the CP Series B prescribed under the
National Internal Revenue Code of 1997, as amended, and its implementing
rules and regulations.

Documentary stamp tax on the original issue of the CP Series B and the
documentation, if any, shall be for the Issuer’s account.

A CP Series B Holder who is exempt from or is not subject to final
withholding tax on interest income may claim such exemption by submitting
to the Sole Issue Manager, together with its Application to Purchase: -

e Certified true copy of the (dated no carlier than required to be
considered valid under applicable tax regulations at the relevant
time) current and valid original tax exemption certificate, ruling or
opinion issued by the BIR confirming the exemption or preferential
rate. For this purpose, a tax exemption certificate or ruling shall be




deemed “valid, current and subsisting” if it has not been more than
3 years since the date of issuance thereof;

* A duly notarized undertaking (in the prescribed form and substance
by Phoenix) declaring and warranting that the same CP Series B
Holder named in the tax exemption certificate described in (a)
above, is specifically exempt from the relevant tax or is subject to a
preferential tax rate for the relevant tax, undertaking to immediately
notify Phoenix and the Registrar of any suspension or revocation of
its tax exemption certificates or preferential rate entitlement and
agreeing to indemnify and hold Phoenix, the Registrar and the
Paying Agent free and harmless against any claims, actions, suits
and liabilities resulting from the non-withholding of the required
tax; and

* Such other documentary requirements as may be required by
Phoenix, the Registrar or the Paying Agent under the applicable
regulations of the relevant taxing or other authorities, which for
purposes of claiming tax treaty withholding rate benefits shall
include a duly accomplished Certificate of Residence for Tax Treaty
Relief (CORTT) Form prescribed in Revenue Memorandum Order
No. 8-17, evidence of the applicability of a tax treaty provision, a
consularized proof of the CP Series B Holder’s legal domicile in the
relevant treaty state, and confirmation acceptable to the Issuer that
the Commercial Paper Holder is not doing business in the
Philippines; provided further that, upon submission of reasonable
evidence of exemption or preferential rate entitlement of the
Applicant to the Registrar, all sums payable by Phoenix to tax
exempt entities shall be paid in full without deductions for taxes,
duties, assessments or government charges from and to the extent
which the CP Series B Holder has adequately evidenced exemption.

The tax treatment of a CP Series B Holder may vary depending upon such
person’s particular situation and certain holders may be subject to special
rules not discussed above. This summary does not purport to address all the
aspects that may be important and/or relevant to a CP Series B Holder. CP
Series B Holders are advised to consult their own tax advisers on the
ownership and disposition of the CP Series B, including the applicability
and effect of any state, local or foreign tax laws.

Purchase and
Cancellation

The Issuer may at any time purchase any of the CP Series B in the open
market or by tender or by contract at market price, without any obligation to
make pro-rata purchase (and the CP Series B Holders shall not be obliged to
sell) from all CP Series B Holders. Any CP Series B so purchased shall be
redeemed and cancelled, and may be reissued as part of any subsequent
series of the Commercial Papers Program. Upon listing of the CP Series B
on PDEx, the Issuer shall disclose any such transactions in accordance with
the applicable PDEXx disclosure rules.

Issuer Rating

The Issuer has a rating of PRS Aa minus (corp.), with stable outlook, as
assigned by Philippines Ratings Services Corp.

Registrar and
Paying Agent

Philippine Depository & Trust Corp.




Trustee : PNB Trust Banking Group

Listing . The Issuer intends to list the CP Series B on the PDEx on Issue Date.

Governing Law :  Philippine Law







In case the net proceeds of the Offer will not be sufficient, the balance will be financed from the
Company’s internally generated funds.

Pending the above use of proceeds, the Company intends to invest the net proceeds of the Offer in short-
term liquid investments including, but not limited to, short-term government securities, bank deposits
and money market placements which are expected to earn prevailing market rates. In the event such
investments should incur losses, any shortfall will be financed from the Company’s interally generated
funds.

Except for the purposes stated in the preceding paragraphs, there are no other current plans for the
proceeds or any significant portion thereof. The proceeds shall not be used to reimburse any of the
officers, directors, employees or other shareholders for services rendered, assets previously transferred,
loans, advances or otherwise.

The Company undertakes that it will not use the net proceeds from the Offer for any purpose, other than
as discussed above. Any material or substantial deviation/adjustment/reallocation in the planned use of
proceeds shall be approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and the Company shall seek approval
of the SEC within 30 days prior to its implementation.






DESCRIPTION OF CP SERIES B

The CP Series B shall be governed by the terms and conditions applicable to each series of ithe
Commercial Papers. For purposes of this section, the term “Commercial Papers” shall be deemed to
include “CP Series B”, and the term “Commercial Paper Holders” shall be deemed to include “CP
Series B Holders ™.

The following is a description of certain terms and conditions of the Commercial Papers (the “Terms
and Conditions”). This description of the Terms and Conditions of the Commercial Papers set forth
herein does not purport to be complete and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the agreements
relating to the Commercial Papers, copies of which are available for inspection at the offices of the
Trustee. The Terms and Conditions set out in this section will, subject to amendment, be set out in the
Master Trust Indenture between the Issuer and the Trustee.

Prospective investors are enjoined to carefully review the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, By-
Laws, and resolutions of its Board of Directors, the information contained in this Information
Memorandum, the Master Trust Indenture, and other agreements relevant to the Offer such as the
Application to Purchase, and perform their own independent investigation and analysis of the Issuer
and the Commercial Papers. Prospective purchasers of the Commercial Papers are likewise
encouraged to consult their legal counsels and accountants in order to be better advised of the
circumstances swrounding the Commercial Papers.

GENERAL

The CP Series B are constituted by a Master Trust Indenture executed on December 13, 2018 (the
“Master Trust Indenture”) between the Issuer and PNB Trust Banking Group and the relevant issue
supplement to be issued by the Issuer in respect of the CP Series B (the “Trustee”, which term shall,
wherever the context permits, include all other persons or companies for the time being acting as trustee
or trustees under the Master Trust Indenture). The description of the Terms and Conditions of the
Commercial Papers set out below includes summaries of, and is subject to, the detailed provisions of
the Master Trust Indenture and the Master Registry and Paying Agency Agreement executed on
December 13, 2018 (the “Master Registry and Paying Agency Agreement”) among the Issuer,
Philippine Depository & Trust Corp. (“PDTC™), in its capacity as registrar (the “Registrar”) and the
paying agent (the “Paying Agent™).

PDTC has no interest in or relation to Phoenix which may conflict with its roles as Registrar and as
Paying Agent of the Commercial Papers. PNB Trust Banking Group has no interest in or relation to
Phoenix which may conflict with its role as Trustee for the Commercial Papers. PNB Trust Banking
Group is an affiliate of PNB Capital and Investment Corporation, the Sole Issue Manager for the CP
Series B.

Copies of the Master Trust Indenture and the Master Registry and Paying Agency Agreement are
available for inspection during normal business hours at the specified offices of the Trustee and the
Registrar, respectively. The Commercial Paper Holders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and
are deemed to have notice of, all the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture and are deemed to have
notice of those provisions of the Master Registry and Paying Agency Agreement applicable to them.

1. Form, Denomination and Title
{a) Form and Denomination
The Commercial Papers shall be issued m scripless form, in minimum denominations and

multiples to be set by the Issuer, in consultation with the Sole Issue Manager for each
Commercial Paper Series.




The CP Series B will be traded in denominations of 100,000 in the secondary market.
(h) Title

Legal title to the Commercial Papers shall be shown on and recorded in the Register of
Commercial Paper Holders maintained by the Registrar. A notice confirming the principal
amount of the Commercial Papers purchased by each applicant shall be issued by the Registrar
to all Commercial Paper Holders following the relevant [ssue Date. Upon any assignment, title
to the Commercial Papers shall pass by recording the transfer from a transferor to the transferee
in the Register of Commercial Paper Holders. Settlement in respect of such transfer or change
of title to the Commercial Papers, including the settlement of any cost arising from such
transfers, including, but not limited to, documentary stamps taxes, if any, shall be for the
account of the relevant Commercial Paper Holder or the transferee, as applicable.

(c) Issuer Credit Rating

The Commercial Papers have been rated PRS Aa minus (corp.) with a Stable Outlook® by
PhilRatings on November 23, 2018. In coming up with the rating, PhilRatings considered the
following factors: (i) continuous growth of the Company’s retail presence and market
leadership, especially among independent oil players; (ii) significant growth potential given the
entry into other related or complementary business ventures; and (iii) improving sales volume,
which, however, is offset by rising costs, expenses and finance charges.

The rating is subject to annual review, or more frequently as market developments may dictate,
for as long as the relevant Commercial Paper Series is outstanding. After the relevant Issue
Date, the Trustee shall monitor the compliance of each Commercial Paper Series with the
regular annual reviews.

2. Register and Secondary Trading
(a) Register of Commercial Paper Holders

The Issuer shall cause the Register of Commercial Paper Holders to be kept by the Registrar,
in electronic form, at the specified office of the Registrar.

A Master Certificate of Indebtedness representing the Commercial Papers issued with respect
to the relevant Commercial Paper Series shall be issued to and registered in the name of the
Trustee, on behalf of the Commercial Paper Holders. Legal title to the Commercial Papers shall
be shown in the Register of Commercial Paper Holders to be maintained by the Registrar. Initial
placement of the Commercial Papers and subsequent transfers of interests in the Commercial
Papers shall be subject to applicable Philippine selling restrictions prevailing from time to time.

The names and addresses of the Commercial Paper Holders and the particulars of the
Commercial Papers held by them and of all transfers of Commercial Papers shall be entered
into the Register of Commercial Paper Holders. Transfers of ownership shall be effected
through book-entry transfers in the scripless Register of Commercial Paper Holders.

As required by Circular No. 428-04 issued by the BSP, the Registrar shall send each
Commercial Paper Holder a written statement of registry holdings at least quarterly (at the cost
of the Issuer) and a written advice confirming every receipt or transfer of the Commercial
Papers that is effected in the Registrar’s system (at the cost of the Issuer). Such statement of
registry holdings shall serve as the confirmation of ownership of the relevant Commercial Paper

3 A Stable Outlook is defined as: “The rating is likely to be maintained or to remain unchanged in the next 12
months.”



Holder as of the date thereof. Any requests of Commercial Paper Holders for certifications,
reports or other documents from the Registrar, except as provided herein, shall be for the
account of the requesting Commercial Paper Holder. No transfers of the Commercial Papers
may be made during the period commencing the Record Date.

b) Transfers; Tax Status

Subject to the compliance with all procedures set forth under the Master Registry and Paying
Agency Agreement, and as the same may be amended by the Registrar with notice to the Issuer,
as well as payment by the relevant Commercial Paper Holder of the proper fees, if any, to PDEx
and/or the Registrar, a transfer or assignment of Commercial Papers may generally be done at
any time. The Registrar, however, shall not reflect any transfers in the relevant Registry
accounts where the same are restricted transfers on the Commercial Papers as follows:

(1) transfers between persons of varying tax status;
(i1) transfers by Commercial Paper Holders with deficient documents;
(1i1)  transfers during a Closed Period;

(iv) except as otherwise contemplated under the terms and conditions, none of the
Commercial Paper Holders shall have the right to require the Issuer to redeem
and repay any and all of the Commercial Papers before the Maturity Date.
Transfers of the Commercial Papers to a person other than the Issuer shall not
constitute pre-termination.

As used herein, the term “Closed Period” means the periods during which the Registrar shall
not register any transfer or assignment of the Commercial Papers, specifically the period of two
(2) Business Days preceding the due date for any payment of the principal amount of the
Commercial Papers.

A Commercial Paper Holder claiming tax-exempt status is required to submit a written
notification of the sale or purchase to the Registrar, including the tax status of the transferor or
transferee, as appropriate, together with the supporting documents specified under Master
Registry and Paying Agency Agreement upon submission of Account Opening Documents to
the Registrar.

Applicants claiming exemption or preferential rate from any applicable tax shall also be
required to submit the following documentary proof of its tax-exempt or preferential status
together with the Application to Purchase:

(1) Certified true copy of the (dated no earlier than required to be considered valid under
applicable tax regulations at the relevant time) current and valid original tax
exemption certificate, ruling or opinion issued by the BIR confirming the exemption
or preferential rate. For this purpose, a tax exemption certificate or ruling shall be
deemed “valid, current and subsisting” if it has not been more than 3 years since the
date of issuance thereof;

(ii) A duly notarized undertaking (in the prescribed form) declaring and warranting that
the same Commercial Paper Holder named in the tax exemption certificate described
in (a) above, is specifically exempt from the relevant tax or is subject to a preferential
tax rate for the relevant tax, undertaking to immediately notify Phoenix and the
Registrar of any suspension or revocation of its tax exemption certificates or
preferential rate entitlement and agreeing to indemnify and hold Phoenix, the




Registrar and the Paying Agent free and harmless against any claims, actions, suits
and liabilities resulting from the non-withholding of the required tax; and

(iii)  Such other documentary requirements as may be reasonably required by the Issuer or
the Registrar or Paying Agent under the applicable regulations of the relevant taxing
or other authorities, which for purposes of claiming tax treaty withholding rate
benefits shall include a duly accomplished Certificate of Residence for Tax Treaty
Relief (CORTT) Form prescribed in Revenue Memorandum Order No. 8-17, evidence
of the applicability of a tax treaty provision, a consularized proof of the Commercial
Paper Holder’s legal domicile in the relevant treaty state, and confirmation acceptable
to the Issuer that the Commercial Paper Holder is not doing business in the
Philippines.

{©) Registrar

For transfers and record updates, notices and communication with the Registrar may be made
thru the following:

Philippine Depository & Trust Corp.
37% Floor Enterprise Centre Tower [
Ayala Avenue, Makati City, Metro Manila

Telephone no: {632) 884-4425

Fax no: {632) 757-6025

E-mail: baby delacruz@pds.com.ph
Attention: Josephine Dela Cruz, Director

(d) Secondary Trading of the Commercial Papers

The Issuer intends to [ist each Commercial Paper Series on PDEx for secondary market trading.
Secondary market trading on PDEx shall follow the applicable PDEx rules, conventions, and
guidelines governing trading and settlement between Commercial Paper Holders of different
tax status and shall be subject to the relevant fees of PDEx and PDTC.

The CP Series B will be traded in & minimum board lot size of 100,000 as a minimum, and in
multiples of 100,000 in excess thereof for as long as any of the Commercial Paper are listed
on PDEXx.

Ranking

The Commercial Papers shall constitute the direct, unconditional, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of Phoenix and shall at all times rank pari passu and ratably without
any preference or priority amongst themselves and at least pari passu with all other present and
future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of Phoenix, other than obligations preferred
by law. The Commercial Papers shall effectively be subordinated to the right of payment to,
among others, all of Phoenix’s secured debts to the extent the value of the assets securing such
debt and all of its debt that is evidenced by a public instrument under Article 2244(14) of the
Civil Code without a waiver of preference or priority.

Interest

The Commercial Papers is a discounted security. Interest shall be discounted from the face
value of the Commercial Papers, accrued and payable on the relevant Maturity Dates (as defined
in the discussion on “Final Redemprtion™). The Discount Rate shall be calculated on a true-
discount basis based on the actual number of days to maturity and on the basis of a 360-day



year consisting of twelve (12) months of thirty (30} days each and, in the case of an incomplete
month, the number of days elapsed on the basis of a month of thirty (30) days.

Final Redemption, Purchase and Reissuance
{a) Final Redemption

Unless otherwise earlier redeemed, or previously purchased and cancelled, the Commercial
Papers shall be repaid in full (or 100% of face value) on the relevant Maturity Date, unless,
upon due presentation, payment of the principal in respect of the Commercial Papers then
outstanding is not made, is improperly withheld or refused, in which case the Penalty Interest
(sce “Penalty Interest”) shall apply. However, if the Maturity Date is not a Business Day,
payment of all amounts due on such date will be made by the Issuer through the Paying Agent,
without adjustment for accrued interest, on the succeeding Business Day.

The cut-off date in determining the existing Commercial Paper Holders entitled to receive
interest, principal amount or any amount due under each Commercial Paper Series shall be two
(2) Business Days prior to the relevant Maturity Date (the “Record Date™). No transfers of the
Commercial Papers may be made commencing on the Record Date.

(b) Purchase and Cancellation

The Issuer may at any time purchase any of the Commercial Papers in the open market or by
tender or by contract at market price, without any obligation to purchase (and the Commercial
Paper Holders shall not be obliged to sell) Commercial Papers pro-rata from all Commercial
Paper Holders. Any Commercial Papers so purchased shall be redeemed and cancelled. Upon
listing of each Commercial Paper Series on PDEx, the Issuer shall disclose any such
transactions in accordance with the applicable PDEx disclosure rules.

{c) Redemption for Taxation Reasons

If payments under the Commercial Papers become subject to additional or increased taxes other
than the taxes and rates of such taxes prevailing on the relevant Issue Date as a result of certain
changes in law, rule or regulation, or in the interpretation thereof, and such additional or
increased rate of such tax cannot be avoided by use of reasonable measures available to the
Issuer, the Issuer may redeem the Commercial Papers in whole, but not in part, (having given
not more than sixty (60) nor less than thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to the Trustee) at par
plus accrued interest, net of applicable withholding taxes.

(d) Change in Law or Circumstance

The following events shall be considered as changes in law or circumstances (“Change in Law
or Circumstance™) as it refers to the obligations of the Issuer and to the rights and interests of
the Commercial Paper Holders under the Master Trust Indenture and the Commercial Papers:

(0 Any govermnment and/or non-government consent, license, authorization, registration
or approval now or hereafier necessary to enable the Issuer to comply with its
obligations under the Master Trust Indenture or the Commercial Papers shall be
modified in a manner which, in the reasonable opinion of the Trustee, shall materially
and adversely affect the ability of the Issuer to comply with such obligations, or shall
be withdrawn or withheld.

(ii) Any provision of the Master Trust Indenture or any of the related documents is or shall
become, for any reason, invalid, illegal or unenforceable to the extent that shall become
for any reason unlawful for the Issuer to give effect to its rights or obligations




hereunder, or to enforce any provisions of the Master Trust Indenture or any of the
related documents in whole or in part, or any law shall be introduced to prevent or
restrain the performance by the parties hereto of their obligations under the Master
Trust Indenture or any other related documents.

(i)  Any concessions, permits, rights, franchise or privileges required for the conduct of the
business and operations of the Issuer shall be revoked, canceled or otherwise
terminated, or the free and continued use and exercise thereof shall be curtailed or
prevented, in such manner as to materially and adversely affect the financial condition
or operations of the Issuer.

(iv)  The Republic of the Philippines or any competent authority thereof takes any action to
suspend the whole or a substantial portion of the operations of the Issuer and to
condemn, seize, nationalize or appropriate (either with or without compensation) the
Issuer or any material portion of its properties or assets, unless such act, deed or
proceedings are contested in good faith by the Issuer.

If any one or more of the events enumerated as a Change of Law or Circumstance shall oceur
and be continuing for a period of thirty (30) days, the Majority Commercial Paper Holders, by
notice in writing delivered to the Issuer through the Trustee, afier the lapse of the said thirty
(30) day period, may declare the outstanding principal of the Commercial Papers, including all
accrued interest, net of applicable withholding taxes, and other charges thereon, if any, to be
immediately due and payable, and upon such declaration the same shall be immediately due
and payable, without any prepayment penalty, anything contained in the Master Trust Indenture
or in the Commercial Papers to the contrary notwithstanding, subject to the notice requirements
under the discussion on Notice of Defauit in the Terms and Conditions of the Commercial
Papers.

(e) Reissuance

Issuer reserves the right during the validity of the Registration Statement for the Commercial
Papers to (a) issue additional Commercial Papers; or (b) reissue (i} Commercial Papers that
mature and are repaid on the relevant Maturity Date; or (ii) Commercial Papers that are
repurchased by the Issuer on the open market (PDEx) prior to the relevant Maturity Date,
provided that, at any time during the three (3)-year validity of the Registration Statement, there
will be no more than P10,000,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of Commercial Papers
outstanding and none of the Commercial Papers will have a maturity date of 365 days or more;
provided that, at the maturity date of any Commercial Papers outstanding, the Issuer may re-
offer and reissue any of the Commercial Papers for another term of not more than 365 days;
provided further, that any and all relevant taxes, including, but not limited to, documentary
stamp tax on the indebtedness, shall be paid by the Issuer for each issuance and reissuance of
the Commercial Papers.

Payments

The principal of and all other amounts payable on the Commercial Papers shall be paid to the
Commercial Paper Holders by crediting of the cash settlement accounts designated by each of
the Commercial Paper Holders. The principal of the Commercial Papers shall be payable in
Philippine Pesos.

Payment of Additional Amounts; Taxation
Interest income on the Commercial Papers is subject to a final withholding tax at rates of

between twenty percent (20%) and thirty percent (30%) depending on the tax status of the
relevant Commercial Paper Holder under relevant law, regulation or tax treaty. Except for such




final withholding tax and as otherwise provided, all payments of principal and interest are to be
made free and clear of any deductions or withholding for or on account of any present or future
taxes or duties imposed by or on behalf of Republic of the Philippines, including, but not limited
to, issue, registration or any similar tax or other taxes and duties, including interest and
penalties, if any. If such taxes or duties are imposed, the same shall be for the account of the
Issuer; provided however that, the Issuer shall not be liable for the following:

(2)

(b)
(©

(d)

(e)

The withholding tax applicable on interest income earned on the Commercial Papers
prescribed under the Tax Code, as amended, and its implementing rules and regulations
as may be in effect from time to time. An investor who is exempt from the aforesaid
withholding tax, or is subject to a preferential withholding tax rate shall be required to
submit the following requirements to the Registrar, subject to acceptance by the Issuer
as being sufficient in form and substance:

(i)  certified true copy of the tax exemption certificate, ruling, or opinion issued by
the BIR confirming the exemption or preferential rate. For this purpose, a tax
exemption certificate or ruling shall be deemed “valid, current and subsisting” if
it has not been more than 3 years since the date of issuance thereof:

(i) a duly notarized undertaking, in the prescribed form, declaring and warranting
its tax exempt status or preferential rate entitlement, undertaking to immediately
notify the Issuer of any suspension or revocation of the tax exemption certificates
or preferential rate entitlement, and agreeing to indemmnify and hold the Issuer
and the Registrar free and harmless against any claims, actions, suits, and
liabilities resulting from the non-withholding of the required tax; and

(i)  such other documentary requirements as may be required by Phoenix, the
Registrar or the Paying Agent under the applicable regulations of the relevant
taxing or other authorities which for purposes of claiming tax treaty withholding
rate benefits, shall include a duly accomplished Certificate of Residence for Tax
Treaty Relief (CORTT) Form prescribed in Revenue Memorandum Order No. 8-
17, evidence of the applicability of a tax treaty and consularized proof of the
Commercial Paper Holder’s legal domicile in the relevant treaty state, and
confirmation acceptable to the Issuer that the Commercial Paper Holder is not
doing business in the Philippines; provided further that all sums payable by the
Issuer to tax exempt entities shall be paid in full without deductions for taxes,
duties assessments, or government charges, subject to the submission by the
Commercial Paper Holder claiming the benefit of any exemption of reasonable
evidence of such exemption to Phoenix, the Registrar, and the Lead
Arranger/relevant selling agent (if any);

Gross Receipts Tax under Section 121 of the Tax Code;

Taxes on the overall income of any securities dealer or Commercial Paper Holder,
whether or not subject to withholding;

Value-added Tax under Sections 106 to 108 of the Tax Code, and as amended by
Republic Act No. 9337; and

Any applicable taxes on any subsequent sale or transfer of the Commercial Papers by
any Commercial Paper Holder which shall be for the account of such Commercial Paper
Holder (or its buyer, as the holder and the buyer may have agreed upon).

Documentary stamp tax for the primary issue of the Commercial Papers and the execution of
the Commercial Paper Agreements, if any, shall be for the Issuer’s account. As used herein, the




term “Commercial Paper Agreements” shall mean the Master Trust Indenture, the Master
Registry and Paying Agency Agreement, the relevant underwriting agreement, and the relevant
Master Certificate of Indebtedness (inclusive of the Terms and Conditions), including any
amendment or supplement thereto.

See the section entitied “Philippine Taxation” of the Prospectus for a more detailed discussion
on the tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership and disposition (e.g. secondary transfer)
of the Commercial Papers.

Financial Ratios

The Issuer shall ensure that, for as long as any of the Commercial Papers remain outstanding,
and unless the Majority Commercial Paper Holders otherwise consents, a ratio of its total
Financial Indebtedness to Total Equity ratio does not exceed of 3.0:1.0 as referenced to its
consolidated audited financial statements as of its fiscal year ended 31 December and
consolidated interim financial statements as of 31 March, 30 June and 30 September of each
year .

Negative Covenants

For as long as any of the Commercial Papers remain outstanding, the Issuer covenants that it
shall not, without the prior written consent of the Commercial Paper Holders who hold,
represent or account for more than fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate principal amount of the
Commercial Papers then outstanding (the “Majority Commercial Paper Holders”™), sell all or
substantially all of its assets or businesses, permit any indebtedness for borrowed money to be
secured by or to benefit from any mortgage, pledge, lien or encumbrance constituted on any of
the Issuer’s properties for the purpose of securing its or its Affiliate’s obligation (a “Lien”) in
favor of any creditor or class of creditors without providing the Commercial Paper Holders with
a Lien, the benefit of which is extended equally and ratably among them to secure the
Commercial Papers; provided however that, this restriction shall not prohibit “Permitted
Liens,” which are:

(a) Liens for taxes, assessments or governmental charges or levies, including custom
duties, which are being contested in good faith;

(b Liens arising by operation of law (except any preference or priority under Article 2244,
paragraph 14(a) of the Civil Code of the Philippines) on any property or asset of the
Issuer or a Subsidiary, including, without limitation, amounts owing to a landlord,
carrier, warchouseman, mechanic or material manor other similar liens arising in the
ordinary course of business or arising out of pledges or deposits under workers’
compensation laws, unemployment, insurance and other social security laws;

(c) Liens incurred or deposits made in the ordinary course of business to secure (or obtain
letters of credit that secure) the performance of tenders, statutory obligations or
regulatory requirements, performance or return of money bonds, surety or appeal
bonds, bonds for release of attachment, stay of execution or injunction, bids, tenders,
leases, government contracts and similar obligations) and deposits for the payment of
rent;

(d) Liens created by or resulting from any litigation or legal proceeding which is effectively
stayed while the underlying claims are being contested in good faith by appropriate
proceedings and with respect to which the Issuer has established adequate reserves on
its books in accordance with Philippine Accounting Standards (“PAS”)/Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (“PFRS™);
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(i)
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(k)
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Liens arising from leases or subleases granted to others, easements, building and zoning
restrictions, rights-of-way and similar charges or encumbrances on real property
imposed by applicable Law or arising in the ordinary course of business that are not
incurred in connection with the incurrence of a debt and that do not materially detract
from the value of the affected property or materially interfere with the ordinary conduct
of business of the Issuer or its Subsidiary;

Liens incidental to the normal conduct of the business of the Issuer or its Subsidiary or
ownership of its properties and which are not incurred in connection with the incurrence
of a debt and which do not impair the use of such property in the operation of the
business of the Issuer or its Subsidiary or the value of such property for the purpose of
such business;

Liens upon tangible personal property acquired in the ordinary course of business after
the date hereof (by purchase or otherwise) granted by the Issuer or its Subsidiary to the
vendor, supplier, any of their affiliates or lessor of such property;

Liens arising from financial lease, hire purchase, conditional sale arrangements or other
agreements for the acquisition of assets entered into in the ordinary course of business
on deferred payment terms to the extent relating only to the assets which are subject of
those arrangements, subject to such financial leases, hire purchase, conditional sale
agreements or other agreements for the acquisition of such assets on deferred payment
terms;

Liens arising over any asset to secure: (i) the payment of the purchase price or cost of
leasehold rights of such asset; (ii} the payment of the cost and expenses for the
development of such asset pursuant to any development made or being made by the
Issuer or its Subsidiary in the ordinary course of business; (iii) the payment of any
indebtedness in respect of borrowed money (including extensions and renewals thereof
and replacements therefor) incurred for the purpose of financing the purchase, lease or
development of such asset; or (iv) the rediscounting of receivables of the Issuer or its
Subsidiary;

Rights of set-off arising in the ordinary course of business between the Issuer or its
Subsidiary and its suppliers, clients or customers;

Netting or set-off arrangement entered into by the Issuer or its Subsidiary in the
ordinary course of business of its banking arrangements for the purpose of netting debt
and credit balances; and

Any Lien to be constituted on the assets of the [ssuer or its Subsidiary after the date of
the Master Trust Indenture, which is disclosed in writing by the Issuer or its Subsidiary
to the Trustee prior to the execution of the Master Trust Indenture.

Events of Default

The Issuer shall be considered in default under the Commercial Papers and the Master Trust
[ndenture in case any of the following events (each an “Event of Default™) shall occur and is
continuing:

(a)

Payment Default

The Issuer fails to pay when due and payable any amount which the Issuer is obliged to pay to
the Commercial Paper Holders under the Master Trust Indenture and the Commercial Papers,
and such failure, if due to causes other than the willful misconduct or gross negligence of the




Issuer, is not remedied within five (5) Business Days from receipt by the Issuer of written notice
of such non-payment from the Trustee.

(b) Representation/Warranty Default

Any representation and warranty of the Issuer hereof or any certificate or opinien submitted
pursuant hereto proves to have been untrue, incorrect or misleading in any material respect as
and when made and the circumstances which cause such representation or warranty to be
incorrect or misleading continue for not less than fourteen (14) days (or such longer period as
the Majority Commercial Paper Holders shall approve) after receipt of written notice from the
Commercial Paper Holders to that effect.

() Other Default

The Issuer fails to perform or violates any other provision, term of the Master Trust Indenture
and the Commercial Papers, and such failure or violation is not remediable or, if remediable,
continues to be unremedied after the applicable grace period, or in the absence of such grace
period, after thirty (30) days from the date of occurrence of the said violation with respect to
the covenant to maintain the prescribed financial ratio, (particularly a Debt to Equity Ratio of
3:1 and within ten (10) Business Days from the date of the occurrence of said violation, with
respect to any other covenant or obligation; provided that, the Events of Default constituting
insolvency initiated by the Issuer or closure default, or a violation of a negative covenant shall
not be remediable.

(d) Cross Default

The Issuer violates any material term or condition of any contract executed by the Issuer with
any bank, financial institution or other person, corporation or entity for the payment of
borrowed money which constitutes an event of default under said contract, or in general,
violation of any, law or regulation which violation, if remediable, is not remedied by the Issuer
within ten (10) Business Days from receipt of notice by the Trustee to the Issuer, or which
violation is otherwise not contested by the Issuer, and the effect of such violation results in the
acceleration or declaration of the whole financial obligation to be due and payable prior to the
stated normal date of maturity; and which violation shall, further, in the reasonable opinion of
the Trustee, adversely and materially affect the performance by the Issuer of its obligations
under the Master Trust Indenture and the Commercial Papers; provided however that, no event
of default shall occur under this paragraph unless the aggregate amount of indebtedness in
respect of which one or more of the events above mentioned has/have occurred equals or
exceeds $500,000,000.

(e) Insolvency Default

The Issuer becoines insolvent or unable to pay its debts when due or commits or permits any
act of bankruptcy, which term shall include, but shali not be limited to: (i) filing of a petition in
any bankruptcy, reorganization (other than a labor or management reorganization), winding-
up, suspension of payment or liquidation proceeding, or any other proceeding analogous in
purpose and effect; (ii) appointment of a trustee or receiver of all or a substantial portion of its
properties; (1ii) making of an assignment for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) the admission in
writing by the [ssuer of its inability to pay its debts; or (v) the entry of any order or judgment
of any court, tribunal or administrative agency or body confirming the bankruptcy or insolvency
of the Issuer or approving any reorganization (other than a labor or management
reorganization), winding-up, liquidation or appointment of trustee or receiver of the Issuer or a
substantial portion of its property or assets.

63} Judgment Default




Any final judgment, decree or arbitral award for the sum of money, damages or for a fine or
penalty in excess of 500,000,000 or its equivalent in any other currency is entered against the
Issuer and the enforcement of which is not stayed, and is not paid, discharged or duly bonded
within thirty (30) calendar days after the date when payment of such judgment, decree or award
is due under the applicable law or agreement.

(2) Writ and Similar Process Default

Any judgment, writ, warrant of attachment, injunction, stay order, execution or similar process
shall be issued or levied against any material part of the Issuer’s assets and such judgment, writ,
warrant or similar process shall not be released, vacated or fully bonded within thirty (30)
calendar days after its issue or levy.

() Closure Default

The Issuer voluntarily suspends or ceases operations of a substantial portion of its business for
a continuous period of thirty (30) calendar days except in the case of strikes or lockouts or when
necessary to prevent business losses or when due to fortuitous events or force majeure.

11. Notice of Default

The Trustee shall, within ten (10) Business Days after receiving notice, or having knowledge
of, the occurrence of any Event of Default under any of the Commercial Papers, give to the
Commercial Paper Holders written notice of such default known to it, unless the same shall
have been cured before the giving of such notice; provided that, in the case of payment default,
as described in the section Payment Default in the Terms and Conditions of the Commercial
Papers, the Trustee shall immediately notify the Commercial Paper Holders upon the
occurrence of such payment default. The existence of a written notice required to be given to
the Commercial Paper Holders hereunder shall be published in a newspaper of general
circulation in Metro Manila for two (2) consecutive days, further indicating in the published
notice that the Commercial Paper Holders or their duly authorized representatives may obtain
an important notice regarding the Commercial Papers at the principal office of the Trustee upon
presentment of sufficient and acceptable identification.

12, Consequences of Default

(a) If any one or more of the Events of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, and
has not been waived in writing by the Majority Commercial Paper Holders, the Trustee
may on its own, or upon the written direction of the Majority Commercial Paper
Holders whose written instructions/consents/letters shall delivered to the Issuer, with a
copy furnished to the Paying Agent and Registrar, or the Majority Commercial Paper
Holders, by notice in writing delivered to the Issuer and the Trustee, with a copy
furnished to the Paying Agent and Registrar, declare the Issuer in default (“Declaration
of Default™) and declare the principal of the Commercial Papers, including all accrued
interest, net of applicable withholding taxes, and other charges thereon, if any, to be
immediately due and payable, and upon such declaration the same shall be immediately
due and payable, without presentment, demand, protest, or further notice of all kinds,
all of which are hereby expressly waived by the Issuer. A copy shall be furnished to
the Paying Agent who shall then prepare a payment report in accordance with the
Master Registry and Paying Agency Agreement. Thereupon the Issuer shall make all
payments due on the Commercial Papers in accordance with the Master Registry and
Paying Agency Agreement.
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(13)] This provision, however, is subject to the condition that, except m the case of a Writ
and Similar Process Default, the Majority Commercial Paper Holders, by written notice
to the Issuer and the Trustee may, during the prescribed curing period, if any, rescind
and annul such Declaration of Default made by the Trustee pursuant to a consequence
of default, and the consequences of such declaration, upon such terms, conditions and
agreement, if any, as they may determine; provided that, no such rescission and
annulment shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent default or shall impair any
right consequent thereon. Any such rescission and annulment of a Declaration of
Default shall be conclusive and binding upon all the Commercial Paper Holders and
upon all future holders and owners of the Commercial Papers.

(c) At any time after any Declaration of Default under any Commercial Papers, and such

declaration has not been waived by the Majority Notcholders, the Trustee may, with
notice in writing to the Issuer:

(i) require the Registrar and the Paying Agent to deliver all sums, documents, and
records held by them in respect of the Commercial Papers to the Trustee or as
the Trustee shall direct in such notice, provided that, such notice shall be
deemed not to apply to any document or record which the Paying Agent or
Registrar is not obliged to release by any law or regulation or contract
(including the RPAA), and

(i)  require the Issuer to make all subsequent payments in respect of the
Commercial Papers to the order of the Trustee and with effect from the issue
of any such notice until such notice is withdrawn, proviso (i) above and the
Issuer’s positive covenant to pay principal and interest, net of applicable
withholding taxes, on the Commercial Papers, more particularly set forth in the
Master Trust Indenture, shall cease to have effect.

Penalty Interest

In case any amount payable by the Issuer under any of the Commercial Papers, whether for
principal, interest, or otherwise, is not paid when due, the Issuer shall, without prejudice to its
obligations to pay the said principal, interest, net of applicable withholding taxes, and other
amounts, pay penalty interest to the Commercial Paper Holders on the defaulted amount(s) at
the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum (the “Penalty Interest”)} from the time the amount
falls due until it is fully paid.

Payment in the Event of Default

The Issuer covenants that upon the occurrence of any Event of Default under any of the
Commercial Papers shall have occurred and be continuing, and has not been remedied or
waived by the Majority Commercial Papers Holders, then, in any such case, the Issuer shall pay
to the Commercial Paper Holders, through the Paying Agent, and provided that there has been
a Declaration of Default and acceleration of payment pursuant to “Consequences of Default”,
the whole amount which shall then have become due and payable on all such outstanding
Commercial Papers with interest at the rate borne by the Commercial Papers on the overdue
principal, net of applicable withholding taxes, and with Penalty Interest as described above, and
in addition thereto, the Issuer shall pay to the Trustee such further amounts as shall be
determined by the Trustee to be sufficient to cover the cost and expenses of collection, including
reasonable compensation to the Trustee, its agents, attorneys and counsel, and any reasonable
expenses or liabilities incurred without negligence or bad faith by the Trustee hereunder.

The Issuer shall reimburse the Trustee all reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection
with enforcing payment of principal and/or interest on the Commercial Papers upon the
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occurrence of an Event of Default. Notwithstanding any contrary provision, any such costs
incurred by the Trustee shall not require the prior approval of the Issuer.

Application of Payments

Any money collected or delivered to the Paying Agent, and any other funds held by it, subject
to any other provision of the Master Trust Indenture and the Master Registry and Paying
Agency Agreement relating to the disposition of such money and funds, shall be applied by the
Paying Agent in the order of preference as follows: (a) to the pro-rata payment to the Trustee,
the Paying Agent, and the Registrar of the costs, expenses, fees, and other charges of collection,
including reasonable compensation to them, their agents, attorneys and counsel, and all
reasonable expenses and liabilities incurred or disbursements made by them, without gross
negligence or bad faith; (b) to the payment of the Penalty Interest, net of withholding taxes, in
the order of the maturity of the relevant Commercial Papers; (c) to the payment of the principal
amount of the Commercial Papers then due and unpaid, which payment shall be made pro-rata
among the Commercial Paper Holders; and (d) the remainder, if any, shall be paid to the Issuer,
its successors or assigns, or to whoever may be lawfully entitled to receive the same, or as a
court of competent jurisdiction may direct. Except for any interest and principal payments, all
disbursements of the Paying Agent in relation to the Commercial Papers shall require the
conformity of the Trustee. The Paying Agent shall deliver to the Trustee and the Issuer a
certification of the funds to be applied for payment, and a schedule of payments to be made in
accordance with the conditions.

Prescription

Claims in tespect of principal and interest or other sums payable hereunder shall prescribe
unless made within ten (10) years (in the case of principal or other sums) or five (5) years (in
the case of interest) from the date on which payment becomes due.

Remedies

All remedies conferred by the Master Trust Indenture and these Terms and Conditions to the
Trustee and the Commercial Paper Holders shall be cumulative and not exclusive and shall not
be so construed as to deprive the Trustee or the Commercial Paper Holders of any legal remedy
by judicial or extra judicial proceedings appropriate to enforce the conditions and covenants of
the Master Trust Indenture, subject to the discussion on 4bility to File Suit in the Terms and
Conditions of the Commercial Papers.

No delay or omission by the Trustee or the Commercial Paper Holders to exercise any right or
power arising from or on account of any default hereunder shall impair any such right or power,
or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or an acquiescence thereto; and every
power and remedy given by the Master Trust Indenture to the Trustee or the Commercial Paper
Holders may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be necessary or expedient.

Ability to File Suit

No Commercial Paper Holder shall have any right by virtue of or by availing of any provision
of the Master Trust Indenture to institute any suit, action or proceeding for the collection of any
sum due from the Issuer hereunder on account of principal, interest, net of applicable
withholding taxes, and other charges, or for the appointment of a receiver or trustee, or for any
other remedy hereunder, unless (i) such Commercial Paper Holder previously shall have given
to the Trustee written notice of an Event of Default and of the continuance thereof and the
related request for the Trustee to convene a meeting of Commercial Paper Holders to take up
matters related to their rights and interests under the Commercial Papers; (i) the Majority
Commercial Paper Holders shall have decided and made the written request upon the Trustee
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to institute such action, suit or proceeding in the latter’s name: (ii1) the Trustee, for sixty (60)
days after the receipt of such notice and request shall have neglected or refused to institute any
such action, suit or proceeding; and (iv) no directions inconsistent with such written request
shall have been given under a waiver of default by the Commercial Paper Holders, it being
understood and intended, and being expressly covenanted by every Commercial Paper Holder
with every other Commercial Paper Holder and the Trustee, that no one or more Commercial
Paper Holders shall have any right in any manner whatever by virtue of or by availing of any
provision of the Master Trust Indenture to affect, disturb or prejudice the rights of the holders
of any other such Commercial Papers or to obtain or seek to obtain priority over or preference
to any other such holder or to enforce any right under the Master Trust Indenture, except in the
manner herein provided and for the equal, ratable and common benefit of all the Commercial
Paper Holders.

Waiver of Default by the Commercial Paper Holders

The Majority Commercial Paper Holders may direct the time, method and place of conducting
any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee or exercising any trust or power
conferred upon the Trustee, or may, on behalf of the Commercial Paper Holders waive any past
default, except the events of default defined as a payment default, breach of representation or
warranty default, insolvency default, or closure default, and its consequences. In case of any
such waiver, the Issuer, the Trustee and the Commercial Paper Holders shall be restored to their
former positions and rights hereunder; provided however that, no such waiver shall extend to
any subsequent or other default or impair any right consequent thereto. Any such waiver by the
Majority Commercial Paper Holders shall be conclusive and binding upon all Commercial
Paper Holders and upon all future holders and owners thereof, irrespective of whether or not
any notation of such waiver is made upon the certificate representing the Commercial Papers.

Trustee; Notices
(a) Notice to the Trustee
All documents required to be submitted to the Trustee pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture

and this Information Memorandum and all correspondence addressed to the Trustee shall be
delivered to:

To the Trustee: PNB Trust Banking Group

Attention: Josephine E. Jolejole

Designation: Head, Fiduciary Services Division

Subject: Phoenix Commercial Papers Series B

Address: Trust Banking Group — Fiduciary Services Division
Philippine National Bank

3F PNB Financial Center President Diosdado Macapagal
Boulevard, Pasay City, Philippines

Telephone: (632) 573-4657

Facsimile: (632) 526-3379

All documents and correspondence not sent to the above-mentioned address shall be considered
as not to have been sent at all.

Any requests for documentation or certification and other similar matters must be
communicated by the Commercial Paper Holder to the Trustee in writing and shall be subject
to review, acceptance and approval by the Trustee. Upon such acceptance and approval, the
Commercial Paper Holder shall pay to the Trustee upfront a fee of 1,500 (the “Activity Fee”)
plus the costs of legal review, courier and the like. The Activity Fee may be adjusted from time
to time, at the discretion of the Trustee.
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In the absence of any applicable period stated elsewhere in these Conditions, written requests
shall be reviewed and, if accepted and approved, addressed by the Trustee within ninety (90)
days from receipt. This period may be extended should the Trustee be unable to review and
address the requests for causes not attributable to the Trustee.

(b) Notice to the Commercial Paper Holders

The Trustee shall send all Notices to Commercial Paper Holders to their mailing address as set
forth in the Register of Commercial Paper Holders. Except where a specific mode of
notification is provided for herein, notices to Commercial Paper Holders shall be sufficient
when made in writing and transmitted in any one of the following modes: (i) registered mail;
(ii) surface mail; (iii) by one-time publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the
Philippines; or (iv) personal delivery to the address of record in the Register of Commercial
Paper Holders. The Trustee shall rely on the Register of Commercial Paper Holders in
determining the Commercial Paper Holders entitled to notice. All notices shall be deemed to
have been received () ten (10) days from posting if transmitted by registered mail; (ii) fifteen
(15) days from mailing, if transmitted by surface mail; (iii) on date of publication or (iv) on
date of delivery, for personal delivery.

The publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the Philippines of a press release or
news item about a communication or disclosure made by Issuer to the Philippine SEC or the
PSE on a matter relating to the Commercial Papers shall be deemed a notice to Commercial
Paper Holders of said mafter on the date of the first publication.

{c) Binding and Conclusive Nature

Except as provided in the Master Trust Indenture, all notifications, opinions, determinations,
certificates, calculations, quotations and decisions given, expressed, made or obtained by the
Trustee for the purposes of the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture, shall (in the absence
of willful default, bad faith or manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, and all Commercial
Paper Holders and (in the absence as referred to above) no liability to the Issuer, the Paying
Agent or the Commercial Paper Holders shall attach to the Trustee in connection with the
exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions under the Master Trust
Indenture.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Trustee

(a) The Trustee is hereby appointed as trustee for and on behalf of the Commercial Paper
Holders and accordingly shall perform such duties and shall have such responsibilities
as expressly provided in the Master Trust Indenture.

)] The Trustee shall, in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Master Trust
Indenture, monitor the compliance or non-compliance by the Issuer with all its
representations and warranties, and the observance by the Issuer of all its covenants
and performance of all its obligations under and pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture.
The Trustee shall not be presumed to have knowledge of any Event of Default.

() The Trustee shall, prior to the occurrence of an Event of Default or after the curing of
all such defaults which may have occurred, perform only such duties as are specifically
set forth in the Master Trust Indenture.

(d) In case of default, the Trustee shall exercise such rights and powers as are specifically
set forth in the Master Trust Indenture and use such judgment and care under the
circumstances then prevailing that an individual of prudence, discretion and
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intelligence, and familiar with such matters exercise in the management of their own
affairs.

The Trustee, in the performance of its duties, shall exercise such rights and powers
vested in it by the Master Trust Indenture, with the care, prudence and diligence
necessary under the circumstances then prevailing that a prudent man, acting in like
capacity and familiar with such matters, would exercise in the conduct of an enterprise
of like character and with similar aims, and use such judgment and care under the
circumstances then prevailing that individuals of prudence, discretion, and intelligence,
and familiar with such matters, exercise in the management of their own affairs.

The Trustee shall submit to the Commercial Paper Holders a brief report within ninety
(90) days from the making of any advance for the reimbursement of which it claims or
may claim a lien or charge which is prior to that of the Commercial Paper Holders on
the property or funds held or collected by the Paying Agent with respect to the
character, amount, and the circumstances surrounding the making of such advance;
provided that such advance remaining unpaid amounts to at least 10% of the aggregate
outstanding principal amount of the Commercial Papers at such time.

The Trustee may, from time to time, request the Issuer to submit certifications of its
officers, reports of its external auditors, and other documents relating to the Issuer’s
ability to comply with its obligations under the Commercial Papers and the Master
Trust Indenture, as well as to examine such records of the Issuer as may be related to
the Issuer’s obligations under the Commercial Papers and the Master Trust Indenture.

The request shall be reasonable, made not less than 72 hours prior to the intended date
of examination, and shall be in writing addressed to the Issuer and including in
reasonable detail the purpose for such request and the intended use of the requested
documents or information. The Issuer may require the Trustee, its directors, officers,
employees, representatives, agents, partners, consultants, and advisors to hold in
confidence such documents and information furnished to the Trustee pursuant to said
request or to limit the use thereof for the purpose intended, as stated in the request;
provided that such requirement or limitation shall not apply if the same conflicts with
the duties and responsibilities of the Trustee under any provision of the Master Trust
Indenture or conflicts with any Law.

The Trustee shall hold on behalf of the Commercial Paper Holders the Master
Certificate of Indebtedness for the total issuance.

Unless a fixed period is otherwise specified in the Master Trust Indenture and in the
absence of a period specifically agreed to by the Trustee and the Issuer and in the case
of notices required to be sent by the Trustee to Commercial Paper Holders, the Trustee
must act promptly in the sending of such notices but in any case shall have a period of
not more than thirty (30) days to complete the sending of all such notices in the manner
allowed by the Master Trust Indenture.

Notwithstanding the above, the Trustee, on its own discretion, may send notices or
disclose to the Commercial Paper Holders any fact, circumstance or event, which
would have the effect of effectively reducing the principal amount of the Commercial
Papers then outstanding, including changes in Laws,

For the avoidance of doubt, the Trustee shall perform such other powers and functions
as provided for elsewhere in the Master Trust Indenture.
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Resignation and Change of Trustee

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

The Trustee may at any time resign by giving thirty (30) days’ prior written notice to
the Issuer and to the Commercial Paper Holders of such resignation.

Upon receipt of such notice of resignation of the Trustee, the Issuer shall immediately
appoint a successor Trustee by written instrument in duplicate, executed by its
authorized officers, one copy of which instrument shall be delivered to the resigning
Trustee and one copy to the successor Trustee. However, notwithstanding the
immediately preceding sentence, in cases where an Event of Default shall have
occurred and be continuing, it is the Majority Commercial Paper Holders, not the
Issuer, that shall appoint the successor Trustee. If no successor shall have been so
appointed and have accepted appointment within thirty (30) days after the giving of
such notice of resignation, the resigning Trustee may petition any court of competent
jurisdiction for the appointment of a successor, or any Commercial Paper Holder who
has been a bona fide holder for at least six (6) months (the “Bona Fide Commercial
Paper Holder”) may, for and in behalf of the Commercial Paper Holders, petition any
such court for the appointment of a successor. Such court may thereupon after notice,
if any, as it may deem proper, appoint a successor Trustee. Subject to Section {e) below,
a successor Trustee must possess all the qualifications required under pertinent laws.

In case at any time the Trustee shall become incapable of acting, or has acquired
conflicting interest, or shall be adjudged as bankrupt or insolvent, or a receiver for the
Trustee or of its property shall be appointed, or any public officer shall take charge or
control of the Trustee or of its properties or affairs for the purpose of rehabilitation,
conservation or liquidation, then the Issuer may within thirty (30) days therefrom
remove the Trustee concerned, and appoint a successor Trustee, by written instrument
in duplicate, executed by its authorized officers, one copy of which instrument shall be
delivered to the Trustee so removed and one copy to the successor Trustee. If the Issuer
fails to remove the Trustee concerned and appoint a successor Trustee, any Bona Fide
Commercial Paper Holder may petition any court of competent jurisdiction for the
removal of the Trustee concerned and the appointment of a successor Trustee. Such
court may thereupon after such notice, if any, as it may deem proper, remove the
Trustee and appoint a successor Trustee. Subject to Section {(e) below, a successor
Trustee must possess all the qualifications required under pertinent laws.

The Majority Commercial Paper Holders may at any time remove the Trustee for cause,
and, with prior consultation with the Issuer, except in an Event of Default, appoint a
successor Trustee, by the delivery to the Trustee so removed, to the successor Trustee
and to the Issuer of the required evidence under the provisions on Evidence Supporting
the Action of the Commercial Paper Holders in the Terms and Conditions of the
Commercial Papers. For the avoidance of doubt, the Commercial Papers Holders shall
have the sole discretion to appoint a successor trustee for the Commercial Papers by
vote of the Majority Commercial Papers Holders. Such removal shall take effect thirty
(30} days from receipt of such notice by the Trustee.

Any resignation or removal of the Trustee and the appointment of a successor Trustee
pursuant to any provisions of the Master Trust Indenture shall become effective upon
the earlier of: (i) acceptance of appointment by the successor Trustee as provided in the
Master Trust Indenture; or (if) effectivity of the resignation notice sent by the Trustee
under the Master Trust Indenture (the “Resignation Effective Date”); provided
however that, until such successor Trustee is qualified and appointed, the resigning
Trustee shall continue to discharge its duties and responsibilities solely as custodian of
records for turnover to the successor Trustee promptly upon the appointer thereof by



the Issuer; provided finally that, such successor Trustee possesses all the qualifications
as required by pertinent laws.

23. Successor Trustee

(a)

(b)

Any successor Trustee appointed shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Issuer
and to its predecessor Trustee an instrument accepting such appomntment, and
thereupon the resignation or removal of the predecessor Trustee shall become effective
and such successor Trustee, without further act, deed or conveyance, shall become
vested with all the rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor in the
trusteeship with like effect as if originally named as Trustee in the Master Trust
Indenture. The foregoing notwithstanding, on the written request of the Issuer or of the
successor Trustee, the Trustee ceasing to act as such shall execute and deliver an
instrument transferring to the successor Trustee, all the rights, powers and duties of the
Trustee so ceasing to act as such. Upon request of any such successor Trustee, the
Issuer shall execute any and all instruments in writing as may be necessary to fully vest
in and confer to such successor trustee all such rights, powers and duties.

Upon acceptance of the appointment by a successor Trustee, the Issuer shall notify the
Commercial Paper Holders in writing of the succession of such trustee to the
trusteeship. If the Issuer fails to notify the Commercial Paper Holders within ten (10
days after the acceptance of appointment by the successor trustee, the latter shall cause
the Commercial Paper Holders to be notified at the expense of the Issuer.

24, Reports to the Commercial Paper Holders

(a)

(&)

(©)

The Trustee shall submit to the Commercial Paper Holders on or before February 28
of each year from the relevant Issue Date until full payment of the relevant Commercial
Paper Series a brief report dated as of December 31 of the immediately preceding year
with respect to:

(i) the property and funds, if any, physically in the possession of the Paying Agent
held in trust for the Commercial Paper Holders on the date of such report; and

(ii) any action taken by the Trustee in the performance of its duties under the
Master Trust Indenture which it has not previously reported and which in its
opinion matertally affects the Commercial Papers, except action in respect of
a default, notice of which has been or is to be withheld by it.

The Trustee shall submit to the Commercial Paper Holders a brief report within ninety
(90) days from the making of any advance for the reimbursement of which it claims or
may claim a lien or charge which is prior to that of the Commercial Paper Holders on
the property or funds held or collected by the Paying Agent with respect to the
character, amount and the circumstances surrounding the making of such advance;
provided that, such advance remaining unpaid amounts to at least ten percent (10%) of
the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Commercial Papers at such time.

The following pertinent documents may be inspected during regular business hours on
any Business Day at the principal office of the Trustee:

(1) Master Trust Indenture

(ii) Master Registry and Paying Agency Agreement

(iif)  Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws of the Company

{(iv)  Registration Statement of the Company with respect to the Commercial Papers
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Meetings of the Commercial Paper Holders

A meeting of the Commercial Paper Holders may be called at any time for the purpose of taking
any actions authorized to be taken by or in behalf of the Commercial Paper Holders of any
specified aggregate principal amount of Commercial Papers under any other provisions of the
Master Trust Indenture or under the law and such other matters related to the ri ghts and interests
of the relevant Commercial Paper Holders.

(a) Notice of Meetings

The Trustee may at any time call a meeting of the Commercial Paper Holders, or the holders of
at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of
Commercial Papers may direct in writing the Trustee to call a meetin g of the Commercial Paper
Holders, to take up any allowed action, to be held at such time and at such place as the Trustee
shall determine. Notice of every meeting of the Commercial Paper Holders, setting forth the
time and the place of such meeting and the purpose of such meeting in reasonable detail, shall
be sent by the Trustee to the Issuer and to each of the registered Commercial Paper Holders not
earlier than forty-five (45) days nor later than fifteen (15) days prior to the date fixed for the
meeting. All reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the Trustee for the proper dissemination
of the requested meeting shall be reimbursed by the Issuer within ten (10) days from receipt of
the duly supported billing statement.

(b) Failure of the Trustee to Call a Meeting

In case at any time, the Issuer, pursuant to a resolution of its board of directors or executive
commiftee, or the holders of at least twenty-five percent (25%) of the aggregate outstanding
principal amount of the Commercial Papers shall have requested the Trustee to call a meeting
of the Commercial Paper Holders by written request setting forth in reasonable detail the
purpose of the meeting, and the Trustee shall not have mailed and published, in accordance
with the notice requirements, the notice of such meeting, then the Issuer or the Commercial
Paper Holders in the amount above specified may determine the time and place for such meeting
and may call such meeting by mailing and publishing notice thereof.

(c) Quorum

The Trustce shall determine and record the presence of the Majority Commercial Paper
Holders, personally or by proxy. The presence of the Majority Commercial Paper Holders,
personally or by proxy, shall be necessary to constitute a quorum to do business at any meeting
of the Commercial Paper Holders.

(d) Procedure for Meetings

(i) The Trustee shall preside at all the meetings of the Commercial Paper Holders,
unless the meeting shall have been called by the Issuer or by the Commercial
Paper Holders, in which case the Issuer or the Commercial Paper Holders
calling the meeting, as the case may be, shall in like manner move for the
election of the chairman and secretary of the meeting.

(ii) Any meeting of the Commercial Paper Holders duly called may be adjourned
for a period or periods not to exceed in the aggregate of one (1) year from the
date for which the meeting shall originally have been called and the meeting
as so adjourned may be held without further notice. Any such adjournment
may be ordered by persons representing a majority of the aggregate principal
amount of the Commercial Papers represented at the meeting and entitled to
vote, whether or not a quorum shall be present at the meeting.
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27.

{e) Voting Rights

To be entitled to vote at any meecting of the Commercial Paper Holders, a person shall be a
registered holder of one or more Commercial Papers or a person appointed by an instrument in
writing as proxy by any such holder as of the date of the said meeting. Commercial Paper
Holders shall be entitled to one (1) vote for every 10,000 interest. The only persons who shall
be entitled to be present or to speak at any meeting of the Commercial Paper Holders shall be

the persons entitled to vote at such meeting and any representatives of the Issuer and its legal
counsel.

63} Voting Requirement

Except as provided under the provisions on Amendment in the Terms and Conditions of the
Commercial Papers, all matters presented for resolution by the Commercial Paper Holders in a
meeting duly called for the purpose shall be decided or approved by the affirmative vote of the
Majority Commercial Paper Holders present or represented in a meeting at which there is a
quorum except as otherwise provided in the Master Trust Indenture. Any resolution of the
Commercial Paper Holders which has been duly approved with the required number of votes
of the Commercial Paper Holders as herein provided shall be binding upon all the Commercial
Paper Holders and the Issuer as if the votes were unanimous.

() Role of the Trustee in Meetings of the Commercial Paper Holders

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Master Trust Indenture, the Trustee may make
such reasonable regulations as it may deem advisable for any meeting of the Commercial Paper
Holders, in regard to proof of ownership of the Commercial Papers, the appointment of proxies
by registered holders of the Commercial Papers, the election of the chairman and the secretary,
the appointment and duties of inspectors of votes, the submission and examination of proxies,
certificates and other evidences of the right to vote and such other matters concerning the
conduct of the meeting as it shall deem fit. The minutes of each meeting and any resolution
made thereat shall be taken by the Trustee or such other Person appointed by the Majority
Commercial Paper Holders during the meeting.

Evidence Supporting the Action of the Commercial Paper Holders

Wherever in the Master Trust Indenture it is provided that the holders of a specified percentage
of the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the Commercial Papers may take any action
(including the making of any demand or requests and the giving of any notice or consent or the
taking of any other action), the fact that at the time of taking any such action the holders of such
specified percentage have joined therein may be evidenced by: (i) any instrument executed by
the Commercial Paper Holders in person or by the agent or proxy appointed in writing, or (ii)
the duly authenticated record of voting in favor thereof at the meeting of the Commercial Paper
Holders duly called and held in accordance herewith, or (iii) a combination of such instrument
and any such record of meeting of the Commercial Paper Holders.

Non-Reliance

Each Commercial Paper Holder also represents and warrants to the Trustee that it has
independently and, without reliance on the Trustee, made its own credit investigation and
appraisal of the financial condition and affairs of the Issuer on the basis of such documents and
information as it has deemed appropriate and that it has subscribed to the Tssue on the basis of
such independent appraisal, and each Commercial Paper Holder represents and warrants that it
shall continue to make its own credit appraisal without reliance on the Trustee. The Commercial
Paper Holders agree to indemnify and hold the Trustee harmless from and against any and all
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liabilities, damages, penalties, judgments, suits, expenses and other costs of any kind or nature
against the Trustee in respect of its obligations hereunder, except for its gross negligence or
wilful misconduct.

Amendments

The Issuer and the Trustee may amend or waive any provisions of the Terms and Conditions of
the Commercial Papers if such amendment or wajver is of a formal, minor, or technical nature
or to correct a manifest error or inconsistency, without prior notice to or the consent of the
Commercial Paper Holders or other parties, provided in all cases that such amendment or
waiver does not adversely affect the interests of the Commercial Paper Holders and provided
further that all Commercial Paper Holders are notified of such amendment or waiver.

The Issuer and the Trustee may amend the Terms and Conditions of the Commercial Papers
with notice to every Commercial Paper Holder following the written consent of the Majority
Commercial Paper Holders (including consents obtained in connection with a tender offer or
exchange offer for the Commercial Papers) or a vote of the Majority Commercial Paper Holders
at a meeting called for the purpose. However, without the written consent of each Commercial
Paper Holder affected thereby, an amendment may not:

(a) reduce the percentage of principal amount of the Commercial Papers outstanding that
must consent to an amendment or waiver;

(b) reduce the interest / discount rate of or extend the time for payment of interest on the
Commercial Papers;

(c) reduce the principal of or extend the Maturity Date of the Commercial Papers;

(d) impair the right of any Commercial Paper Holder to receive payment of principal of
and interest on such Commercial Paper Holder’s Commercial Papers on or after the
due dates therefore or to institute suit for the enforcement of any payment on or with
respect to such Commercial Paper Holder;

(e) reduce the amount payable upon the redemption or repurchase of the Commercial
Papers under the Terms and Conditions or change the time at which the Commercial
Papers may be redeemed;

) make the Commercial Papers payable in money other than that stated in the
Commereial Papers;

(2) subordinate the Commercial Papers to any other obligation of the Issuer;

{h) release any security interest that may have been granted in favor of the Commercial
Paper Holders;

(1) amend or modify the Payment of Additional Amounts, Taxation, the Events of Default
of the Terms and Conditions or the Waiver of Default by the Commercial Paper
Holders;

)] make any change or waiver of this Condition;

(k) affect the rights of some of the Commercial Paper Holders without similarly affecting
the rights of all the Commercial Paper Holders; or

1)) reduce the percentage of the Commercial Paper Holders required to be obtained under
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the Master Trust Indenture for their consent to or approval of any supplemental
agreement of any waiver provided for in the Master Trust Indenture, without the
consent of all Commercial Paper Holders.

It shail not be necessary for the consent of the Commercial Paper Holders under this condition
to approve the particular form of any proposed amendment, but it shall be sufficient if such
consent approves the substance thereof. After an amendment under this condition becomes
effective, the Issuer shall send a notice briefly describing such amendment to the Commercial
Paper Holders in the manner provided in the paragraph entitled Notice to the Commercial Paper
Holders in the Terms and Conditions of the Commercial Papers. Any consent given pursuant
to this section shall be conclusive and binding upon all Commercial Paper Holders and upen
all future holders and owners thereof or of any Commercial Papers issued in lieu thereof or in
exchange therefor, irrespective of whether or not any notation of such consent is made upon the
Commercial Papers.

Governing Law

The Terms and Conditions are governed by and are construed in accordance with Philippine
law.

Yenue

Any suit, action, or proceeding against the Issuer with respect to the Commercial Papers or the
Terms and Conditions or on any judgment entered by any court in respect thereof may be
brought in any competent court in the City of Makati, and the parties submit to the exclusive
jurisdiction of such courts for the purpose of any such suit, action, proceeding or judgment, the
Issuer and Commercial Paper Holders expressly waiving other venue.

Waiver of Preference

The obligation created under the Terms and Conditions of the Commercial Papers shall not
enjoy any priority of preference or special privileges whatsoever over any indebtedness or
obligations of the Issuer. Accordingly, whatever priorities or preferences that this instrument
may have or any person deriving a right hereunder may have under Article 2244, paragraph 14
of the Civil Code are hereby absolutely and unconditionally waived and renounced. This waiver
and renunciation of the priority or preference under Article 2244, paragraph 14 of the Civil
Code shall be revoked if it be shown that an indebtedness of the Issuer for borrowed money has
a priority or preference under the said provision.

Certain Defined Terms

The following sets forth the respective definitions of certain terms used in this Terms and
Conditions of the Commercial Papers. Except as otherwise provided and where context
indicates otherwise, defined terms in this Terms and Conditions of the Commercial Papers have
the meanings ascribed to them in the Master Trust Indenture.

(a) Affiliate means any corporation, directly or indirectly controlled by the Issuer, whether
by way of ownership of at least twenty percent (20%) of the total issued and outstanding
capital stock of such corporation, or the right to elect at least twenty percent (20%) of
the number of directors in such corporation, or the right to control the operation and
management of such corporation by reason of contract or authority granted by said
corporation to the Issuer.

(b) Bankruptcy means, with respect to a Person, (a) that such Person has (i) made an
assignment for the benefit of creditors; (if) filed a voluntary petition in bankruptey; (iii)
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(d)

(e)

been adjudged bankrupt, or insolvent; or had entered against such Person an order of
relief in any bankruptcy or insolvency proceeding; (iv) filed a petition or an answer
seeking for such Person any reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment,
liquidation, dissolution or similar relief under any statute, law or regulation or filed an
answer or other pleading admitting or failing to contest the material allegations of a
petition filed against such Person in any proceeding of such nature; or (v) sought,
consented to, or acquiesced in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or liquidator of
such Person or of all or any substantjal part of such Person’s properties; (b) sixty (60)
days have clapsed after the commencement of any proceeding against such Person
seeking reorganization, arrangement, composition, readjustment, Hquidation,
dissolution or similar relief under any statute, law or regulation and such proceeding
has not been dismissed; or (¢) sixty (60) days have elapsed since the appointment
without such Person’s consent or acquiescence of a trustee, receiver or liquidator of
such Person or of all or any substantial part of such Person’s properties and such
appointment has not been vacated or stayed or the appointment is not vacated within
sixty (60) days after the expiration of such stay.

Current Liabilities means the aggregate (as of the relevant date of calculation) of all
liabilities of the Issuer falling due on demand or within one (1) year, including that
portion of Long Term Debt which falls due within one (1) year (but excluding the
current portion of any provision for estimated liability for land and property
development) and such other liabilities as would be determined as such under the
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.

Financial Indebtedness means with respect to the Issuer and its Subsidiaries:

(i) All financial obligations or other obligations of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries
for borrowed money evidenced by a promissory note or other instrument or for
the deferred purchase price of property (excluding suppliers’ credit) or
services;

(ii) All financial obligations or other obligations of any other corporation, person
or other entity, the payment or collection of which the Issuer and its
Subsidiaries has guaranteed (except by reason of endorsement for collection in
the ordinary course of business) or otherwise, including, without limitation,
liability by way of agreement to purchase, to provide funds for payment, or to
supply funds to such person or entity;

(it} All financial obligations or other obligations of any other corporation, person
or other entity for borrowed money evidenced by a promissory note or other
instrument or for the deferred purchase price of property or services secured
by (or for which the holder of such financial obligations has an existing right,
contingent or otherwise to be secured) any Lien upon or in property (including
without limitation, accounts receivables and contract rights) owned by the
Issuer or any Subsidiary, whether or not the Issuer or any Subsidiary has
assumed or become liable for the payment of such financial obligation or
obligations;

(iv) All financial obligations arising from any currency swap, or interest rate swap,
cap or dollar arrangement or any other derivative instrument; and

(v) Capitalized lease obligations of the Issuer and its Subsidiaries.

Lien means any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, security interest or encumbrance
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constituted on any of the Issuer’s properties, for the purpose of securing its or any of
its Subsidiaries” and Affiliates’ obligations.

Long Term Debt means the aggregate (as of the relevant date of calculation) of all
those component parts of the liabilities of the Issuer which fall due or whose final
payment is due on a date more than one (1) year after the relevant date for calculation,
exclusive of reserve for land development and deferred credits, i.e., unearned income
and/or unrealized gains.

Majority Commercial Paper Holders means the Commercial Faper Holders of more
than fifty percent (50%) in principal amount, of the relevant Commercial Paper Series
then outstanding.

Subsidiary means an entity from time to time of which a person owns directly more
than 50% of the share capital or of which such person may nominate or appoint a
majority of the members of the board of directors of such other body performing similar
functions in such entity.

Total Liabilities means the aggregate (as of the relevant date for calculation) of
Current Liabilities and Long-Term Debt.

Total Stockholders’ Equity means the aggregate (as of the relevant date for
calculation) of the par value of the outstanding commen stock, preferred stock, capital
surplus, retained earnings appraisal surplus arising from past appraisal and any further
appraisal surplus arising from subsequent independent certified appraisal of the
property, plant and equipment of the Issuer effected in compliance with the Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards, and any reserve for expansion projects, less treasury
stocks.



LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

As set forth below, the Company is involved in ongoing legal cases the outcome of which may or may
not have a material adverse effect on its operations and profitability. While the final outcomes of these
legal proceedings are not certain, the Company believes it has strong legal grounds in each of these
legal proceedings. In certain cases, the Company has made provisions in its financial statements for
possible liabilities arising from adverse results of these legal proceedings.

Legal proceedings involving the Company

As of the date of this Information Memorandum, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is a
party to, nor are their properties the subject of, any material pending legal proceeding that could be
expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition and results
of operations.

Legal proceedings involving the Company’s directors and officers

Violation of Republic Act 3019

The Company’s director, Monico V. Jacob, in his capacity as then Chairman of Petron Corporation,
was impleaded in a case together with some government officials for violating the Republic Act 3019,
otherwise known as the Anti-Graft and Corrupt Practices Act, which involves tax credit payments. The
case has been dismissed by the Sandiganbayan, Fourth Division, Quezon City in a Resolution dated 2
March 2017. The dismissal of the case has not been subject of a motion for reconsideration or an appeal
and hence, became final.

Violation of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines

In May 2011, the Philippines’ Bureau of Customs (the “BOC”) filed before the Philippines’ Department
of Justice (the “DOJ”) a complaint against Dennis A. Uy, the Company’s President and Chief Executive
Officer and other respondents for an alleged violation of Sections 3602, 2501(I)(1) &(5), 1801, 1802
and 3604 of Presidential Decree No. 1464 (as amended), otherwise known as the Tariff and Customs
Code of the Philippines. In November 2012, the DOJ dismissed the case due to lack of probable cause
against all respondents. In April 2013, the DOJ, upon motion for reconsideration filed by the BOC,
reversed its earlier resolution and recommended the filing of criminal complaints against the
respondents. The DOIJ filed 25 criminal complaints against Dennis A. Uy, President and CEQ of the
Company, for alleged violations of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines, 22 of which were
filed with the Regional Trial Court of Davao City while the other three complaints were filed with the
Regional Trial Court of Batangas City.

With respect to the complaints filed with the Regional Trial Court of Batangas City, Dennis A. Uy filed
an Omnibus Motion for the Determination of Lack of Probable Cause on 2 September 2013. The
Regional Trial Court of Batangas City granted the motion on 17 September 2013, dismissing all three
complaints. In response to this, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition
of Judge Ruben A. Galvez, but was subsequently denied on 6 December 2013. As no appeal was filed
therefrom, the Regional Trial Court of Batangas City issued a Certificate of Finality certifying that the
Orders dated 6 December 2013 and 17 September 2013 were already final and executory on 7 July
2014.

With respect to the complaints filed with the Regional Trial Court of Davao City, the Regional Trial
Court of Davao City ordered the dismissal of the criminal cases against Dennis A. Uy on 14 October
2013. The subsequent Motion for Reconsideration of the Plaintiff was also denied in an Order dated 18
August 2014. In response to the order, the Petitioner filed with the Court of Appeals in Cagayan de Oro
City a Petition for Certiorari (the “Petition for Certiorari”) under Rule 65 of the Rules of Court on 27
October 2014.



On 12 October 2016, the Court of Appeals dismissed the Petition for Certiorari, and Dennis A. Uy
received a copy of the Decision on 24 October 2016. The Petitioner then filed a2 Motion for
Reconsideration (the “Motion for Reconsideration™) with the Court of Appeals and Dennis A. Uy
received a copy of the Motion for Reconsideration on 10 November 2016. On 25 January 2017, the
Court of Appeals dismissed the Motion for Reconsideration, upholding its previous decision. On 27
March 2017, the Petitioner filed the Petition for Review and Dennis A. Uy received a copy of the
Petition for Review on 4 April 2017. As of the date of this Information Memorandum, the Supreme
Court has yet to issue a resolution directing the respondents, including Dennis A. Uy, to comment on
the Petition for Review.

In the event that the Supreme Court issues such a resolution directing Dennis A. Uy to comment on the
Petition for Review and thereafter issues a ruling granting the Petition for Review, Dennis A. Uy could
be subject to trial in respect of the alleged violations of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines.
While the Company will continue to assert the same defense for Dennis A. Uy, there can be no
assurances that there will be a favorable outcome in the proceedings or that there will be no future
appeals in the proceedings from the other parties. In the event that Dennis A. Uy is convicted of the
alleged violations of the Tariff and Customs Code of the Philippines, he could be subject to a monetary
fine ranging from P600 to P5,000 and imprisonment ranging from six months to two years and
consequentiaily, may also lose his eligibility as President and CEO of the Company. In addition, while
the Company believes that the eventual monetary liability under the proceedings, if any, will not have
a material or adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations, the Company
could still be subject to reputational damage and there can be no assurance that there will not be any
unforeseen impact on its business and operations thereafter.

Others

Several complaints of Grave Coercion, Robbery and Libel were filed against the Sales Team of South
Mindanao and other officers, including all the members of the Board of Directors except for Domingo
T. Uy, Paul G. Dominguez and Carolina Inez Angela S. Reyes, in relation to the Company’s closure
and takeover of six Phoenix Fuel Stations in Davao City. These complaints were dismissed by the Davao
City Prosecutor’s office.

Other court cases typical and customary in the course of the business operations of the Company such
as those, among others, involving collection, qualified theft, breach of contract and reckless
imprudence, tax and regulatory matters have been filed by and against the Company, by and against its
employees/directors/officers and/or third parties, the results of which will not significantly affect the
financial standing of the Company.

Except for the above, to the best of the Company’s knowledge there has been no occurrence during the
past five years up to the date of this Information Memorandum of any of the following events:

(a) Any insolvency or bankruptcy petition filed by or against the Company or any of its directors
or officers or any business of which such person was a director, general partner or executive
officer either at the time of the insolvency, bankruptcy and any other similar proceedings or
within two years prior to that time;

5)] Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign or any pending
criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations and other minor offences;

(c) Any final and executory order, judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction,
domestic or foreign, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise
limiting involvement in any type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities; and



(d) Any final and executory judgment by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction (in
a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body or a domestic or foreign exchange or
electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization, for violation of a securities or
commodities law.

Further, neither the Company nor any of its officers and directors have become the subject of legal
proceedings for suspension of payments or other debt relief within the past five years, or otherwise been
unable to pay their debts as they mature or have made or threatened to make an assignment for the
benefit of, or a composition or arrangement with, creditors or any class thereof, or shall declare a
moratorium on indebtedness.




FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following pages set forth the Company’s unaudited consolidated financial statements for the period

ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 and the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements as at
December 31, 2018, 2017, and 2016.
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report:

31 March 2019
A200207283
006-036-274

P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM
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(SEC Use Only)

Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bo.
Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City
8000

(082) 235-8888
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Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code, or Sections 4

and 8 of the RSA

rrrrerer———

2

1,403,304 232.00

COMMON
PREFERRED 20,000,000.00
Amount of Debt Outstanding as of Php49,404,171,310.00

31 March 2019:
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P-H-0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, [NC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
UNAUDITED as of MARGCH 31, 2019

(With Comparative Figures as of December 31, 2018
(Amounts in Phifippine Pesaos}

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash eguivalents
Trade and cther receivabiles - net
Inventories - net
Due from related parties - net
Restricted deposits
Input value-added tax - net
Prepayments and other current assets

Total Current Assets

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment - net
investment properties
Intangible assets - net
investments in joint ventures
Goodwill - net
Deferred tax assets - net

Other non-current assets

Total Non—current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

GURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Due to related parties

income tax payable
Total Current Liabilities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
interest-bearing loans and borrowings
Deferred tax iiabilities - net
COther non-current liabilities

Total Non-current Liabilities
Total Liab#ities

EQUITY
Eguity attributable to parent company

Capital stock
Additionai paid-in capital
Revaiuation reserves
Other reserves
Accumuiated translation adjustment
Retained earnings

Nen-controlling interest

Total Equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

[ e Y - 3

12

UNAUDITED
Marc 31, 2019

AUDITED
December 31, 2018

P 5182,047,666 7,889,708,807
14,591,617,644 15,030,714,704
11,152,645,740 11,135,494,286

937,904,172 §37,904,172
53,421,713 52,719,265
1,282,592,225 1,517,537,410
1,607,633,363 695,698,779
34,807,862,423 37,259,777,423
21,797,641,827 8,715,994,505
1,738,845,184 1,739,021,205
298,880,616 328,054,350
461,722,113 455,436,370
5,070,794,325 4,418,842,831
151,160,341 147 484,515
1,527,602,553 1,595,667.530
31,046,617,959 27,400,501,307

P 55,854,480,383 £4,660.278,730

P 26,410,495,370 26,309,487,284
7,570,620,203 7,434,839 252

11,896 99,380,682
133,981,127,459 33,843,707,218
13,327,192,918 +3,580,520,166

615,103,737 631,776,224
1,480,747,186 620,602,265
15,423,043,841 14,842,898,655
49,404,171,310 48,686,605.873
1,112,004,232 1,412,004,232
7,233,692,4865 7,233,692,486
827,510,428 827,510,428
730,361,725 ) (730,361,725)

3,895,511 ) 24,928,394
8,039,690,027 7.542,843,961
16,478,639,937 16,010,617.776
28,330,864 ) 35,044,919}
16,450,309,073 15,973,672,857

P  §5,854,480,383 64,660,278,730




P-H-Q-E-N-J-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES
INTERIM CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2013
UNAUDITED
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2019 2018
Notes
REVENUES
Sale of goods 4,11 P 23,943,611,160 17,996,195,821
Fuel service and cther revenues 4.1 133,845,671 74,105,248
Rentincome 4,11 15,175,539 12,378,018
24,092,632,370 18,082,679,085
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of sates and services 4 214,600,233,278 15,746,245,569
Seling and administrative expensas 4 1,471,240,106 1,530,786,910
23,07%,473,384 17,277,042,479
OTHER CHARGES {INCOME)
Finance costs 4 582,444,250 326,638,125
Finance income 4 { 9,727,678 } {7,810,818)
Equity share in net income of joint ventures { 1,507,240 } 440,553,00
Cthers - net 4 { 6,122023) ( 3,486,113
555,087,349 315,781,645
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 466,071,637 489,854 860
TAX EXPENSE 51,400,534 51,164,607
NET PROFIT P 414,671,103 P 436,680,353
NET PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Parent company P 417,698,931 P 438,690,353
Non-controfiing interest { 3,027,828 ) -
P 414,671,103 P 438,690,353
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME {LOSS)
Item that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Transtation adjustment related to a foreign subsidiary (P 28,823,946 ) 26,063,535
Iterns that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Gain on revajuation of land - .
Remsasurements of post-employment
defined benefit abligation - -
Tax expense hd ol
Other Comprehensive Income - net of tax { 28,823,946 ) 26,053,535
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 385,847,157 P 484,753,888
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Parent company P 388,874,984
Non-conlrolling interest (__ 3027828)
P 385,847 457
Basic Eamings per share P 0.24 P 0.27
Diluted Earnings per share P 0,24 P 0.27

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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P-H-0-E-N-1-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INTERIM CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE PERICD ENDED MARCH 31, 2013 AND 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:
Interest expense on bank ioans and other borrowings
Depreciation and amortization
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables
Interest income
Unrealized foreign exchange currency loss (gain) - net
Translation adjustment
Loss (gain) on disposal of property, piant and equipment

Operating profit before working capital changes
Decrease (increase} in trade and other receivables
Decrease (increase} in inveniories
Decrease {increase} in input value-added tax - net
Increase in prepayments and cther current assets
Increase {decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash generated from operations

Cash paid for income taxes

Net Cash From Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment
Increase in other non-current assets
Advances to related parties
investments in joint ventures
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Acquisitions of intangible assets
Translation of financial statements of foreign subsidiary
Interest received
Collections from related parties
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Increase in land held for future development

Net Cash Used in investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Proceeds from additional interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of shares of stock
Interest paid

Acquisition of treasury shares

Payments of cash dividends

Increase in other non-current labilities

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE} IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

UNAUDITED
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

Notas 2019

P 456,071,637

10 611,233,424

8 383,749,646
( 7,857,168 )
( 12,516,660 )
{ 28,823,905 )

1,411,826,974

2018

453,969,195.00

252,303,108.00
234,792,260,00
6,170,916.00
{1,318,524,00)
42,067,943.00

(903,286.00)
1,027,080,613

439,097,160 (3,094,040,142.00)
423,750,128 6,874,422,571.00
234,945,185 544,391,084.00
{ 912,377,737 } (411,394,317.00)
163,307,581 ( 2,565,189,596 )
1,760,549,291 2,375,270,223
{ 7.841.932) ¢ 3,493,159 )
1,752,707,359 2,371,777.084
8 { 3,454,528,427 ) (510,445,002.00)
80,995,525 {1,198,928,345.00)
11 . {21,195,536.00}
( 6,285,743 )
1 { 651,951,494 )
g -
26,063,534.00
7,627,873 1,319,524.00
1,903,840 817,483.00
- (7.118,893.00)
{ 4,022,238,426 ) { 1,707,385,235

{ 11,525,441,562 )

(29,961,541,963,00;
32,588,665,771.00

(262,303,108.00)

(48,727,501.00)
{165,201,703.00)

2,130,881,496

10,934,737,477
{ s; 1,233,424 )
¢ ;s,sss,ooo )
843,472,435
( 438,130,074 }
{  2,707,661,140)

7,889,708,807

2,795,283,326

1,831,542,441

P 5182,047,667

-]

4,626,825,766

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



_5-

P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED NOTES TO INTERIM CONDENSED
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2019 AND 2018
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

(UNAUDITED)

GROUPINFORMATION
11 Incotporation and Opetations

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleurn Philippines, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the
Philippines on May 8, 2002 and is cutrently owned by P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Holdings,
Inc. (PPHI), a Philippine company, at 41.97% of the Parent Company’s outstanding capital
stock,

The Parent Company is presently engaged in trading of refined petroleum products on
wholesale basis and operation of oil depots, storage facilities and allied services. The registered
office of the Parent Company, which is also its principal place of business, is located at Stella
Hizon Reyes Road, Bartio Pampanga, IDavao City. The Parent Company is listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) with its initial public offering on July 11, 2007. It has a total
of 615 opened retail service stations, and a total of ten service stations under construction as of
March 31, 2019.

On the other hand, PPHI was incorporated in the Philippines on May 31, 2006. PPHI’s
primary purpose is to provide management, investment and technical advice for commercial,
industrial, manufacturing and other kinds of enterptises. PPHI’s registered office is located at
Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barfio Pampanga, Davao City.

The ultimate patent is Udenna Corporation, which is primarily organized to purchase, acquire,
take over and manage all or any part of the rghts, assets, business and property; undertake and
assumne the liabilities of any person, firm, association, partnership, syndicate of corporation; and
to engage in the distribution, selling, importation, installation of pollution control devices, units
and services, and all other pollution control related products and emission test servicing.The
ultimate patent commpany’s registered office is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bardo
Pampanga, Davao City.




12  Subsidiades, Associate, Joint Ventute and their Operations

As of December 31, the Parent Company holds ownership interests in the following endties, which are all incorporated
and domiciled in the Philippines or otherwise stated:

Explanatory Percentage of Ownership
Subsidiaries /Joint Yenrure Notes 2018 2017

Direct interest:

Subsidiaries

P-F-L Petroleumn Managemeat, Inc. (PPMI) @) 100.00% 100.00%
P-TI-O-E-N-I-X Giobal Mercantile, Inc. (PGMTI) (by 100.00% 100.00%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transpozt '

Phils., Inc. (SPTT) (¢} 100.00% 100.00%
PNX Petxoleum Singapoze Pte. Lid. (PNX 5G) (d) 100.00% 100.00%
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc. (PLPI) (e} 100.00% 100.00%
Duta, Tnc. 4 (& 100.00% 100.00%
Philippine FamilyMart CVS, Inc. (PFM) ! (2 100.00% -
PNX Energy Internationa! Holdings, Pte. Ltd.

(PNX Energy) ! (hy 100.00% -
Action.Able, Inc.(AAT) ! 6] 74.90% -
Think.Able Limited (TAL) * ) 74.90% -
Joint venture
Phoenix Asphal: Philippines, Inc.? k) 40.00% -

Indirect interest:

Kaparangan, Inc. (Kaparangan)»* O 100.00% 100.00%
PNX (Vietnarn} Pte. Ltd. (PNX Viemam) 3 (m) 100.00% -
PT Phoenix Petroleumn Indonesia
(PNX Indonesia)® (m) 100.00% -
Galaxi Petroleum Fuel, Inc. (Galaxi)? (o) 51.00% -
Phoenix Southern Petroleum Corp. (PSPC)? (s)! 51.00% -
Notes:

1 New subsidiaries

2 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Dwta

3 Joint vemture of Parent Company

4 Duta and Kaparangan, collectively known as Dutz Group
5 Subsidiary of PNX Epergy

& Subsidiary of PGMI

7 Joint vemture of PPMI

{0} Incorporated on January 31, 2007 and is engaged in organizing, rmanaging, administering, running and
supervising the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-odented companies such as petrolenm
service stations.

(%} Incorporated on July 31, 2006 to engage in the manufacture, production and creation of all kinds of mostor, and
all other transportation lubricznts, fluids and additives of all kinds and other petroleum products purposely for
motoz vehicles and other transportadon. PGMI started commercial operations in 2007 and temporarily ceased
its operation in 2008 but has resumed its business in October 2015 through selling of acid oil and coconut fatty
acid disdllates, both aze by-products from manufacturng of cocenut methyl ester (CME).

0] Incorporated on February 20, 2007 and is engaged in buying and selling, supply and distrdbution, importation
and exportation, storage and delivery of all types of petroleum for industral, marine, aviation and automotive
use.
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Incorporated on October 30, 2012 in Singapore and started operations in Qctober 2017. It is the regional
trading arm of the Group. It currently holds office in Singapore and is able to buy directly from the refineries
in the region due to its bigger requirements. It also sells to other local and regional buyers.

Incorperated on June 20, 1995 to engage in the buying, selling, storing, distributing, and marketing at whelesale of
all kinds of goods, including but not limited to liquefed petroleum gas (LPG) and other petroleum products.

Incorperated on November 9, 1994 to engage in the business of buying, investing, exchanging, selling securities of
every kind and desciption and leasing of land.

Incorporated on November 29, 2012, PFM is enpaged in the business of operating convenience stozes (CVS)
under the trademark “FamilyMart™ either by direct operation and/or by franchise system in the Philippines and
to conduct business activities related to and in support to the aforesaid CVS platforms including importation
and export, advertisement and promotion, and in general, to exercise and perform any and all powers
necessary, incidental, or convement to the business.

Incorporated on October 29, 2018 in Singapore to engage in activities related to investment in downstream and
upstrearn: energy activities and businesses but has not yet started commercial operations as of December 31, 2018,

Incorporated on May 6, 2015 to engage in the business of selling, leasing or distributing electronic devices to
disttibuters, merchants or retilers for the purpose of digital marketing and/or ecommerce and to engage in the
busimess of providing an outline digitel network for the purpose of digital marketing and/or e-commerce
accessible through electronic devices.

Incorporated on May 5, 2014 and is a Hong Kong based company that handles the trademark of AAT

Incorporated on March 23, 2018 and was established to import, store, manufacture, sell market, distribute
bitumen, bitumen-related products and such other by-products of crude oil and such other petrofeurn products
including the operation of terminals and depots.

Incorporated on January 21, 1994 to engage in the business of buying, investing, exchanging, selling securnities of
evety kind and desctiption and leasing land.

Incarporated on October 30, 2018 in Singapote to engage in zctivities related to investment in downstreamn and
upstream energy activities and businesses and has not yet started its commerdal operations.

Incorporated on September 10, 2G18 in Indonesia to serve as an aveaue for the Parent Company to explore
business opportunities in different parts of Indonesia. PNX Indonesia has not yet started its commercial
operatons.

Incorporzted on August 2, 2017 and is 4 joint venture with its previous owners. Galaxi owns and operates a
number of perroleumn service stations in different parts of the Philippines.

Incorporated on July 5, 2018 to operate petroleum setvice stations in areas within Southern Luzon under the
Parent Company’s name and brand.



11 Other Cotpotate Infotmation

The registered office and prncipal place of business of the existing subsidiades, except those presented in below, is
located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

SPIT —  Units 113 and 115 Subic International Hotel, Alpha Building, Rizal Highway,
Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Zambales

PNX SG ~ 350 Orchard Road, #17-05/06 Shaw House, Singapore

PNX Energy —~ 350 Orchard Road, #17-05/06 Shaw House, Singapore

PNX Vietnam — 350 Orchard Road, #17-05/06 Shaw House, Singapore

PLPL - Phoenix Petroleurn Corporate Headquarters, Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Bo.
Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City

Duta —  15% Floor, Citibank Tower, Valero St., Salcedo Village, Makan City

Kaparangan —  15% Floor, Citibank Tower, Valero St., Salcedo Village, Makati City

PFM -~ 4% Floor, Tara Building, No. 389 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makad City, Metro
Manila

AAI — 20 Floor, Crown Centez, 158 Jupiter Street Corner N. Garcia Street, Bel-Air
Village, Makati City

TAL — Room 1902, W Wilson House, 19-27 Wyndham Street, Central, Hong Kong

PAPI and PSPC —  25% Floor Fort Legend Tower, 39 Avenue Fort corner 31% Street, Bonifacio
Global City, Taguig City

PNX Indonesia - The Prominence Office Tower, 12 Floor B, J1 JalurSutera Barat No. 15,
AlamSutera, Indonesia

Galaxi — 1846 FB Hardson Street Pasay City

12 Approval of Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

The intetim condensed consolidated financial statements {unaudited) of the Group as of and for
the three months ended March 31, 2019 (including the comparatve consolidated financial
information as of December 31, 2018 and for the three months ended March 31, 2018) were
authorized for issue by theParent Company’s Board of Directors (BOD) on May 8, 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these interim
condensed consolidated financial statements are summanzed below.The Interim Condensed
Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting policies adopted in
the Group’s most recent annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018.

21 Basisof Pteparation of Intetim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the three months ended March
31, 2019 and 2018 have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Accounting Standard
(PAS) 34, Interim Financial ReportingThey do not include all the information and disclosures
required in the annual consolidated financial statements and should be read in conjunction with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended
December 31, 2018.

The preparation of interitn condensed consolidated financial statements in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS) requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, income and expenses.Although these estimates are based on management’s best
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knowledge of current events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates.

These interim condensed consolidated financial staternents are presented in Philippine peso, the
tunctional and presentation currency of the Group, and all values represent zbsolute amounts
except when otherwise indicated. The presentation of the interim condensed consolidated
financial statement is consistent with the most recent annual consolidated financials except for
the amendments introduced by the new accounting standards mentioned in Note 2.2.

22  Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
Effective tn 2019 that are Relevant to the Group

The Group adopted for the first tume the following amendments and annual improvements to
PFRS, which are mandatoxily effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

PFRS16 : Leases
PAS 19 {Amendments) :  Employee Benefits — Plan Amendment, Curtailment oz
Settlement -
PFRS 9 :  Financial Instrument
PAS28 (Amendments) : Investment in Associates — Long- Term Interest in.
Associates and Joint Ventures
PFRS 10 (Amendments) : Consolidated Financial Statements
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 23 :  Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Annual Improvements — (2015-2017 Cycle)
PAS 12 (Amendments) :  Income Taxes
PAS 23 (Amendments) : Borrowing Costs
PFRS 3 (Amendments) : Business Combination
PFRS 11{Amendments):  Joint Arrangements — Remeasurement of Previously
Held Interests in Joint Operations

The Group has applied PFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore,
comparative information has not been restated. This means comparative information is still
reported under PAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Group as a lessee

For any new contracts entered into on or after 1 January 2019, the Group considers whether
acontract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as “a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveysthe right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’ To apply this definition the Group assesses whether the contract meets three
key evaluations whichare whether:

* the contract contains an identified asset, which is either explicitly identified in the
contract orimplicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset is made
available to the Group.
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* the Group has the right to obtain substantally all of the economic benefits from use
of theidentified asset throughout the perod of use, considering its rights within the
defined scope ofthe contract.

* the Group has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period
of use.

¢ The Group assess whether it has the right to direct ‘how and for what purpose’ the
asset is usedthroughout the period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

Atlease commencement date, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liabilityon
the balance sheet The rght-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the
initialmeasurement of the lease liability, any inital direct costs incurred by the Group, an
estimate of anycosts to dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease
payments made inadvance of the lease commencement date (net of any incentives received).

The Group depreciates the dght-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease
commencementdate to the eatlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term.

The Group also assesses the fght-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At the comtnencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the
leasepayments unpaid at that date, discounted using the iaterest rate implicit in the lease if
that rate isreadily available or the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed
payments(including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounts
expectedto be payable under a residual value guarantee and payments arising from options
reasonablycertain to be exercised.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and
increased for interest. It is remeasured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there
are changes inin-substance fixed payments. When the lease lability is remeasured, the
corresponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the rght-
of-use asset is already reduced to zero. '

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets using
thepractical expedients. Instead of recognizing a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the
payments inrelation to these are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

On the statement of financial position, rght-of-use assets have been included in property,
plantand equipment (except those meeting the definition of investment property) and lease
liabiliieshave been included in Qther non-current habilities.
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The Group as a lessor

The Group’s accounting policy under IFRS 16 has not changed from the comparative
petiod.As a lessor the Group classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases.A lease is
classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental

to ownership of the underlying asset, and classified as an operating lease if it does not.

Finance leases

Management applies judgment in considering the substance of a lease agreement and
whetherit transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased
asset. Keyfactots considered include the length of the lease term in relation to the economic
life of the asset,the present value of the minimum lease payments in relation to the asset’s fair
value, and whetherthe Group obtains ownership of the asset at the end of the lease term.

For leases of land and buildings, the minimum lease payments are first allocated to each
compoenent based on the reladve fair values of the respective lease interests. Each component

isthen evaluated separately for possible treatment as a finance lease, taking into consideration
thefact that land normally has an indefinite economic life.

See the accounting policy note in the year-end financial statements for the depreciation
methodsand useful lives for assets held under finance leases. The interest element of lease
payments ischarged to profit or loss, as finance costs over the period of the lease.

Operating leases

All other leases are treated as operating leases. Where the Group is a lessee, payments on
operating lease agreements are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
leaseterm. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

The Group as a lessor

The Group also earns rental income from operating leases of its investment properties.
Rentalincome is recognized on 2 straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

PAS19 (Amendments), Employes Bengfite — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Setrlement (effective
January 1, 2019). The amendments require the use of updated actuarial assumptions to
determine cutrent service cost and net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting
petiod after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement when the entity remeasures its net
defined benefit liability (asset).

The amendments were approved by the FRSC on March 14, 2018 but is still subject to the
approval by the BOA.

The management is still evaluating the impact of this pronouncement. It is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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PFRS 9 (Amendments), Finandal Instruments — Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(effective for annual period beginning or after January 1, 2019). The amendments clarify that
prepayment features with negative compensation attached to financial instruments may still
qualify under the “solely payments of prncipal and interests” (SPPI) test. As such, the
financial assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation may stll be
classified at amortized cost or at FVOQOCL

The management is still evaluating the impact of this proncuncement. It is not expected to
have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

PAS 28{Amendments), [nvestment in Associates — Long-term Interest in Assodiates and Joint Venture
(effective from January 1, 2019). The amendments clarify that the scope exclusion in PFRS 9
applies only to ownership interests accounted for using the equity method. Thus, the
amendments further clarify that long-term interests in an associate or joint venture — to which
the equity method is not applied — must be accounted for under PFRS 9, which shall also
include long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the entity’s net investment in an
associate Of joint venture.

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consolidated Finandal Statements, and PAS 28 (Amendments),
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an Investor and its
Associater or Joint Venture {effective date deferred indefinitely). The amendments to PFRS 10
require full recognition in the investor’s financial statements of gains or losses arising on the
sale or contdbution of assets that constitute a business as defined in PFRS 3, Businers
Combinations, between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the partial
recognition of gains or losses (i.e, to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interests in an
associate ot joint venture) only applies to those sale of contribution of assets that do not
constitute a business. Corresponding amendments have been made to PAS 28 to reflect
these changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been amended to clarify that when determining
whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute 2 business, an entity shall consider
whether the sale or contribution of those assets is part of multiple arrangements that should
be accounted for as a single transaction.

[FRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective from January 1, 2019). The
interpretation provides clarification on the determination of taxable profit, tax bases, unused
tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The core principle of the intetpretation requires the Group to consider the
probability of the tax treatment being accepted by the taxation authority. When it is probable
that the tax treatment will be accepted, the determination of the taxable profit, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be on the basis of the accepted tax
treatment. Otherwise, the Group has to use the most likely amnount or the expected value,
depending on the surrounding circumstances, in determining the tax accounts identified
immediately above.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle {effective from January 1, 2019). Among.
the improvements, the amendments presented in the succeeding page are relevant to the

Group but had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as these

amendments merely clarify existing requirements.

e PAS 12 (Amendments), Ineome Taxes — Tax Conseguences of Dimdends.  ‘The
amendments clarify that all income tax consequence of dividend payments
should be recognized in profit or loss.
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e PAS 23 (Amendments), Borrowing Costs — Eligibility for Capitalization. The
amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended purpose, such borrowing will
then form part of the entity’s general borrowings when calculating the
capitalization rate for capitalization putposes.

» PFRS 3 (Amendments), Business Combinations, and PFRS 11 (Amendments), Joint
Arrangements — Remeasurement of Previowsly Held Interests in a Joint Operation. The
amendments clarify that previously held interest in a joint operation shall be
remeasured when the Group obtains control of the business. On the other
hand, previously held interests in a joint operation shall not be remeasured when
the Group obtains joint control of the business.

Financial Instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabiliies are recognized when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards are transferred. A financial liability is derecognized when it is extinguished,
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classtfication and initigl measurement gf financial asssts
Except for those trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
and are measured at the transaction price in accordance with PERS 15, all financial assets

are initially measured at fair value adjusted for transaction costs (where applicable).

Financial assets, other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments, are
classified into the following categories:

*  amortized cost
* fair value through profit or loss (FVIPL)
* fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

The classification is determined by both:

* the entity’s business model for managing the financial asset
+  the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognized in profit or loss
are presented within finance costs, finance income or other financial items.

The financial assets category relevant to the Group is financial assets at amortized cost.
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Subseguent measurement of financial assets

Financial assetr at gmortized cost
Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if the assets meet the following conditions
(and are not designated as FVTPL):

* they are held within a business model whose objective is to hold the financial assets
and collect its contractual cash flows; and,

* the contractual terms of the financial assets give fise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category includes non-detivative financial assets like loans and receivables with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
recognition, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Discounting is omitted where the effect of discounting is itnmatedal. The Group’s cash
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, due from related parties, restricted
deposits and refundable rental deposit (presented as part of Other Non-Current Assets in
the consolidated condensed statement financial position) fall into this category of
financial instruments.

Financal arsete at fair value through prafit or fpss L,

Financial assets that are held within a different business model than ‘held to collect’ ot
‘hold to collect and sell’, and financial assets whose contractual cash flows are not solely
payments of principal and interest are accounted for at FVIPL. All derivative financial
instruments fall into this category, except for those designated and effective as hedging
insttuments, for which the hedge accounting requirements apply (see below). This
categoty also contains an equity investment. The fair values of financial assets in this
category are determined by reference to active market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists. The Group has no FVIPL as of reporting date.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprebensive ingome (F17OCT)
The Group accounts for financial assets at FVOCI if the assets meet the- following
conditions:

* they are held under a business model whose objective it is hold to collect the
associated cash flows and sell; and,

* the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstandiog.

Any gains or losses recognized in OCI will be recycled upon derecognition of the asset.
The Group has no FVOCI as of reporting date.

Impairment of finandial assety

PFRS 9s new impairment requirements use more forward-looking information to
recognize expected credit losses — the ‘expected credit loss” (ECL) model. This replaces
PAS 39s ‘incurred loss model’. Instruments within the scope of the new requirements
included loans and other debt-type financial assets measured at amortized cost and
FVOCI, trade receivables, contract assets recognized and measured under PFRS 15 and
loan commitments and some financial guarantee contracts (for the issuer) that are not
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measured at fair value through profit or loss. Recognition of credit losses is no longer
dependent on the Group first identifying a credit loss event. Instead the Group considers
a broader range of information when assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit
losses, including past eveats, current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
that affect the expected collectability of the future cash flows of the instrument. In
applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction is made between:

* financial instruments that have not deteriorated significantly in credit quality since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk (‘Stage 1%); and,

* financial instrumnents that have detetiorated significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low (‘Stage 27).

Stage 3’ would cover financial assets that have objective evidence of impaitment at the
reporting date. However, none of the Group’s financial assets fall into this category. “12-
month expected credit losses’ are recognized for the first category while ‘lifetime expected
credit losses” are recognized for the second category.

Measurement of the expected credit losses is determined by a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses over the expected life of the financial instrument.

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

*  Probability of Default — is an estimate of likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
instrument has not been previously derecognized and is still in the portfolio.

* Loss Given Default - is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default occurs at a
given tme, It is based on the difference between the contractual cash Aows of a
financial instrument due from a counterparty and those that the Company would
expect to receive, including the realization of any collateral.

+  Exposure at Defaults ~ represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instrutnents subject to the impairment calculation.

Classification and measurement of financial babilities

As the accounting for financial liabilitles remains largely the same under PFRS 9
compared to PAS 39, the Group’s financial liabilities were not impacted by the adoption
of PFRS 9.However, for completeness, the accounting policy is disclosed below.

Financial liabilities, which include interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables (excluding tax-related payables), secutity deposits, customers’ cylinder deposits
and cash bond deposits {which are presented under Other Non-Cutrent Liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial positon), are recognized when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual terms of the instrument. All interest-related charges incurted on
financial liability are recognized as an expense in profit or loss under the caption Finance
Costs in  the  consolidated  statement of  comprehensive  income.
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Interest charges that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of such asset. All other interest
telated charges are recognized as an expense in the consolidated condensed staternent of
comprehensive income under the caption Finance Costs.

Interest-bearing Ioans and borrowings are raised for support of long-term funding of
operations. Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlernent or redemption
and direct issue costs, are charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that
these are not settled in the period in which they arise.

Trade and other payables (excluding tax-related payables), security deposits, customers’
cylinder deposits and cash bond deposits are recognized initially at their fair values and
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities
beyond one year, less settiement payments.

Security deposits ate initially recognized at fair value. Interest on security deposits arising
from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method and is
presented as part of Finance Costs. The excess of the principal amount of the deposit
over its present value is immediately recognized as Unearned rent (presented as part of
Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position).
Meanwhile, the rent income arising frorn subsequent amortization of unearned rent is
accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented as part
of Rent and Srorage Income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group purchases LPG cylinders, which are loaned to dealers upon payment by the
latter of an amount equivalent to 44.00-77.00% of the acquisition cost of the cylinders.
At the end of each reporting date, customers’ cylinder deposits, shown under Other Non-
Current Liabilities in the consolidated staternent of financial positon, are reduced for
estimated non-returns. The reduction is recognized directly in profit or loss.

Obligations under finance lease (included as part of Interest-bearing Loans and
Borrowings) are recognized at amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property og, if
lower, at the present value of minimum lease payments, at the inception of the lease.

Dividend distributions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabiliies upon
declaration by the Parent Company.

Financtal liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled within
one year or less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business, if longer), or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting pedod.
Otherwise, these are presented as non-current liabilities.

Financial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial
position only whea the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation
or expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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Revenues

Revenue atises mainly from the sale of goods and rendering of services measured by
reference to the fair value of consideration received or receivable by the Group for goods
sold and services rendered, excluding value-added tax (VAT), rebates and trade discounts.

To determine whether to recoguize revenue, the Group follows a 5-step process:

Identifying the contract with a customer

Identifying the performance obligations

Determining the transaction price

Allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations
Recognizing revenue when/as performance obligation(s) are satisfied.

Al S

Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation by
transferring control of the promised goods or services to a customer. The transfer of
contro] can occur over time or at a point in time.

The Group recognizes contract liabilities for consideration received in respect of
unsatisfied performance obligations and reports these amounts as other liabilities in the
consolidated condensed statement of financial position. Similarly, if the Group satisfies 2
performance obligation before it receives the consideration, the Group recognizes either
a contract asset or a receivable in its consolidated condensed statement of fnancial
position, depending on whether something other than the passage of time is required
before the consideration is due.

A performance obligation is satsfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the
following critetia, in which case it is satisfied over time:

*  The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the
Company’s performance as the Company performs;

* The Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced; and,

* The Group’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

The transaction ptice allocated to performance obligations satisfied at a point in time is
recognized as revenue when contro! of the goods or services transfers to the customer. If
the performance oblipation is satisfied over time, the transaction price allocated to that
performance obligation s recognized as revenue as the perfonmance obligation is
satisfied.

In addidon, the following specific recognition ctitedia must also be met before revenue is
recognized:

(2) Sale of goods — Revenue is recognized when the
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer, ie. generally
when the customer has acknowledged delivery of goods or when the customer has
taken undisputed delivery of goods.
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(%) Fuel rervice and other revenues, and storage income —
Revenue is recognized when the performance of contractually agreed tasks has been
substantially rendered. In addition, this includes revenue arising from port and cargo
handling services.

(c) Rent income — Revenue is recognized on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(d) : Interest income— Revenue is recognized as the
interest accrues taking into account the effective yvield on the asset.

Except for revenues from rentals and interest, the performance obligation for revenues
arisingfrom the rendering of services and sale of goods is determined to be satisfied at a
point in tme.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

In preparing the interim condensed consolidated financial statements, management undertakes
a number of judgments, estimates and assumptons about recognition and measurement of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The actual results may differ from the judgments,
estimates and assumptions made by management, and will seldom equal the estimated results.
The judgments, estimates and assumptions applied in the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements, including the key sources of estimation uncertainty, were the same as those
applied in the Group’s last annual financial statements as of and for the year ended December
31, 2018, except on the newly applied PFRS 16.

The Group performed its annual impairment test of goodwill and other intangible assets with
indefinite useful life at year end and when drcumstances indicate the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group’s impairment test for goodwill adsing from business combination and
other intangible assets is based on value-in-use calculations.The Group considers the
relationship between the market capitalization of the subsidiaries and its net book value, among
other factors, when reviewing for indicators of impairment. The Group’s management assessed
that for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and as of December 31, 2018, goodwill adsing
from business combination and other intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not
impaired.

REVENUES

All of the Group’s revenues except for rentals (covered under PFRS 16; Leases) are transferred at
a point in Hme.

The Group’s revenue disaggregated by primary geographical markets and major goods/service
lines are presented in the next page.
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Three months to March 31, 2019

Depotand
Trading Logistcs Real Estate Total
Primary Geographical Markets
Philippines P 17,561,821 P 63,526 P 15,175 P 17,640,522
Singapore 6,452,110 - - 6,452,110
P 24,013,931 P 63,526 P 15,175 P 24,092,632
Major goods/ service lines
Fuels P 22,557,852 P - P 22,557,852
LPG 1,223,243 - - 1,223,243
Meschandise 589 - - 589
Lubricants 162,751 - - 162,731
Terminalling/hauling - 63,526 - 63,526
Rentals 15,035 - 140 15,175
POS device 32,584 - - 32,584
Othess 36,932 - - 36,932
P 24,028,966 P 63,526 P 140 P 24,092,632

Three months to March 31, 2018

Depot and
Trading Logistics Real Estate Total

Prigrary Geagraphical Markets
Philippines P 15,478,553 P 48,534 P 12378 P 15,539,465
Singapore 2,543,214 2,543,214

Major goods/ servize lines

Fuel 13 16,901,917 P - P - P 16,901,917
Lubsdcants 154,010 - - 154,010
LPG 957,801 - - 957,801
Renrals 12,117 - 261 12,378
Terminalling/hauling - 48,534 - 48,534
Mezchandise 4,651 - - 4,651
Others 3,388 - - 3,388
P 18,033,884 P 48,534 P 261 P 18,082,679

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s operating businesses are organized and managed separately according to the
nature of products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic business
unit that offers different products or services and serves different markets. The Group’s trading
segment is engaged in marketing, merchandising, purchasing, selling, acquiting, disposing and
distribution of goods and wares such as but not limited to petroleum products (on wholesale
basis), lubdcants and other products.

The Group is alsoengaged in operating of oil depots, storage facilities and provides logistics
services to various entitfes on its Depot and Logistics Services segment. The Group’s real estate
segment is involved in real estate development, management and operations.The Group
generally accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the sales ot transfers were to third
parties at current matket prices.
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As of March 31, 2019, there have been no change from piior periods in the measurement
methods used to determine operating segments and reported segment revenues, expenses and
performance.

The succeeding tables present revenue and profit information regarding segments for the
three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 and certain asset and liability information
regarding segments as at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 (amounts in thousands).
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Presented below is a reconciliation of the Group’s segment information to the key financial
information presented in its interim condensed consolidated financial statement (in thousands).

Revenues
Total segment revenues
Elimination of intersegment
revenues

Revenues as reported
in profit or loss

Profit or loss

Segment operating
profit

Other unallocated income

Other unallocated expense

Operating profit as reported
in profit or loss

Finance costs

Finance income

Profit before tax as reported
in profit or loss

Assets
Segment assets
Deferred tax labilities — net
Elimination of intercompany
accounts

Total assets reported in the
consolidated statements of
financial position

Liabilities
Segment liabilities
Elimination of intercompany
accouants

Total liabilities as reported in the
consolidated statements of
financial position

March 31 March 31
2019 2018
{Unaudited) {Unaudited)

P 31,423,886 P 18192799
( 7,331,254) ¢ 1101203
P__24092,632 P 18082679
P 1,021,159 P 785664

24,064

- { 3.046)

1,021,159

808,682

( 582,444) ( 326,638)
27,357 7.811

P 466,072 P ___ 489855
March31 December 31

2019 2018
(Unaudited) {Audited)

P 74,367,646

P 71,078,852

615,104 307,198
(___9J28.270) (___ 6,566,058)
P_05.854480 P _64.819.992
P 49,404171 P 32,673,838
P_49404171 P__32.673.838
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CATEGORIES, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

AND FINANCIAL LTABILITIES

5.1 Carying Amouats and Fair Valves by Categary

The carrying amounts and falr values of the categories of finandial assets and liabilifes presented in the consolidated statements of &nancial position
are presented below.

March 31, 2019 (Unaudited)
Carrying Values Fair Values

December 31, 2018 (Audited)
Carrying Values i Yalaes

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents

P 5,182,047,666

P 5,182,047,666

P  7,889,708,807

P 7,889,708,807

Trade and other receivables-net* 13,376,585,175 13,376,585,175 11,363,226,589 11,363,226,589
Due from related parties 937,904,272 937,904,272 937,904,172 937,904,172
Constracton Bond*** 5,504,822 5,604,822
Restricted deposits 53,421,713 53,421,713 52,719,265 52,719,265
Refundable rental deposits 729,285,265 729,285,265 286,572 937 289,572,937
E___20.279.244,001 P__ 20.279,244,091 P __ 20538638502 P 20538638592

Financial Lizbilities

Financial Liabilities at amorazed cost:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

P 35,737,685,286

P 39,737,688,286

P 39,945,245,450

P 39,945245450

Trade and other payables** 7,570,620,203 7,570,620,203 7.271,897,097 7,271,897,097
Security deposits 305,192,297 305,192,297 266,616,512 256,616,512
Customers’ cylinder deposits 309,968,574 309,968,874 276,285,588 276,285,588
Cash bond deposits 16,599,752 16.599.752 568,702 491 56,702,491

E...47.940069.411 P__ 47940060411 P 47816747138 P_ 47816747138

*  Excluder certain advances to mppliers and advances sbject toliquidation

& Exceldes tax-related payables

*5¥ Dnvludded as part of Orbers snder Prepayments and Other Current Assets
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5.2 Fzit Value Hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy level in determining the fair values that will
be disclosed for its financial instruments.

. Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabiliies that an entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and,

. Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or Liability is classified is determined based on the
fowest level of significant input to the fair value measurement

For putposes of determining the market value at Level 1, 2 market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and
regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

For investments which do not have quoted market price, the fair value is determined by
using generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by refetence to the
current market of another instrument which is substantally the same after taking into
account the related credit risk of counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected
cash flows of the undetlying net asset base of the instrument.

When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market
data whete it is available and relies as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to determine the fair value of an instrument are observable, the
instrument is included in Level 2. Otherwise, it is included in Level 3.

5.3 Valuation Methods and Assumptions

The fajr value of the financial assets and liabilities is the amount at which the asset could be
sold or the liability transferred in a current transaction between market participants, other
than in a forced or liquidation sale. The fair value of loans from banks and other financial
liabilities, as well as other non-cutrent financial liabilities is estimnated by discountng future
cash flows using rates currenty available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The valuation requires management to use unobservable inputs in the
model. Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for the
significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the tota] fair value.




5.4 Fair Value Hierarchy of Instramnents Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fait
Value is Disclosed

The table below summarizes the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities which are not measured at fair value in the interim condensed
consolidated staterents of financial position but for which fait value is disclosed.

March 31, 2019 (Unaudited)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets
At amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalents P 5,182,047,666 P - T - P 5,182,047,666
Trade and other meceivables - net - - 13,376,585,175  13,376,585,175
Due from related parties - - 937,904,272 937,904,272
Restdcted deposits 33,421,713 - 53,421,713
Refundable rental deposits - - 729 285,265 223,417,240
P5,235,469,379 P - P15,043,774,712 P20,279,244,091
Financial Liabilitias
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Interest-bearng loans
and borrowings P - P - P 39,737,688,286 P 39,737,688,286
Trade and other payables - - 7,570,620,203 7,570,620,203
Cash bond deposits 16,599,752 16,599,752
Customers’ cylinder deposits 309,908,874 309,968,874
Secudrty deposits - - 305,192,207 305,192,297
P - P - P 47,940,069,411  P47,940,069,411
December 31, 2018 (Audited)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financal Assets
At amortized cost:
Cash and cash equivalents P 7,889,708,807 P - P - P 7,889,708,807
Trade and other receivables - net - - 11,363,226,589 11,363,226,589
Due from related parties - - 937,904,172 937,904,172
Restricted deposits 52,719,265 - - 52,719,265
Refundable rental deposits - - 289,572,937 289,572,937
P 7,042,428,072 P - P 12596208520 P 20,538,636,592
Finandal [iabilifiey
Financial labilities at amorticed st
Interest-bearing loans
and borrowings P - P - P 36,188,613,995 P 36,188,6413,995
Trade and othex payables - - 7,271,897,097 7,271,897,097
Cash bond deposits 56,702,491 56,702,491
Customers’ cylinder deposits 276,285,588 276,285,588
Securily deposits - . 266,616,512 266,616,512

P - D - P 44,060,115,683 P 44,060,115,683
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_For financial assets with fair value included in Level 1, management considers thar the
carrying amount of this short-term financial instrument approximates their fair values.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments. The
Group’s financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 5. The main
types of risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s risk management is coordinated with its Parent Company, in close
cooperation with the BOD, and focuses on actively secuting the Group’s short to medium-
termn cash flows by minimizing the exposute to financial markets.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor
does it write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described below and in the succeeding pages.

6.1 Market Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk which result from both its operating, investing

and financing activities.
(@) Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are catried out in Philippine pesos, its functional cutrency.
Exposures to currency exchange rates asise from the Group’s sales to a certain customer
and, fuel and tanker importations, which are primarily denominated in T.S. dollars (US§).

The liability covering the fuel importation is covered by letter of credits (LCs) which is
subsequently closed to Philippine peso trusts receipts (TRs). Further, the Group has several
U.S. dollar loans from certain banks, which were used to finance its capital expenditures.

The Group also holds U.S. dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

To mitigate the Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash
flows are monitored.

Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and financial liabilities, translated into
Philippine pesos at the closing rate follow:

March 31, 2019 (Unaudited)

U.S. Singapote
Dollar Dollar
Financial assets P 9,596,570,978 P16,516,926

Financial liabilities (__ 7.864,403,281) -

Net exposure L 1.732,167.697) P16,516,926
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December 31, 2018 (Audited)

Us. Singapore
Dollar Dollar
Financial assets P 5361,837054 T 5,566,810

Financial liabilities (_ 5253328012) 14.176.750

Net exposure (P___108509042) P 8.609.940

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit befote tax with respect to
changes in Philippine peso against U.S. dollar exchange rates. The percentage changes in rates have
been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange rates, usingstandard deviation,
in the previous three and 12 months, respectively, at a 99% confidence level.

March 31, 2019 (Unaudited)

U.s. Singapore
Dollas Dollar
Reasonably possible
change in rate 2.19% 24.456%
Effectin profit before tax (P 37,926,578) P 4,369,410
Effect in equity after tax ( 26,548,605) 3,058,587
December 31, 2018 (Audited)
us. Singapore
Dollar Dollar
Reasonably possible
change in rate 11.14% 16.28%
Effect in profit before tax P 12,087,907 P( 1,401,698 )
Effect in equity after tax 8,461,535 081,189

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of foreign
currency denominated transactions. Nometheless, the analysis above is comsidered tobe
representative of the Group’s currency sk

(6) Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow sk exposutes on long-term
financing. Long term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. As of March
31, 2019 and 2018, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest ratesthrough its
cash and cash equivalents and certain interest-bearing loans and borrowings, which are
subject to variable interest rates. All other financial assets and financial labilideshave
fixed rates.

The Group’s objectives and policies for managing interest rate risks are described in its recent
annual consolidated financial statements.
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(¢} Other Price Risk

The Group’s market price risk arises from its purchases of fuels. It manages its risk arising
from changes in market prices by monitoring the daily movement of the market price of

fuels and to some extent, using forward and other similar contracts to manage the
fluctuation of the fuel price.

6.2 CreditRisk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the Group. The
Group is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments arising from granting ofloans
and selling goods and services to customers including related partes; and placing deposits
with banks.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterpatties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporates this information into its credit risk
controls.The Group’s policy s to deal only with creditworthy counterparties. In addition, for a
significant proportion of sales, advance payments are received to mitigate credit risk.

Estimate of the fair value of collateral held against trade and other receivables as of March 31,
2019 and December 31,2018 follows:

March 31,2019 _Dec. 31, 2018

Standby letter of credits P 833,006,951 T 940,522,926
(Cash bond 321,792,049 318,976,639
Real estate mortgage 68.138.850 68.138.850

P 1222937850 P 1327638425

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown in the consolidated statements of financial position or in thedetailed
analysis provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as follows.

March 31, December 31,
2019 2018
(Unaudited) {Audited)
Cash and cash equivalents P 5,182,047,666 P 7,889,708,807
Trade and other receivables — net* 13,376,585,175 11,363,226,589
Due from related parties 937,904,172 037,904,172
Construction Deposit™ 5,504,822
Restdcted deposits 53,421,713 52,719,265
Refundable rental deposits 729,285,265 289,572,037

P20,279.244,091  P20,538,636.592

*exceluding certain advances to suppliers and advances sulyect to hguidation
¥ inchided as part of Others under Propayments and Other Current Assets
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The Group’s management considers that all the above financial assets that are not impaired or
past due for each reporting dates are of good credit quality. The Group’s objectives and
policies for managing credit risk are described in its recent annual consolidated financial
statements.

(@) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in the cash and cash
equivalents are cash in banks and short-term placements which are insured by the Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corp. up to a maximum coverage of P05 million for every depositor per
banking institution.

(6) Trade and Other Receivables and Due from Related Parties

The Group applies the PFRS 9 using internal credit ratings translated to external credit ratings
[Le. Standard & Poor’s(S&P)] in order to reference/benchmark with published equivalent
external cumulative PD. The Group’s definiion of Trade and Other Receivables and Due
from Related Parties classification [known as Phoenix Risk Rating (PRR)] and corresponding

credit risk ratings are presented in the next page.

Phoenix Description (PRR) Equival S&P
Risk Financial and ent PD
Rating Business Other . S&I.) (%)
(PRR) Profiles Information Rating
Counterparties These BBB 0.01 -
with both very counterparties do 0.02
~ strong financial not have a
and business eater-than-
FRR 3A profiles. irrnal tisk. The
Lowest risk of track record of
default in the the clientin
scale. termns of profit is
Counterparties very good and BBB 0.021
with strong exhibits highest —0.03
financial profile quality under
PRR 24 and very Etrong virtually all
business profile economic
or vice versa. condidons.
Counterparties Probability of BEB 0.031
with a strong to default is quite —0.08
adequate low and it bears
financial profile some degree of
PRR 14 and very strong stability and
to adequate substance.
business However, client
prodle. may be
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susceptible to
cyclical changes
and more
concentraton of
business risk, by

product or by
market.
Counterparties Counterparties BB 0.081
with a whose risk —0.26
sustainable elements are
PRR 3B financial profile sufficiently
and adequate pronounced to
business withstand normal
profile. business cycles
Counterparties but any BB 0.261
with an average prolonged - 0.41
financial profile unfavorable
and sustainable economic and/ot
business market period
PRR 2B profile. would cteate an
immediate
deterioration
beyond
acceptable levels.
Counterparties Credit exposure B 0.411
with both is not at risk of -1.13
average loss at the
financial and moment but
business performance of
PRR 1B profile. the client has
weakened and
unless present
trends are
reversed, could
lead to losses.
Counterparties This rating is CCC/C 1.131
with an average given to a client —1.96
' financial profile where repayment
PRR 3C and adequate of the receivable,
business through normal
profile. coutse of
Counterparties business, may be CCC/C 1.961
with a weak in jeopardy due -3.71
financial profile to adverse
PRR 2C and.adequate evgnts. There
business exists the
profile. - possibility of

future losses to
the institution
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unless given

closer
supervision.
Counterparties Counterparties 3.72-
with a wealk credits or 100
financial profile portions thereof
PRR 1C and sustainable which exhibit
business more severe
profile. weaknesses. This
Counterparties rating is given to 100
with a weak a counterparties
PRR D financial profile Who§e
and average teceivables or
business portions thereof
profile. are considered
Counterparties uncollectible. 100
with both weak The collecable
financial profile amount, with no
and business collateral or
profiles. which collateral
is of little value,
is difficult to
PRR F measure and

more practical to
wiite-off than to
defer even
though partial
recovery may be
obtained in the
futute.

A reconciliation of the closing loss allowance for trade and other receivables and due from
related parties as at March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018 to the opening loss allowance is

presented below:

Trade
and Other Due from
Receivables Related Parties
Credit Loss allowance at January1, 2019 634,396,128 P1,908,282
Decrease in credit loss allowance
during the year ( 16,152,585 ) 1,485,984
Wirite-offs -
Recoveries { 5.492 672) -

Credit loss allowance at December 31, 2018 P 609750871 PB___. 33947266
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Loss allowance at December 31, 2017 — PAS 39
Additional loss allowance charged to
opening retained earnings

Loss allowance at January 1, 2018 - PFRS 9
Increase in credit loss allowance
during the year
Wirite-offs
Recoveries

Credit loss allowance at December 31, 2018

and Other Due from
Receivables Related Parties
p 478,153,676 P “

107,699,501 1.908.282
585,853,177 1,908,282

68,465,111 -

( 17,153,577) -

{ 2.768.583) -

The credit loss allowance provided as of March 31, 2019 is as follows:

Trade and Other Receivables

Estimated Gross

S&P PD Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss

PRR Rating Range at Defauit Allowance
PRR 3A BBB 0.0t-0.02 P 256,420,967 P 25,642
PRR 2A BBB 0.021-0.030 371,574,739 111,472
PRR 1A BBB 0.031-0.080 378,149,347 222663
PRR 3B BB 0.081-0.260 2,367,973,565 6,15%,272
PRR 2B BB 0.261 -0.410 1,156,028,592 4,746,307
PRR 1B B 0.411~-1.13 730,869,044 8,274,557
PRR 3C CCCiC 1.131-1.66 73,260,034 1,774,366
PRR 2C CCC/C 1.961-3.71 227,827,336 8,487,418
PRR 1C/D/F D 3.72-100 680.308,696 579,949,174
B_6142412320 P 609,750,871

Due From Related Parties
Estimated Gross

S&P PD Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss

PRR Rating Range at Default Allowance
PRR 2A BEBB 0.01-0.03 p 907,671,652 P 272,304
PRR 1A - BBB 0.04 - 0.08 760,917,222 608,734
PRR 3B BB 0.09-0.26 497,074,476 1,282,384
PRR 2B BB 0.27-0.41 5,867 496 24,064
PRR 3C CCC/C 0.42-1.96 1,853,419 36,327

PRR 2C CCC/C 1.97 - 3.71 31,450,228 1,166,804
P__2204846494 P 3.400.627
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The credit loss allowance provided as of December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Trade and Other Receivables

Estimated Gross

S&P PD Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss

PRR Rating Range at Default Aliowance
PRR 3A BEB 0.14 =0.62 P 52,149,981 P 215,228
PRR 2A EBB 0.14 -~ 0.62 2,436,112,580 5,789,403
PRR 1A BBB 0.14-0.62 3,376,579,304 5,932,107
PRR 3B BB 0.63~1.90 3,228,077,625 21,232,653
PRR 2B BB 0.63-1.90 1,569,274,748 6,774,836
PRR 1B B 3,16 ~6.53 405,322,564 25,020,588
PRR 3C ccce/ic 17.97 - 22.33 68,521,800 13,648,151
PRR 2C CCC/C 17.97 —22.33 335,572,541 64,998,579
PRR 1C/D/F D 100 490.783.183 490,783,183

P 11962304326 P 634,396,128

Due From Related Parties

Estimated Gross

S&P PD Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss

PRR Rating Range at Default Allowance
PRR 3A BBB 0.14-0.82 P 61,148,279 P 85,609
PRR 1A BBB 0.14 - 0.62 808,510,976 1,414,100
PRR 3B BB 0.63—-1.80 70,152,199 408,573

P 939812454 P 1.908.282




-34-

Some of the unimpaited trade and other receivables are past due at the end of the reporting
date. The age of financial assets past due but not impaired is presented below.

March 31, December 31,

2018 2017
(Unaudited) (Audited)

Not more than one month P 139,429,124 P 577,035,340
Mote than one month

but not more than two months 1,046,400,448 681,732,537
Mote than two months but

not mote than six months 230,855,196 1,475,835,606
Mote than six months but not

more than one year 96,722,629 579,628,183
More than one year 119,276,818 455,810,135

P 1.632,684.216 P _3.770.041.821

In respect of due from a related party, the Group has assessed that these advances ate
collectible and the credit tisk exposure is considered to be low.

6.3 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt setvicing
payments for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis,
as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 6-month
and one-year period are identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requirements for up to
60-day petiods. Hxcess cash are invested in time deposits. Funding for long-term liquidity
needs is additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the
ability to sell long-term financial assets.

This compares to the maturity of the Group’s financial liabilities as of March 31,2019
(Unaudited) as presented below.

Current Non-curtent
Within 6tol2 1to 5 Mote than
6 months months vears 5 years

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowings P 12124143969 P 4286,351400 P 13,327,192,917P -
Trade and other payables

{excluding tax-related 7,566,252,482 1,300 -

payables)
Security deposits - - 305,192,297
Customers’ cylinder deposits - - - 309,968,874
Cash bond - - - 16,599,752

P 29,690,396,459 P 4,286,353,200 P 13,632,385,213 P 321,792,049
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As of December 31, 2018 (Audited), the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual
maturities which are summarized as follows:

Current Non-current
Within 6to12 1to5 Moze than
6 months months years 5 years

Interest-bearing loans

and bormrowings P 21,479,255,558 P 6,272692441 P 11,302,340,399 P 4925,525,000
Trade and other payables

(excluding tax-related 6,452.331,850

payables) 819,565,247 - -
Security deposits - - 266,616,512 -
Customers” cylinder deposits - - - 276,285,588
Cash bond - - - 56,702,491

P 22,316,820,805 P 12,725,024,291 P 11,568,956,911 P 5,258,513,079
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7. INVENTORIES

Inventories which are stated at cost, which is lower than its net realizable value, are
broken down as follows:

March 31, December 31,
2019 2018
(Unaudited) (Audited)
At cost:
Fuels P10,393,075,920 P 10,303,317,190
Lubticants 406,593,521 427 496,011
LPG 198,568,521 157,495,582
Others 154.407.778 247,185,503

P11152.645.740 P11,135494286

Under the terms of agreements covering the liabilities under trust receipts, inventores

withcarrying amount of P3,655.9million and P3,045.6 million as of March 31, 2019 and
December 31, 2018, respectively, have been released to the Group in trust for by the bank.

The Group is accountable to the bank for the trusted inventoties or their sales proceeds.

There wete no Inventory write-down in March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018.

8. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment is shown below.

March 31 December 31,
2019 2018 2018
{Unaudited) (Unaudited Audited

Balance at beginning of period P 18,715,994,505 P 13,400,687,345 P 13,400,687,345
Business combination — net 215,698,587 331,685,363 370,140,357
Addirtions 2,306,819,001 498,980,497 4,779,363,474
Revaluation Increments 1,219,846,043
PFRS 16 Leases (Right to Use recognition) 919,618,497

Disposals - net ( 1,903,840} ( 1,820,769 ¢ 28,844,956 )
Depreciation and amortization { 358,614,923} ( 226,915081)  { 1,025,197,738 )

Balance at end of the period P 21,797610,827  B14002617344 P 18715994505
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets is shown below.

March 31, December 31,
2019 2018 2018
(Unaundited) (Unaudited) {Audired)
Balance at beginning of period P 290,275,877 P 274,931,452 P 274,931,452
Additions 21,172,100 23,220,767 ;
Amortization expense for the period { 12,567,361) { 7,877,169 ( 53,122,808}
Balance at end of the period P 298,880,616 P 290,275,877 P 328,054,350

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are broken down as follow:

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018

(Unaudited) (Audited)
Cutrent:
Liabiliies under LC and TR P 3,655,941,635. P 3,045,567,756
Term loans 16,036,032,079 16,667,005,937
Liabilides under short-term
commercial papers 6.718,521,655 6.596,913,591

26,410,495,369 26,309,487 284
Non-cutrent —

Obligations under finance lease™ 1,020,918,416
Term loans 13,327,192.917 13,590,520.166

P 40758606702 P 39,900,007.450

*first time adeption of PERS 16 (leases)

10.1 Liabilities under Letters of Credits and Trust Receipts

The Group avails of LC and TR lines with local banks to finance its purchases of inventories.
These short-term trust receipts bear interests based on prevailing matket interest rates at an
average of 6.61% and 6.14% per annum as of March 31, 2019 and December 31,2018,
respectively.

10.2 Borrowings and Repayments

During the period, the Group obtained various tetm loans with banks in the total amount of
P12,657.0 million with outstanding balance as of March 31, 2019 of P12,657.0 million. The
loansbear interest ranging from 5.80% to 7.75% and is repayable in various dates until July26,
2019.

As of March 31, 2019, repayments of term loans amounting to P11,729.1 million were
made in line with previously disclosed repayment terms.
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N.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group’s related parties include the ultimate Parent Company, PPHI, stockholders, the
Group’s key management personnel, entities under common ownership by the ultimate
parent Company and others as described below and in the succeeding pages.

The summary of the Group’s transactions with its related parties for the periods ended March
31, 2019 and 2018 and the telated outstanding balances as of March 31, 2019 and
December31, 2018 1s presented below.

Amount of Transactions Outstanding Balance
Mar. 31, Mar. 31, Mar 31, December 31
Related Party 2019 2018 2019 2018
Category (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) {Audited)
Other related parties
under common
Ovwnesship
Sale of subsidiaries P500,000,000 P 500,000,000
Sale of goods 401,011,177 918,014,979 1,052,994,942 1,851,288,462
Purchases of services 53,312,216 3,000 10,255,096 2,467,366
Advances to
suppliers - - - -
Management fees - - 86,598,808
Rentals 28,844,845 14,265,532 - 5,774,879
Due from related
parties - 2,797,403 929,271,644 929,271,644
Due to related
parties - - -
Donations - - - -

Udenna Corporation
Advances to
suppliers -
Rentals - - -
Associate
Technical ship
Services -
Key management
personnel
Salaries and
employee
benefits 61,449,101 24,947,788 - -

- 1,167,194,841  1,167,194,841
710,545

111 Sale of Goods

The Group sells products to certain telated parties under common ownership. Goods ate

sold on the basis of the price lists in force with non-related parties. The outstanding receivables
from related parties are unsecured, do not bear any interest and collectible in cashon demand. No
impairment loss was recognized for the three months ended March 31, 2019 and 2018 based on

management’s assessiment.
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112 Purchases of Goods and Services

The Group putchased goods and services from related parties on the basis of price lists in
force with non-related parties. The outstanding balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing,
payable on demand and normally settled in cash.

In additon, the Group advances certain amount to certain related parties for the purchase of
services. The amount is credited upon the petformance of the contractual obligation by the related
parties. Management has assessed that there are no impairment Josses required to be recognized on
‘the advances to suppliets as of the three months ended Match 31, 2019.

11.3 Due from Related Parties

‘The Group grants and obtains unsecured advances to and from related pattiesunder common
ownesship for working capital requirements and other purposes.Due fromRelated Parties
(excluding advances to CISC) are either receivable in cash or paid through offsetting, unsecured
non-interest-bearing liabilities-and are expected to be paid within oneyear.

114 Disposal and Acquisition of Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures

On February 21, 2019, Pnx Vietnam, a subsidiaty of Phoenix Energy International Holdings Pte.
Ltd. based in Singaporecompleted the putchase of 75% shares of Phoenix Gas Vietnam LLC PGV
LLC). PGV LLC is engaged in LPG business operating based in Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

There are no disposal of subsidiaries for the threemonths ended March 31, 2019.



EQUITY
12,1 Capital Stock
Capital stock consists of:
Shares Ardount
For the year For the year
TFor the three months ended For the three months ended .
Ended March 31, December 31, ended March 31, December 31,
(Unaudited) 2018 (Unaudited) 2018
2015 2018 __{Audited) 2019 2018 (Audited)
Preferred ~ cumulative,
nonvoting,
non-participating,
non-convertible into
common shares -
P1 par value
Authorized: __50,000,000 _. 50000000 __ 50000000 P__50.000,000 250000000 E__ 50,000,000
Tasued:
Balance at beginning of year 22,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 P 22,000,000 P 30,000,000 P 30,000,000
Issuance during the year - - 2000000, = - 2.060.000
Balance 2t end of year 22,000,000 30,000,000 32,000,000 22,000,000 30,000,000 32,000,000
Treasury shares { =) { 5,000,000 (__10,000,000) ( =) 5.000,000) 10,000,000)
Issued and outstanding 22,000,000 25,900,000 22,000,000 P 22000000 25000000 P___ 22,000,000
Common — PI par value
Authorized: 2500000000 2500000000 2500000000 P2500,000,000 P2500.000000 P 2500000000

Issued:
Balance at beginning of year  1,403,304,232  1,451,538,232  1,428,777,232 P 1,090,004,232 P1,431,538,232 P 1,431,538,232

Issuance during the year - 2,766,000 - 2,766,000

Balance at end of year 1,403304,232 1431538232 1431538232  1,000,004,232 1431538232  1,434,304.232

Treasury shares = (31,000,000 = (344.300.00)
Issued and outstanding 1,403,304.232 1431538233 1403304232 P 1,090,004.232 P1431,53823%2 F 1.0900042332

P 1,112.004.232 1456538252 P 1112004232
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12.2 Employee Stock Options

On January 24, 2013, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the ESOP for its eligible employees.

The initial offering date of the option was on July 1, 2016 and will vest five years from the date of
grant. Pursuant to this ESOP, on July 1, 2016, the Parent Company granted share options to
certain key executives to subscrbe to 24.5 million common shares of the Parent Company
equivalent to 2.2% of the total issued shares, at an exercdise price of P5.68 per share.

Stock opdons will be granted in two tranches undl July 1. 2021. The allocation for Tranche 1

every
year is computed at 10.0% of the total available shares for exercise. Meanwhile, the allocation for

Tranche 2 is based on the forecasted assessment of the executives’ performance rating for five
years.

The fair value of the option granted was estimated using a vadation of the Black-Scholes
valuatdon model that takes into account factors specific to the ESOP. The following principal
assumptions were used in the valuation:

Life of the option 5 years
Current share price at grant date P 6.25
Exercise price at grant date F 5.68
Standard deviation of the rate of return 0.4
Risk-free interest rate ' 3.80%

The undetlying expected volatility was determined by reference to historical date of the Group’s
shares over a pedod of time consistent with the option life.

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference to historical date of the
Company’s shares over a period of time consistent with the option life.

A total of P7.2 million and P11.6 million share-based executive compensation is recognized in
2018 and 2017, respectively, and presented as part of Employee benefits under Selling and
Administrative Expenses account in 2017 and 2016 consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, respectively, with a corresponding credit to Retained Earnings account.

12.3 Cashk Dividends

The details of the Parent Company’s cash dividend declarations, both for preferred
and common shares, for the three months ended March 31 (unaudited) are as
follows:

2019 2018
Common shates : P 210495635 P 214,730,735
Preferred shares 79,665,000 48.727 500

P 290160635 P 263458236
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12. 4 Other Interimm Disclosures

The Group’s management is not aware of the following or is not applicable to the
Group’s interim operations:

Unusual items that matetially affect the Group’s interitn condensed consolidated assets,
liabilities, equity, net income of cash flows because of their size, nature or incidents;
Material changes in contngent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual
balance sheet date;

Existence of material contingencies and other events of transactions that are material to
an understanding of the current interim period;

Events that will trigger direct or contingent material financial obligations to the Group;
Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (direct or contingent}
and other relationships of the Group;

Significant elements of income ot loss that did not arise from the Group’s continuing
operations;

Material events subsequent to end of the reporting period that have not been reflected
in this report;

Material changes in the composition of the Group, including business combination,
acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, restructurings and discontinuing operations; and,
Any seasonal aspect that had a material effect on the consolidated financial condition or
tesults of operation.

12.5 Earnings Per Share

EPS were computed as follows:

For the three months ended For the year
March 31, ended December 31,
(Unaudited) 2018
2019 2018 (Audited)
a) Net profit pestaining to common shares P 335,006,103 P 389,962,853 P 2455907552
&) Net profit attributable to cornmon shares 335,006,103 389,962,853 2,455,907,552
and potental comrmon shares
¢) Weighted average number of outstanding 1,403,304,232 1,431,535,232 1,424,576,265
common shares
d) Weighted average number of 1,403,304,232 1,431,535,232 1,426,593,30C
outstanding common and
potential common shares
Basic EPS (a/¢) P 024 P 27 P 172

Diluted EPS (b/d) P 024 P 21 P 172




13.

14.

15.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

As of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Group has commitments of more than
P4,000.0 million and P6,000.0 million, respectively, for expansion on petroleum retail network,
depot, terminalling and logistics facilities, information technology infrastructure and other
majot expansions telated to its business development. The Group has a network of 615 and
600 opetating retail service stations as of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, respectively.
An addiional of 15 and 10 retail service stations are opened and under various stages of
completion as of March 31, 2019, respectively.

The Group plans to expand further its petroleumn retail service stations and carry out its
investments in its subsidiaries to put up depot and terminalling facilities in strategic locations
and complete its chain of logistical support to strengthen its foothold in the industry.

As of March 31, 2019 and December 31, 2018, the Parent Company has unused LCs
amounting to P11,800.1 million and P17,111.3 million, respectively.

There are commitments, guarantees and contngent liabilides that arise in the normal course of
operations of the Group which are not reflected in the accompanying interm condensed
consolidated financial statements. Management of the Group 1s of the opinion, that losses, if
any, from these items will not have any material effect on its interim condensed consolidated
financial statements.

In addition, there ate no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations and
other relationships of the Group with unconsolidated entties or other persons created during
the reporting period.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
There are no materal events that occurred subsequent to the interim period that is required to
be recorded or disclosed in these intetim condensed consolidated financial statements.

SEASONAL FLUCTUATIONS

‘There were no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results
of operations of the Group.



Item II: MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Comparable discussion on Material Changes in Results of Operations for the Period Ended March 31,
2019 vs. March 31, 2018.

Revenues, Cost of Sales and Gross Margins

The Group’s Revenues during the first quarter of 2019 grew to $#24.093bilion, about 33% higher
compared to the $18.083billion generated in the same period of 2018. This was due to the combined
effect of the 34% growth in total volume sold in the same petiod (2019: 795million liters vs. 2018:
597million liters) and the increase in the domestic selling prices of petroleum products as a result of the
implementation of the new excise tax rates starting in January 2019. This was augmented by the $0.203
billion sales contributed by Philippine Family Mart CVS, Inc. (PFM) and #33million sales contributed by
Action Able, Inc.

The 197million liters incremental sales volume was mainly attrbutable to the 145million liters sold by
Pnx Singapore. In addition, volume sold by both the parent company and Phoenix LPG Philippines,
Inc. rose by 41 million litets (9%) and 11 million liters {30%), respectively, during the comparative years.

Similarly, Cost of Sales and Services increased by 38%, from $15.746billion in the first quarter of 2018
to P21.678billion in the same period of 2019, as a result of the volume growth as well as by the
imposition of the new excise tax rates.

Consequently, Gross Margin rose by 3% or P0.078billion. On the other hand, Gross Margin Rate
decreased to 10% from the 12% registered in 2018, mainly as a result of the change in company’s sales
volume mix. The volume sold to commercial accounts couypled with PNX Singapore sales to external
customets grew faster (by 11% and 143%, respectively) than volume sold through the company’s retail
outlets where margins are generally higher.

Operating Expenses, Non-operating Expenses, Recurring Income

Meanwhile, the company was able to manage its Selling and Administrative Expenses as it started
implementing projects to steamline operations. Assuch, the P1.471billion incurred during the first
quarter of 2019 was down by 4% versus the P1.531billion 2018 level. Considering the volume growth,
operating expenses on 2 peso per liter basissignificantly decreased by 28%, from P2.56 in 2018 to P1.85
in 2019.

On the other hand, Net Non-operating Charges of P0.555billion was 76% greater than
the P0.316bilion incurred in 2018, mainly due to the 34% rise inaverage borrowing rates equivalent
about 1.33% as published by BangkoSentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) comparing the first quarter of 2019 and
2018. Furthermore, additional debt service was incurted due to the acquisition of the new businesses
which were funded by short-term debt, carty-over from 2018.
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Operating, Net and Comprehensive Incomes

With the decrease in operating expenses, the 2019 Operating Income of P1.021 billion was higher by
19% (P0.156 billion) compared to the 2018 Operating Income of 0.806 billion.

However, with the risein Net Non-operating Charges, the 2019 Net Income Before Tax(INIBT) of
$0.466 billion declined by 5% (P0.024 billion) vis-2-vis the 2018 NIBT of $0.490 billion.

Meanwhile, the company recorded a negative £0.029billion translation adjustment related to Pox SG
resulted in 2019, in contrast to the positive $0.026 billion recorded in 2018. As such, Comprehensive
IncomeofP0.386billion, was 17% lower than the #0.465billion reported in the same petod in 2018.

Financial Condition
{As of March 31, 2019 versus December 31, 2018)

Total resources. of the Group as of March 31, 2018 stood at $65.854billion, 2% growth compared to the
£64.660 billion level as of December 31, 2018. This was mainly due to the increases in Property, Plant,
and Equipment,as a result of the implementation of the PFRS 16 requiring recognition of Right to Use
and Finance Lease Liabilities on leases.

Cash and Cash Equivalents decreased by 34% (from #7.890 billion in December 31, 2018 to #5.182
billion as of March 31, 2019} as the company settled its maturing loans.

Similarly, Trade and Other Receivables declined by 3% (from $15.031 billion as of December 31,
2018 to P14.592billion as of March 31, 2019) resulting from the intensified collection efforts of the
company.

Inventory was relatively flat at #11.152billion as of March 31, 2019, from #11.135 billion as of
December 31, 2018.

As of March 31, 2019, the Group’s Property and Equipment, net of accumulated depredation,
increased to P21.798billion versus the #18.716 billion as of December 31, 2018. The 16% growth
represented the value of the assets of the newly acquired subsidiaties, the continuing expansion program
of the group and the implementation of PFRS 16.

Interest-bearing Loans and Borrowings, both current and non-current of#39.738 billion as of March
31, 2019 slightly increased to $39.945 billion as of December 31, 2018 or by xx%. The availment of new
loans to service the working capital requirements, the bulk of which was drawn by PNX SG, as well as
the company’s various capital expenditures was partly offset by the settlement of debts.

Trade and Other Payables increased by 2% from $7.435 billion as of December 31, 2018 to
£7.571billion as of March 31, 2019 due to the additional trade transactions, specifically of PNX SG.

Total Stockholders’ Equity increased to $16.450billion as of March 31, 2019 from £15.973 billion as
of December 31, 2018, (by 3%) resulting from the earnings generated. This was partly offset by the
declaration of cash dividends for both common and preferred shares.



Key Performance Indicators and Relevant Ratios

The Group’s key performance indicators and relevant ratios and how they are computed are listed below:

March 31, 2019 December 31, 2018
Cutrent Ratio? 1.0z :1x 1.1x:1x
Deebt to Equity Ratic? 3.0x:1x 3.0x:1x
Net Book Value per Share3 $8.74 £8.68
Debt to Equity Interest-Bearing# 2.4x 1% 2.5x:1x
BEarnings per Shareb B0.24 P1.72

Notes:

1 - Total current assefs divided by current habilities

2 - Total labilities divided by tangible net worth

3 - Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferved) divided by the total number of shares issued and outstanding
4 - Interest Bearing Debtr divided by Total stockholder’s equity (net of Preferred)

5 - Period or Year Net income after tax divided by weighted average number of ontstanding common shares

These key indicators were chosen to provide management with a measure of the Group’s financial
strength (Current Ratio and Debt to Equity) and the Group’s ability to. maximize the value of its
stockholders’ investment in the Group (Retutn on Equity, Net Book Value Per Share and Earnings Per
Share). Likewise, these ratios ate used to compare the Group’s performance with similar companies.

Material (5% or more) Changes to the Group’s Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2019 vs. December
31, 2018

34% dectrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Settlement of debts during the period.

12% decrease in Input Vat-Net
Lower input VAT from purchases compared to the output VAT on sales.

131% increase in Prepayments and other current assets.
Due to the renewal of insurances of all the assets, prepaid rentals advertising and other services and
acquisitions which will cover the periods beyond March 31, 2019.

16% increase in PPE
Due to new acquisitions, and construction of new retail and depot facilities, and the recognition of
Right to Use Asset in compliance with the implementation of PFRS 16.

9% decrease in Intangible Assets
Due to the amortization of the software assets.

15% increase in Goodwill
Due to the acquisition of Phoenix Gas Vietnam.

100% dectease in Income Tax Payable
Due to the incteased Certificates of Withholding Tax
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139% inctease in Non-curtent liabilities
Due the recognition of Finance Lease Liabilities in compliance with PFRS 16

116% decrease in Accumulated Translation Adjustments
Dhue toincreased transaction of the foreign currency denominated subsidiary, Pnx Singapore.

7% increase in Retained Earnings
Increase coming from the Net Income after tax net of the dividends declared and distributed during
the year.

Material (5% or more)changes to the Group’s Income Statement as of March 31, 2019 vs. March
31, 2018

33% imncrease in Sale of Goods
Due to the tevenues coming from the new subsidiades namely; PLPI, Pnx SG and Pox Energy,
coupled with the additional volume sold relative to last year (by 33%). The parent company
recorded an9% improvement on its volume sold this year while Pnx SG volume increased by 143%
compared to the same period of last yeat.

72% increase in fuel service, storage income, rental income and other revenue
This is due inctease in into-plane services, additional rental income from new retail stadons, non-fuel
related businesses and from Action Able, Inc.

37% increase in Cost of Sales and Services
This mirrors the increase in the sale of goods, reflecting the price movements in the world market
during the year which is Jittle higher compared to the same period in 2018. The increase in excise tax
rateson petroleum products 2lso contributed to the increment.

78% increase in Finance Costs
A substantial portion represents interest from the P6B loan used to acquire Petronas during the last
quarter of 2017 and from the 7B STCP from PNB capital.

40% increase in Finance Income and Others
Net realized and unrealized forex gains and additional income of Pnx SG.

2612% increase in Equity Share in Net Income of a Joint Venture
This is the net shate from PAPI, PSPC and Galaxi join ventures.

100% increase in Translation Adjustments
Due to the increased forex exposure on the increased transactions of the foreign denominated

subsidiary.

There ate no other material changes in the Group’s financial position (5% or more) and condition that
will warrant a more detailed discussion. Furthermore, there are no matetial events and uncertainties
known to management that would impact or change the reported financial information and condition of

the Group.



PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

1.

[

The Parent Company held its annual stockholders” meeting last March 15, 2019 at the Phoenix
Petroleum Corporate Headquarters, Lanang, [Davao City, Philippines.

The Boatd of Directors approved the declaration of cash dividend of #0.15 per share as disclosed
last March 14, 2019, with record date of April 8, 2019 and payment date of May 8, 2019.

The Board of Ditectors has declared cash dividends for the Company’s preferted shares (3<dTranche)
for the first quarter of 2019 as follows:

Shares Record Date Payment Date Interest Rate Per
Annum
PNX3A February 19, 2019 March 18, 2019 7.427%
PNX3B February 19, 2019 March 18, 2019 8.1078%

As of March 31, 2019, there are no known trends ot demands, commitments, events or uncertainties
that will result in, ot that are reasonably likely to result, in increasing or decreasing the Group’s
liquidity in any material way. The Group does not anticipate having any cash flow or liquidity issues.
The Group is not in default or breach of any note, loan, lease or other indebtedness or financing
arrangement requiting it to make payments.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent
obligations), and other relationships of the Parent Company with unconsolidated entities or other
persons created during the reporting period.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures, events or uncertainties that have had or
that are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the continuing operations of the Parent
Company.

There were no seasonal aspects that had a matetial effect on the financial condition or results of
operations of the Parent Company.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requitements of the Securities Regulation Code, the registrant has duly caused this report
to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Registrant PAL-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC.
By:

’
o~
DENNISA.UY
President and Chief Executive Officer

MA. CON CION F. DE CLARO
ficer
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Securities & Exchange Commission
Secretariat Building, PICC Complex
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Philippine Stock Exchange
Disclosure Department
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Makati City, Metro Manila

Philippine Dealing & Exchange Corporation
37th Floor, Tower 1, The Enterprise Center
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Attention:  Hon. Vicente Graciano P. Felizmenig, Jr.
Director, Market and Securities Regulation Department
Securities & Exchange Commission

Ms. Janet Encarnacion
Head - Disclosure Department
Philippine Stock Exchange

Atty. Joseph B, Evangelista
Head - Issuer Compliance and Disclosure Department
(ICDD)

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We would like to submit our recently concluded Annual Audited Financial Statement
(AAFS) for period ended 31 December 2018 complete with its attachments as will be
attached to our Definitive Information Statement (SEC Form 20-IS) and distributed to
our shareholders.

Thank you and warm regards.

Atty. Socorro Ermac Cabreros
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Opinion .

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of P-H-O-E-N-i-X Petroleum Philippines,
Inc. and subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial
position as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income, consolidated statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of cash flows
for the three years in the period ended December 31, 2018, and notes to consolidated financial
statements, inciuding a summary of significant acoounﬂng policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
g respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2018 and 2017,
) and its.consolidated financial performance and its consalidated cash flows for each of the thre¢
- yéars in the period ended December 31, 2018 in accordance with Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS).

;o L,

[ Basis for Opinion
i

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for

] the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professionat Accountants in the
Philippines {Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audits of the consolidated financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfiled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. we
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appmpnate to pm\nde a basis
for our opinion. i
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in. the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
wl;?tle, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate apinion on these
matters,

{a) Revenue Recognition

Description of the Matter -

—

=
The Group’s revenue is primarily generated from the sales of goods [fuels, fiquefied petroleurn
gas (LPG), lubricants and other petroleum products], which recognized.as the goods are
delivered. The Group fecuses on revenue as a key performance measure; which could create
an incentive for management to overstate revenues, particularly from sale of goods. In our
view, revenue recognition is a key audit matter due to its significance io- profit, high volume of
revenue transactions and susceptibilty to misstatement due to fraud or efmor. Relative to this,
we consider that there is a higher risk associated with revenue occurrence and appropriate
recognition of sales in the correct accounting period. -
The revenue recognition policy and disaggregation of revenues are disciosed in accountifg
policies for revenues are included in Notes 2.13 and 21, respectively, to the consolidated
financiai statements. b

1

How the Matter was Addressed in the Audit

Qur audit procedures inciuded, among others, the following:

& updating our understanding of the Group’s revenue recognition poficy and procedures;

* reviewing the existing contracts with customers and evaluating the appropriateness of the
Group's revenue recognition policies and application in accordance with FFRS 15,
Revenus from Contracts with Customers;

= performing sales cut-off procedures immediately before and after the year-end by testing
the sales invoices to evidence of delivery to ensure that revenue was recognized in the
comrect period;,

= performing detailed transaction testing by agreeing sample revenue items to supporting
documents, including sales invoices, contracts and third party correspondence,
conducting substantive analytical procedures; and,

s confirming trade receivables, on a sample basis, as of the end of the reporting period.

{b) Impalrment of Trade and Other Recelvables
Description of the Matter

Under the PFRS, the Group is required to assess its trade and éther receivables for
impairment. As described in Note 4.2(b) to the consolidated finarcial statements, the
impairment losses have been determined in accordance with PFRS 8, Financial Instruments.
The allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is considered to'be a matter of
significance Since estimates used to determine the allowance for impairment requires
significant judgment. .

As of December 31, 2018, the Group had trade and other receivahies amounting to .
F15,030.7 million, which contributed to 23.3% of the Group's fotal-assets. As of December 31,
2018, the allowance for impairment on trade and other receivables amounted to P634.4 million.
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The disclosures of the Group on the allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables
and the reiated credit risk are inciuded in Notes 7 and 4.2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

How the Matfer was Addresssd in the Audit

Qur-audit procedures to address the risk of material misstatement relating to the adequacy of
allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables, included, but not restricted to:

» evaluating the appropriateness of the Group’s expected credit loss model based on the
requirements of PFRS 9,

*» assessing the appropriateness and reasonabléness of underlying assumptions, and the
sufficiency, rellability and reievance of the data used by tf,Group's management;

+ performing independent checking on the probabitity of d t, [6ss diven defauit and
exposure at default rates that are used as bases in compufing the impairment loss on
selected trade and other receivables accounts; and, ' o

+ performing an independent calcutations based on the Group‘%memoddlagy.

{c} Business Combination -
Descriplion of the Matfer ol

As disclosed in Note 1.4 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2018, the Group completed
the acquisitions of Philippine FamilyMart CVS, Inc. (PFM), Action.Able inc. (AAl), Think.Able
Limited (TAL) (AAf and TAL coliectively known as AAl Group). The Group has determined
these acquisitions to be business combinations for which the purchase price is to be allocated
between the identifiable assets and liabilities at their respective fair values.

Following the various acquisitions, the management has determined Goodwill amounting to
P273.1 million and P155.0 million for the acquisitions of PFM and AAI Group, respectively.

The accounting for these on business acquisition is complex due to the significant judgements
and estimates that are required to defermine the values of the consideration transferred and the
identification and measurement of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assuimed.
We, therefore, consider the business acquisition to be a key audit matter due to the significance
of the amount involved and the complexity of the accounting requirements.

The Group’s disclosure on policies on business combinations is presented in Note 2,12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

How the Matfer was Addresssd in the Audit

Ouraudit procedures included, among others, the following:

* reviewing the relevant minutes of meeting of the Parent Company for the approvai of the
transaction and executed share purchase agreement

+ involving our own valuation specialist to assist in evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methods and relevanit assumptions used;

* examining supporting document of the cash consideration given;

* reviewing the appropriateness and reasonableness of vajuations prepared by indeperident
appraisers an cerain properties; in addition, assessing the competencies; objetctivity and’
capabilities of the appraisers; S .

» testing the reasonableness of the fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
as at the acquisition date; - -
recalculating the difference between the net assets acquired and considerations given; and,

+ evaluating the adequacy of the financial statement disclosures, including disclosures of key
assumptions and judgements.
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{d) Existence and Valuation of inventories
Description of the Matter

As of December 31, 2018, the Group held P11,135.5 million of inventories, which is 17.2% of
the lotal consolidated assets of the Group. Given the size of the inventory balance relative to
the consclidated total assets of the Group, and the estimates and judgments invoived in this
account, the valuation of inventory required our significant audit attention. As disclosed in
Note 2.5, invertories are held at the lower of cost and net realizable value using the moving
average methed. As of year-end, the valuation of inventory is reviewed by the management
and the cost of inventory is reduced where inventory is forecast to be sold below cost. The
breakdown of inventory as of December 31, 2018 is disciosed in Note B to the consolidated

financial statements. =
=
How the Matter was Addresssd in the Audit =
e

Our audit procedures included among others, the following:

+ observing inventory counts and performing test of quantities;

= performing test of purchases and test on the moving average,cost calculation; and,
= testing the net realizable values of sample inventory items te-recent seliing prices.

w3
(e} impairment of Goodwiil I
Description of the Maitsr pA

The Group has recognized goodwill amounting to P4,418.8 miillion as of December 31, 2018.
Under PFRS, the Group is required to annually test the amount of its goodwil! for impairment.
The annual impaimment testing of goodwill is considerad to be a key audit matter due 1o the
complexity of management process in assessing the recoverability of goodwill. In addition, the
assumptions used in determining the cash generating units (CGUs) where the goodwill is

allocated and estimating the recoverable amount involves significant judgment. The recoverable

amount of the CGUs has been computed using discounted cash flows method. This vajuation
methcd uses several key assumptions, including estimated of future sales volume and prices,
operating costs, terminal value growth rates and discount rate.

The Group's disclosures about Goodwill and the policy are included in Notes 14 and 2,12,
respectively.

How the Matler was Addresssed in the Audit

Qur audit procedures to address the risk of material misstatement retating to goodwill included,
among others, the following:

+ involving our own valuation specialist to assist iri evaluating the appropriateness of
assumptions used in estimating the recoverable amount of CGUs;

= evaluating the appropriateness of assumptions and methodologies used by the
management, in particular, those relating to the estimated of future sales volume and

prices, and operating costs as well as the discount rate used; and, .. .7
« evalualing the adequacy of the financial statement disclosures, inciuding discfosures of key
assumptions and judgements. S .
I -z
- ~..
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(f} Change in Accounting Foiicy Resulting in Revaluation of Properties
Deascription of the Matler

As described in Note 2.1(b), the Group changed its accounting poiicy in 2018 with respect to the
subsequent measurement of its parcels of land that are classified under property, plant and
equipment and investment properties. The Group now applies the revaluation mode! for parcels
of land under praperty, plant and equipment, and fair vaiue model| for parcels of land under
investment properties. Under the revaluation mode!, praperty, piant and equipment are carried at
a revalued amount, being its fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent impaimment
losses. Under the fair value model, investment properties are carried at fair value, and changes
in fair value is recognized in profit or loss. Prior to this change, the Group applied the cost mode!,
under which the parcels of [and are cartied at cost iess impa'@'tent. The management believes
that the new policy results in the consolidated financia statements providing reliable and more
relevant information. As a result of the change in accounting Reficy, gain on revajuation of land
under property, plant and equipment and fair value gains on investment properties amounting to
F1,218.8 million and P624.8 miilion, respectively, were recognizgd. The voluntary change in
accounting policy resulting to the valuation of parcels of land ciagsified under property, plant and
equipment and investment properties is considered as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the amounts involved, combined with the significant judgements assogiated with the
determination of fair values. -~ :

The Group's disclosures about the effect of the change in accounting poficy is presented in
Note 2.1(b)(i]) to the consolidated financial statements: the new accgunting palicy for property,
plant and equipment and investment properties are discussed in Nofes 2.7 and 2.8 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively; and, while the presentation of the carrying
values are presented in Notes 11 and 15 for property, plant and equipment and investment
properties, respectively,

How the Mafler was Addrassed in the Audit

Our audit procedures in relation to the change in accounting policy resulting to revaluation of
the properties included, among athers, the following: '

* evaluating the appropriateness of the change in accounting pelicy and analyzing the effects
from the perspective of PAS B, Accounting Folicies, Changes in Accounting Esfimates, Errors;
= reviewing the appropriateness and reasonabjeness of valuations prepared by independent
appraisers on certain propesties and testing the land values, on a sampling basis, by
comparing the values used by the independent appraisers to publicly available information
of simmifar comparable properties;
assessing the competencies, objectivity and capabilities of the appraisers; and,
recalcuiating for the gain on revajuation of property, piant and equipment and fair value
gains oh investment praperties.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other infarmation. The other information comprises the
information included in the Parent Company's Securities and Exchange‘Gommission (SEC)
Form 20-iS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report for the year
ended December 31, 2018, but does not include the consolidated financial statements-and our
auditors’ report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive information” Statement), SEC Fam
17-A and Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2018 are-expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditors’ report. - -

.~ -
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audits, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated,

If, based on the work performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of
this auditors’ report, we conciude that there is a material m tement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact We have nothing to repofin this regard.

. = .
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Sovernance for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

i e e o i T e T T TR TEE AR p—— r——

- ‘
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair preseni"éﬂtion of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with PFRS, and for such intemal control as management
~ determines is necessary o enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 3, :
SOF .
In preparing the consclidated financial statements, management is @spon‘sible for assessing the
Group's abllity to continue as 2 going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem 2nd using the going concem basis of accounting unless maniagernent either intends to
i liquidate the Group cr to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

e o ———

sy

-

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financiat reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibiiities for the Audlt of the Consoildated Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due-to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve| of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
aré considered matenial if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users tzken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement.of the consolidated financia!
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from errar, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the évemride of intemal control. -~ 77 "

o TR o

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in ofderto desigh augit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expreasing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's intemal contro. -~ = T T o=

A A POPH R A

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and _tl'reréasaﬁablenesg of -

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by manage[ngut._‘ S

DR
-
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» Conciude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence abtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors* report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors' report. However, future events or condiions may cause the Groupto cease to
continue as a going concem.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation. .

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express ag-opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, sepervision and performance of

the group audit We remain solely responsibie for our audit opinian,

-t
We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding.‘gmong other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings.-including any significant
deficiencies in intermal control that we identify dunng ouraudit =

2 .

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirernents regarding independence, and to comm’@imte with them ali
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear.on our indeperidence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. et

From the matfers communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors' report unless law or regutation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not e communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audits resulting in this independent auditors’ report is
Ramilito L. Nafiola.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By:

R

.
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENTS RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of P-H-O-E-N-1-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
(the Group) is responsible for the preparation and fair presentaton of the consolidated
financial statements, inchuding the schedules ateached therein and as enumerared below, for
the years ended December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the prescribed
financial teporting framework indicated therein, and for such intermal control as
management determines Is necessaty to enable the preparaton of consolidated financial
statements that are free from matedal misstatement, whether due to frand or crror.

2) Supplementary schedules required under Annex 68-I3 of the Securities Regulaton
Code
.. [Financia] assets
. Amounts of receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and
Principal Stockholders (Other than Relzred lz_z_xrtics)
il. Amounts of receivables from Relatcd Partics which dre Eliminared during the

Consolidagon of Financial Statements = =
iv. Intangible assets — other assets = =
v. Long-term debt 3

vi. Indebtedness to Related Parties (l.ong-rerm Tans &om related Company)
vil. Guaranice of Securities of Other Issuets ; , .
viti. Capital stock i
b) Map showing the relationship between and amobg related entities
) Schedule of Philippine Financial Reparting Standards and Interpretations Adopted
by the Securities and Fxchange Commission and: the Financial Reportiag Standards
Council as of December 31, 2018 se
d) Recondiliation of retained earnings available for dividend declaration

¢) Scheédule showing financial soundness indicatots

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, ot has no realistic altemitive to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing thc Group’s financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the comsolidated financaal statements,
including the schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders

Punongbayan & Araullo, the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has
audited the consolidated finandial statements of the Group in accordance with Philippine
Standards on Auditng, dnd mn their report to the stockholders, have expressed their opiion
on the faicness of presentation upon completion of such audir.
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Signed this day 22™ day of February 2019
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DOMINGO T, 1Y

DENNIS A UY
President
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MA. CONCEPCION 5, DT CLARQ T
Chief Finance fficer . o
(REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES) _"1._ F
City of Davao) S.s )

=
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SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on this day of 22 February 2019 in
Davao City. Affiants have confirmed their identities by presenting competent evidence of
identity viz;

Name Competent Evidence of Identity

Domingo T. Uy
Dennis A. Uy
Ma. Concepcion F. De Claro

And that they further attest that the same are true and correct.
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P-H-O-E-N4-X PETRQLEUM PHILIPPFINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2018, AND 2017

{With Corresponding Figures as at Jsriuaiy 1, 2017}

(Amounts in Philippine Pesas}
December 31, January 1,
207 2017
Daecembear 21, {A= Restated - {As Restated -
Notes 2018 see Nota 2) se€ Note 2)
ASSETS
CURRENRT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents € P 7.889:?38,!07 1,831,557,883 2,338,780.526
Trade and other receivables - net 7 15,030,712,704 7,705,307,762 8,788,006 .059
Inventoriés - pat -] 11,1364 12,416,237,073 2,908,780,146
Due from related partles - net 27 37,8 a’éﬂ 518,004,858 1,506,907 926
Restricted deposits ] 52,715,285 51,281,559 50,925,404
Input value-added tax - nat 1,517,637.41 1,773,081,281 731,735,700
Prepayments and other curreni assels 10 595,698, 2] 610,271,176 585,863,589

Tolal Current Assels 3?,259.777,423:-: . 24_.905,751 632 17,012,188,450

NON-CURRENT ASSETS = S

Properly, plant and equipment - net 1 18,716,954.505 - 13,399,679 808 B8.002.313,141
Investment properties 5 1,738,021,.205 1,114,780,281 -
Intanglble assals - net 12 328,054,350 - 285,458,242 275,037,450
invastments n joint verures 13 ass43s370 < -
Goodwilf - net 14 4,418,342,831 ¥ 3,690,6686,606 10.221,848
Defered tax assets - net 25 147,484,516 235,996,230 46,191,775
Other non-current assels 18 .1, 595,867,630 e 223,467,068 —..182,084 216

Tota! Non-cument Assels 27,400,501,307 18,260,348, 235 9,525.848.471

TOTAL ASSETS P 84,660,278,730 P__44,188,069.657 P_ 25,538 037,821
LTI |
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and bormowings 17 P 26,308,487,284 P 16,796,674,145 P 11,262 858,643
Trade and other payables 18 743,839,257 3,584,623,798 3,232,662,616
fncome tax payabie — 99,380,882 3,671,202 100,283,443
Total Current Liablitles 33,843,707, 218 __20.385169.145 14,585,784 502
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Interest-bearing loans and borowings 17 13,540,520,168 11,374,550,853 1,821,565,000
Defermed tax labliites - nat 26 631,776,224 225,027,052 -
Other non-cument liabillties 20 820,602,265 457,806,312 258,584,266
Tota! Non-current Liabilitles 14,842,898,655 12,087,393 217 2,180,145.286
Total Liablities 45,686,605,873 32,482 562,362 18,775.844.188
EQUITY 28
Equity athribitable to parent company )
Capital stock 1,112,004,232 1,4565,538,232 1.123,097,449
Additional paid-in capltal 7,233,692 486 5,708,303,309 5,320,816,182
Revaluation reserves 27,510,428  ( 2,306,048 ) 12,148,102 )
Cther reserves { 730,361,726) ¢ 730,381,725) 730,281,725 )
Accumulaled translation adjustment 24,928,394 { 3,701.486) -
Retained esmings 7,542,843, 961 5,254,155 224 4.060,880,929
16,010,612,776 11,883,537.505 9,762,093,733
Non-cantrolling interest { 36,044,918} - N
Total Equity _ 15,973,572,857 11,683,537 505 £.762,083.733
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY P__54,660,278,730 P__44.166,000 857 P__ 26,538,037 821

See Notes to Consoidated Fnanciaf Statements.




P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUESIDIARIES
CONSOUDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2017 AND 2016

(Amounts in Philippine Pesas)

2017 28
{As Restated - {As Restated -
Nates 2018 see Note 2) ses Nate 2)
REVENUES
Sale of goods 2,27 P 87,672,722,662 P 44,148,952,252 P 28,346,197,021
Fueil service and other revenues 2,28 824,182,312 301,402,792 205,587 558
Rent income 15, 31 413,863,129 92,626,832 148,340,733
Charter fees and other charges - - 624,704,375
Fort revenues - - 126,128,262
88,610,768,104 44,542,981.876 30,450,857 ,950
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of sales and services pal 79,838,964,8240 38,345,104,529 25,123,948,328
Selfing and administrative expenses 22 5,741,750,297 4,207.027,951 3,327.065.843
84,580,715,117 42,552,132,480 28.451.018,072
OTHER CHARGES (INCOME)
Finance costs 22 1,449,247,671 804,707,861 906,280,170
Fair value gains on investment properties 18 { 624,941,000 ) - -
Finance Income 23 ( 73,374,342)  { 56313476} { 207,697,618)
Equity share in net income of joint ventures 13 { 7,342,245 ) - 50,088,986
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired
over acquisition cost 1 - { 650,182,327} -
Others - net 15 { 87,267.127) 36,852,747 ( 11.006.428 )
656,322,957 61,359,311 737,665.090
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 3,373,730,030 1,929,490,085 1,262,277,788
TAX EXPENSE 25 606,568,321 408,067,238 169,802,891
NET PROFIT [ 2,767,141,709 P 1.521.422.847 P 1.092 474,897
NET PROF!T ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Parent company P 2,778,255,552 P 1,521,422,847 P 1,092,474,897
Nan-controfing interest { 9,113,843 ) - -
P 2,767,141,709 P 1521422847 P 1,092,474.887
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Itemn that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Translatian adjustment related to a foreign subsidiary 2 {P 28,719,880} (P 3.791,486) B -
Iteims that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit orloss
Gain on revajuation of land 11 1,219,846,043 - -
Remeasurements of post-empioyment
defined benefit obligatian 24 { 34,393,833) 14,060,076 15,360,800
Tax expense 26 { 355,635633) 4218023) ( 4,608,240}
829,816,477 9,842,053 10,752,560
Other Comprehensive Income - net of tax 801,096,537 5,080,567 10,752,560
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME P 3,668,238,306 P 1,527,473.414 P 1,103,277 457
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Parent company P 3,677,252,149 P 1527473414 P 4,103,227,457
Non-controlling interest { 9,113,843 ) - “
P gﬁss,za&,aos P 1,527 473.414 P 1,103.227,457
Basic Earmnings per share 29 P 172 P 0.97 P 0.64
Diluted Eamings per shate P 172 P 0.96 P 0.64

See Notes to Consalidated Financial Statements,
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P-H-0O-E-N--X PETRCLEUM PHILIPPINES, ING. AND SUBSIOIARIES
CCNSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 21, 2018, 2017 AND 2015
{Amounts in Philippine Pesas)

2017
(A3 Restated -
Nutes 2018 see Note 2) 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before lax P 3,378,730,030 P 1,828,480,085 P 1,262,277,788

Adjustments for:

Interest expense on bank loans and other bomowings 23 1,376,534,786 780,917,196 868,399,371
Depreciation and amordzation 22 1,056,749,318 851,080,582 1,0602,088,441
Impairment losses on trade and other receivables 22 63,465,111 50,535,388 112,986,854
Interest income 23 { 3t 424946 | 18,480,943)  ( 7,110,108
Unrealized foreign exchange currency loss (gain) -~ net { 30,577,666 ) 3,883,468 { 171,372,659
Translation adjustment 2 238,718,580 { 3,791,488 ) -

Provisien for loss an jost cyfinders " 24,280,486 - -

Share ir net income of an indirecly-owned joint venturas 13 { 7,342,245 ) “ 50,068,966
Employee share options 24 7,243,688 11,589,866 5,757,780
Recovery of accounts writlens off { 2,768,583 ) - -

Loss (gain) on disposs! of property, plant and equipment { 4,006,348 ) 8,165,790 -

Excess of fair value of net assets acquired over acquisition cost 1 - { 650,182,327 ) -

Gain on reversal of Impaimment losses on Investment properties 15 - { 40,785,503 ) -
Impaimment losses on non-financial assels - 92.823 -

Operating profit befare working capital changes 5,863,073,489 2,823,224,850 3,118,086,436
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables { 7.415,544,495 ) 1,784,5688,722 528,697,133
Decrease (increase) in inventonies 26,812,185,92% 11,723,876,386 { 370,318,364 )
Decrease in land held for sale and land developmant costs - - 22,667,200
Decrease (increase) in restricled deposits { 1,437,706) ¢ 356,165) 20,046,803
Decrease (increase} in input value-added tax - net 363,028,626 4 1.027,547,440) | 36,265,532)
Increase in prepayments and other current assels { 1,174,855871} ¢{ 235,826.738) 637,582,575)
Increase (decresse) in trade and other payables 3,555,864,543 . 101,084,787 { 288,096,189

Cash generated from aperations 23,001,911, 518 15,269,124,511 2,357.235,002

Cash paid for income taxes { 29.603,287) ( 73453457 4,508,301 )

Net Cash From Cperating Aclivilies 27,972,308,228 15,26%,775,166 2,352,726,701

CASK FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment 11 { 4,617,753,320) ¢ 31763435101 ( 2,155,960,542 }

Increase in alhar non-curment asseis { 1,643,692,055 ) 27,350,219 { 15,994,274}

Advances to refated parties 27 { 524,778,830 ( 669,526,678) ( 844,762,083

Invesimenls in joint ventures 13 { 448,094,125 - -

Acquisition of subsidiaries 1 { ag7,485,037)  ( 6,705620,931) -

Acqulsltions of intangible assets 12 ( 58,062,518} ( 50,548,722y ( 203,908,603)

Interest recefved 27,225,802 15,769,301 3377232

Coliections from related parties 27 25,952,983 1,158,319,706 25,000

Proceegs fram disposal of propery, plant and equipment 22,618,656 14,531,586 2,434,259

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries 27 - - 2.450,600,000

Increase in lend held for future development - > { 151,281,172}

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities { 7.569,028.642}  ( 9,385,888,329) [ 1.015.670,082)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayments of interest-bearing loans and bormowings { 71,873,587.858) { 43,704,708,403)  ( 19,886,544,845 )
Pruceeds from additional interest-bearing loans and berrewings 57,798,571,804 37,015,647 857 20,684,209,875
Praceeds from issuance of shares of stock 28 2,015,710,878 15,682,481 -
Interest paid { 1,636,604,340) ( 741,202.295)  ( 801,737,593)
Acquisition of lreagury shares 28 { 844,300,000} { 109,407,705) 330,679,783 )
Payments af cash dividends 28 ( 409,640,735)  ( 331,118,383) ( 309,212,179)
fncrease in other non-current liabilities 806,732,188 63,745,068 13,800,134
Pracesds from sale of treasury shares 28 - £07,224.100 -
Met Cash Used in Financing Aclivities { 14,345 118,682) ¢ 6.383,133,480) { 530.064.294)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 6,058,150,924 { 507,222,643 ) 706,952,225
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 1,831,557,883 2.338.780.526 1,831,788,201
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR P 7,889.708,207 B 1,831,557,883 P 2,338,780,526

Suppiemental Information on Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities:

1% In 2048, the Parent Company acquired certain land from a related party amounting to P92.2 milfion, of which, P19.8 million remained unpaid as of Decernber 31, 2018 {s¢e Note .

- 2y On August 14, 2017, the Parent Company acquired the 100.00% shares of stocks of Duls, Inc. and Subsidiary for the amount of P394.2 million, af which P267,2 milkon advances
of Duta, Inc.'s previous stackhalder was novated In favor of the farmer (see Note 1.4).

3) Interest paymems amaunting to F261.6 million, P19.7 million, and P61.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, were capitalized as parl of the cost of property, plant and
equipment {see Notes 1.1}

4) Cerlain hauling and heavy equipment with camrying amount of nif as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and P3.1 milfion as of December 31, 2016, respectively, are accounled fo
under financa leases.

5) On November 24, 2018, lhe Parent Company sold its entire investments in Gheisea Shipping Comp. and Calaca Indusirial Seaport Corp. to related parties under commen
ownership for 2 tolat cansiderationi of P2,000.0 miilion (see Note 1.5). The dispesal of the subsidiaries resulted to a recognition of Other Reserves, dccourled as the difference
between the net asset values of the subsidiaries and consideration received {se& Notes 1.5 and 2,2). As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the cutstanding receivable fram the
sale of subsidiaries is presented as part of Non-trade receiveble under Trade and Qther Recgivables accaunt in the consolidated statements of financial posilion (see Nates 7 an¢
27.9).

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,




P-H-0-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018, 2017 AND 2016
{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

GROUP INFORMATION
1.1 Incorporation and Operations

P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. (the Parent Company) was incorporated in the Philippines on
May 8, 2002 and is 41.97% owned by P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Haoldings, Inc. {(PPHI), a company
arganized in the Philippines.

The Parent Company's made its initial public offering with the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) on

July 11, 2007. The Parent Company is presently engaged in trading of petroleum products on
wholesale and retail basis and operating of gas stations, oil depots, storage fadilities and allied services.
The registered office of the Parent Company, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

PPHI was incorporated in the Philippines and was registered with the Philippine Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 31, 2006. PPHF's primary purpose is o provide management,
investment and technical advice for commercial, industrial, manufacturing and other kinds of
enterprises. PPHI's registered office is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga,
Davao City.

The ultimate parent is Udenna Corparation (UC), which is primarily organized to purchase, acquire,
take over and manage all or any part of the rights, assets, business and property; undertake and
assume the liabilities of any person, firm, association, partnership, syndicate of corporation; and to
engage in the distribution, selfing, importation, instaltation of pollution control devices, units and
services, and all other pollution control related products and emission test servicing. The ultimate
parent company’s registered office is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga,
Davao City.

The Parent Company has a total of 800 operating retail service stations, and a total of eight service
stations under construction as of December 31, 2018.
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1.2 Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and their Operations

As of December 31, the Parent Company holds ocwnership interests in the following entities, which are
all incorporated and domiciled in the Philippines or otherwise stated:

Explanatory Percentage of Ownership
Subsidiaries/Joint Venture Notes 2018 2017
Direct interest:
Subsidiaries
P-F-L Petroleum Management, Inc. (PPMI) (a) 100.00% 100.00%
P-H-O-E-N-I-X Global Mercantile, Inc. (PGMI) (v) 100.00% 100.00%
Subic Petroleum Trading and Transport

Phils., Inc. (SPTT) (c) 100.00% 100.00%
PNX Petroleum Singapore Pie. Ltd. (PNX SG) {d) 100.00% 100.00%
Phoenix LPG Philippines, Inc, (PLPI) (e) 100.00% 100.00%

- Duta, Inc.? ) 100.00% 100.00%
Philippine FamilyMart CVS, Inc. (PFM) * {Q) 100.00% -
PNX Energy International Holdings, Pte. Ltd.

(PNX Energy)? {h) 100.00% -
Action.Able, Inc.(AAD) 1 & 74.90% -
Think.Able Limited (TAL) * G 74.90% -
Joint venture
Phoenix Asphait Philippines, Inc.? (K} 40.00% -
Indirect interest:

Kaparangan, Inc. (Kaparangan) 24 0} 100.00% 100.00%
PNX (Vietnam) Pte. Ltd. {PNX Vietnam) 3 {m) 100.00% -
PT Phoenix Petroleum Indonesia

{PNX Indonesia)® (n) 100.00% -
Galaxi Petroleum Fuel, Inc. {(Galaxi)” (o) 51.00% -
Phoenix Southern Petroleurn Corp. (PSPC)Y? {p) 51.00% -

Notes:

1 New subsidiaries

2 Wholly-owned subsidiary of Duta

3 Joint venture of Parent Company

4 Duta and Kaparangan, collectively known as Duta Group
5 Subsidiary of PNX Energy

8 Subsidiary of PGMI

7 Joint venture of PPM|

{(a) [Incorporated on January 31, 2007 and is engaged in organizing, managing, administering,
running and supervising the operations and marketing of various kinds of services-oriented
companies such as petroleum service stations.

(b) Incorporated on July 31, 2006 to engage in the manufacture, production and creation of all kinds
of motor, and all other transportation lubricants, fluids and additives of all kinds and other
petroleumn products purposely for motor vehicles and other transportation. PGMI started
commercial operations in 2007 and temporarily ceased its operation in 2008 but has resumed its
business in October 2015 through selling of acid oil and coconut fatty acid distillates, both are
by-products frorm manufacturing of coconut methyl ester (CME).

{(c) incorporated on February 20, 2007 and is engaged in buying and selling, supply and distribution,
importation and exportation, storage and delivery of all types of petroleum for industrial, marine,
aviation and automotive use.



(d)

(e)
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Incorporated on October 30, 2012 in Singapore and started operations in October 2017. H is the
regional trading arm of the Group. It currently holds office in Singapore and is able to buy directly
from the refineries in the region due to its bigger requirements. it also sells to other local and
regional buyers.

Incorperated on June 20, 1995 to engage in the buying, selling, storing, distributing, and marketing
at wholesale of all kinds of goods, including but not limited to liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) and
other petroleum products.

Incorporated on November 9, 1994 to engage in the business of buying, investing, exchanging,
selling securities of every kind and description and leasing of land.

Incorporated on November 28, 2012. PFM is engaged in the business of operating convenience
stores {(CVS} under the trademark *FamilyMart” either by direct operation and/or by franchise
system in the Philippines and to conduct husiness activities related to and in support to the
aforesaid CVS platforms including importation and export, advertisement and promotion, and in
general, to exercise and perform any and all powers necessary, incidental, or convenient to the
business.

Incorporated on October 29, 2018 in Singapore to engage in activities related to investment in
downstream and upstream energy activities and businesses but has not yet started commercial
operations as of December 31, 2018.

Incorporated on May 6, 2015 to engage in the business of selling, leasing or distributing electronic
devices to distributors, merchants or retailers for the purpose of digital marketing and/or ecommerce
and to engage in the business of providing an outline digital network for the purpose of digital
marketing and/or e-commerce accessible through electronic devices.

Incorporated on May 5, 2014 and is a Hong Kong based company that handles the trademark of AAL

incorporated on March 23, 2018 and was established to import, store, manufacture, self market,
distribute bitumen, bitumen-related products and such other by-products of crude oil and such
other petroleum products including the operation of terminals and depots.

incorporated on January 21, 1994 to engage in the business of buying, investing, exchanging,
selling securities of every kind and description and leasing land.

Incorporated on October 30, 2018 in Singapore to engage in acfivities related to investment in
downstream and upstream energy activities and businesses and has not yet started its commercial
operations.

Incorporated on September 10, 2018 in Indonesia to serve as an avenue for the Parent Company
to explore business opportunities in different parts of Indonesia. PNX Indonesia has not yet
started its commercial operations.

Incorporated on August 2, 2017 and is a joint venture with its previous owners. Galaxi owns and
operates a number of petroleum service stations in different parts of the Philippines.

Incorporated on July 5, 2018 to operate petroleum service stations in areas within Southern
Luzon under the Parent Company’s name and brand.




1.3 Other Corporate Information

The registered office and principal place of business of the existing subsidiaries, except those presented
in below, is located at Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City.

SPTT — Units 113 and 115 Subic International Hotel, Alpha Building, Rizal
Highway, Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Zambales

PNX SG — 350 Orchard Road, #17-05/06 Shaw House, Singapore

PNX Energy — 350 Orchard Road, #17-05/06 Shaw House, Singapore

PNX Vietnam -~ 350 Orchard Road, #17-05/06 Shaw House, Singapore

PLPI —  Phoenix Petroleum Corporate Headquarters, Stella Hizon Reyes
Road, Bo. Pampanga, Lanang, Davao City

Duta — 15" Floor, Citibank Tower, Valero St., Salcedo Village, Makati City

Kaparangan — 15" Floor, Citibank Tower, Valero St., Salcedo Village, Makati City

PFM — 4" Floor, Tara Building, No. 389 Sen. Gil Puyat Avenue, Makati
City, Metro Manila

AAl — 2™ Floor, Crown Center, 158 Jupiter Street Corner N, Garcia Street,
Bei-Air Village, Makati City

TAL —~ Room 1902, W Wilson House, 19-27 Wyndharm Street, Central,
Hong Kong

PAPI and PSPC — 250 Floor Fort Legend Tower, 37 Avenue Fort corner 31% Street,
Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

PNX Indonesia —  The Prominence Office Tower, 12% Floor B, JI. Jalur Sutera Barat
No. 15, Alam Sutera, Indonesia

Galaxi - 1846 FB Harrison Street Pasay City

PPMFs registered office is located at Penthouse, Valero Tower, 122 Valero Street, Salcedo Village,
Makati City and its principal place of business is located at 26" Floor, The Fort Legend Tower, 3
Avenue cormer 31t Sfreet, The Fort Global City, Taguig City.

1.4 Business Combinations

a)

b}

c)

d)

On January 11, 2018, the Parent Company has signed a deed of absolute sale and concluded the
acquisition of the 100.00% shares in PFM from its previous shareholders, namely: SIAL CVS
Retailers, Inc., FamilyMart Co. Ltd. and ITOCHU Corporation, for P352,1 million. Objective of the
acquisition is to broaden Group’s portfolio of retail offers.

On May 25, 2018, the Parent Company entered into a deed of absolute sale of shares with
Wildlemon, Inc. And Seawood Prime Limited for the acquisition of the voting rights for AAL and
TAL, respectively {referred to as "AAl Group”). Total non-controlling interests from the acquisition
of AAI Group amounted to P27.8 million and is measured at the proportionate share of the net
identifiable assets.

AAl and TAL are the owner of Pos!ble.net, a two and a half year old digital payment-platform.
The acquisition supports business operations of the Parent Company, aside from synergies on its
retail network development, for its various fuel products as well as the business operations of PFM.

On August 14, 2017, the Parent Company finalized the purchase and sale agreements with PDB
(Netherlands} B.V., an entity organized under the faws of Netherlands and is an investment
holdings Company of PETRONAS Dagangan Berhad {a Malaysia-listed entity), for the acquisition
of the 100.00% voting rights of PLP! and Duta Group for P6,481.1 million and P384.2 million,
respectively.

The Parant Compary acquired 100.00% of voting rights of SPTT in 2011, and PGM! and PPMI in
2011. These acquisitions prior to 2017 resulted to a total goodwill of P11.5 million as the total cash
consideration paid of P9.5 million exceeded the Parent Company’s acqwred fair values of the
identifiable net assets. ~
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The acquisition of PLPI and Duta Group strategically supports the Parent Company's expansion in
operation as well as product lines.

Aggregate information of the entitites at the acquisition date are as follows:

Entities Acquired

2017 2018
DUTA AAL
Reference PLPI Group PEM Group
Fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed
Cash and cash equivalents P 145913,427 F 23,743,964 P 21,601,695 P 5,009,121
Trade and other receivables (0] 361,001,122 11,248,647 22,534,222 1,110,622
Inventories 83,146,150 - 80,744,545 772,585
Prepayments and other current assets 26,606,283 249,695 158,786,825 3,384,490
Froperty, plant and equipment 2,046,988,346 - 369,603,000 637,357
Investment properties - 1,074,502,000 - -
Intangible asset - - 21,476,320 -
Other non-current assets 155.581,389 - 46,832,211 344 712
Total assets ) 2,799,238717  1,109,715,306 721,578,818 11,158,887
Trade and ather payables 298,614 669 65,316 461 642 630,484 94,208,594
Tetal identifiable net assets (liabifities) 2,500,617,048 1,044,358 845 78,933,334 { 83,049,767
Fair value of cash consideration transferred 6,481.061,805 394216518 352,070,202 71.895.652
Goodwili B 3980444 787 nia B 273130868 P__ 155,045 359
Excess of fair value of net assets acquired aver
cash consideration transfermed (D] n/a B 650,182 327 nfa na
Cash consideration settied in cash P 6,481,061,805 P 394,216,518 P 352,670,202 P 71,985,652
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired 145,913,428 23,743,964 21.601.695 5,008,122
Net Cadsh Flaw of Acquisition b 6335148377 P 370472554 P__330468.507 £ 66986 530
Acquisition costs charged o expenses P 84,018,826 P 679,767 P 6,440,651 P 1,738,116
Pre-acquisition income (iil) 273,205,535 6,244,345 . 1,628,790
Revenue contribution 1,531,240,882 48,283,182 1,307,944,277 34,857,821
Net profit (loss} cantribution 134,147,822 42,017,785( 193,507,767) ( 36,310,130)

(i} The carrying amount of the acquired trade and cther receivables is determined to be the
reascnable approximation of fair value as these are only short-term and are expected to be
collectible in whole.

(i The excess of the fair value of the nets assets of Duta Group over the acquisition cost amounting
to P650.2 million is presented in the 2017 consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
Excess of Fair Value of Net Assets Acquired Over Acquisition Cost (see Note 2.12}). The
acquisition of DUTA Group resulted to gain on bargain purchase because the fair value of net
assets acquired exceeded the total cash consideration paid. The real properties of Duta Group,
which pertain to investment properties, and property plant and equipment of PFM were appraised
by an independent appraiser [see Note 3.2{(h)]. The fair values of the said properties are
determined by reference to market-based evidence, which are the amounts for which the assets
could be exchanged between the knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable willing seller
in an arm’s length fransactions as at the valuation date.

(i} The 2018 and 2017 consolidated statements of comprehensive income are presented net of the
pre-acquisition income of the entities acquired.

1.5 Disposal of Investment of Shares of Chelsea Shipping Corporation (CSC) and Calaca
Industrial Seaport Corp. (CISC)

On November 24, 20186, the Parent Company sold its entire investments in CSC to Chelsea Logistics
Holdings Corp. (CLHC) for P2,000.0 million, and in CISC to Udenna Development (UDEVCO)
Corporation (UDEVCO) for P1,000.0 million. CLHC and UDEVCO are related parties under common
ownership. Business combinations and disposals that are under common ownership are accounted for
under the pooling-of-interest method (see Note 2.12). The account balances of CSC and CISC were
deconsolidated in the 2016 consolidated financial statements. The difference between the
considerations received and net asset values as of disposal date of CSC and CISC amounting to
P730.4 million was recognized and presented as Other Reserves in the consolidated statement of
financial position.



-6-

1.6 Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consoclidated financial statements of the Group as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018
{including the comparative consclidated financial statements as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2017 and the corresponding figures as of and for the year ended January 1, 2017) were
authorized for issue by the Parent Company's Board of Directors (BOD) on February 22, 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLI.CIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these consclidated
financial statements are summarized below and in the succeeding pages. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

(a)

(b)

Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial Reporting
Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), and approved by the Philippine Board of Accountancy.

The consolidated financial statements have heen prepared using the measurement hases
specified by PFRS for each type of asset, liability, income and expense. The measurement bases
are more fully described in the accounting policies that foliow.

Presentation of Consolidafted Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS} 1, Presentation of Financial Stafements. The Group presents all items of income
and expenses in a single consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group presents a third consolidated statement of financial position as at the beginning of the
precading period when it applies an accounting policy retrospectively, or makes a retrospective
restatement or reclassification of items that has a matenal effect on the information in the
consolidated staterment of financial position at the beginning of the preceding period. The related
notes to the third consolidated statement of financial position are not required o be disclosed.

{i) In 2018, the Group adopted PFRS 9, Financial instruments, which was applied using the
transitional relief allowed by the standard. This allows the Group not to restate its prior
periods’ financial statements. Differences arising from the adoption of PFRS 9 in refation to
classification and measurement and impairment of financial assets are recognized in the
opening balance of Retained Earnings in the current year [see Note 4.2(b)].

(i)  Also in 2018, Group changed its accounting policy on recognition of its parcels of land
presented under Property, Plant and Equipment from cost to revaluation model. PAS 8,
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, makes a specific
exception for a change in accounting policy to measure property, plant and equipment at a
revalued amount for the first ime. Such initial adoption is indeed a change in policy,
however, the change due to the revaluation is accounted for as a revaluation in the year of
adoption rather than prior year adjustment. Accordingly, the prior periods are not restated.
In addition, the Group changed its accounting policy on recognition of its real properties
presented under Investment Properties from cost to fair value model. Such change in the
accounting policy is reflected only at the current year since the 2017 revalued amounts are
already recognized at the time of business combination {see Note 1.4).

The management believes that the new policy results in the consolidated financial
statements providing reliable and more relevant information as it is more closely aligned with
the current actuat valuation of the real properties. Further, the Group intends to maximize
the value of the Group by capitalizing and/or leveraging on its assets in its strategic business
ventures.



(i)

(iv)

W)

In addition, the Group has made pricr period adjustments that resulied in retrospective
restatements of certain accounts in the 2017 comparative consolidated statement of
financial position and 2017 comparative consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
These adjustrments pertain to: (1} restatements of the foreign subsidiary's financial
statements to correct certain accounting treatment; and, (2) recognition of deferred tax
liability on the fair value adjustment of the investment properties acquired through business
combination (see Note 1.4). Accordingly, the Group presents a third statement of financial
position as at January 1, 2017 without the related notes, except for the disclosures required
under PAS 8. The balance of Retained Earnings of the Group as at December 31, 2017,
has been restated from the amount previously reported. Because of the restatements, the
2017 comparative consolidated financial statements contained in these consoclidated
financial statements differ from those previously presented in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017. The prior period
adjustments had no effect on 2016 comparative consolidated financial statements.

Lastly, certain items in the 2017 and 20186 consolidated statements of financial position and
consolidated statements of comprehensive income have been reclassified to conform to the
2018 consolidated statement of financial position presentation and classification. The
deferred tax asset — net amounting to P231.9 million in 2017 was previously presented as
net amount of the deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability, is now separately being
presented at gross [see Note 2.1(b)(vi)]. Rebates amounting to P258.7 million in 2017 and
P 125.7 million in 2016 that are previously presented as part of selling and administrative
expenses are reclassified as reduction to sale of goods under Revenues on the 2017 and
20186 consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

The table below shows the impact of the adoption of PFRS 9, change in accounting policy
and priar period adjustments to the Group’s total equity as of January 1, 2018:

Effects on
Accumulated
Retained Translation Total
Notes Eamings Adiustment Equity

Balance at January %, 2018 E 5 524,581,532 (P 6.065.195) P 11,951.680,104
Impact of PFRS § [see Note 4.2{b)(#)]:
Inerease in allowance for credit Josses on

trade and other receivables 218D { 109,607,783) - ( 109,607,783}

Increase in deferred tax asset arising from

increase in credit loss allowance 21D 32,882,335 - 32,882,335

Prior period adjustments -~ increase in

deferred tax liabilty on fair value

adjustment from business combination  2.1B)HE) 220,817.016) - ( 220,817,016}
Prior period adjustments ~ restatements

of fareign subsidiary’s financial

statements 214(B)) 49.608.251) 2,273,708 ( 47335583}

P 5,177,429 777 (B 3.791.487) P__11.606 812,057
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(vi) The analyses of the impact on the affected accounts due to prior period adjustments in the
Group's consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017 is presented
below.

As Previously -

Notes Reported Adjustments As Restated
Changes in assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 1,831,542,441 P 15,442 P . 1,831,557,883
Trade and other receivables 7 7,509,198,377 196,108,385 7,705,307,762
Inventories 8 12,969,947,045 { 553,709,972) 12,416,237,073
Prepayments and other
current assets 10 581,435,883 28,835,293 610,271,178
Praperty, plant and equipment 11 43,400,687,345 { 707,537) 13,359,979,808
intangible assets 12 274,931,452 20,528,790 295,458,242
Deferred tax assets - net 28 231,866,237 4,129,992 235,996,230
Changes in liabifities:
Trade and other payables 19 3,832,668,620 ( 248,044,822) 3,584,623,798
Deferred tax fiabilities - net 26 - 225,027,052 225,027,052
Income tax payable 17,301 439 13,630,237 3,671,202
Decrease in Equity (B 268152 598)
Changes in equity:
Accumutated translation adjustments (P 5,065,195} P 2273708 (P 3,751,486)
Retained eamings 5.524‘581._532 ( 270,426,308} 5,254 ,155,224
Decrease in Equity e 268152 599)

{(vil The analyses of the affected line iterns in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
incame of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 are shown below.

As Previously

Notes Reported Adjustments As Restated
Changes in profit orloss:
Sale of goods P 44 051,471,509 P 97,480,743 P 44,148,952,252
Fuel service and other revenues 281,941 966 19,460,828 361,402,792
Cast of sales and services 21 { 37,908,797,906 3( 436,308,623) ( 38,345,104,529)
Selling and administrabive expenses 22 { 4,411,742.322% 204,714,371 ( 4,207,027,951)
Finance income 23.2 56,629,280 { 315,804) 56,313,476
Finance costs 23.1 { 855,043,260 } 50,335,399 ( 804,707,861)
Tax expense 28 { 202,272,019% 205,795.219) ( 408,067,238}
Decrease in net income (B_. 270.426.305)
Basic eamings per share 29 Bi16 EO.97
Diluted earnings per share 29 B116 PO.96

{viii) The analyses of the affected line items in the consolidated statement of cash flows of the
Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 are shown belaw.

As Previously

Reporled Adiustments As Restated
Changes in cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax P 1,994,121 173 (P 64,631,088} P 4,929,480,085
Translation adjustments { 8,065,195) 2,273,708 ( 3,791.486)
Decrease in trade and ather receivables 1,980,678,107 { 196,109,385) 1,784 568,722
Decrease in inventaries 11,170,166,814 553,709,572 11,723,876,386
increase in prepayments and other current assets { 206,291,369) { 29,535,370) { 235,826,739)
Increase in trade and other payables 362,759,847 { 261,675,060) 101,084,787

Changes in cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment {
Acquisitions of intangible assets {

707,537) (
20,526,790) (

3,176,343,510)

3,175,835,973)
5(Q,548,722)

(
30,021,932) (

(iX) There are no changes in the total comprehensive income and in the consolidated statement
of cash flows as a result of the reclassification of accounts in 2016. Hence, analysis is not
presented.

~{¢) Functional and Presenfation Currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Philippine pescs, the Group's

functional and presentation currency {see Note 2.15), and all values represent absolute amounts
except when otherwise indicated.
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ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group are measured using its
functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Group operates.

Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

Effective in 2018 that are Relevant to the Group

The Group adopted for the first time the following amendments and annual improvements to
PFRS, which are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PAS 40 (Amendments) . Investment Property — Reclassification to
and from Investment Property
PFRS 2 (Amendments) :  Share-based Payment - Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
PFRS 9 :  Financial Instruments
PFRS 15 :  Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Clarifications to PFRS 15
International Financial
Reporting Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC) 22 :  Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements to
PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle}

PAS 28 (Amendments) :  Investment in Associates — Clarification on
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Classtfication

Discussed below are the relevant information about these amendments and improvements.

()  PAS 40 {(Amendments), Investment Property — Reclassification to and from Investment
Property. The amendment states that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from,
investment property when, and only when, there is avidence of a change in use.

A change of use cccurs if property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
propetty. A change in management’s intentions for the use of a property by itself does not
constitute evidence of a change in use. The amendment provided a non-exhaustive list of
examples constituting change in use. The application of this amendment has no impact
onh the Group'’s consclidated financial statements.

(il PFRS 2 (Amendments), Share-based Payment — Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions. The amendments contain three changes covering
the following matters: the accounting for the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a cash-settled share-based payment; the classification of share-based
payment transactions with a net setilement feature for withholding tax obligations; and, the
accounting for a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based payment that
changes the classification of the transaction from cash-settled to equity-seftled. The
application of this amendment has no significant impact on the Group’s consclidated
financial statements.

(il PFRS 9, Financial instruments (issued in 2014). This new standard on financial
instruments replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, and
PFRS 9 issued in 2009, 2010 and 2013. This standard contains, among others, the
following:

e three principal classification categories for financial assets based on the business
model on how an entity is managing its financial instruments, i.e., financial assets at
amortized costs, fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), and fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
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e an expected credit loss (ECL) model in determining impairment of all debt financial
assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), which
generally depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since inifial recognition of such financial assets; and,

& anew model on hedge accounting that provides significant improvements principally
by aligning hedge accounting more closely with the risk management activities
undertaken by entities when hedging their financial and non-financial risk exposures.

The Group’s new accounting policies relative to the adoption of PFRS @ is fully disclosed
in Notes 2.4 and 2.10.

The impact of the adoption of this new accounting standard to the Group’s financial
statements are as follows:

*  On classification and measurement of the Group's financial assets, management
holds most financial assets to hold and collect the associated cash flows. All of the
financial assets continue to be accounted for at amoriized cost as the management
assassed that the cash flows are solely payments for principal and interest (SPPI).
There are no resulting reclassifications of financial assets.

s The application of the ECL methodology based on external benchmarking
assessment for trade and other receivables resulted in the recognition of additicnal
allowance for credit losses for trade and cother receivables and due from related
partias amounting P107.7 million and P1.9 million, respectively; as of January 1,
2018. Such amount, together with the total related deferred tax asset amounting to
P32.9 million, were charged against the opening halance of Retained Earnings
account.

e The adoption of PFRS 9 has no significant impact on the Group's financial liabilities.

PFRS 15, Revenue from Contract with Customers, together with the Clarifications to
PFRS 15 (herein referred to as PFRS 15). This standard replaces PAS 18, Revenue,
and PAS 11, Construction Contracts, the related Interpretations on revenue recognition:
IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC 15, Agreement for the Construction of
Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers, and Standing Interpretations
Committee 31, Revenue — Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. This new
standard establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to recognize
revenue and how much revenue to recognize. The core principle in the said framework is
for an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
the customer in an amount that reflecis the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

The Group's revenue arises mainly from sale of fuel, lubricants, LPG, other petroleum
products and merchandise inventories. Revenue from the sale of goods are recognized at
a point in time when the control has been transferred to the customer. Certain revenues
are recognized over time but management has assessed that such are not significant to
the consolidated financial statements.

The Group adopted PFRS 15 using the modified retrospective approach. The adoption of
PFRS 15 did not result in significant change in the Group’s accounting policies.
Accordingly, no cumulative effects from the initial application of the standard was made to
the opening balance of the Retained Earnings account at January 1, 2018. The
disaggregation of the Graup's sources of revenues is presented in Note 21.
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(v} IFRIC 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration — Interpretation on
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration. The interpretation provides
more detailed guidance on how to account for transactions that include the receipt or
payment of advance consideration in a foreign currency. The interpretation states that the
date of the fransaction, for the purpose of determining the exchange rate, is the date of
initial recognition of the non-monetary asset {arising from advance payment) or liability
(arising from advance receipt}). If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a
date of tfransaction is established for each payment or receipt. The application of this
amendment has no significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

(vi) Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle. Among the improvements, only PAS 28
(Amendments), Investment in Associates — Clarification on Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss Classification is relevant to the Group but had no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements as this amendment merely clarify existing requirements. The
amendments clarify that the option for venture capital organization, mutual funds and other
similar entities to elect the fair value through profit or toss classification in measuring
investments in associates and joint veniures shall be made at initial recognition,
separately for each associate or joint venture,

Effective in 2018 that are not Relevant to the Group
The following annual amendments to existing standards are mandatorily effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018 but are not relevant to the Group’s consolidated

financial statements:

Annual Improvments to
PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle)

PFRS 1 {(Amendments) : First-ime Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards — Deletion of Short-Term Exceptions
PFRS 4 {(Amendments) : Insurance Contracts — Applying PFRS 9 with PFRS 4

Effective Subsequent fo 2018 but not Adopted Early

There are new PFRS, interpretation, amendments and annual improvements to existing
standards effective for annual periods subsequent to 2018, which are adopted by the FRSC.
Management will adopt the following relevant pronouncements in accordance with their
transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated, none of these are expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements:

{ PAS 19 (Amendments), Employee Benefits — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settfement
(effective January 1, 2019). The amendments require the use of updated actuarial
assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the
annual reporting period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement when the
entity remeasures its net defined benefit liability (asset).

(il  PAS 28 (Amendments), investment in Associales — Long-term Interest in Associates and
Joint Venture {effective from January 1, 2018). The amendments clanify that the scope
exclusion in PFRS 9 applies only to ownership interests accounted for using the equity
method. Thus, the amendments further clarify that long-term interests in an associate or
joint venture — to which the equity method is not applied - must be accounted for under
PFRS 9, which shall also include long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
entity's net investment in an associate or joint venture.

iy PFRS 8 (Amendments), Financial Instruments — Prepayment Features with Megative
Compensation (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendments clarify that prepayment
features with negative compensation attached to financial instruments may still qualify
under the “solely payments of principal and interests” {SPPI) test. As such, the financial
assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation may still be classified
at amortized cost or at FVOCI.



()

v)

vi)

(vil)

-12.

PFRS 16, Leases {effective from January 1, 2019). The new standard will eventually
replace PAS 17, Leases, and its related interpretation IFRIC 4, Determining Whether an
Arrangement Contains a Lease. For lessees, it requires to account for leases “on-balance
sheet” by recognizing a “right-of-use” asset and a lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured as the present value of future lease payments. For this purpose, lease
payments include fixed, non-cancellable payments for lease elements, amounts due under
residual value guarantees, certain types of contingent payments and amounts due during
optional periods to the extent that extension is reasonably certain. In subsequent periods,
the “right-of-use” asset is accounted for similar to a purchased asset subject to
depreciation or amortization. The lease liability is accounted for similar to a financial
liability which is amortized using the effective inferest method. However, the new standard
provides important reliefs or exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low value
assets. Ifthese exemptions are used, the accounting is similar to aperating lease
accounting under PAS 17 where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term or ancther systematic basis (if more representative
of the pattern of the lessee's benefif).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17's. In particular, the distinction between
finance and operating leases is retained. The definitions of each type of lease, and the
supporting indicators of a finance lease, are substantially the same as PAS 17's. The
basic accounting mechanics are also similar, but with some different or more explicit
guidance in few areas. These include varnable payments, sub-ieases, lease modifications,
the treatment of initial diract costs and lessor disclosures.

The management plans to adopt the modified retrospective application of

PFRS 16 where the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard will be recognized
as an adjustment to the opening balance of Retained Earnings account at the date of
initial application. The Group will elect to apply the standard to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying PAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of initial
application. Management is currently assessing the financial impact of this new standard
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective from January 1, 2019).
The interpratation provides clarification on the determination of taxable profit, tax bases,
unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments. The core principle of the interpretation requires the Group to
consider the probability of the tax treatment being accepted by the taxation authority.
When it is probable that the tax treatment will be accepted, the determination of the
taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates shall be on
the basis of the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the Group has to use the most likely
amount or the expectad value, depending on the surrounding circumstances, in
determining the tax accounts identified immediately above.

PFRS 10 (Amendments), Consofidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28 (Amendments),
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures — Sale or Contribution of Assets Between
an Investor and its Associates or Joint Venture {effective date deferred indefinitely}. The
amendments to PFRS 10 require full recognition in the investor's financial staiements of
gains or losses arising on the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business as
defined in PFRS 3, Business Combinations, between an investor and iis associate or joint
venture. Accordingly, the partial recognition of gains or losses (i.e., to the extent of the
unrelated investor's interests in an associate or joint venture) only applies to those sale of
contribufion of assets that do not constitute a business. Corresponding amendments have
been made to PAS 28 to reflect these changes. In addition, PAS 28 has been amended fo
clarify that when determining whether assets that are sold or contributed constitute a
business, an entity shall consider whether the sale or contribution of those assets is pant of
multiple arrangements that should be accounted for as a single transaction.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2015-2017 Cycle (effective from January 1, 2018). Among
the improvements, the amendments presented in the succeeding page are relevant to the
Group but had no material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
thase amendments merely clarify existing requirements.
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e PAS 12 (Amendments), Income Taxes — Tax Consequences of Dividends. The
amendments clarify that all income tax consequence of dividend payments should
be recognized in profit or loss.

¢ PAS 23 (Amendments), Barrowing Costs — Eligibilify for Capitalization. The
amendments clarify that any specific borrowing which remains outstanding after the
related qualifying asset is ready for its intended purpose, such borrowing will then
form part of the entity's general borrowings when calculating the capitalization rate
for capitalization purposes.

* PFRS 3 (Amendments), Business Combinations, and PFRS 11 (Amendments), Joinf
Arrangements — Remeasurement of Previously Held Interests in a Joinf Operation.
The amendments clarify that previously held interest in a joint operation shall be
remeasured when the Group obtains control of the business. On the other hand,
previously held interests in a joint operation shall not be remeasured when the
Group obtains joint control of the business.

2.3 Basis of Consolidation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements comprise the accounts of the Parent Company and its
subsidiaries {see Note 1) after the elimination of intercompany transactions. All intercompany assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities
under the Group, are eliminated in full on consolidation. Unrealized profits and losses from
intercompany transactions that are recognized in assets are also eliminated in full. Intercompany
losses that indicate impairment are recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

The financial staterments of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company, using consistent accounting principles.

The Parent Company accounts for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and non-controfling
interests as follows.

(a) [Investments in Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Parent Company has
control. Parent Company controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date the Parent Company obtains
control.

The Parent Company reassesses whether or not it controls an entity if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control indicated above.
Accordingly, entities are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method is applied to account for acquired subsidiaries. This requires
recognizing and measuring the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners
of the acauiree, and the equity interests issued by the Parent Company, if any. The
consideration transferred also includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred and
subsequent change in the fair value of contingent consideration is recognized directly in profit or
loss.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. On an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recogfiizes any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
recognized amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in the acquiree over
the acquisition-date fair value of the Group’'s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recognized as goodwill (see Note 14). If the consideration received is less than the fair value of
the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is
recognized directly as gain in profit or loss (see Note 2.12).

On the other hand, business combinations arising from transfers or acquisition of interests in
entities that are under the common control of the shareholder that controls the Group are
normally accounted for under the pooling-of-interests method and reflected in the consolidated
financial statements as if the business combination had occurred at the beginning of the eariiest
comparative period presented, or if later, at the date that common contral was established; for
this purpose, comparatives are restated. The assets and liabilities acquired are recognized in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements at the carrying amounts previously recognized.
The difference between the consideration transferred and the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired is recognized as Other Reserves as part of the equity (see Notes 2,12 and 2.23).

If the Parent Company loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities
of the subsidiary, derecognizes the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity,
recognizes the fair value of the consideration received and reclassifies the Parent Company's
share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive incorne to profit or loss or
retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Parent Company had directly
disposed of the related assets and liabilities. The difference between the consideration received
and the net asset of the subsidiary disposed is recognized as Other Reserves as part of the
equity (see Notes 2.12 and 2.23).

fInvestments in Jaint Veﬁture

A joint venture pertains to a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. A joint venture entity pertains to
whose economic activities are controlled jointly by the Group and by other venturers
independent of the Group (joint venturers). Investment in a joint venture is accounted for under
the equity method of accounting. Under this method, on initial recognition the investment in joint
venture is recognized at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize
the investor's share in the profit or loss of the investee after the date of the acquisition.

The Group’s share of the investee's profit or loss is recognized as equity share in the net income
of joint venture in the Group's profit or loss. Distributions received from an investee reduce the
carrying amount of the investment. Adjustments to the carrying amount may also be necessary
for a change in the investor's proportionate interest in the investee arising from changes in the
investee's other comprehensive income.

The investments in joint ventures is subject to impairment testing (see Note 2.16).
The management has assessed that no impairment loss is required to be recognized for its
investments in joint ventures in 2018.

Transactions with Non-controlling inferests

The Group’s transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as transaction with the owners of the Group in
their capacity as owners. The difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the net assets of the subsidiary is
recognized in equity. Disposals of equity investments to non-controlling interests result in gains
and losses for the Group that are also recognized in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control over a subsidiary, any retained interest in the entity is
remeasured to its fair value at the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying amount
recegnized in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amountfor the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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The Parent Company haolds interests in various subsidiaries and joint ventures as presented in
Notes 1.2 and 13, respectively.

2.4 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of the
financial instrument. For purposes of classifying financial assets, an instrument is considered as an
equity instrument if it is non-derivative and meets the definition of equity for the issuer in accardance
with the criteria of PAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation. All other non-derivative financial
instruments are treated as debt instruments.

(a) Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets in Accordance with
PFRS 8

Under PFRS 9, the classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the entity’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the coniractual cash flow characteristics
of the financial assets. The financial assets are classified into the following categories: financial
assets at amaortized cost, financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Currently, the financial assets categary
relevant to the Group is financial assets at amortized costs.

Financial Assets af Amortized Cost
Financia! assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

» the asset is held within the Company's business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows {“hold to collect™; and,

s the contractual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Except for trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component and are
measured at the transaction price in accordance with PFRS 15, all financial assets meeting
these criteria are measured initially at fair value plus transaction costs. These are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

The Group's financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position as Cash and Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables

(excluding advances to suppliers and advances subject ta liquidation), Due from Related
Parties, Restricted Depaosits, and Refundable Rental Deposits (presented as part of Other
Non-Current Assets in the consolidated statement of financial position).

For purposes of cash flows reporting and presentation, cash and cash equivalents comprise
accounts with original maturities of three months or less, including cash. These generally
include cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in
value.

The Group may irrevocably elect at initial application to classify a financial asset that meets the
amortized cost criteria as at FVTPL if that designation eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch had the financial asset been measured at amortized cost. In 2018, the
Group has not made such designation.

Refundable rental deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on the rental deposits
arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method and is
presented as part of Finance Income under Other Charges (Income) in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The excess af the principal amount of the deposit over its
present value is immediately recognized as deferred minimum lease payments (presented as
part of Other Non-Current Assets in the consolidated statement of financial position).
Meanwhile, rent expense arising from subsequent amortization of deferred minimum lease
payments is accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented
as part of Rent under Selling and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial assets except for those that are subsequently identified as credit-impaired. For
credit-impaired financial assets at amortized cost, the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial assets (after deduction of the loss allowance). The interest
earned is recognized in the consolidated financial statement of comprehensive income as part of
Other Charges (income).

Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assels in Accordance with PAS 39

Financial assets are assigned to different categories by management on initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and their characteristics.
Financial assets other than those designaied and effective as hedging instruments are classified
into the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments and available-for-sale {AF S} financial assets.

Currently, the financial assets category relevant to the Group is loans and receivables.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or
services directly to a debtor with no intention of frading the receivables. They are included in
current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 manths after the end of each
reporting period which are classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented as Cash and
Cash Equivalents, Trade and Other Receivables (excluding certain advances to suppliers and
advances subject to liquidation), Due from Related Parties, Restricted Depasits, and Refundable
Rental Deposits (presented as part of Other Non-Current Assets in the consolidated statement
of financial position). Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, savings and demand
deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or
less, readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in value,

Refundable rental deposits are initially recognized at fair value. interest on the rental deposits
arising from subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method and is
presented as part of Finance Income under Other Charges (Income) in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. The excess of the principal amount of the deposit over its
present value is immediately recognized as deferred minimum lease payments (presented as
part of Other Non-Current Assets in the consolidated statement of financial position).
Meanwhile, rent expense arising from subsequent amortization of deferred minimum lease
payments is accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and is presented
as part of Rent under Selfing and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment loss, if any.

Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from holding financial assets are
recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related carrying amount of
financial assets is measured.

Impairment of Financial Assets Under PFRS 9

From January 1, 2018, the Group assesses its ECL on a forward-looking basis associated with
its financial assets carried at amortized cost. Recognition of credit losses is no tonger
dependent on the Group's identification of a credit loss event. Instead, the Group considers a
broader range of information in assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses,

-including past events, current conditions, reasonabie and supportable forecasts that affect
collectability of the future cash flows of the financial assets.
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The allowance for credit fosses for financial assets at amortized cost is based on ECL
associated with the probability of default of a financial instrument in the next 12 months, unless
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since the origination of the financial asset, in
such case, a lifetime ECL for a purchased or criginated credit impaired, the allowance for credit
losses is based on the change in the ECL over the life of the asset. The Group recognized a
loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

s Probability of default (PD) — It is an estimate of likelihood of default over a given time
horizon.

. Loss given default (LGD) — It is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default occurs
at a given time. [t is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows of a
financial instrument due from a counterparty and those that the Group would expect to
receive, including the realization of any collateral.

. Exposure at default (EAD) — It represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to the impairment calculation.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial instrument.

Impairment of Financial Assets Under PAS 39

Alt income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognized in profit or loss are
presented as part of Finance Income or Finance Costs account in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

As of December 31, 2017, the Group assessed impairment of loans and receivables as follows.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables has been
incurred, the amount of the impairment loss is determined as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate or current effective interest rate determined under the contract if the loan has a variable
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use of an
allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or [oss.

if in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating}, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account. The reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognized at the date of the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognized in the profit or loss.

Derecognition of Financial Assets

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all substantial risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred

‘asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for

amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset
and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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2.5 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
moving average method. The cost of inventories includes all costs directly attributable to acquisitions,
such as the purchase price, import duties and other taxes that are not subsequently recoverable from
taxing authorities.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Allowance is
made, where necessary, for obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories (see Note 8).

2.6 Prepayments and Other Current Assets

Prepayments and other current assets pertain to other resources controiled by the Group as a result
of past events. They are recognized in the consolidated financial statements when it is probable that
the future econamic benefits will flow to the Group and the asset has a cost or value that can be
measured reliably.

Cther recognized assets of similar nature, where future economic benefits are expecied to flow to the
Group beyond one year after the end of the reporting period or in the normal operating cycle of the
business, if longer, are classified as non-current assets.

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Prior to 2018, the Group measured land at cost [see Note 2.1(b)]. Currently, land is measured at fair
value less any impairment in value. As no finite useful life for land can be determined, related
carrying amount are not depreciated. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major improvements and
renewals are capitalized only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced part is derecognized. All other expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged o
expense as incurred (see Note 2.13).

Following initial recognition at cost, land is carried at revalued amounts which are the fair values at
the date of the revaluation, as determined by independent appraisers, less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Revalued amounts are fair market values determined based on appraisals by external professional
appraiser once every two years or more frequently if market factors indicate a material change in fair
value {see Note 5.5).

Any revaluation surplus is recognized in other comprehensive income and credited to the Revaluation
Reserves account in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Any revaluation deficit directly
offsetting a previous surplus in the same asset is charged to other comprehensive income to the
extent of any revaluation surplus in equity relating to this asset and the remaining deficit, if any, is
recognized in profit or loss. Annually, an amount from the Revaluation Reserves account is
transferred to Retained Earnings account far the impairment, if any, relating to the revaluation
surplus. Upon disposal of revalued assets, amounts included in Revaluation Reserves account
relating to them are transferred to Retained Earnings account.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as
follows:

- LPG cylinders o 30.years
Buildings, depot, plant and pier facilities 5-25 years
Transportation and other equipment 1-10 years
Gasoline and LPG station equipment 1-5 years
Hauling and heavy equipment 1-5 years

Office furniture and equipment 1-3 years
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LPG eylinders, which are circulating and are utilized by customers in their households or business
premises, are presented at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for losses on lost LPG
cylinders. The Group perfarms an internal simulation and assessment of the quantity of LPG
cylinders circulating and being stored in the market. A provision is provided for [ost assets in
accordance with the computed quantities. The assessment will be conducted every other year and
when the lost LPG cylinders are ascertained, the lost cylinders will be written-off,

Leasehold and land improvements are amortized over the terms of the related leases or the useful
lives of the improvements, whichever is shorter.

Construction in progress represents properties under construction and on-going major repair works

and is stated at cost. This includes cost of canstruction, applicable borrowing costs (see Note 2.18)
and other direct costs. The account is not depreciated until such time that the assets are completed
and available for use.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the assef's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (see Note 2.16).

The residual values, estimated usefu ives and method of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An item of praperty, plant and equipment, including the related accumutated depreciation,
amoartization and impairment losses, if any, is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the year the item is derecognized.

2.8 Investment Properties

Investment properties, which inciude parcels of land and lot improvements, are properties held to
earn rental income under operating lease, but nat for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
services or for administrative purposes.

Land classified as investment property is accounted for under the fair value model. it is revalued
every twao years and is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position at its fair value.
Fair value is supported by market evidence and is determined by independent appraisers with
sufficient experience with respect to bath the location and the nature of the investment property
(see Note 5.5).

Any gain or loss resulting from either a change in the fair value or the sale or retirement of an
investment property is immediately recognized in profit or loss as Fair value gains (losses) from
investment property as part of Other Charges {Income) in the consolidated statement of
caomprehensive income,

Lot improvements is stated at cost, which includes acquisition price plus directly attributable costs
incurred such as legal fees, transfer taxes and other transaction costs, less accumulated
depreciation (except for land) and any impairment losses.

Depreciation of lot improvements is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of five years. The residual values, estimated useful lives and method of depreciation of investment
properties are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
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2.9 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software licenses and basketball franchise, which are
accounted for under the cost model. The cost of the asset is the amount of cash or cash equivalents
paid or the fair value of the other considerations given up o acquire an asset at the time of its
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Capitalized costs for computer software licenses are amartized on a straight-line basis over the

estimated useful lives (ranging from one to ten years) as the lives of these intangible assets are
considered finite. In addition, intangible assets are subject to impairment testing as described in
Note 2.18.

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer software and those costs
associated with research activities are recognized as expense in profit or loss as incurred.

Costs that are directly attributable to the development phase of new customized software for
information technology and telecommunications systems are recognized as intangible assets if, and
only if, the Group can demonstrate ali of the following recognition requirements:

(i) technical feasibility of completing the prospective product for internal use or sale;
(i) the intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through internal use or sale;

(i) intention and ability to complete, i.e., availability of sufficient technical, financial and other
resources necessary for completion, and use or sell the asset; and,

(iv} ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during
development.

Development costs not meeting these criteria for capitalization are expensed as incurred. Directly
attributable costs include employee costs incurred on software development along with an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads and borrowing costs.

The Group assessed the useful life of basketball franchise to be indefinite because this is expected to
contribute to net cash flows indefinitely. The basketball franchise is not amortized but is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. if not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

The intangible asset account also includes store franchise acquired from business combination with
PEM. Such is for taking in the name and management know-how of the FamilyMart mark. The store
franchise is carried at cost, less any accumulated amortization and any impairment in value,
Amortization is computed on a straight-line method over its estimated useful life of 10.50 years

(see Note 12}).

When an intangible asset is disposed of, the gain or foss on disposal is determined as the difference
between the proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

2.10 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities, which include interest-bearing loans and borrowings, trade and other payables
(excluding tax-related payables), security deposits, customers’ cylinder deposits and cash bond
deposits (which are presented under Other Non-Current Liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position), are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual terms of the
instrument. All interest-related charges incurred on financial liability are recognized as an expense in
profit or loss under the caption Finance Costs in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

Interest charges that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset
(i.e., an asset that takes a substantiat period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale} are
capitalized as part of the cost of such asset (see Note 2.18). All other interest related charges are
recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income under the caption
Finance Costs.
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Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are raised for support of long-term funding of operations.
Finance charges, including premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are
charged to profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are added to the
camying amount of the instrument to the extent that these are not seftled in the period in which they
arise.

Trade and other payables (excluding tax-related payables}, security deposits, customers’ cylinder
deposits and cash bond deposits are recognized initially at their fair values and subseguently
measured at amortized cost, using effective interest method for maturities heyond one year, less
seftlement payments.

Security deposits are initially recognized at fair value. Interest on security deposits arising from
subsequent amortization is accounted for using the effective interest method and is presented as part
of Finance Costs. The excess of the principal amount of the deposit over its present value is
immediately recognized as Unearned rent (presented as part of Other Non-Current Liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position). Meanwhile, the rent income arising from subsequent
amortization of unearned rent is accounted for using the straight-line method over the lease term and
is presented as part of Rent Income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

The Group purchases LPG cylinders, which are loaned to dealers upon payment by the latter of an
amount equivalent o 44.00-79.00% of the acquisition cost of the cylinders. At the end of each
reporting date, customers’ cylinder deposits, shown under Other Non-Current Liabilities in the
consolidated statements of financial position, are reduced for estimated non-returns, Estimated
non-returns are determined through amortization of the balance over the estimated useful life of
cylinders and/or estimated proportion of the provision for lost cylinders (see Note 2.8). The reduction
is recognized directly in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as part of Fuel Service
and Other Revenues.

Dividend distributions to shareholders are recognized as financial liabilities upon declaration by the
Parent Company. .

Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities if payment is due to be settled within one year or
less after the end of the reporting period (or in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer),
or the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least

12 months after the end of the reporting period. Otherwise, these are presented as non-current
liabilifies.

Einancial liabilities are derecognized from the consolidated statement of financial position only when
the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or expiration. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid or
payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.11 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recoghized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of economic
resaurces and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the outflow may still be
uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or constructive obligation that has
resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation, based
on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting period, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in seftlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. When time value of money is material, long-term provisions are discounted to
their present values using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.
Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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in those cases, where the possible outflow of economic resource as a resulf of present obligations is
considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for cannot be measured reliably, no
liahility is recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Similarly, possible inflows of economic
benefits to the Group that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered
contingent assets, hence, are not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. On the other
hand, any reimbursement that the Group can be virtually certain to coliect from a third party with
respect to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the related
provision.

2.12 Businaess Combipations

Business acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition method of accounting and
pooling-of-interest method.

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial
recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses
on goodwill are not reversed (see Note 2.16).

Negative goodwill which is the excess of the Group's interest in the fair value of net identifiable assets
acquired over acquisition cost is charged directly to income.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are identified according
to operating segment.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an interest in a subsidiary include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to it.

if the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquirer is required to remeasure its previously
held equity interest in the acquiree at its acquisition-date fair value and recognize the resutting gain or
loss, if any, in the profit or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group is recognized at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognized in accordance with PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets, either in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Under the pooling-of-interest method which is applicable for the acquisition and disposal of an entity
under common control, similar accounts of the entities are combined on a line-by-line basis except for
the equity accounts which were offset with the new shares issued by the new entity in which the
difference between the net assets received and the amount of the consideration (shares issued and
cash) is accounted for as Other Reserves (see Note 2.23).

2.13 Revenue and Expense Recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of goods (fuels and by-products, lubricants, LPG, and
merchandise inventories) and from rendering into-plane, terminalling and hauling services

To determine whether to recognize revenue, the Group follows a five-step process:

{1} identifying the contract with a customer,

{2) identifying the performance obligation; - -

{3) determining the transaction price;

(4) allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations; and,
(5) recognizing revenue when/as performance obligations are satisfied.
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For Step 1 to be achieved, the following five gating criteria must be present:

(1)  the parties to the contract have approved the contract either in writing, orally or in accordance
with other customary business practices;

(2) each party's rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be
identified;

(3) the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred or performed can be identified;

(4) the coniract has commercial substance (i.e., the risk, timing or amount of the future cash
flows is expected to change as a result of the contract); and,

(5) collection of the consideration in exchange of the goods and services is probable.

Revenue is recognized only when (or as) the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferring
control of the promised goods or services to a customer. The transfer of control can occur over time
or at a point in time.

A performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time unless it meets one of the following criteria, in
which case it is satisfied over time:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group performs;

. the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the
asset is created aor enhanced; and,

. the Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

In addition, the foliowing specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

{a) Sale of goods — Revenue is recognized when or as the Group transfers control of the assets at a
point in time to the customer. invoices for goods transferred are due upon receipt by the
customer. Sale of goods include fuel and by-products (such as CME); lubricants; LPG; and,
merchandise inventories.

(b)  Fuel service and other revenues — Revenue, which mainly consists of hauling, into-plane
services, and transport services, is recagnized over time and is based on a fixed agreed fee.
These services are generally performed within the day. Invoices for services transferred are due
upon receipt by the customer.

The Group presents a contract asset when performing services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due. A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a customer.

The Group presents a contract liability when a customer pays the consideration, or a Group has the
right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., a receivable}, before the Group performs
services to the customer. A contract liability is the Group's obligation to transfer goods or services to
a customer for which the Group has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)
from the customer.
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In obtaining customer contracts, the Group incurs incremental costs. As the expected amortization
period of these costs, if capitalized, would be less than one year, the Group uses the practical
expedient in PFRS 15 and expenses such costs as incurred. The Group also incurs costs in fulfilfing
contracts with customers. However, as those costs are within the scope of other financial reporting
standards, the Group accounts for those costs in accordance with accounting policies related to those
financial reporting standards.

In 2017 and prior periods, the Group recognized revenues based on the provisions of PAS 18, which
is to the extent that such revenues and the related costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured
reliably and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Group. Spedifically, for sale of
goods, revenues were recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership of the gocds have
passed to the buyer. For fuel services and other revenues, charter fees and other charges and port
revenues, revenue is recognized when the performance of the contractually agreed task has been
substantially rendered.

Cost and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of goods or services or at the date
they are incurred. Expenditure for warranties is recognized and charged against the associated
provision when the related revenue is recognized. Al finance costs are reported in profit or loss on an
accrual basis, except capitalized borrowing costs which are included as part of the cost of the related
qualifying asset {see Note 2.18).

214 Leases
The Group accounts for its leases as follows:
(2) Group as Lessee

Leases which do not transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments (net of any incentive
received from the lessor) are recognized as expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Associated costs, such as
repairs and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

(b) Group as Lessor

Leases which do not transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of
the asset are dlassified as operating leases. Lease income from operating leases is recognized
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group determines whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease based on the substance of the
arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

2.15 Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
(a) Transacfions and Bafances

Except for PNX SG, PEIH, PNX Vietnam, which use the Singapore Dollars as its functional
currency, and PTPPI, which uses Indonesian Rupiah, the accounting records of the Parent
Company and its subsidiaries are maintained in Philippine Peso. Foreign currency transactions
during the year are translated into functional currency at exchange rates which approximate
those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gains and losses resulting from the seftiement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilittes denominated in
foreign currencies are recognized in profit or loss.
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(b) Translation of Financial Statements of Foreign Subsidiaries

The operating results and financial position of a fareign subsidiaries, in which their functicnal
currency are measured as stated in Note 2.15(a), are translated to Philippine pesos, to the
Group's functional currency as follows:

i. Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position presented are fransiated at the
closing rate at the end of the reporting period;

ii. Income and expenses for each profit or loss account are translated at the average
exchange rates over the reporting period {(unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and,

ii. Al resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and in a
separate component of equity under Accumulated Translation Adjustments account
{see Note 2.23).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in the
foreign subsidiaries are recognized under Translation Adjustment Related to Foreign Subsidiaries in
the 2018 and 2017 consolidated statements of comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is
partially disposed or sold, such exchange differences are recognized in the consofidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of gains or loss on sale.

The translation of the consalidated financial statements into Philippine peso should not be construed
as a representation that the Singapore Dollar and Indonesian Rupiah amounts couid be canverted
into Philippine Peso amounts at the translation rates or at any other rates of exchange.

2.16 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group’s property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill, investments in joint venture
and other non-financial assets are subject to impairment testing. Individual assets or cash-generating
units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, except for goodwill and franchise with indefinite useful lives
that are tested for impairment at least annually.

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

The cash-generating units or groups of cash-generating units are identified according to operating
segment.

Impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss for the amount by which the asset's or

cash-generating unit's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use, management estimates the
expected future cash flows from each cash-generating unit and determines the suitable interest rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used for impairment testing
procedures are directly linked to the Group's latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to
exclude the effects of asset enhancements. Discount factars are determined individually for each
cash-~genarating unit and reflect management's assessment of respective risk profites, such as
market and asset-specific risk factors.

Except for goodwill and franchise with indefinite useful lives, all assets are subsequently reassessed
for indications that an impairment loss previously recognized may no longer exist. An impairment
loss, except impairment loss on goodwill (see Note 2.12), is reversed if the asset’s or cash generating
unit's recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.
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2.17 Employee Benefits

The Group provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined benefit plan and a
defined contribution plan, and other employee benefits which are recognized as follows:

(a) Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

(b)

(c)

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of post-employment
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as age, years of service and salary. The legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of
post-employment plan remains with the Group, even if plan assets, if any, for funding the '
defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assets, if any, may include assets specifically
designated to a long-term benefit fund, as well as qualifying insurance policies. The Group’s
defined benefit post-employment plan covers all regular full-time employees. The pension plan
is noncontributory and administered by a trustee.

The liability recognized in the consolidated statement of finandial position for a defined benefit
plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less
the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined
benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows for expected
benefit payments using a discount rate derived from the interest rates of a zero coupon
government bonds [using the reference rates published by Bloomberg using its valuation
technology, Bloomberg Valuation {BVAL)], that are denominated in the currency in which the
benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related
post-employment fiability. BVAL provides evaluated prices that are based on market
observations from contributed sources.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments
and changes in actuarial assumptions and the retum on plan assets (excluding amount included
in net interest) are reflected immediately in the consolidated statement of financial position with
a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, taking
account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability or asset during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest is reported as part of Finance Costs or Finance
Income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Past service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a plan
amendment and curtailment.

Past-employment Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under which the Group pays fixed
contributions into an independent entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
pay further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. The contributions recognized in
respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as they fall due. Liabilities or assets may be
recognized if underpayment or prepayment has oceurred and are included in current liabilities or
current assets as they are normally of a short-term nature.

Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the
normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange
for these benefits. The Group recognizes termination benefits at the earlier of when it can no
Jonger withdraw the offer of such benefits and when it recognizes costs for a restructuring that is
within the scope of PAS 37 and involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an
offer made to encourage voluntary redundaney,-the termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected fo accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than

12 months after the reparting period are discounted to their present value.
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(d} Profit-sharing and Bonus Plans

The Group recognizes a liability and an expense for bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a
formula that takes into consideration the profit aftributable to the Group's shareholders after
certain adjustments. The Group recognizes a provision where it is contractually obliged to pay
the benefits, or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

(e} Compensated Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including holiday
entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period. They are included in Trade and Other
Payables account in the consolidated statement of financial position at the undiscounted amount
that the Group expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement.

2.18 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of ime to
get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization
of borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the asset and horrowing costs are being
incurred and adtivities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are compiete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

2.19 Income Taxes

Tax expense recognized in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, if any.

Current tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fiscal authorities relating
to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the end of reporting period.
They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which
they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. Al changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognized as a companent of tax expense in profit or loss,

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method on temporary differences at the end of
reporting period between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Under the liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temparary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets, if any, are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will be available to allow such deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is seftled provided such tax rates have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities, the carrying amount of such properties is presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted, that is when the land held for sale and development costs are
held within the business model whose abjective is to consume substantially ail of the economic
benefits embodied in the property over time, rather than through sale.



-28 -

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense in
profit or loss, except to the extent that i relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same entity
and the same taxation authority.

2.20 Offsefting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount, considered as a
single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when the Group currently has legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The
right of set-off must be available at the end of the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on
future event. |t must also be enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default,
and in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both entity and all
counterparties to the financial instruments.

2.21 Related Party Transactions and Relationships .
Related party transactions are transfer of resources, services or obligations between the Group and
its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered ta be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the ather party in making financial and operating decisions. These parties
include: {a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control or are
controlled by, or under common control with the Group; (b) associates; (c) individuals owning, directly
or indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Group that gives them significant influence over the
Group and close members of the family of any such individual; and, (d) the Group’s funded retirement
plan.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the
relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.22 Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the
Parent Company's BOD and management committee responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments.

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group's products and service
lines as disclosed in Note 30, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately as each of these service lines requires
different technologies and aother resources as well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment
transfers are carried out at arm's length prices.

The measurement policies the Group uses for segment reporting under PFRS 8 are the same as
those used in its consolidated financial statements, except that post-employment benefit expenses
are not included in arriving at the operating profit of the operating segments.

In addition, corporate assets which are not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment are not allocated to a segment.

.2.23 Equity

Preferred and common stock represents the nominal value of shares that have been issued.

Treasury shares are stated at the cost of reacquiring such shares and are deducted from equity
attributable to the Group's equity holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of.
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Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuance of capital stock.
Any transaction costs associated with the issuance of shares are deducted from additional paid-in
capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Revaluation reserves comprise of gains arising from the revaluation in 2018 of the Group’s parcels of
land under property, plant and equipment and from the remeasurements of post-employment defined
benefit obligation, net of applicable taxes.

Other reserves pertain to the difference between the Parent Company’s consideration received and
the disposed net assets of CSC and CISC (see Note 1.5).

Accumulated transiation adjustment pertains to translation adjustments resulting from the translation
of foreign-currency denominated financial statements of a cerfain foreign subsidiary into the Group's
functional and presentation currency [see Note 2.15(b)].

Retained earnings include all current and prior period results of operations as reported in the profit or
loss section of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, reduced by the amounts of
dividends declared.

2.24 Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net profit attributable to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding, adjusted
retroactively for any stock dividend, stock spiit or reverse stock spiit dediared during the current period.

Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of dilutive potential shares, if any,

2.25 Share-based Payments

The Parent Company grants share options to qualified employees of the Parent Company eligible
under a share option plan. The services received in exchange for the grant, and the corresponding
share options, are valued by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted at grant
date. This fair value excludes the impact of nan-market vesting conditions (for example profitability
and sales growth targets and performance conditions), if any.

The share-based remuneration, if any, is recognized as an expense in profit or loss and the
corresponding credit to retained earnings.

The expense is recognized during the vesting period based on the best available estimate of the
number of share options expected to vest. The estimate is subsequently revised, if necessary, such
that it equals the number that ultimately vests on vesting date. No subsequent adjustment is made to
expense after vesting date, even if share options are ultimately not exercised.

Upon exercise of share option, the proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
up to the nominal value of the shares issued are allocated to capital stock with any excess being
recorded as additional paid-in capital.

2.26 Events After the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Group’s position at the end of

"the reporting period {(adjusting event) is reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Post-year-end events that are not adjusting events, if any, are disclosed when material {o the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires
management to make judgments and estimates that affect amounts reported in the consoclidated
financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resuits may ultimately differ from these
estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

{a)

(b)

{c)

Determination of Timing of Satisfaction of Performance QObligations (2018)
(it Rendering of Fuel Services and Other Revenues

The Group determines that its revenue from rendering of fuel services and other revenues shall
be recognized over time. In making its judgment, the Group considers the timing of receipt and
consumption of benefits provided by the Group to the customers. The Group transfers control of
the services over time, based on the actual service provided to the end of the reporting period as
a proportion of the total services to be provided, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously. However, significant services are generally performed within the day.

(i} Sale of Goods

The Group determines that its revenue from sale of goods shall be recognized at a point in time
when the control of the goods have passed 1o the customer, i.e., generally when the customer
has acknowledged delivery of the goods.

Determination of ECL of Financial Assets at Amortized Costs (2018)

The Group uses an extemal henchmarking to calculate ECL for financial assets at amortized
cost. The Group applies the PFRS 9 using internal credit ratings translated to external credit
ratings [i.e. Standard & Poor's (S&P)] in order to reference/benchmark with published equivalent
external cumulative PD.

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting
period, whether a financial instrument's credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of
the financial instrument (see Note 4.2).

Evaluation of Business Model Applied in Managing Financial Instruments (2018)

Upon adaption of PFRS 9, the Group developed business models which reflect how it manages
its portfolio of financial instruments. The Group’s business models need not be assessed at
entity level or as a whole but shall be applied at the level of a portfolio of financial instruments
(i.e., group of financial instruments that are managed together by the Group) and not on an
instrument-by-instrument basis (i.e., not based on intention or specific characteristics of
individuat financial instrument).

In determining the classification of a financial instrument under PFRS 9, the Group evaluates in
which business modet a financial instrument or a portfolio of financial instruments belong to
taking into consideration the objectives of each business model established by the Group

(e.g., held-for-trading, generating accrual income, direct matching to a specific liability) as those
relate to the Group’s investment and trading strategies.
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#

{q)
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Distinction between Operating and Finance Leases

The Group has entered into various lease agreements. Critical judgment was exercised by
management to distinguish each lease agreement, either as a lessor or a lessee, as either an
operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the properties covered by the agreements. Failure to make the right judgment
will resuit in either overstatement or understatement of assets and liabilities. Certain hauling
and heavy equipment are acquired and accounted for under finance lease.

Recognition of Provisions and Contingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and cantingencies.
Policies an recognition of provisions and contingencies are discussed in Note 2.11 and
disclosures on relevant contingencies are presented in Note 31.

Determination of Qualifying Assets on Borrowing Costs

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale. Determining if an asset is a qualifying asset will depend on the
circumstances and requires the use of judgment in each case. In making judgment, the
managertnent takes into account its planned use when it determines whether the asset is a
qualifying asset and considers the facts and circumstances and uses its judgment to determine
whether an asset takes a substantial period of time to get ready for ifs intended use or sale.
Based on the facts and circumstances affecting the Group’s qualifying asset, the management
concludes that the Group’s retail station, depot facilities, tankers and land held for sale and
development costs are qualifying assets as the management assesses that it takes substantial
period of time for the completion of those assets.

Distinction between Investment Properties and Owner-Managed Properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as investment property. In making its
judgment, the Group considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent
of the other assets held by an entfity.

Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not anly to the property but
also to ather assets used in the production or supply process.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Presented below and in the succeeding pages are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
reporting period.

(a)

(b)

Estimation of Allowance for ECL (2018)

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortized cost is an area that
requires the use of significant assumptions about the future economic conditions and credit
behavior {e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting losses}. Explanation of the
inputs, assumptions and estimation used in measuring ECL is further detailed in Note 4.2(b).

Determination of Net Realizable Value of Inventories

in determining the net realizable values of inventories, management takes into account the most
reliable evidence available at the dates the estimates are made. Future realization of the
carrying amounts of inventories, as presented in Note 8, is affected by price changes and action
from competitors. Both aspects are considered key sources of estimation uncertainty and may
cause significant adjustments to the Group’s inventories within the next financial reporting
periad.
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Estimation of Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment, Infangible Assets and investment
Properties

The Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment properties based on the periad aver which the assets are expected to be available
for use. The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed periodically
and are updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear,
technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets.

The carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are analyzed in
Notes 11 and 12, respectively, The carrying amount of investment praoperties is disclosed in
Note 15. Based on management's assessment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there is no
change in the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
investment properties during those years. Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in
estimates brought about by changes in factars mentioned above.

Fair Value Measurement of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties (2018)

The Group's property, plant and equipment and investment properties include parcels of fand,
that are carried at revalued amount at the end of the reporting period. These assets were
previously recorded under the cost model {see Note 2.1(b)]. In determining the fair value of
these assets, the Group engages the services of professional and independent appraisers
applying the relevant valuation methodologies as discussed in Note 5.5.

The amounts of revaluation and fair value gains recognized on parcels of land under property,
plant and equipment and investment properties are disclosed in Notes 11 and 15, respectively.

Determination of Realizable Amount of Deferred Tax Assefs

The Group reviews its deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period and reduces the
carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Management assessed that
the deferred tax assets recognized as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 will be fully utilized in the
coming years. The carrying value of deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is
disclosed in Note 26.

Valuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit Obligation

The determination of the Group's obligation and cost of post-employment defined benefit is
dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating such
amounts. Those assumptions are described in Note 24 and include, among others, discount
rates and salary increase rate. A significant change in any of these actuarial assumptions may
generally affect the recognized expense, ather comprehensive income or losses and the
carrying amount of the post-employment benefit obligation in the next reporting period.

The amounts of post-employment benefit obligation and expense and an analysis of the
movements in the estimated present value of retirement benefit obligation are presented in
Note 24.3.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset ora
cash-generating unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to caleulate
the present value of those cash flows. Estimation uncertainty relates to assumptions about
future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate (see Note 2.16).
Though management believes that the assumptions used in the estimation of fair values
reflected in-the consolidated financial statements are appropriate and reasonable, significant
changes in those assumptions may materially affect the assessment of recoverable values and
any resulting impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations.

Management has assessed that no impairment losses are required to be recognized on the
Group’s non-financial assets in 2018, 2017 and 2016.
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(h) Fair Value Measurements of Business Combinations

On initial recognition in a business combination using the purchase method of accounting, the
assets and liabilities of the acquired business and the consideration paid for them are included
in the consolidated financial statements at their fair values. In measuring fair value,
management uses estimates of future cash flows and discount rates and obtains assistance
from third party valuation specialists on the acquired investment properties {see Note 1.4). Any
subsequent change in these estimates would affect the amount of goodwill if the change
qualifies as a measurement period adjustment. Any other change would be recognized in profit
or loss in the subsequent period.

() Provision for Losses on Lost LPG Cylinders

Management estimates provision for losses on lost LPG cylinders based on the quantities
computed from its internal simulations and computations. The estimated quantities do not
represent the exact quantities of the LPG cylinders but they are assessed based on
management's assumptions and historical loss experience representing the management’s best
estimate of the quantities of lost cylinders. Management will arrange for the appraisal by an
external expert to take place every other year to obtain confidence in the estimate of the
provision amount.

- The Management has recognized provision for losses on lost LPG cylinders amounting to
P24.3 million and nil in 2018 and 2017, respectively (see Note 11}. Relatively, the gain on
reversal of cylinder deposits amounted fo P91.8 million and nil in 2018 and 2017, respectively
(see Notes 2.10 and 20). LPG cylinders were only acquired as result of business combination in
2017 [see Note 1.4(c)].

4. RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks in relation to financial instruments. The Group's
financial assets and liabilities by category are summarized in Note 5. The main types of risks are
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s risk management is coordinated with its Parent Company, in close cooperation with the
BOD, and focuses on actively securing the Group’s short to medium-term cash flows by minimizing
the exposure to financial markets.

The Group does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes nor does it
write options. The most significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to are described
below and in the succeeding pages.

4.1 Market Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk through its use of financial instruments and specifically to foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk which result from both its operating, investing and financing
activities.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in Philippine pesos, its functional currency.
Exposures to currency exchange rates arise from the Group's sales to a certain customer and,
fuel and tanker importations, which are primarily denominated in U.S. dollars {U.S.%). The
liability covering the fuel importation is covered by letter of credits {LCs) which is subsequently
closed to Philippine peso trusts receipts (TRs). The Group also holds U.S. and Singapore
dollar-denominated cash and cash equivalents. Financial instruments that are Indonesian Rupiah
denominated are considered immaterial, hence, not included in the analyses below.

To mitigate the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk, non-Philippine peso cash flows are
monitored.
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Foreign currency-denominated financial assets and financial liabilities, translated into Philippine
pesos at the closing rate follow:

2017 [As restated -

2018 see Note 2.175)]
u.s. Singapore u.s. Singapore
Dollar Dollar Dallar Dollar
Financial assets P 5,361,837,054 P 5,566,810 P 1,220,868,767 P 72,654,628
Financial liabilifies { 5.253,328,012) { 14.176.750) ( 1.566,782.434) ( 17.705.741)
Net expasure P 108509042 (P B600940)(P __ 345913,667) B 54988887

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit before tax with respect to
changes in Philippine peso against U.S. and Singapore dollar exchange rates. The percentage
changes in rates have been determined based on the average market volatility in exchange
rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months at a 99.00% confidence |evel.

2017 [As restated -

2018 see Note 2.1(b)}
u.s. Singapore U.s. Singapore
Dollar Dollar Dollar Dollar
Reasonably possible
change in rate 11.14% 16.28% 10.77% 16.88%
Effect in profit before tax P 12,087,907 (P 1,401,698} (P 37,254,902) P 9,282,124
Effect in equity after tax 8,461,535 { 981,189} ( 26,078,431} 6,497,487

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary during the year depending on the volume of foreign
currency denominated transactions. Nonetheless, the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group's currency risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s policy is to minimize interest rate cash fiow risk exposures on long-term financing.
Long-term borrowings are therefore usually made at fixed rates. As of December 31, 2018 and
2017, the Group is exposed to changes in market interest rates through its cash and cash
equivalents and certain interest-bearing loans and borrowings which are subject to variable
interest rates (see Notes 6 and 17). All other financial assets and financial liabilities have fixed
rates.

Cash in banks are tested on a reasonably possible change of +/-1.93% and +/-0.47% in 2018
and 2017, respectively, for Philippine Peso and nil and +/-0.50% in 2018 and 2017, respectively,
for Singapore dollar. Short-term money placements and time deposits are tested on a
reasonably possible change of +/-2.28% and +/-0.80% in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Banks
loans subject to variable interest rates (or repricing) are tested on areasonably possible change
of +/-0.79% and +/-0,30% for Philippine peso in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and nil for

U.S. dollar for both years. These percentages have been determined based on the average
market volatility of interest rates, using standard deviation, in the previous 12 months estimated
at 89.00% level of confidence. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Group's financial
instruments held at the end of each reporting period, with effect estimated from the beginning of
the year. Al other variables are held constant.

The changes in percentages would affect profit or loss before tax by +/-P470.5 million and
+/-P94.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and equity after
tax by +/~P329.3 million and +/-P66.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively.

Other Price Risk

The Group's market price risk arises from its purchases of fuels. It manages its risk arising from
changes in market prices by monitoring the daily movement of the market price of fuels and to
some extent, using forward and other similar contracts to manage the fiuctuation of the fuel
price.
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4.2 Crodit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the Group. The Group
is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments arising from granting of loans and selling
goods and services to customers including related parties; and placing deposits with banks.

The Group employs a range of policies and practices to mitigate credit risk. The Group continuously
monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by group, and
incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. The Group's policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties. In addition, for a significant proportion of sales, coltaterals such as
advance payments are received to mitigate credit risk. Estimates of fair values are based on the
value of collaterals assessed at the time of first dealing with the customer and are updated and
monitored periodically, e.g., annually for real estate properties.

Estimate of the fair value of collateral held against trade and other receivables as of December 31
follows:

2018 2017
Standby letter of credits P 940,522,926 P 668,797,536
Cash bond 318,976,639 281,709,354
Real estate mortgage 68,138,850 69,292,121

P 1,327,638.425 P_1,019.799.011

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the financial assets as
shown in the consalidated statements of financial position or in the detailed analysis provided in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, as summarized below.

2017
[As restated -
Notes 2018 see Note 2.1(b)]

Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 7,889,708,807 P 1,831,557,883
Trade and other receivables — net* 7 11,363,226,589 7.039,808,333
Due from related parties - net 27.4 937,904,172 518,004,898
Construction bond** 10 5,604,822 -
Restricted deposits 9 52,719,265 51,281,559
Refundable deposits 16 289,572,937 182,480,300

P20.538,636,592 P 9,623.132.97

*axcluding advances fo suppliers and advances subject to liquidation
**included as part of Others under Prepayments and Other Current Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents

The eredit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties
are reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings. Included in the cash and cash
equivalents are cash in banks and short-term placements which are insured by the Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corp. up to a maximum coverage of P0.5 million for every depositor per
banking institution.

(b} Trade and Other Receivables and Due from Related Parties

The Group applies the PFRS 9 using internal credit ratings translated to external credit ratings
[i.e. Standard & Poor's (S&P)] in order to reference/benchmark with published equivalent
external cumulative PD. The Group's definition of Trade and Other Receivables and Due from -
Related Parties classification [known as Phoenix Risk Rating (PRR)] and corresponding credit
risk ratings are presented in the next page.
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Fho;:g:'gR]Sk Description {PRR} qu.g\;a;ent S&FP
- - . - - . PD (%}
{PRR} Financial and Business Profiles Other Information Rating
Counterparties with both very strong | These counterparties de net have a BBB 0.14-0.61
PRR 3A financial and business profiles. greater-than-normal risk. The track
Lowest risk cf default in the scale. record of the client in terms of profit
- - _ is very good and exhibits highest
Cotnterparties with strong.ﬁnancaal quality under virtually all economic BBEB 0.14-0.61
PRR 24 profile and very strong business conditions. Probability of defautt is
profile or vice versa. quite low and it bears some degree
Counterparties with a strong to of stability and substance. However, BBB 0.14—10.67
bR s | 2000Ute fnandal profle andvery | RN A TR SRR E O O
strong to adequate business profile. business risk, by product or by
market
Counterparties with a sustainable Counterparties whose risk elements BB 0.63~1.90
PRR 3B financiat profile and adequate are sufficiently pronounced to
business profile. withstand normal business cycles
_ . but any prolonged unfavorable
Ccuntferparhes with an average economic andfor market period BR 083-~1.90
PRR 28 financial profile and sustainable would create an immediate
business profile. deterioration beyond acceptable
levels.
Counterparties with both average Credit exposure is not at risk of loss B 316-6.53
financial and business profite. at the moment but performance of
PRR 1B the client has weakened and unless
present trends are reversed, could
lead to losses.
Counterparties with an average This rating is given to a client where CCCiC 17.97-22.33
PRR 3C financial profite and adequate repayment of the receivable,
business profile. through narmal course of business,
_ . . may be in jeopardy due to adverse
Counterparties with aweak financial | ayents. There exists the pessibility [elele 2 17.97 -22.33
PRR 2C profile and adequate business of future losses to the institution
profile. unless given closer supervision.
Counterparties with a weak financial | Counterparties credits or pertions o 100
PRR 1C profile and sustainable business thereof which exhibit more severe
profile. weaknesses. This rating is given to
_ , . a counterparties whose receivables
PRRD Counterparties with a weak financial | gr partions thereof are considered D 100
profite and average business profile. | |ncallectible. The collectible
: - amount, with no caliateral or which
e o pofh wea collateral is of litle value, is diffcuit D 100
rofiles fo measure and mare practical to
PRRF P " write-off than to defer even though
partial recovery may be obtained in
the future.

A reconciliation of the closing loss allowance for trade and other receivables and due from
related parties as at December 31, 2018 to the opening loss allowance is presented below:

Trade
and Other Due from
Receivables Related Parties

Loss ajlowance at December 31, 2017 — PAS 39 P 478,153876 P -
Additional loss allowance charged o ’

opening retained earmnings 107,698,501 1,908 282
Loss allowance at January 1, 2018 - PFRS & 585,853,177 1,908,282
Increase in credit [oss allowance during the year 68,485,111 -
Write-offs ( 17,153,577) -

-Recoveries = - { 2.768.583) - - -

B__ 634306428 P 1908282

Credit loss allowance at December 31, 2018
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The credit loss allowance provided as of December 31, 2018 is as follows:

Trade and Other Receivables

Estimated Gross

S&P PD Rate Carrying Ameunt Credit Loss

PRR Rating Range at Default Allowance
PRR 3A BBB 0.14-0.62 P 52,140,981 P 215,228
PRR 2A BBB 0.14 =0.62 2,436,112,580 5,789,403
PRR 1A BBB 0.14-0.62 3,376,579,304 5,832,107
PRR 3B BB 0.63-1.90 3,228,077.624 21,232,653
PRR 2B BB 0.63-1.90 1,568,274,748 6,774,836
PRR 1B B 3.16~86.53 405,322,564 25,020,588
PRR 3C CCC/C 17.97 —22.33 68,521,800 13,649,151
PRR 2C CCC/C 17.97 —-22.33 335,572,541 64,998,972
PRR 1C/DIF D 100 480,783,183 490.783.183
11.987.622.71 P 634,396,128

Due From Related Parties
Estimated Gross

S&P PD Rate Carrying Amount Credit Loss

PRR Rating Range at Default Allowance
PRR 3A BBB 0.14 -0.62 P 61,149,279 P 85,609
PRR 1A BBB 0.14 -0.62 808,510,976 1,414,100
PRR 3B BB 0.63-1.90 70.152.199 408.573

4.3 Liquidity Risk

The Group manages its iquidity needs by carefuily monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments for
long-term financial liabilities as well as cash outflows due in a day-to-day business. Liquidity needs
are monitored in various time bands, on a day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well as on the
basis of a rolfing 30-day projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 6-month and one-year period are
identified monthly.

The Group maintains cash and cash equivalents to meet its liquidity requirements for up to

60-day periods. Excess cash are invested in time deposits. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is
additionally secured by an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to sell long-
term financial assets.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group's financial liabilities have contraciual maturities, which are
summarized as follows:

Current Non-current
Within 6to12 1to5 More than
6 months months years 5 years

interest-bearing loans :
and borrowings P21,479,255558 P6,272,692,441 P11,302,340,399 P4,925,525,000

Trade and other payables
(excluding tax-related

payables) 819,565,247 6,452,331,850 - -
Security deposits - ' - 266,616,512 -
Customers’ cylinder deposits - - - 276,285,688
Cash bond - - - 56,702,491

P22,316,820,805 P12,725024,291 P11,568,956,911 P5.258,513,079
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As of December 31, 2017 [As Restated - See Note 2.1(b)}, the Group’s financial labilities have
contractual maturities. which are summarized as foliows:

Current Non-current
Within 6to 12 ito 5 More than
6 maonths months years 5 years

Interest-bearing loans

and borrowings P17,093,687,980 P 770,678,974 P 9,834,502,651 P2,318,636,250
Trade and other payables

(excluding tax-refated

payables) 3,482,001,666 - - -

Security deposits - - 245,488,541 -
Customers’ cylinder deposits - - - 196,380,513
Cash bond - - - 33,492.002
P20.575.680.646 P_ 770678974 P10,179,991,192 P2.548 508,765

The contractual maturities of the financial liabilities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from
the carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the reporting periods.
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CATEGORIES, FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANGIAL LIABILITIES
5.1 Carrying Amounts and Fair Values by Categary

The carrying amounts and fair values of the categories of financial assets and liabilties presented in the consalidated statements of financial position are
presented below,

2018 2017 [As restated — See Note 2.1/(b]]
Notes Carrying Values Fair Values Carrying Values Fair Values
Financial Assels
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents 6 P 7,889,708,807 P 7,889,708,807 P 1,831,557,883 P 1,831,5657,583
Trade and other receivables-net” 7 11,363,226,589 14,363,226,589 7,038,808,333 7.,039,808,333
Due from related parties 27.4 937,904,172 937,904,172 518,004,898 518,004,858
Construction bond™* 10 5,504,822 5,504,822 - -
Resiricted deposits ] 52,719,265 52,719,265 51,281,559 51,281,559
Refundable deposits 18 289,572,937 289,572,937 182,480,300 182,480,300
P_20538636592 P 20538636502 P 2623132073 132.9
Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 17 P 39,945,245450 P 36,188,613,995 P 28,171,433,998 P 26,474,273,801
Trade and other payables™ 19 7,271,897,097 7,274,897,097 3,482,001,666 3,482,001,666
Customers’ cylinder deposits 20 276,285,588 276,285,588 196,380,513 196,380,513
Security deposits 20 266,616,512 266,616,512 245,488,541 245 488,541
Cash bond deposits 20 56,702,491 56,702.491 33,492,002 33,492,002

P__47816747,138 P__44060115683 P 32128796720 F.. 30431836523

~ Excluding advances to suppliers and advances subject to liquidation
* Excluding fax-reiated payables
*= included as part of Others under Prepayments and Other Current Assets
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See Notes 2.4 and 2.10 for a description of the accounting policies for each category of financial
instruments including the determination of fair values. A description of the Group’s risk
management objectives and policies for financial instruments is provided in Note 4. The carrying
values of refundable deposits, customers' cylinder deposits, security deposits and cash bond
deposits are reasonable approximation of their fair values.

5.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities and non-
financial assets which are measured at fair value on a recurring or non-recurring basis and those
assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed in
accordance with other relevant PFRS, are categorized into three levels based on the significance
of inputs used to measure the fair value. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

. Level 1: quoted prices {(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that an
entity can access at the measurement date;

. Lavel 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or jiability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), and,

. Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
{unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the lowest level of
significant input to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, a market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regulatly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis.

For investments which do not have quoted market price, the fair value is determined by using
generally acceptable pricing models and valuation techniques or by reference to the current market of
another instrument which is substantially the same after taking into account the related credit risk of
counterparties, or is calculated based on the expected cash flows of the underlying net asset base of
the instrument,

When the Group uses valuation technique, it maximizes the use of observable market data where itis
available and relies as ittie as possible on entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to
detarmine the fair value of an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2.
Otherwise, it is included in Level 3.

5.3 Financial Instruments Measurement at Fair Value

There are no financial assets and financia! liabilities that are measured at fair value as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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54 Fair Value Hierarchy of instruments Measured at Amortized Cost for which Fair Value is

Disclosed

The table below summarizes tha fair value hierarchy of the Group's financial assets and financial
kabilities which are not measured at fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position but

for which fair value is disclosed.

Financial Assets
Loans and receivables:

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Due from related parties
Congstruction bond
Restricted deposits
Refundable deposits

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
interest-bearing loans
and other borrowings
Trade and other payables
Customers' cylinder depoesits
Security deposits
Cash bond deposits

Financial Assels
Loans and receivables:
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Due from related parties
Restricted deposits
Refundabie deposits

Financial Liabilifies
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:
Interest-bearing locans
and other borrowings
Trade and other payables
Security deposits
Customers’ ¢ylinder deposits
Cash bond deposits

2018

Notes Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
g8 P 7,889,708,807 P - P - P 7,889,708,807
7 - - 11,363,226,589  11,363,226,588
27.4 - - 937,904,172 937,904,172
10 - n 5,504,822 5,504,822
9 52,719,265 - - 52,718,265
16 - - 289.572 937 288,572,937
P 7942428072 P . . P12596208.520 P 20538636502
17 P - P - P 36,198,613,595 P 36,188,613,995
19 - - 7,271,897,097 7.271,897,097
20 - - 276,285,588 276,285,588
20 - - 266,616,512 266,616,512
20 - - 56,702 491 56,702.451
B_- P P44060.115,653 P44060.115683

20417 [As restated — see Note 2.1(b)]

Notes Level 1 Levei 2 Level 3 Tetal
3] P 1,831,557,883 P - P - P 1,831,557,883
7 - - 7,039,808,333 7,039,808,333
27.4 - - 518,004,898 518,004,898
9 51,281,559 - - 54,281,559
16 - - 182,480,300 182,480,300
P 1882830442 P - . P 7740293531 P 9623139973
17 P - P - P 28,474,273,801 P 26,474,273,801
19 - B 3,482 001,666 3,482,001,666
20 - - 245 488,541 245,488,541
20 - - 196,380,513 196,380,513
20 - - 33,492,002 33,492,002
P P - P.30.431 636 523 P.32.128 796,720

For financial assets with fair value included in Level 1, management considers that the carrying
amount of this short-term financial instrument approximates their fair values.
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5.5 Fair Value Measurement for Non-financial Assels

The fair values of the Group’s parcels of land, included as part of Property, Plant and Equipment and
investment Properties accounts, were determined based on the appraisal reports of Asian Appraisal
Company, Inc. and Cuervo Appraisers, Inc., respectively, who are professional and independent
appraisers with appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of similar properties
in the relevant locations. To some extent, the valuation process was conducted by the appraisers in
discussion with the Group’s management with respect to the determination of the inputs such as the
size, age, and condition of the vessels. In estimating the fair value of these properties, management
takes into account the market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the assets
in their highest and besi use, Based on management assessment, the best use of the Group's
non-financial assets indicated above is their current use.

The Level 2 fair value of the parcels of land for both recognized under property, plant and equipment
and investment properties was derived using the market comparable approach that reflects the recent
transaction prices for similar properties in nearby focations. Under this approach, when sales prices
of comparable land in close proximity are used in the valuation of the subject property with no
adjustment on the price, fair value is included in Level 2. On the other hand, if the observable recent
prices of the reference properties were adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property
size, zoning, and accessibility, the fair value is included in Level 3. The most significant input info this
valuation approach is the price per square faot; hence, the higher the price per square foot, the higher
the fair value.

These properties were revalued in 2018 due to the change in the Group’s accounting policy
[see Note 2.1(b)]. The reconciliation of the carrying amount of investment properties is presented in
Note 15.

5.6 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The following financial assets with net amounts presented in the consolidated statements of financial
position are subject to offsetiing, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements:

December 31. 2018

Gross amounts recognized in the Related amounts not set-off in the
consofidated statement Net amount consolidated statement
of financial position presented in of financial position
the consolidated
Financial statement of
liabilities financial Financial Cash collateral
Financial assets set-off position instruments received Net amount
Trade and Other
Receivables P 11,498,383,599 (P 135,157.,010) P 11,363,226,588 P - P 323,319,003) P 11,039,907.586
Restricted deposits 52.719.265 - 52,719,265 ( 52,719,265 } - -
Total P_11551102864 (P _135357.001) P11.415945854 (P 52.719.2661(E___323.319.003) P_11.050.907 588
December 31, 2017 [Ag Restated — see Note 2.1(bY]
Gross amounts recognized in the Related amounts not set-off in the
consolidated statement MNet amount consolidated statement
of financiat posjtion presented in of financial position
the consolidated
Financial staternent of
liabilties financial Financial Cash collateral
Financial asseats set-off position instnumenks received Net amount
Trade and Other
Receivables P 7,039,808333 P - P 7,039,808333 P - (P 278,980,543) P 6,760,827,790
Restricted deposits 51,281,559 - 51,281,559 (__ 51,288,559} - -

Total P_7001Q#9892 P___..-. . B 709108980 (P.51281558) (P 273980543 ) E_6760.827.790
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The following financial fiabilities with net amounts presented in the consolidated statements of
financial position are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar

agreements:
December 31, 2018
Grass amounts recagnized in the Related amounts not set-off in the
consolidated statement Net amount consolidated statement
of financial position presented in of financial position
the censolidated
Financial statement of
Financial assets financial Financiai Cash collateral
liabilities set-off position instruments recefved Net amaunt
Interest-bearing loans
and borrawings P 39,945,245,450 P - P 39,945,245,450 (P 52,719265) P - P 39,892,526,185
Security deposits 266,616,512 - 266,616,512 - { 266,616,512 ) -
Cash bond deposits 56,702,491 - 56,762 491 - ( 55,702,491 ) =
Total P.40,268564458 P -  P40.268.564.453 (P_52,710265) (323,319,003 } P 39892506185
December 31, 2017 [As Restated —~ sge Note 2.1(b)]
Gross amounts recognized in the Related amounts not se-off in the
consolidated statement Net amount consolidated statement
of financial position presented in of financial position
the consalidated
Financial statement of
Financial assets financial Financial Cash collateral
iiabilities set-off position instuments recejved Net amount
interest-bearing loans
and borowings P 28,171433998 P - P28,171,433,998 (F 51,281,559) P - P 28,420,152,44Q
Security deposits 245,488,541 - 245,488,541 - ( 245,488,541 ) -
Cash bond depasits 33,492 002 - 33,492,002 - ( 33,492,002 ) -
Total P 28450414841 P - ... P 2845041454 (P 51281550) (B__278,980.543) E 28120150 440)

For financial assets and liabilities sublect to enforceable master netting arrangements or similar
arrangements presented above, each agreement between the Group and counterparties allows for net
settlement of the relevant financial assets and liabilities when both elect to settle on a net basis. Inthe
absence of such an election, financial assets and liabilities will be settled on a gross basis, however,
each party to the master netting agreement or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such
amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party.

6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include the following companents as of December 31:

2017
[As restated -
2018 see Note 2.1(bj}}
Cash in banks P 7,728,417,276 P 1,549,265,669
Cash on hand 4,082,617 412,846
Revolving fund 16,968,918 11,527,561
Short-term placements 140.539.996 270,351,807

P 7880708807 P 1.831.567.863

Cash in banks generally earn interest based on daily bank deposit rates ranging from

0.10% to 2.50% per annum in all years presented. Short-term placements are made for varying
periods ranging from 7 to 90 days and earn effective interest ranging from 0.25% to 1.00% per annum
in all years presented. Interest income earned amounted to P27.2 million, P15.7 million and

P3.9 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is included as part of Finance income under
Other Charges ({Income) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 23.2).
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The balances of cash in banks as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 exclude restricted time depasits
totalling to P52.7 milion and P51.3 million, respectively, which are shown as Restricted Deposits
account (see Note 9) in the consolidated statements of financial position. Such amounts are not
available for the ganeral use of the Group under the loan agreement (see Note 17).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

This accaunt is composed of the following:

2017
(As restated -
Note 2018 see Note 2.1{b])
Trade receivables:
Third parties P 8,367,158,668 P 5437450,799
Related parties 271 1,851,415,359 955,539,554
10,218 574,027 6,392.990,353
Advances to suppliers:
Third parties 925,791,098 219,626,441
Related parties 27.12 2.692,341.658 424 838 624
3.618,132,756 644,465,065
Non-trade receivables:
Third parties 698,518,436 517,507,971
Related parties 27.6,27.9,27.10 1,045,301.862 5£86,598.808
1.743.820.298 1.104,106,779
Advances subject to liquidation 49,355,359 21.034,364
Other receivables 35,228,394 20,864,877
15,665,110,832 8,183,461,438
Allowance for impairment {___634396.128) ¢ 478,153,676}

P15030.714704 P_7.705307.762

Trade and other receivables genarally do not bear any interest. All receivables are subject to credit
risk exposure (see Note 4.2),

PLPI entered into deferred payment agreement (DPA) with customers that are unable to pay their due
and outstanding payable to PLPI. PLPI agreed to collect, inclusive of interest, through instalments as
stated in the terms and conditions of the agreement. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
balanees of receivables under DPA amounted to P47.5 million and P28.3 millian, respectively, and is
presented as part of Trade Receivables — Third Parties in the Trade and Other Receivables account
in the 2018 and 2017 consolidated statements of financial position. There are no non-current trade
receivables as of the said cut-offs.

The parties have agreed to enter into the DPA for the full and final settlement of the debt subject fo
the following terms and conditions enumerated below and in the next page:

i)  Customer promises to pay PLP! through monthly instalment payment and by way of
post-dated checks;

iy The customer shall undertake to make full and final settlement of the remaining outstanding
amount of the debt in the event that the customer obtains any financial assistance from any
banks and/or financial institutions to finance its business operation. The entire remaining
outstanding amount of the debt shall become immediately due without further demand, formal or
informal advice in the event any of the monthly instalments are not received by the PLPlon ar
before the due date;
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fiiy Should PLPI be compelied to institute extra-judicial foreclosure of the collateral and/or judicial
actions to foreclose or collect unpaid amounts, the customer shall be liable for the costs and fees
incurred by PLP} in the preparation, monitoring and enforcement of the DPA, as well as costs and
fees incurred by the PLPI on account filing and prosecution and enforcement of any judicial
foreclosures, extra-judicial foreclosures, and coliection suits; and,

iv) The customer further agrees that in the event it fails to pay any of the monthly instalments, then
PLPI shall be at liberty to recover the same through the process of court, in which event all costs
and expenses incurred by the PLPI including the legal costs on a solicitor and client basis shall
be solely borne by them.

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for indications of impairment.
Certain trade and other receivables, which are due from customers, were found to be impaired; hence,
adequate amount of allowance for impairment has been recorded as of December 31, 2018 and 2017.

Impairment losses amounting to P68.5 million, P50.3 million and P113.0 million in 2018, 2017 and
2016, respectively, are presented as part of Selling and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22). Recovery of bad debts are presented as part of
Others under Other income (Charges) in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income.

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the beginning and end of 2018 and 2017 is shown
below. ‘

Notes 2018 2017

Balance at beginning of year,

as previously reported
Effect of application of PFRS 9 2.1(b)
As restated

P 478,153,676
107,699,501
585,853,177

P 339,048,847

138,498,702

Business combination 1.4 -

Impairment loss for the year 22 68,465,111 46167713
Written-off during the year ( 17,153,577} ( 44 844 753)
Recovery of bad debts { 2,768,583) ( 716,833)

P__ 634396128 P 478153676

In 2018 and 2017, the Group directly written off past due accounts amounting to nil and P4.1
million,respectively, which is also presented as part of Impairment losses on trade and other receivables
under Selling and Administrative Expenses (see Note 22.1).

Balance at end of year

INVENTORIES

The breakdown of inventories are as follows:

2017
[As restated -

Note 2018 see Note 2.1(bl]
At cost:

Fuels and by-products P10,303,317,190 P12,017,877.179
Lubricants 427,496,011 271,868,702

Merchandise 185,837,405 -
LPG 157,495,582 124,305,656
Others 61,348,098 2,185,536
- 21.2  P11,135494286 P12416237.073

Under the terms of agreements covering the liabilities under trust receipts, inventories with carrying
amount of P3,045.6 milfion and P5,139.1 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, have
been released to the Group in trust for by the bank. The Group is accountable to the bank for the
trusted inventories or their sales proceeds (see Note 17.1).



10.

-46-

There wera no inventory write-down in 2018 and 2017.

An analysis of the cost of inventories included in the cost of fuels, lubricants, LPG and merchandise sold
in each year is presented in Note 21.2.

RESTRICTED DEPOSITS

This account pertains to the time deposits that are used as securities for various banking credit facilities
covered by hold-out agreements (see Notes 6 and 17.1) amounting to P52.7 million and P51.3 million
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. As such, these are restricted as to withdrawals.

The proceeds from availment of the banking credit facilities by the Group are used for the purpose of
purchasing fuel and lubricant supplies. Interest rates for this type of deposit range from 0.80% to
3.68% per annum for December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016. Interest income earned from restricted
deposits amounted to P1.4 million, P0.1 million, P0.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and
is included as part of Finance Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income

(see Note 23.2).

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

The composition of this account as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is shown below.

2017
[As restated -
Note 2018 see Note 2.1(b}
Prepayments 27.3 P 388,805,646 P 299,066,139
Supplies 165,373,021 159,214,128
Creditable withholding tax 124,698,086 151,609,200
Cthers 16,822,026 381,709

695698779 P__ 610271176



11, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The gross camying amounts and accumulated depraciation and amortization of proparty, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of 2018 and 2017 are shown below.

Buildings, Gasoline
Depot, Leaschold and LPG Office Hauing Transportation Gonstructfon
Plant and and Land Station LPG Furniture and and Heavy and Cther in
Pler Facilities Improvemenis Equipment Cylindars Egulpment Equipment Equipment Land Progress Total

December 31, 2018
Cast or revatued amount P B,755,733.757 P 556,063,602 P4,016628325 P 2055808638 P 504464581 P 739542684 P 71,943,633 P 3.836,203,184 P2,323,038,453 P 24772225864
Accumnulated dapreciation,

amertizatlon and

impalrment 2.2026160843) {__289.784 374) {_1.856,489 851 £860,115,301) 259 737,242 518.693.345) [ 57,814,262} = = 6,055,231 358"
Net carrylng amount esmiman  Pomer  PAOGISAM EASAINA L MITAN B GMOA  B.—ANdF BASNJOMES PAMAMIRAN B.JA715894,505
December 31, 2017
Cast P 7,938,264,335 P 278,440237 P4307.181317 F 1725126080 P 176828000 P 728956478 P $0,325,808 P 2431765273 P 76191583 P 18,403.382,564

Accumutated depreciallon,
amortlzation, and

Impalment (_1.855.643.912) 1724 1) (4547282631 (__ TUEABQAGE) (. tOBJERGE4 (491 4 1oL 55,822,003 - - {__ 5003,503 758}
Net camying amount [As restated -
see Note 2.1(j pagass0arn  BGESTLEAS E275SA7REEE B OREGIARG E...70259436 £ 232408338 B 4483305 2431765273 E.I5)815535 L J3A93.975.008

January 4, 2017
Cost P 4,634,28€,358 P 294381659 P3,1155354%8 F - P 105444580 P 652099381 P 38,154,152 P 1,696,586,766 P1.081,384,000 P 11617842314
Accumulated depreciation

and amartization 1,135,333,357 {. BY.335 B5B)Y 857, 037,528 : f B4,301,661) ( 411366646} |, 28,154,157 - = 4 2615529173

Nex carmying amou 0 3SASTAONY  D20SGA00  B2ZSATLON Pt D ZlR2EE BRIl B PASSGSEETES  EASKAZSANN0 B SOR231al1a
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Areconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2018 and 2047 of property, plant and equipment is shown belaw.

Buildings, Gasoline
Depaot, Leasehacld and LPG Offlce Hauling Tzansportation Canstruction
Piant and and Land Statien LPG Furniture and and Heavy and Other In
Pler Facilities, Imprevements Equiptnent Cylinders Equipment Eguipment, Eguipment Land Progress Tota]

Balance at January 1, 2018

et of accumefated

depreclation and amortization —

as previously reported P 5,084,620,423 P 108321362 P2758878686 P 948,665,384 P s8g17.257 P 232408119 F 4,493,905 P 2431765273 P 761915835 P 13,400,687345
Restatement « cost - { 2,110.086) - - 1,797,340 - - - - { 312,748)
Restatement ~ sccumulated

depraciation - { 239,6350) - - { 155, 451) . = - - 204,781}
As restated —see Note 2, 1(b) 6,084,620,423 105,971,646 2,759,878.686 948,565,384 70,259,438 232,408,119 4,493,908 2,431,765.272 761915836 13,359,879,808
Business combination

- cost (see Note 1.4) - 208,860,851 - - 330,791,908 - 4,361,691 - 5,176,388 550,190,808
Business combination

- accumuiated depreciation

{see Nete 1.4} - { 65848711} - - ¢ 111,527,384) - ( 2,574 488) - - { 380,050,541)
Additions 1.038,8728,896 60,264,354 98,270,515 393.588,877 5,418,615 33,808,407 14,494,707 184,551,668 2,963.356,335 4,779,363,474
Revaiuation increments - - - - - - - 1.219,846,043 - 1,219,845,043
Transfers {sae Note 12} { 221,360,274} 27.228,763 585,048,375 47,135.953) 2,542,575 44,072,911 - - { 397,450,208) { 7,052,809}
Cost of asset dispesed - { 17.680,364) { 74,851882) | 5,070,485} { 12,195,514} ( 62208112} { 4,238,667} - - { 174,233.004)
Accumulated depreciation af

asset dispoyed - 4,708,356 86,892,056 3842624 10,850,372 62,296,112 4,230,976 - - 152,520,696
Depreciation and amarization

charges far the year [ M8373.0a1) | 36,175.428) { A08.073,318) | 63,306743) | 52,381,708} ( $0,442,009) ( 3,538,948} - - { 1,000,807,272)
Pravision for loss on lost cylinders - - - { 24,290,488} - - - - - ( 24,290,486}
Transtation adjustment - 248761 - - 278937 z = = e . §ATees
Batance at December 31, 2018

net of accumulated

depreciation and omorizaton  EESELAMSAM B 289213228 PAALASE4M B 1205403308  E.24A72L000 £..-21884033 E.. 14120370 EABN203104 B2220008451 B J8715004,508




Balance at January 1, 2017
net of accumulated
depreclation and amertization
Blusiness comblinatian
- cost (see Nate 1.4)
Business combinatien
- aczymulated
depreclation and pravision for
tass an last cyllnders
{sae Note 1.4)
Addtions
Restaternent —aost
Restatement — acclumulated
depreciation
Transfers
Cost of asset disj
Accumislated depreciation of
assat dispesed
Depreciation and amortlzation
chargas far the year
Balance at Decernber 31, 2017
net of accumulzted
depraclation and
amortization
[As restated —see Note 2.1(5)]

Bulldings,
Depot,
Piant and
Pler Fagilitles

P 3,438,953,001

1,475,208.901

{  507,141,325)
415,266

1,827,852,820
11,169.23

EAA8L520.475

Gascline
Leasehold and LPG
and Land Stalion LPG
mpravements, Egquipmgnt Cylinders
P 205045800 P2258497870 P -
- 494 487 528 1,665,092,760
- { 333,104.296) { 757.139,7403
6,748,404 5,402,980 74,504,678
{ 2,110,086} - -
239,630} - -
{ 19,666,168} 723,567,010 521,536)
{ 964,572 |{ 31,831,638 ( 13,849,823)
984,572 23,068,476 4,610,558
{__ §3,857.674) (__280209.283) | 23,931,515

PLI0SS71e4s  D2704A70608 E..S4000R08L

Office
Furniture and
Egulpment

Po21,142,918

20,693,043

( 16551492)
57,380,495
1,747,340

t 155,161)
(8597461
8,567.528

_13.937.778)

Hauling Transporiation
and Heavy and Other
.Equipment =~ __ Equipment

P

240722745 P -

P 1.685,585,756

Construction
i3

Progresy

F1,081,354,000

- 12,814,376 - 4,753,048
- { 18,125,459) - -
103,569,961 4,227,327 735,478,507  2.207,257.158

" . B (2,581,232,126)
21,502,844) [ 869,947} - [ 216,145)

26,568,472 855,448 - .
106 7a3.218) 407,840} - -

— Toml

P 8002313141
3,679.050.557

1,632.062.312)
3,195.335.770

{ 312.746)

( 394791}
{ 88,332431)
£4 535,055

(o -820232.535)

P 7028843 P..2i2408419 E.. 4403805 BRS3LI0RZI3 EI61816836 R.--1dd90.878.008
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11.1 Borrowing Costs

Construction in progress includes accumulated costs incurred on the various depot facilities and retail
stations being constructed as part of the Group's expansion program, including capitalized borrowing
costs of P261.6 million, P19.7 milkion and P61.7 milfion as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 20186,
respectively (see Note 17.5), representing the actual borrowing costs incurred on loans obtained to
fund the construction of depot facilities and retail stations. The average capitalization rate used was
8.50% both in 2018 and 2017.

11.2 Finance Lease

There are no hauling and heavy equipment held under finance lease as of December 31, 2018 and
2017.

11.3 Depreciation and Amortization

The Group retired in its books fully-depreciated transportation equipment with a total cost of

P21.6 milion and P24.9 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively. As of December 2018 and 2017, the
cost of fully-depreciated assets that are still being used in the Group’s operations amounted fo
P987.4 million and P1,044.8 million, respectively.

The amount of depreciation and amortization is allocated as follows:

Notes 2018 2017 2016

Cost of sales

and services 212,213 P 63,306,743 P 23,064,493 P 402,281,752
Selling and

administrative

expenses 937,600,529 796,288,042 582,127,726

2 P..1.000907.272 P_ 820252535 P __984.409.478

11.4 Fair Value of Land

The Group's parcels of land are stated at their revalued amounts as of December 31, 2018

(see Note 2.1[b]), being the fair value at December 31, 2018, the date of appraisal report, iess any
subsequent impairment losses. The revaluation surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes, is
presented as part of the Revaluation Reserves account in the equity section of the 2018 consolidated
statement of financial position.

The information on the fair value measurement and disclosures related to the revalued parcels of land are
presented in Note 5.5.

if the parcels of land were carried at cost modet as of December 31, 2018, the cost would be
P2,597.7 million.
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12. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated amortization of infangible assets at the beginning and
end of 2018 and 2017 are shown below.

Computer Software
Basketball Store Scftware Development
Franchise Franchise Licenses Cost Cthers Total
December 31, 2018
Cast p 176,861,660 P 42,028,644 P 244,288,416 P 47,871.271 P 1,334,093 P 512,084,084
Accumulated
amortization = { 18875819} ( 150,259,211 { 13986 618) 108288 ¢ 184.029.734)
Net carmying amount E 176861080 B 20353025 P . 84020208 P 33584855 B 1228805 B 420034350
December 31, 2017
Cast P 176,861,560 F - P 216,578,845 P 9,638,881 P 1262383 P 404,341,689
Accumilated
zamerization - - { 101,764 823} 7. 11B8.724) - { 108,883 647
Net carrying amount P 176,861,660 E - B 114 814 022 B 2520167 P2 1262333 P 295 458 249
January 1, 2017
Cost P 176,861,680 F - P 166,374,580 P 9275320 P 933684 P 353,445,254
Accumulated
amortization - - { 72935492 ( 5,472,272} - { 78.4G7.764}
Net carrying ameunt g 176 871,660 E = E 93,439 088 2 3,803,048 E 933634 B Z75.037.490

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of intangible assets at the beginning and end of 2018
and 2017 are shown helow.

Computer Software
Basketbail Store Software Davelopment
Franchise Franchise Licenses Cost Others Total
Balanca at
January 1, 2018,

net of accumulated

amortization -

as previously

reported P 176,861,660 P - P 94,287,232 P 2520167 P 1,282,393 P 274,931,452
Restatement — cost - - 20,874,703 - - 20,874,703
Restatement —

accumulated

amortization = - ( 347.913) - - { 347.913)
As resiated — see

Note 2.1{b) 176,861,660 - 114,814,022 2,520,167 1,262,393 285,458,242
Business combination

-cost {see Note 1.4} - 41,078,000 - 402,438 - 41,480,438
Business combination

~accumulated

amorlization - { 18,675,619) - { 228,499) - { 20,004,118)
Additions “ 950,644 26,563,038 30,477,133 71,700 58,062,515
Transfers from

propery, plant, and

equipment (see Note 11) - - - 7,052,809 - 7,052,809
Amcrtization expense

for tha year - - { 48,404,288) ( 6,538,393} ( 108,288} { 55,141,969)
Reclassification/

adjustment - - 1,146,433 - - 1,146,433

Balance at
December 31, 2018,

Net of accumnulated

amoriization = 1768616680 B 22353005 B 84020205 E_.. 23804855 P 12258058 B 328.084.380

Balance at
January 1, 2017,
ret of accumulated
ameoriization P 176,861,680 P - P 93,439,088 P 3803048 P 933694 P 275,037,480
Additions - - 48,856,452 353,571 328,699 50,548,722
Amoriization expensa
for the year = - { 28.481,518) { 1,646,452} - { 30,127 870)
Balance at
December 31, 2017,
net of accumulated
amorizzation
[As restated — see
Note 2.1(5)] B 176861660 2B z ] 144814022 B 2590467 B 1962383 P 295 458 242

In 2018, computer software licenses amounting to P7.5 million were transferred from property, plant and
equipment (see Note 11). The amount of amortization is presented as part of selling and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22).

Store franchise was acquired as a result of business combination in 2018 [see Notes 1.4(a) and 31.5L.
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Intangible assets are subject to annual impairment testing and whenever there is an indication of
impairment. The Group assessed that the useful life of the basketball franchise to be indefinite.
Based on analysis of all the relevant factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the
asset is expected to generate inflows for the Group. No impairment losses were recognized in 2018,
2017 and 2016 on such hasis,

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES
13.1 Joint venture of the Parent Company

The Parent Company has entered into a joint venture (JV) agreement with TIPCO Asphalt Public
Company Limited (TIPCO Asphalt) and certain individual to set-up and incorporate a JV company —
Phoenix Asphalt Philippines, Inc. (PAPI). The JV company — PAP| was incorporated on

March 23, 2018 primarily to import, store, manufacture, sell, market, distribute bitumen, bitumen-
related products and such other by-preducts of crude oil and such other petroleum products including
the operation of terminals and depots.

Under the JV agreement, PAPI's authorized share capital is P275.0 miilion divided into 275.0 million
shares with par value of P1 per share. The Parent Company owns P110.0 million shares or 40.00%
of the outstanding capital stock of PAPL. The JV has no restrictions as to transfer of funds in the
forms of cash dividend, or to pay advances made by PAPI. Moreover, the Parent Company shall be
responsibie to enter into a lease agreement for land identified as part of a certain industrial park in
Batangas for the construction of terminal at fair rental value, and to cause to provide a minimum of
20 to 30 years' access rights to the oil, gas and chemical jetty for receiving and importing bulk
bitumen cargo and other rights necessary for the construction and operations of terminal.

13.2 Joint ventures of PPMI

PPMI entered into an agreement with Per Petroleum Corporation for the operation and management
of PPM! retail network including collateral businesses that may complement the operation or the retail
network in the whole of the Bicol Region. The JV company, Phoenix Southern Petroleum Corp.
(PSPC), was incorporated and registered with the SEC on June 1, 2018. The primary purpose of this
company is to buy and sell refined liquefied petroleum gas, various kinds of lubricants, car care
products and to operate, manage and carry out gasoline retail stations, convenience store and other
non-fuel related businesses.

PFPMI owns P30.6 million worth of shares or 51.00% of the outstanding capital stock, but does not has
significant control on the entity. PPMI has no significant commitments relating to PSPC.

PPMI entered into a JV agreement with certain individuals for the management and operation of
Galaxi Petroleum Fuel, Inc. (Galaxi). Galaxi was primarily established to sell petroleum products.
PPMI owns P5.0 million worth of shares or 51.00% of the outstanding capital stock, but does not have
significant contral of the entity. PPMI has no significant commitments relating ta Galaxi.

13.3 JVs financial information

Presented below are the financial information of the Group’s joint ventures and the movements of the
carrying value as of December 31, 2018:

Joint Ventures

BAPL PSPC Galaxi

Total current assets P 275,278,082 P 67,459,164 P 172,285,310

Total non-cument assets 8,785,996 - 68,143,118

Total current Eabilities 10,643,773 7.988.212 152,328,905

Total non-current liabilities - - 1,756,000

Total revenues 6,828,601 - 398,627,902

Total other comprehensive income - - -

" Total

Net income {loss) (P 1,124,498) (P 520,048)P 15,807,567

Percentage of ownership 40.00% 51.00% 51.00%

Equity share in net income {foss) during the year P 449 8§00} (P 269.8141 P 8,061,859 P 7,342,245
Total acquisition costs 448094125

Carrying value B..455.436.370
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No dividends were received from the joint ventures during the year. [n addition, there are no share of
contingent liabilities for all of the JVs. As of December 31, 2018, management believes that the
investments in joint ventures are not impaired.

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of acquisition cost over the Group’s share in the fair value of identifiable
net assets of the acquired subsidiaries at the date of the acquisition and relates mainly to business
synergy for economies of scale and scope. The movements of this account as of December 31 are as
follows:

Note 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year
— net of allowance on
impairment loss P 3,990,666,606 P 10,221,849
Additions due fo business
combinations 1.4 428.176.225 3,980,444 757
Balance at end of year P 4418842831 P_3.990666.606

Goodwiil is subject to annual impairment testing and whenever there is an indication of impairment.
In 2013, the Parent Company has assessed that the goodwill pertaining with PGMI is impaired; hence,
full impainment [oss amounting to P1.3 million was recognized.

The Group tests whether goodwilt is impaired on an annual basis. The recoverable amount of the cash
generating units [identified as PLPI (LPG), PFM {CVS) and AA! Group {Digital platform)] was
determined based on value-in-use calculations which require the use of assumptions. The calculations
use cash flow projections based on budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period
with an assumed a terminal growth rate of 3.0% and is based on the discount rate of weighted average
cost of capital of 12.00%. Budgeted earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amartization
(EBITDA) were based on expectations of future outcomes taking in to past experience of five years,
adjusted for anticipated revenue growth. Itis also further assumed that revenues coming from sales
volume and sales prices would grow at a constant margin above forecast inflation over the next five
years. Based on these, the estimated recoverable amount of each of the cash generating units
exceeded its carrying amount. The carrying values of goodwill for each of the cash-generating units are
disclosed in Note 1.4,

Based on these analyses, management has assessed that no impairment of goodwill is required to be
recognized in 2018 and 2017.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties were acquired through business combinations in 2017 (see Note 1.4)
and consist of several parcels of land and lot improvements, which are held for investment purposes
only. Rental income from investment property amounted to P1.8 million in 2018, P1.1 million in 2017 and
nil in 2016 are presented as part of Rent Income in the 2018 and 2017 consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Related real property taxes amounted to P0.7 million and P0.2 million was recognized as a related
expense in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are presented as part of Taxes and Licenses under
Selling and Administrative Expenses in the 2018 and 2017 consolidated statements of comprehensive
income (see Note 22).
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The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and impairment of investment properties at
the beginning and end of 2018 and 2017 are shown below and in the next page.

Land

December 31, 2018

Revalued amount / caost {see Note 2.1/b)] P 1,742,840628

Lot
Improvements Total
P 3,500,390 P 1,748,341,018

Accumulated impaiment loss ( 4,633,374) - ( 4,633,374}
Accumulated depreciation - 2686439} ( 2.686.428)
Met carrying amount B_1.738 207 254 E 813 951 P__1738021205
December 31, 2017
Cost P 1,117,899,628 P 3,500,390 P 1,121,400,018
Accumulated impairment loss ( 4,633,374) - 4,633,374 )
Accumulated depreciation - 2,001.986) 1.986,362)
Net carrying amount B_1.113266.254 B 15140728 P 1144780287

A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of investment properties at the beginning and end of 2018 and

2017 is shown below.

Lot
Land Improvements Total

Balance at January 1, 2018

net of accumulated depreciation

and impairment loss P 1,113,266,254 P 1,514,028 P 1,114,780,282
Fair value gains 824,941,000 - 624,941,000
Depreciation charges for the year - 700077) | 700.077)
Balance at December 31, 2018

net of accumulated depreciation B_1,738,207,254 B 813,951 B .. 1.739.021,208
Balance at January 1, 2017

net of accumulated depreciation

and impaiment loss P 338,838,553 P 2,214,105 P 339,053,658
Business combination 736,056,721 - 736,086,721
Depreciation ¢charges for the year - 700,077 % { 700,077
Reversal of accumulated

impaiment iosses 40,785,503 - 40,785,503
Cast of disposed property { 415,623) 715701) 1,131,224)
Accumnuiated depreciation of disposed property - 715,701 745701
Balance at December 31, 2017

net of accumulated depreciation

and impairment loss B 11443266 254 B 1514028 B 1114780 282

In 2017, the carrying amount of the investment properties totaled to P1,114.8 million as a result of the
acquisition of Duta Group. As a result of the increase in the appraisal values, the Group recognized in
2017 a gain on reversal of impairment amounting to P40.3 million, which was previously recognized
before the business combination (see Note 1.4). Such is presented as part of Others under the Other
Charges {Income) in the 2017 consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

in 2018, the Group has appraised its investment properties where fair value gains were recognized at
the opening balance amounting to P624.9 million [see Note 2.1(b)].

Other information about the fair value measurement and disclosures related to the investment property

are presented in Note 5.5.
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16. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

17.

The composition of this account as of December 31 are shown below.

Note 2018 2017
Advances to suppliers 27.2 P 1,167,194,841 P -
Refundable rental deposits 27.3 289,572,937 182,480,300
Deferred minimum
lease payments 48,242,728 39,079,505
Other prepayments 83,386,615 -
Others 7,270,409 1,807,263

P 1,595,667.530 P 223.467.068

Advances to suppliers pertain to advances made to related parties for future acquisifion of real properties
(see Note 27.2).

Refundable rental deposits represent deposits of the Group for the lease of various parcels of land.
These deposits are refundable at the end of the term of agreement and are measured at amortized cost.
The fair values on initial recognition of the lease deposits were determined by calculating the present
value of the estimated future cash flows anticipated until the end of the lease terms using the market
interest rate of comparable financial instrument at the inception of the lease {.e. BVAL). Meanwhile,
interest on subsequent amortization of rental deposits using effective interest method amounted to

P2.8 million in 2018, P2.7 million in 2017 and P2.6 million in 2016 and is presented as part of Finance
Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 23.2).

The excess of the principal amount of the rental deposit over its present value is recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position as Deferred Minimum Lease Payments. Rent expense on
subsequent amortization of the defetred minimum lease payments amounted to P3.2 million,

P2.7 million and P2.4 million in 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, and is presented as part of Rent
under Selling and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
{see Note 22),

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND BORROWINGS

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings are broken down as follow:

2018 2017
Current:
Liabilities under LC and TR P 3,045,567,756 P 5,139,141,223
Term loans 16,667,005,937 11,657,732,922
Liabilities under short-term
commercial papers 6,596,913,591 -
26,309,487,284 16,796,874,145
Non-current Temmn loans 13,590.520.166 11,374 559.853

P39,900,007,450 P28,171.433.998
17.1 Liabilities undar Lettars of Credits and Trust Receipts

The Group avails of LC and TR lines with local banks to finance its purchases of inventories (see Note 8).
These short-term trust receipts bear interests based on prevailing market interest rates at an average of
6.14% and 3.97% per annum in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

The Group is required by the banks to maintain certain collaterals for the credit line facility provided to
the Group for working capital requirements. The collaterals are in the form of compensating deposits,
inventories and surety of certain stockholders (see Notes 6, 8, 9 and 27.5).
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The breakdown of the outstanding balances of the term loans per creditor as at December 31 are as

follows:

BDO Unibank, Inc. (BDO)
i. Term Loan Agreement
ii. Notes Fadility Agreements

Philippine National Bank (PNB)
i. Short-Term Commercial Papers
ii. Notes Payable
ii. Term Loan Agreement

Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP)
i. Term Loan Agreement
ii. Notes Payable

Multinationa! Investment
Bancorporation (MIB)

i Notes Payable
i, Medium-termn loan

Robinsons Bank Corporation (RBC)
i. Notes Payabie
ii. Term Loan Agreement

Develcpment Bank
of the Philippines {DEP})
Asia United Bank {AUB}

China Banking Corporation

Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation
Bank of Commerce

United Coconut Planters Bank
Maybank Philippines, Inc.

Pentacapital Investment Corporation
Philippine Veterans Bank {PVB)

Union Bank of the Philippines {UBP)

Qutstanding Balance

Explanatory Interest
Notes Term Rates 2018 2017
{3} 7 years 4.77% P 5/142,186,833 P 5795555853
{5), (c} 1 month
fo 5 years 5.72% - 7.59% 3.200,000.000 4,600.000.000
8.342.186.833 10,399,559.853
(17.3} 6t0 12 months 7.10% - 7.50% 6,596,913,591 -
(c} 2 months to
& months 4.63% - 7.00% 3,670,000,000 2,150,000,000
{d) Syears  5.30%-6.21% 225 000,000 325,000,000
10.491.913,591 2,475,000,000
il 7 years 4.85% 5,000,000,000 -
i) 3years 4.00% 666,666,667 4,000,000,000
(¢} 2 1o 3 months 6.00% 1,100,000.000 900.000.000
. 6.766.666.667 1,900.000.002
{c} 3to 7 morths  4.75% - 6.50% 4,304,042,213 2,385,732,922
(&) 1yearand &
manths 3.75% 200,000,000 -
4,504,042 213 2385732922
{c) 2 to 6 months 6.75% 375,000,000 625,000,000
(), (g 5 years 5.50% 200,000,000 347,000,000
575,000,000 972 000.000
€ 2to 3months  5.30% - 5.90% 1,745.000,000 1.200,000,060
(c) 3 months 6.75%  __ 1008630380 ____ 400,000,000
{c) 3 months to
18 months 4.63% 1,005,000,000 -
(c) 2to3months  7.25%  ____ 985000000 ___1,000.000,000
{c; 1 month 6.38% 810,000,000 500.000,000
{c 1 manth 7.00% e 450,000000 ____ 500,000.000
(c) 3 months 6.00% 200,000,000 -
{c} 3 months 5.00% - 400,000,000
{c) 1 month 3.50% - 600,000,000
(c) 2 months 3.50%4.00% - 300.000.000

P 36854430604 P 23032700775



- 57 -

(a] TLA with BDO

In 2017, the Parent Company obtained a seven-year term lean amounting to P6,000.0 million to finance
the 100.00% acquisition of PLPI, including the refinancing of the deposit, and Duta, Inc. The loan was
approved on a clean basis and is subject to an interest rate computed as the sum of the prevailing
three-month BVAL rate (which replaced and succeeded the PDST-R2 as the benchmark rate effective
October 29, 2018) and 150 basis points divided by 0.98, or 4.00% divided by 0.98 per annum for the
period commencing from the availment of the commitment up to the end of the eighth quarter,
whichever is higher. The interest rate shall be repriced at the start of the ninth quarter up to the final
repayment date based on the higher of sum of the prevailing three-month BVAL and 150 basis points
divided by 0.95, or 4.00% divided by 0.95 per annum, whichever is higher. The principal loan is payable
quarterly in 28 instaliments. The first 27 installments shall be for the amount of P165.0 million quarterly
while the last installment shall be P1,545.0 million.

The TLA also requires the Parent Company to maintain debt-to-equity ratio of not more than 3:1, current
ratio of at least 1.1, and debt coverage ratio of at least 1.5,

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Parent Company has complied with its debt covenants.
(b) Notes Facility Agreement

In 2011, the Parent Company availed of a P750.0 million clean loan under the nates facility agreement
entered into with BDO, Maybank International, Ltd. and RBC. The long-term loan amounting to

P700.0 million with interest rate of 7.40% annually is payable on August 24, 2016 and the remaining
P50.0 million with interest rate of 7.70% is payable on August 23, 2018. The outstanding balance of the
note facility as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to nil and P47.0 million, respectively. This
loan does not include any covenant.

{c) Notes Payable

The promissory notes represented the barrowings from local banks or investment houses with interest
rates ranging from 4.63% to 7.00% per annum and normally has a tenor of less than a year. Some of
these loans are clean and unsecured. Certain loans are guaranteed by certain stockhaolders through
surety agreement with the Banks (see Nate 27.5).

The total outstanding balance of the various promissory notes as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 are
P18,683.7 milfion and P14,560.7 million, respectively.

(d) TLA with PNB

On January 28, 2016, the Parent Company signed with PNB a five-year term clean loan amounting to
P500.,0 million to be used for capital expenditures and general corporate purposes. The loan is subject
to annual interest rate of 6.21% and is payable in twenty quarterly installments. As of December 31,
2018 and 2017, the outstanding principal balance amounted to P225.0 million and P325.0 million,
respectively. This loan does not include any covenant.

(e) Medium-Term Loan with MIB

The Parent Company signed with MIB a clean medium-term loan amounting to P200.0 million with a
tenor of 547 days. The loan proceeds were used for working capital requirements. The loanis subject
to a fixed annual interest rate of 3.75% and is maturing on April 30, 2019. This loan does not include
any cavenant. )
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() TLA with LBP

On November 3, 2017, the Parent Company signed with LBP a three-year term clean loan amounting to
P1,000.0 million to partially finance the permanent working capital requirementis of the Parent
Company. The loan is subject to a floating rate of 4.00% per annum subject to repricing semi-annually.
Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears and the principal is payable in equal semi-annual
amortization starting at the end of the first semester. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
outstanding principal balance amounted to P§65.7 million and P1,000.0 million, respectively.

On July 5, 2018, the Parent Company signed with LBP a seven-year term loan with no grace period
amounting to P5,000.0 million to partially finance the general corporate requirement of the company.
The loan was approved on a clean basis and is subject to an interest rate of 4.85%and shall be repriced
semi-annually. The principal loan is payable in semi-annually. The first 13 installments shall be for the
amount of P25.0 million semi-annually while the last installment shall be P4.675.0 million.

The TLA also requires the Parent Company to maintain debi-to-equity ratio of not more than 3:1.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the outstanding principal balance amounted to
P5,000.0 million and nil, respectively. The Parent Company has complied with its debt covenants.

(g) TLA with RBC

On October 9, 2015, the Parent Company signed with RBC a five-year clean term loan amounting to
P500.0 million to be used for capital expenditures and general corporate purposes. The loanis
subject to annual interest rate of 5.50% and is payable in twenty equal quarterly instaliments. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, the outstanding principal balance amounted to P200.0 million and
P300.0 million, respectively. This loan does not include any covenant.

17.3 Liabilities under Short-term Commercial Papers (STCPs)

In December 2018, the Parent Company issued STCPs amounting fo P7,000.0 million with PNB Capital
and Investment Corporation being the Sole Issue Manager and the Lead Underwriter. The amount
represented the first of the two tranches totalling to P10,000.0 million of STCP registered with the SEC.
Half of the first tranche consisted of 180-day paper that carries a discount rate of 7.10% while 350-day
paper with discount rate of 7.50%. The Parent Company used 70.00% of the proceeds to finance the
working capital requirements for the importation of fuels and lubricants, and the rest will be used to repay
outstanding short-term loans with various banks.

The outstanding liabilities under STCP as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to P86,596.9 million
and nil, respectively. The outstanding balance as of December 31, 2018 is net of the capitalized and
unamortized debt issuance cost of P45.2 million.

17.4 Credit Line

The Parent Company has an available credit line under LC/TR of P17,111.3 million and

P8,902.3 million and as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. These lines obtained from
various banks are being utilized by the Parent Company for pracurement of inventories both local and
foreign. The credit lines are mostly granted on a clean basis while some of the credit lines are
partially secured by the Joint Several Signatures of certain stockholders.

17.5 Interest Expense

Interest expense for 2018, 2017 and 2016 are presented as part of Finance Costs in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income amounted to P1,377.0 million, P780.9 million and
P863.4 million (see Note 23.1), respectively, which is already exclusive of the capitalized borrowing
cost of P261.6 million, F18.7 million and P&1.7 million as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2018,
respectively (see Note 11.1). - _
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18. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Presented below is the reconceiliation of the Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities, which
includes both cash and non-cash changes.

Liabilities Obligations Other
underLC Liabilities under Nor-current
and TR Term Loans under STCP finance lease Liabilites
{see Note 17) (see Note 17) (see Note 17} {see Note 17) {see Note 20} Total
Balance as of
January 1, 2018 P 5139,141,223 P 23,032,292,775 P - P - P 504,847 844 P 28,676,381,842
Cash flows from
financing activities
Additional borowings - 50,793,571,804 7.000,000,000 - - 57,798,571,804
Repayment of
horrowings
and TR { 28300,249,382)( 43573,338,476) - - - ( 71,873,587.858 )
Increase in non-current
liahility - - - - 78,717,366 78,717,366
Bond issue cost - - { 45,238,000) - - ( 45,238,000}
Non-cash financing activities
Avallment of LG and TR 25,780,675,915 - - u - 25,780,675,915
Business combinaticn 426,000,000 - - - 3,664,695 429,664,685
Unamortized discount - - { 357,848.409) - - { 357,848.409)
Balance as of
December31,2018  P_3.045567756 P 30257526193 P 6596913501 B - = P687320808 P 40467337348

Balance as of

January 1, 2017 P 2,163,836,859 P 9811509730 P 4,107,791.982 P 1,265,272 P 258,584,286 P 13,443,008,129
Cash flows from
financing activities
Additional borrowings - 35,855,647,657 4,124,000,000 - - 37,018,647 657
Repayment of
borrowings
and TR ( 18,099,859,838)( 22,776,136,983} { 2,228,711,982) - - { 43,104,708,803 )
[ncrease in non-cumrent
liablity - - - - 63,749,068 63,745,068
Non-cash financing activities :
Avalment of LC and TR 21,075,064,202 - . - - 21,075,064,202
Business combination - - - - 182,614,450 182,614,480
interest amortization cn
fmance lease obiigation - - - { 1,265,272} - { 1,265,272
Amortization of
unrecorded discount - 1.272.371 - - - 1,272,371
Balance as of
December 31, 2017 p_5139141,223 P 23032282775 P B E - P 504,947,844 P 26576381842
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
This account consists of:
2017
[As Restated
Ngtes 2018 ~ Note 2.1(b)]
Trade payables:
Third parties P 6,142,277,375 P 2,844,928.495
Related parties 27.2,27.3,2.11% 84,630,306 20,995,548
6,226,907.681 2,865,924,043
Accrued expenses 895,209,882 439,067,334
Retention payable 137,666,139 78,959,503
Non-trade payables 112,877,855 13,344,313
Advances from customers 7,208,523 108,796,437
Others 54 969,172 78,532 168

P 7434839252 P_3.584623738

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are generally settled within 30 to 90 days.
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Accrued expenses mostly perain to payables to various confractors for the construction of retail stations
that remain unpaid at the end of the year. In addition, this comprises amounts to be paid in relation to
charter hire cost, repairs and maintenance, interest expense arising from loans and professional fees.

Retention payable is the amount withheld by the Group from its contractors for the construction of
buildings, depot and pier facilities. The amount of retention, which is equivalent to ten percent of the
total contract price, is payable upon the completion and turnover by the contractor of a construction
project and the acceptance thereof by the Group. Moreover, significant portion of the retention payable
pertains to the construction of gasoline and LPG stations equipment, which are expected to be
completed within one year after the reporting petiod.

Non-trade payables pertain to liabilities to various suppliers of goods and services which are not related

to primary business activities of the Group, such as, utility bills, travel expenses and purchase of office
supplies, among others.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

This account consists of:

Note 2018 2017

Customers’ cylinder deposits P 276,285,558 P 196,380,513

Security deposits 266,616,512 245,488,541

Cash bond 56,702,491 33,492,002

Uneamned rent 20,226,494 20,724,633
Post-employment defined

benefit obligation 244 771.210 1,720,623

P__ 620,602,265 P 497806312

Security depasits represent deposits received from dealers for the lease of retail stations and equipment
that are installed in retail stations. These deposits are refundable at the end of the lease terms and are
measured at amortized cost. The fair values on initial recognition of the security deposits were
determined by calculating the present value of the estimated future cash flows anticipated untit the end
of the ease terms using the market interest rate of comparable financial instrument at the inception of
the lease. Meanwhile, interest on subsequent amortization of rental deposits using effective interest
method amounted to P3.6 million, P6.3 million and P11.7 million in 2018, 2017 and 20186, respectively,
and is presented as part of Finance Costs in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 23.1).

The excess of the principal amount of the security deposit over its present value is recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial position as unearned rent. Subsequent amortization of the
unearned rent amounted ta P5.6 million, P6.4 million and P8.1 millian as of December 31, 2018, 2017,
and 2016, respectively, and is presented as part of Rent Income in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income.

Customers’ cylinder deposits represent the net amounts received for LPG cylinders loaned out to
various dealers/customers. These deposits are non-interest bearing and refunded to the dealers upon
return of the cylinders. This account is amongst the assumed fiabilities as a result of business
combination with PLP! in 2017 (see Note 1.4). In 2018 and 2017, there were no refunds made to the
dealers. The composition of this account in 2017 are as follows: ’

2018 2017
Deposits for cylinders P 431,736,323 P 248,173,086
Les(g:ain on reversal of cylinder deposits o ( 91,841,621} -
Amortization of cylinder deposits ( 63.609.144) ¢ 51,792 573)
P__276285558 P 196.380.513

Cash bond deposits consists of cash received from PLPI dealers upon entering dealership agreement.
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This serves as a bond or securnity in case a dealer defaults from payment. The deposit will be returned
ta the dealer upon termination of the agreement. The Group recognized gain on reversal of cylinder
deposits amounting to P81.8 million and nil in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is presented as part of
Fuel Service and Other Income in the consalidated statements of comprehensive income.
REVENUES AND COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

Revenues

Disaggregation of Contract Revenues

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services in the following primary
geographical markets and major goods or service lines:

Depat and
Trading Logistics
{point in ime) (over time) Total
Primary geographical markets
Philippines : P 66,671,556,143 P 824,182,312 P 67,495,738,455
Singapore 21,001.166.720 - 21.001,166,720

P _87,672,722.863 P 824182312 P 88496905173

Major goods/service lines

Fuel and by-products P 81,478,209,826 P 3,214,286 P 81,481,424112
LPG 4,241,227 274 - 4,241,227 274
Merchandise 1,437,531,031 - 1,437.531,031
Lubricants 689,008,147 - 699,008,147
Hauling and into-plane 820,968,026 820,958,026

Others 61.175.962 - 61175962

P_87,672,722.863 P. 824132312 P_388.496,905.175

All of the Group's revenues except revenues from hauling and into-plane services and franchise fees
(insignificant in amount), which are presented as part of Fuel services and other revenues are
transferred at a point in time.

Contract Balances

The Group recognizes contract assets, due to timing difference of payment and satisfaction of
performance obligation, to the extent of satisfied performance obligation on all open contracts as of
the end of the reporting period. However, the management assess that contract assets, if any, are of
insignificant amaounts.

Changes in the contract assets and contract fiabilities are recognized by the Group a right to receive
payment is already establfished and upon performance of unsatisfied performance obligation,

. respectively. However, the management assess that contract liabilities, if any, are of insignificant

amounts.
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Cosf of Sales and Services
21.1 Costs of Sales and Services

This account is compased of the following as of December 31:

2017
[As Restated -
Notes 2018 see Note 2.1(b}] 2016

Cost of fuels and

lubricants 21.2 P 74,428,51517% P 37,251,184,765 P 23,914,378,824
Cost of LPG 21.2 3,439,226,822 1,093,919,764 -
Cost of merchandise 212 971,222,819 - -
Cost of services 21.3 - - 1,209.570,405

22 P 78838964820 P 38345104520 P 25.123049.299
21.2 Cost of Fuels, Lubricants, LPG and Merchandise Sold

The cost of inventories sold are broken down as follows:

2017
[As Restated -
Notes 2018 see Note 2.1(bJ} 2016

Inventories at

beginning of year P 12,416,237,073 P 2,998,780,146 P 2,638,614,688
Net purchases

during the year 77,380,780,757 47.660,988,176 24,274 544,232
Qverhead costs 11.3 95,924,146 38,427,130 -
Business combination 1.4 81,517,130 63.146,150 -
Goods available for sale 89,974,459,106 50,761,341,602 26,913,158,970
Inventories af

end of year 8 (__11,135.494,286)(__12.416,237.073) ( 2 998 780.146)

p_78,838,964,820 P 38345104 P_23,914.378,824

21.3 Cost of Services

There are no cost of services as of December 31, 2018 and 2017. The details of cost of services as
of December 31, 2016 follows:

Notes

Charter hire fees P 219,480,628
Depraciation and

amortization 11.3,12 402,281,752
Salaries and

employee benefits 223,104,624
Bunkering 128,272,479
Port expenses 69,045,193
Repairs and

maintenance 47,398,625
Insurance 41,880,302
Taxes and licenses 18,061,125
Qutside services 6,060,643

N Service fees ~7 - 5,228,607

Security services 2,650,929
Fuel, gas and lubricants 148,605
Professional fees -
Others 45 956 893

P 1,200570.405
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22. COSTS AND EXPENSES BY NATURE

The details of the Group’s costs and expenses by nature are shown below.

2017
[As Restated -
Notes 2018 see Note 2.1(b) 2016

Cost of inventories sold  21.1 P 78,743,040,674 P 38,306,677,397 P 23,914,378,824
Depreciation

and amortization 11,12, 15 1,056,749,318 851,080,582 1,002,088,441
Salaries and

employee benefits 24.1 868,282,821 438,875,069 549,545,236
Rent 16,27.3,31.3 865,873,379 654,110,277 638,617,179
Freight and trucking

charges 859,631,739 667,780,304 594,195,277
Taxes and licenses 15 531,258,432 581,832,247 336,339,378
Advertising and

promotions 373,530,774 267,197,963 85,071,762
Repairs and maintenance 167,873,962 90,491,317 118,676,191
Utilities 154,238,778 . 73874917 60,577,393
Service fees 123,721,448 134,022,166 88,540,285
Security fees 114,708,711 82,623,951 69,578,620
Donations and

contributions 27.13 91,762,500 - -
Travel and transportation 82,991,673 58,361,503 50,971,497
Professional fees 78,808,924 53,176,668 107,609,032
insurance 71,827,325 40,957,246 71,213,196
Fuel, oil and lubricants 69,321,906 50,194,019 27,084,236
Impaiment losses

on frade and

other receivables 7 68,465,111 50,335,399 112,986,854
Office supplies 42,948,909 16,634,489 12,914,083
Dues and Subscriptions 37,887,492 - -
Representation 27,946,580 9,814,799 16,204,648
Provision for loss

on lost cylinders 11 24,290,486 - -
Sales incentives 20,965,232 13,481,660 17,120,040
Qutside services 14,924,503 2,881,508 7,753,440
Deficiency taxes 45,858 5,295,972 81,276,439
Charter hire fees - - 152,635,025
Bunkering - - 128,272,479
Port expenses - - 40,173,775
Miscellaneous 27.11 89,103,852 102,433.029 167,191 742

Note

2018

2017

P 84580715417 P 42552132480 P 28576725128

The expenses are classified in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as follows:

2016

Cost of sales and

services 211
Selling and

administrative expenses

5,741.750,297

4,207.027.951

P 78,838,964,820 P 38,345104,529 P 25,123,949,229

3,327,065.843

P 84580715117 P 42.552.132.480 P.28451015072



- 64 -

23. FINANCE COSTS AND FINANCE INCOME
The breakdown of these accounts follows:

23.1 Finance Costs

Notes 2018 2017 2016

Interest expense on

bank loans and

other borrowings 17.5 P 1,376,994,786 P 780,917,196 P 863,399,371
Bank charges 54,113,374 16,779,298 18,828,373
Foreign currency

exchange

losses — net 14,575,031 92,823 -
Interest expense from

security deposits 20 3,564,480 6,341,824 11,680,584
Interest expense from

post-employment

defined benefit

obligation — net 24.3 - 578,720 1,678,468
Others - - 10,703,374

P__1448,247671 P 804707881 P 6,290.1

23.2 Finance Income

2017
[As Restated -
Notes 2013 see Note 2.1¢(b} 2016
Foreign currency
exchange
gains — net P 37,007,589 P 37,832,533 P 200,196,556
Interest income from
cash in banks 5] 27,225,602 15,662,627 3,874,299
Interest income on
amortization of
rental deposits 16 2,761,638 2,711,435 2,566,528
Interest income from
overdue frade
receivables 1,796,910 - 380,957
Interest income fram
restricted deposits 9 1,437,706 106,880 662,278
Interest income on
retirement benefits 243 1,148,645 - -
Others 1,996,252 - -

p__73374342 P_ 56313476 P 207.687.618
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24, EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
24.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and employee benefits are presented below.

Notes 2018 2017 2016
Short-term benefits:
Salaries and wages P 673,553,312 P 323,104,897 P 434,209,853
Employee welfare
and other benefits 103,315,524 63,959,232 76,840,351
13™ month pay and
bonuses 67,321,587 30,893,578 23,944,763
Paost-employment
defined benefit 243 16,848,732 9,327,496 8,792,489
Employee share options ~ 24.2 7,243,666 11,589,866 5,757,780
22 P_868.282821 P 438875060 P 540545236

24.2 Employee Share Option Plan (ESOF)

On January 24, 2013, the BOD of the Parent Company approved the ESOP. Under the ESOP
program, the Parent Company will allocate up fo a total of 2.20% of its issued and outstanding common
shares to be granted to eligible employees. Share options benefit expense included as part of Salaries
and employee benefits under Selling and Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of
comprehensive income amounted to P7.2 million, P11.6 milfion and P5.8 million in 2018, 2017 and
2018, respectively, while the corresponding credit to Retained Earnings of the same amount are
presented under the Equity section of the consolidated statements of financial position.

24.3 Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan
(a) Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Pian

The Group has maintained a partially funded, tax-qualified, noncontributory post-employment
defined benefit plan that is being administered by a trustee bank that is legally separated from

the Group. The trustee bank managed the fund in coordination with the Group’s management

who acts in the best interest of the plan assets and is responsibie for setting the investment policies.
The post-employment plan covers all reguiar full-time employees.

The normal retirement age is 60 with a minimum of five years of credited service. Normal
retirement benefit is an amount equivalent to 75.00% of the final monthly covered compensation
(average monthly basic salary during the last 12 months of credited service) for every year of
credited service.

(b) Explanation of Amounts Presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements
Actuarial valuations are made annually to update the retirement benefit costs and the amount of

contributions. All amounts presented below are based on the actuarial valuation report obtained from
an independent actuary in 2018 and 2017.
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The amounts of post-employment defined benefit abligation, which is presented as part of
Other Non-current Liabilities account (see Note 20) in the consolidated statements of financial
position, are determined as follow:

2018 2017
Present value of obligation P 169,428,265 P 123,569,725
Fair value of plan assets { 170.568.742) (__ 122,023 565)
_Funded status { 1,140,477} 1,546,160
Effect of asset ceiling 1,911,687 174,463
P 771,210 P 1720623

The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined benefit obligation recognized in the
books are as follows: :

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P 123,569,725 P 59,336,378
Current service cost 16,848,732 9,327,496
Effect of business combination 3,664,685 75,111,933
Remeasurements:
Actuarial losses (gains) arising from:
Changes in financial assumptions { 32,969,509) ( 12,276,998)
Experience adjustments 51,934,933 ( 5,001,689)
Changes in demographic assumptions 3,091,223 { 355,175)
Benefits paid from:
Plan assets ) { 4,036,824) ( 7,100,000)
Book reserves - ( 5,453,559}
Settlement loss - 3,582,092
Interest expense 7,325,300 6,390.249
Balance at end of year P_169,428.265 P 123.569.725
The movements in the fair value of plan assets are presented below,
2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P 122,023,565 P 86,148,347
Contributions to the plan 54,718,273 41,209,772
Benefits paid from plan assets ( 4,036,824) 7,100,000}
Interest income 8,473,945 5,164,769
Loss on plan assets
(excluding amounts
included in net interest) { 10,610,217) ( 3,399,323)

Balance at end of year P__170,568,742 P _122023.565



-B7 -

The composition of the fair value of plan assets at the end of the reporting periad by category and risk
characteristics is shown below.

2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents P 14,928,101 P 17,064,860
Quoted equity securities:
Holding 1,036,800 6,115,830
Property 7,374,000 3,199,153
Canstruction 2,658,740 2,966,310
Telecommunications 2,044,800 2,226,695
Manufacturing {Preferred) 1.799.780 1,831,803
14,914,120 16,339,791
Govemment bonds 55,700,985 43,642 587
Unit investment trust funds (UITF) 68,001,187 27,611,035
Unit Corporate Bonds 17,023,349 16,227,865
Others - 1,137.427

P_170568.742 P 122.023.565
The fair value of the above investments are determined based on quoted market prices in active

markets (classified as Leve! 1 in the fair value hierarchy). Plan assets do not comprise any of the
Group’s own financial instruments or any of its assets occupied andfor used in its operations.

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other comprehensive income in
respect of the defined benefit post-employment plan are as follows:

Notes 2018 2017 2016

Reported in profit or loss:
Current service cost 24.1 P 16,848,732 P 9327496 P 8,792,489

Settlement loss - 3,682,092 -
Net interest
expense (income) 231,232 ( 1,148,645} 576,720 1,678,468
P_15700.087 P 13486308 P 10470857

Reported in other
comprehensive income:
Actuarial gains or
Losses arising
from changes in:

Experience
adjustments P 51,934,933 (P 5001,689) (P 10,503,288)
Financial
assumptions { 32,969,509) { 12,276,998) ( 3,020,965)
Demographic -
assumptions 3,091,223 ( 355,175) -
Effect of asset
ceiling 1,727,089 174,463 -

Return (oss) on plan
assets (excluding
" " amounts included

in net interest
expense} 10,610,217 3,399,323 ( 1,836.547)

P_ 34,393,933 (P_14.060,076) (E..15.360.800)
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Current service cost is presented as part of salaries and employee benefits under Selling and
Administrative Expenses in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22).

The net interest expense is included as part of Finance Costs under the Other Charges {Income)
(see Note 23.1).

In determining the amounts of the defined benefit post-employment obligation, the following
significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2018 2017 2016

Discount rates 7.53% to 7.97% 5.70% to 5.82% 5.38%
Expected rate of salary

increases 2.00% to 6.00% 5.00% to 6.00% 5.00%

Assumptions regarding future mortality experience are based on published statistics and mortality
tables. The average remaining working lives of an individual retiring at the age of 60 for both males
and females is 25.7 and 20.9 for the Parent Company and PLPI, respectively.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of an independent actuary.

Discount factors are determined close to the end of each reporiing pericd by reference to the interest

rates of a zero coupon government bond with terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the
post-employment obligation. Other assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and
management's historical experience.

{c) Risks Associated with the Retirement Plan

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks such as investment risk, interest rate risk,
longevity risk and salary risk.

(i) Investment and Interest Risk

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calculated using a discount rate
determined by reference to market yields of government bonds. Generally, a decrease in the
interest rate of a reference government bond will increase the plan obligation. However, this
will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the plan’s investments and if the return on
plan asset falls below this rate, it will create a deficit in the plan. Currently, the plan has
relatively balanced investment in cash and cash equivalents, quoted equity securities and
UITF.

(i} Longevity and Salary Risks

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is calcuiated by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of the plan participants both during and after their employment, and to
their future salaries. Consequently, increases in the life expectancy and salary of the plan
participants will result in an increase in the plan obligation.

(d) Otherinformation
The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial assumptions and the

timing and uncertainty of future cash flows related to the retirement plan are described in the
succeeding page.
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(i} Sensitivity Analysis

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant actuarial assumptions
used in the determination of the post-employment defined benefit obligation as of December 31:

Impact on Post-etnployment Benefit Obligation

Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate +/-1.00% (P 13,482,291} P 15,252,253
Salary increase rate +{-1.00% 15,529,199 { 13,461,468}

2017
Impact on Post-employment Benefit Obligation.

Change in Increase in Decrease in

Assumption Assumption Assumption
Discount rate +i-1.00% P 13,204,708) P 15,537,589
Salary increase rate +/-1.00% 14,128,498 ( 12,313,513)

The above sensitivity analysis is based an a ¢change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative of the actual change in the
defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in
isolation of ane anather as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in
presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation
has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability
recoghized in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared to the previous years.

(i) Asset-lability Matching Strategies

To efficiently manage the retirement plan, the Group through its BOD, ensures that the
investment positions are managed in accordance with its asset-iability matching strategy to
achieve that long-term investments are in line with the obligations under the retirement
scheme. A large portion of the plan assets as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 is allocated to
market gains and losses and accrued receivables.

{iif) Funding Arrangements and Expected Contributions

As of December 31, 2018, the plan is overfunded by P1.1 million based on the latest actuarial
valuation. While there are no minimum funding requirement in the country, the size of the
underfunding may pose a cash flow risk in about 21 years' ime when a significant number of
employees is expected to retire.

The Group expects to make contribution of P10.0 million to the plan during the next reporting
period.

The maturity profile of undiscounted expected benefit payments from the plan within ten years
as of December 31 follows: '

2018 2017
Within one year P 23,403,502 P 5,296,457
More than one year to five years 71,661,736 23,841,856
More than five years to ten years 149,066,180 81,961,568

P 244,131,418 P 111099881

_The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting _
period is ten years.
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25. REGISTRATION WITH THE BOARD OF INVESTMENTS

The Parent Company and PLPI were registered with the Board of Investments (BO) for certain
terminal and facilities that entitled the entities certain tax and non-tax incentives. Terminal and
facitlities registered with the BQOI are as follows:

Entity Date of Income Tax Holiday (ITH)

Note Location of Project Registered Registration Period Expiry

251  Bacolod City FPP] May 10, 2012 5 Years May 9, 2017
252  Cagayan De Cro City PPPi May 10, 2012 5 Years May 9, 2017
253 Naga City, Cebu PLPI] Maych 7, 2013 Svyears March 6, 2018
25.4  Tayud, Consolacion PPPFi Nov 24, 2017 5 Years Nov 24, 2022
255 Calapan,Qriental Mindoro PPPi Sep 9, 2017 5 Years Sep §, 2022
256  Villanueva, Misamis Oriental PFPP] Oct 12, 2017 5 Years QOct 12, 2022
257 Calaca, Batangas Expansion PPPI Dec 22, 2017 5 Years Dec 22, 2022

25.1 BOI Registration for New [nvestment — Bacolod Storage Terminal

The Parent Company was registered with the BO! as a new industry participant with new investment
in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk marketing of petroleum products under Republic Act
8479, Downstream Oil Industry Deregulation Act (RA 8479) for its storage terminal in Bacolod City.
Under its registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms
and conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1887.

25.2 BOI Registration for New Investment— Cagayan De Oro City Storage
Terminal

On May 10, 2012, the Parent Company was registered with the BOI as a new industry participant with
new investment in storage, marketing and distribution and bulk marketing of petroleum products
under RA 8479 for its storage terminal in Cagayan de Oro City. Under its registration, the Parent
Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and conditions stated in the
provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987.

Under its registration, the Parent Company's transaction relating Cagayan de Oro City storage
terminal is also entitled to certain tax and non-tax incentives as also mentioned previously.

The ITH for Cagayan de Oro City Storage expired an May 10, 2017.

25.3 BO/ Registration for New LPG Import Terminal and Lubricant Storage Facilities in Naga
City, Cebu

On March 7, 2013, the PLP1 has registered with the BO! under Registration No. 2013-060 for its new
investment for the construction of New LPG Import Terminal and Lubricant Storage Facilities in Naga
City, Cebu. PLPI's Naga Plant Site is entitled to avail the incentives, which include, among others,
ITH for a period of five years without extension from March 2014 or date of registration whichever is
earfier but in no case earlier than the date of registration. The ITH for this terminal and storage facility
expired on March 6, 2018.

25.4 BOI Registration for New Investment in Tayud, Consolacion, Cebu Oil Depot

On September 19, 2017, the Parent Company has registered with BOI under Registration

No. 2017-267 its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Tayud, Consolacion,
Cebu Qil Depot with 16.7 million liters combined capacity of six storage tanks. Under its new
registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and
conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus investments Code of 1887. The Parent
Company's transactions relating to Cebu Oil Depot are entitled to avail the incentives which include,
among others, ITH for a petiod of five years without extension from September 2017 or date of
registration whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of registration.
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25.5 BOI Registration for New Investment in Calapan, Oriental Mindoro Oil Depot

On October 12, 2017, the Parent Company has registered with BOI under Registration

No. 2017-287 its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Calapan, Oriental
Mindoro Qil Depot with 5.0 million fiters combined capacity of two storage tanks. Under its new
registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and
conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987. The Parent
Company's transactions relating to Calapan, Oriental Mindoro Oil Depot are entitled to avail the
incentives which include, among others, ITH for a period of five years without extension from Octaber
2017 or date of registration whichever is earlier but in no case earier than the date of registration.

25.6 BOI Registration for New Investment in Villanueva, Misamis Oriental Ojl Depot

On November 24, 2017, the Parent Company has registered with BOI under Registration

No. 2017-320 its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Villanueva, Oriental
Mindoro Qil Depot with 48.7 million liters combined capacity of six storage tanks. Under its new
registration, the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and
conditions stated in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1887. The Parent
Company’s transactions relating to Villanueva, Oriental Mindoro Oil Depot are entitled to avall the
incentives which include, among others, ITH for a periad of five years without extension from
November 2017 or date of registration whichever is earlier but in no case earlier than the date of
registration.

25.7 BOI Registration for New Investment in Calaca, Batangas Oil Depot

On December 22, 2017, the Parent Company has registered with BO! under Registration

No. 2017-353 its new project for the Bulk Marketing of Petroleum Products in Calapan, Batangas Oil
Depot with 78.3 million liters combined capacity of seven storage tanks. Under its new registration,
the Parent Company is required to observe certain general and specific terms and conditions stated
in the provisions of the Omnibus Investments Code of 1987. The Parent Company's transactions
relating to Oriental Mindoro Qit Depot are entitled to avail the incentives which include, among others,
ITH for a period of five years without extension from January 2018 or date of registration whichever is
earlier but in no case earlier than the date of registration.

- As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Parent Company and PLP] have complied with the terms

and conditions under their |TH registrations.

TAXES

The components of tax expenses reported in the consolidated profit or loss and in the consolidated
other comprehensive income is presented below.

2017
[As restated
2013 see Note 2.1(0)] 2016
Reported in profit or loss:
Curmrent tax expense:
Reguiar corporate income tax :
(RCIT) at 30.00% and 17.00% P 723,376,187 P 558,801,190 P 195,720,139
Final tax at 20.00% and 7.50% 9,174,318 3,157,079 1,928,511
Minimum corporate income
tax (MCIT} at 2.00% 12,308,333 1,657.937 3214 611
744,858,838 563,616,208 200,863,261
Deferred tax expense {income}
relating to origination and
reversal of temporary
differences ( 138,270.517) ( 155,548,968) ( 31,060.370)

p____ 606588321 P 4080687238 P . 1895802891
Reported in other comprehensive income:

Deferred tax expense relating to

origination and reversal of
temperary differences E 355635633 B 4218023 P 4 608 240
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A reconciliation of tax on pretax profit computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax expense
reported in the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

Tax on pretax profit at
30.00% and 17.00%
Adjustment for income
subjected to lower
income tax rates
Tax effects of:
Adjustment for income and
expenses under iTH
Unrecognized DTA
Nan-deductible expenses
Recognition ¢f previously
unrecognized DTA on
impairment iosses
Nen-taxable income
Reversal of MCIT
Share benefit expense on
on exercised stock
options
Reversai of net operating
loss carry aver (NCLCO)
Reversal of deferred tax
Fability (DTL) on 2016
unrealized forex gain,
realized in 2017
Derecognition of previously
recognized deferred
tax assets (DTA)

Tax expense reported in
consolidated statements of
comprehensive incame
[As restated — see Note 2.1 (b}{vii)]

2017
{As restated
2018 see Note 2.1/b)] 2016
P 893,092,261 P 804,031,571 P 378,683,336
1,671,503) ( 186,606,000) ( 982,323)
353,339,769) ( 160,713,945) ( 212,788,085 )
72,038,868 - -
17,551,587 62,895,167 69,479,619
16,415,482) - { 89,375,158)
7,656,113) ( 2,732,284) ( 3,205,464
2,696,116 3,157,282 3,051,868
2,533,289) { 2,528,710) -
1,881,501 2,761,014 179,838
44,144 83,181,314) -
- 884,457 4,759,158
P 606588321 P 408 087,238 169,807 89
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The net deferred tax assets and Babiliies as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 pertain to the following:

GConsolidated Effests of
Statements of Business Consalidated Staternents of Comprehensive Incame
Finangial Position Cornbination Profit or Loss Other Comprehensive income (L oss)]
2018 2017 2018 2018 2057 2018 2018 017 2048
Deferred tax assets:

impairment losses an {rade

and olher receivables P 159,081,918 P 135488032 P - P 14,562,885 (P 3,9356€8) P 93522541 P - P " P -
Provision for losses an fost

cylinders 78,914,50t 71,827,356 - 7,287,145 - - - - -
Unamertized past service cost 33,066,105 7,730,775 - 25,335,336 1,600,550 - - - -
Accrued rent expense 13,465,656 - - 13,485,656 ( 2,593,275) 1,776,960 - - -
Impairment lasses —

effect of PFRS 8 32,882,335 - - - " - - - -
MCIT 6,967,764 5,620,729 - 347,035 ( 4,037,884) { 1,248,706) - - -
NOLCO 1,570,632 15,281,370 - { 43,720,738) 4,116,765 4,808,625 - - -
Post-employment banefit

obligation 587,075 3,110,141 { 1,246,855) ( 14,624,391) { 6,006,157} { 618,401} 19,318,480 ( 4,218,023)( 4,608,240}
Unrealized foreign cumrency

loss —net - 1,649,446 - { 1,849 445} 1,110,382 - - - -
Qthers - 761,427 n { 761,428 ( 1,041,871} - - - -

307 147,806 242.490277 ( 1,216,855} 33,042,048 ( 7 807,156} 98,241,018 10,358,180 ( 4,218,023} { 4,808,240
Deferrad tax labllities:

Fair value gains on

investment sroperty { 408,299,316) ( 220.817,016) - ( 187,482,300) { 220,817,016} - - - -
Gain on reveluation of land { 385,953,813} - - - - - [ 385,953,813) - -
Actrued rent income {  13,987,805)(  10,704,083) ( 137,884} { 3,145,844) { 10,106,110) . . . -
Unrealized foreign currency

gains - net { 3,248 583} - - { 3,248 580) 83,181.314 ¢ £7,180,649) “ - 2

{—_791,489.514) {__731,521,099) { 137.861) (__183.876.721) (147,741,812 - (___3653853,813} - -

Met deferred tax asset {liability),
1As restated - see Note 2.1(b)] (B_434291,708) P 10.869178 (E....L354736)

Net deferred lax income (expense} {P_138,270.517} (£, 165.548.968] B 3L0B03T0 (B...355835638) Bunn 4218023 (Eee4.508.240)
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The amounts of NOLCO and the applicable years these are valid and deductible from the taxable
income are shown below.

. QOriginal Valid
Taxable Years Amount Tax Effect Until
2018 P 1,946,439 P 583,932 2021
2017 3,289,001 986,700 2020

P 5,235440 P 1,570,632

The Group is subject to the MCIT, which is computed at 2.00% of gross income net of allowable
deductions, as defined under the tax regulations or RCIT, whichever is higher. PGMI's RCIT was higher
than MCIT in 2018 and 2016 while in 2017, MCIT was higher than RCIT. MCIT was higher than RCIT for
all the years presented for PPMI and SPTT, respectively.

The amounts of MCIT and the applicable years that are valid and deductible from future regular
income tax payable are shown below.

Excess of
Normal " MCIT over Valid
Taxable Years Income Tax MCIT Income Tax Tax Effect Until
2018 P - P 3,033,658 P 3,033,658 P 3,033,658 2021
2017 - 1,667,430 1,667,430 1,667,430 2020
2016 - 2,266,676 2,266.676 2,266,676 2019

p__- __ P6967764 P _6967.764 P6.967.764
In 2018, 2017 and 2018, the Group claimed itemized deductions in computing for its income
tax due.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Group’s related parties include the ultimate Parent Company, PPHI, stockholders, the Group's
key management personnel, entities under common ownership by the ultimate parent Company and

others as described in the succeeding pages.

The summary of the Group's transactions with its related parties as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and
2016 is presented in the next page.
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Related Party Amount of Transactions Qutstanding Balance
Category* Notes 2018 2017 2016 2018 2017
Qther related parties
under comman
ownership
Sale of subsidiaries* 1.5,7,27.9 P - P - P 3,000,000,000 P 500,000,000 P 500,000,000
Sale of goads* 7,27.1 4,732,957,659 2,038,584,803 120,662,536 1,851,288,462 955,539,554
Sale of services 7,27.10 322,703,055 - - 346,703,054 -
Purchase of goods 21,27.2 1,035,334,676 n - 56,511,741 -
Purchase of services® 19,27.2 352,010,893 115,202,871 72,601,698 2,467,366 20,995,548
Purchase of land 19,27.1% 92,880,000 - - 19,876,320 -
Advances to suppliers* 7,27.2 115,305,467 B { 438,294,800} 115,305,467 -
Management fees* 7.27.7 - { 2,138,028} 24,255,000 86,598,808 86,598,808
Rentals 19,27.3 104,531,407 41,194,056 74,840,032 5,774,879 2,740,627
Advances for option 1o
purchase properties 7,27.12 2,577,036,191 - - 2,577,036,191 -
Due from related
parties 27.4 421,266,746 { 988,966,628) - 939,271,644 518,004,898
Donations 22,2713 30,610,000 - - - -
Udenna Corporation
Advances to suppliers 7.27.2 742,356,217 13,456,176 438,294,800 1,167,194,841 424,838,624
Rentals 18,27.3 7,106,449 1,101,775 9,616,314 - 710,545
Sale of services 7,27.10 100,000,000 - . - 142,000,000 -
Sale of goods 7,271 392,022 - - 126,897 -
Key management personnel
Salaries and
Employee benefits 22277 258,103,179 80,182,994 66,518,008 - -

*As a resulf of the deconsofidation of CISC and CSC (see Note 1.5}, these formerly wholly-owned
subsidiaries fall under related party under common ownership in 20716.

27.1 Sale of Goods

The Group sells products to certain related parties under common ownership. Goods are sold on the
basis of the price lists in force with non-related parties. Revenues arising from these transactions are
presented as part of Sale of Goods in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income. The
outatanding receivables from sales of goods to other related parties are presented as part of Trade
Receivables under the Trade and Other Receivables account in the consolidated statements of
financial position (see Note 7).

The outstanding receivables from related parties are unsecured, do not bear any interest and
collectible in cash on demand. As a result of adoption of PFRS 9, allowance for impairment losses
for trade receivables from related parties that is charged to opening retained earnings amounted to
P17.2 million (see Notes 4.3 and 7). No additional impairment loss was recognized in 2018 based on
management's assessment.

27.2 Purchases of Goods and Services

The Group purchased goods and services from related parties on the basis of price lists in force with
non-related parties. Total purchase of goods and services from related parties is presented as part of
Cost of Sales in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the related outstanding
payables for goods purchased and services obtained are presented as part of trade payables under
Trade and Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 19).
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The outstanding balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing, payable on demand and normally
setfled in cash.

In addition, the Group advances certain amount to certain related parties for the purchase of services.
The amouint is credited upon the performance of the contractual obligation by the related parties.

The outstanding balances are presented as part of advances to suppliers under Trade and Other
Receivables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 7). Certain
advances were also made for the purchase of properties and is presented as Advances to Supplier
under other non-current assets in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial position.

The outstanding balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing, payable an demand and normally
settled in cash.

27.3 Rentals

The Group has the following lease agreements with the following related parties under common
ownership:

(a) Udenna Corparation — of which total rent expense incurred in the years 2018, 2017 and 2016
amounted to P7.1 million, P1.1 million and P9.6 million, respectively. The outstanding rental
payable armounting to nit and P0.7 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, is presented as part of
trade payables under Trade and Other Payables in the consolidated statements of financial positiori
{see Note 19).

() UDEVCO — of which total rent expense in the years 2018, 2017 and 2016 amounted to
P7.2 million, P&.3 million and P48.3 million, respectively. Prepaid rent amounted to P1.3 million
both in 2018 and 2017 (see Note 10). Rental deposit for the lease amounted to P6.5 million as of
both December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, is presented as part of refundable rental
deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the consolidated statements of financial position
(see Note 16).

(c) Valueleases, Inc. (VLI) — of which total rent expense in the years 2018, 2017 and 2016
amounted to P72.4 million, P34.9 million and P25.7 million, respectively. Prepaid rent amounted
to P17.8 million in 2018 and 2017 (see Note 10). Refundahble rental deposits amounted ta
P19.0 million and P15.0 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is
presented as part of refundable rental deposits under Other Non-current Assets in the
consolidated statements of financial position {see Note 16).

The rent expenses aforementioned are presented as part of Selling and Administrative Expenses in
the consolidated statements of comprehensive income (see Note 22) and the related outstanding rent
payables for UDEVCO and VLI are presented as part of Trade Payables while the outstanding rent
payable to Udenna Corporation is presented as part of Accrued Expenses, both under Trade and
Other Payables account in the consolidated statements of financial position (see Note 19).

27.4 Due from Related Parties

The Group grants and obtains unsecured advances to and from related parties under common
ownership for working capital requirements and other purposes.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the autstanding receivable from related parties are shown as
Due From Related Parties in the consolidated statements of financial position. Due from Related
Parties are either receivable in cash or paid through offsetting, unsecured non-interest-bearing
liabilities and are expected to be paid within one year. Interest income earned on the Parent
Company's advances to CISC amounted to P6.2 million in 2018, nil in 2017 and P5.0 million in 2016.
However, the income and cost are eliminated in the 2016 consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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The breakdown of the Due from Related Parties as of December 31 is as follows:

Note 2018 2017

cIsc P 933,096,022 P 496,819,699
PAP| 5,241,248 -
Galaxi Petroleum Fuels, Inc. 876,256 -
Udenna Corporation 540,810 -
P-H-0O-E-N-1-X Philippines

Foundation, Inc. (PPF!} 58,118 20,236,382
CscC - 948.817

939,812,454 518,004,828

Allowance for impairment 4,3(b) { 1,908,282} -

P_ 937,904,172 [ _518,004.808

The movement of Due from Related Parties as of December 31 is as follows:

Notes 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P 518,004,898 P 1,506,997,926
Additions 524,778,830 669,526,678
Reclassification 7 ( 77,018,291} ( 500,000,000)
Coliections { 25,952,983} ( 1,158,519,708)
Allowance for impairment 4.3(b) { 1,908,282) -
Balance at end of year P__ 937904172 P 518.004.893

As a result of adoption of PFRS 9, allowance for impairment losses on due from related parties that
is charged to opening retained earnings amounted to P1.9 million [see Note 4.3 (b)].

27.5 Loan Collaterals

The TLA with DBP, OLSA with BDO and PBComm, loan agreement with RBC and certain banks
loans of the Parent Company were guaranteed by certain stockholders through a surety agreement
with the respective banks {see Note 9).

27.6 Management Fees

The Parent Company’s non-trade receivables include receivable from CISC representing
management fees for the services rendered by the Parent Company to CISC when the latter is still a
wholly-owned subsidiary by the former. Under the Management Contract entered into by the Parent
Company and CISC, the farmer will manage CISC:

(a) to secure and maintain a strong market position for CISC in the real estate industry;
(b} sustain the long-term profitability of CISC; and,
{(c) develop a core of competent and effective management professionals in CISC.

In return, CISC will pay a certain amount of management fee annually. Previous to the
deconsolidation, the outstanding balance pertaining to the management fees were being eliminated in
the consolidated financial statements. Total receivable from CISC is presented as part of Non-frade
receivables under Trade and Other Receivables in the consclidated statements of financial position
(see Note 7) and are unsecured, non-interest bearing, payable on demand and narmally setiled in
cash.
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As a result of adoptian of PFRS 9, allowance for impairment losses on the receivables from CISC that
is charged to opening retained earnings is included as part of amounted to the total P1.8 milfion
aliowance for impairment on trade and other receivables (see Note 4.3}.

27.7 Key Management Compensations

The compensation of key management personnel are braken down as follows: -

2018 2017 2016
Salaries and wages P 215,217,266 P 59,621,546 P 53,164,063
13t month pay and bonuses 17,622,482 5,488,660 7,384,629
Honoraria and allowances 13,192,196 6,242,372 5,566,274
Post-employment benefits 8,494,913 3,623,132 403,043
Share-based payment 3,576,322 5.207.284 -

P_ 258103179 P__80.182.994 P_ 66,518,009

27.8 Retirement Plan

The Group's retirement fund for its defined benefit post-employment plan is administered and

managed by a trustee bank. The fair value and composition of the plan assets as of '
December 31, 2018 and 2017 is shown in Note 24.3. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the
retirement plan has no investment in shares of stocks of the Parent Company and ather listed
related parties.

The retirement fund neither provides any guarantee or surety for any obligation of the Group nor its
investments covered by any restrictions ar liens.

The details of the contributions of the Group and the benefits paid out by the pian are presented in
Note 24.3.

27.9 Sale of Subsidiaries

in 20186, the Parent Company disposed its equity share in CSC to CLHC, and in CISC to UDEVCO.
Total consideration of the sale of subsidiaries amounted to P3,000.0 million, in which a total of
PE00.0 million and P550.0 million is still receivable in 2018 and 2017, respectively. The outstanding
receivables arising from the sale of subsidiaries is presented as part of Non-trade receivables under
Trade and Other Receivables in the 2018 and 2017 consalidated statement of financial position
(see Note 7).

27.10 Sale of Service

in 2018, the Group entered into a service agreement with UDEVCO, CISC, Le Penseur Inc. (LPI) and
Udenna Corporation to tempararily operate and manage the related parties’ operations. Tatal service
income recognized in 2018 to P37.5 million from LP! and P100.0 million each from UDEVCO, CISC
and UC. The outstanding balance from services rendered to related parties amounted to P37.5 million
from LP! and P112.0 million each from UDEVCO, CISC and UC.

The service income aforementioned are presented as part of Fuel Service and Other Revenues in the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the related outstanding receivables are
presented as part of Non-Trade Receivables under Trade and Other Receivables account in the
consolidated statements of financial position (Note 7). The outstanding balances are unsecured, non-
interest bearing, payable on demand and normally settled in cash.

27.11 Purchase of Land

The Group-acquired land from CISC amounting to P92.9 million, with outstanding balance of
P19.9 million presented as part of Trade Payables under Trade and Other Payables account in the
consalidated statements of financial position (Note 19). The outstanding balances are unsecured,
non-interest bearing, payable on demand and normally settled in cash.
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27.12 Advances for Option to Purchase Properties

In 2018, the Group entered into reservation agreements with a one year option period with Global
Gateway Development Corporation (6GDC) and Udenna Tower Corporation {UTOWCO) for option to
purchase leasehold rights and properties, respectively. The consideration paid for GGDC and
UTOWCO amounted to P2,322.7 million and P254.2 million, respectively. The payments made are
creditable to the payment of the purchase price of the leasehold rights and properties in the event that
a Contract of Sublease covering the purchase of the sublease rights of the properties is executed or
returned or refunded to the Group in the event that the referenced Contract of Sublease is not
executed within the option period. The related advances are presented as part of Advances to
Suppliers under Trade and Other Receivables in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial position
{Note 7).

27.13 Others

The Group granted P30.6 million and nil donations fo Udenna Foundation, Inc. in 2018 and 2017,
respectively. These are presented as part of Donations and Contributions under the Selling and
Administrative expenses account in the consolidated statements of comprehensive income

{see Note 22).

EQUITY

28.1 Capital Stock

Capital stock consists of:

Shares Amount

2018 2017 2018 2018 2017 2016

Preferred — cumulative,

nonvoting,

nen-participating,

nen-converiible into

common shares -

P1 parvalue
Authorized: 50,000,800 __50.000.000 __50,000000 P __56000000 P__50000000 P.__50.000.000
Issue

Balance at beginning of year 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 P 30,000,000 P 30,000,000

Issuance during the year 2,040,000 - - 2,000,000 - -

Balance at end of year 32,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000 32,000,000 30,000,000 30,000,000

Treasury shares
Balance at beginning of year { 5,000,000) { 5,000,000} { 5,000,000) ( 5,000,000)( 5,000,000){ 5,000,000)
{

Redemption (___5,000.000) - - 5.000,000) - -
Balance at end of year (_70.000,000) (. 5,000,000) (___5.000,000) {_.._10,000,000)( __5.000.000}( £,000.000)
25000000 P. 22000000 P._.25000000 225000000

Issued and outstanding

Common — P par value

Autharized: 2,500,000,000 2.500.000.000 2,500.000000 P2,600,000,000 P2.500.000.000 P2.500.000.000
Issued:
Balance at beginning of year 1,431,538,232 1428777232 1,428,777,232 P1,431,538,232 P1{,428,777.232 P4,428,777 232
Issuance during the year 2,766,000 2764000 - 2,766,000 2,761,000 -
Balance at end of year 1,434,304,232 1,431,538,232 1,428,777,232 1,434,304,232  1,431,538,232 1,428,777,232
Treasury shares {__31,000.000) - (__54,393.300) ( 344,300,000} - {_ 330,67%.783)
Issued and outstanding 1403304232 1431538232 1374383922 P1,090.004.232 £1.431,538 232 P1.098.097 449

P1,112.004,232 P1456535.232 P1.123.097.449

(a)  On April 23, 2012, the SEC approved the Parent Company’s increase in authorized capital
stock from P800.0 million divided into 750.0 million common shares with a par value of P1 and
P50.0 million preferred shares with par value of P1 per share to P2,550.0 million divided into
2,500.0 common shares with par value of P1 per share and 50.0 million preferred shares with
par value of P1 per share.

{b) __In 20186, the Parent Company's BOD approved the buy-back sharg program of PNX {common)
shares of up to P450.0 million. In various dates in 20186, the Parent Company purchased its
54.4 million of its shares with corresponding total cost of P330.7 miltion.
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(c)  1n 2017, the Parent Company purchased 15.8 million of its shares with correspanding total cost
of P109.4 million. Subsequently, the Parent Company sold all of its treasury shares amounting
to P440.1 million. The total consideration received on November 6, 2017 for the sale of
treasury shares amounted to P807.2 million which resulted to an additional paid-in capital of
P367.1 million {see Note 28.4)}.

{d)  In 2018, the Parent Company purchased a total of 31.0 million of its commeon shares with
carresponding total cost of P344.3 million.

(e) The preferred shares shall have the following features:
« Naon-convertible into common shares;

» Non-participating in any other corporation activities or other further dividends, non-voting,
except in cases specified by law;

« No pre-emptive rights over the holders of commaon shares as to distribution of net assets in
the event of dissolution or liquidation and in the payment of dividends at a specified rate.
The BOD shall determine its issued value at the time of issuance and shall determine its
dividend rates and the dividends shall be paid cumulatively; and,

e The preferred shares shall be redeemable at the Parent Company’s option under such
terms as the BOD may provide at the time of issuance. It shall also be re-issuable when
fully redeemed.

Moreover, preferred shares have the following features among others as provided in the subscription
agreement;

« Dividends on the preferred shares shall have a fixed rate of 11.50% per annum calculated
in respect of each share with reference to the Issue Price thereof in respect to each
dividend period.

e Dividends shall be payable every September 21, December 21, March 21 and June 21 of
each year {each a “Dividend Payment Date”). The dividends onthe Preferred Shares shall
be calculated on a 30/360 day basis and shall be paid guarterly in arrears on the last day of
each 3-month dividend period {each a Dividend Payment Date), as and if declared by the
BOD. If the Dividend Payment Date is not a banking day, dividends shall be paid on the
next succeeding banking day, without adjustment as to the amounts of dividends to be
paid.

» The preferred shares shall have priority in the payment of dividends at the stipulated rate at
the time of issuance and in the distribution of corporate assets in the event of liquidation
and dissolution of the Parent Company. As such, the BOD to the extent permitted by law
shall deciare dividends each quarter sufficient to pay the equivalent dividend. Dividends on
the shares shall be cumulative. If for any reason the Parent Company’s BOD does not
declare a dividend on the Preferred Shares for a particular dividend period, the Parent
Company shall not pay a dividend for said dividend period. However, on any future
Dividend Payment Date on which dividends are declared, the holders of the shares shall
receive the dividends accrued and unpaid to the holders of the Preferred Shares prior {0
such Dividend Payment Date. Halders of Preferred Shares shall not be entitled to
participate in any other further dividends beyond the dividends specifically payable on the
Preferred Shares.

Moreaver, the subscription agreement requires that the Parent Company undertakes to maintain a
long-term debt to equity ratic of 1:1 throughout the life of the preferred shares.

(f) — - On December 20, 2013, the Parent Company redeemed the preferred shares issued in 2010
and re-issued the same amount and features of preferred shares except for the rate, which was
reduced to 8.25% per annum.
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{g)  On December 18, 2015, the Parent Company issued and listed its 20.0 million perpetual
preferred shares (P1.0 par value) Series 3 with the PSE (the 3rd tranche). The preferred
shares' offer price is P100 per share and issued to various subscribers in two subseries —
PNX3A and PNX3B (see Note 28.2).

The 34 tranche of preferred shares have the same features with the 1 and 2™ tranche of preferred
shares except for the following:

Dividend rates: PNX3A 7.43% per annum
PNX3B 8.11% per annum
Dividend payment dates: Dividends shall he payable on March 18, June 18, September 18

and December 18 on each year. The dividends on these shares
shall be calculated on a 30/360 day basis and shall be paid
quarterly in arrears on the fast day of each three-month dividend
period based on the offer price calculated in respect of each share
for each dividend period, as and if declared by the Parent
Company’s BOD.

Debt-to-equity ratio: The Parent Company shall maintain a debt-to-equity ratio of 3:1
throughout the life of these prefetred shares.

(h)  On December 3, 2018, the Parent Company entered into a Subscription Agreement for a
perpetual preferred shares with RCBC Capital Corporation, which was taken from the unissued
portion of the authorized capital stock of the Parent Company. The preferred shares with the )
same features under Note 28.1(e} were issued on December 5, 2018. The issuance was by way
of private placement of P2,000.0 milfion, consisting of 2,000.0 million preferred shares at an
offered price of P1,000.0 per share. Initial dividend rate is at 8.25% per annum.

28.2 Listing with PSE

On July 11, 2007, the Parent Company offered a portion of its common stocks for listing with the PSE.
Number of common shares registered was 29.0 million with an issue price of P9.80.

The Parent Company’ successfully listed its perpetual preferred shares Series 3 with the PSE on
December 18, 2015 {see Note 28.1).

The market prices of the shares as of December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017 2016
PNX (Common) P 1074 P 1288 P 563
PNX 3A (Preferred) 100.00 103.70 105.00
PNX 3B (Preferred) 102.00 108.80 115.00

28.3 Track Registration of Shares

The number of shareholders as of December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017 20186
Comman : 66 60 €6
Preferred
a) Firsttranche - - -
b) Second franche 1 1 1
¢y PNX3A 5 5 5
d) PNX3B 4 4 4
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In accordance with Securities Regulation Commission Rule 68, as amended, Annex 68-0; presented
below is a summary of the Parent Company's track record of registration of securities.

Type of Stock No. of Shares [ssuefOffer Price Date of Issued and
Transaction Common or Preferrad Reqistered and Par Value Approval Qutstanding
Registered, not listed Commaon 10,000,000 P 1 Parvalue 171172004 2,500,000
1 lIssue price
Registered, not listed Common 40,000,000 1 Parvalue tM2/2006 25,000,000
1 Issue price
Registered, not listed Commen 50,000,000 1 Parvalue Br712006 13,500,000
1 lssue price
Registered, not listed Common 300,000,000 1 Parvaiue 12/29/2006 75,000,000
1 Issue price
Initial public offering Common 1 Parvalue 7/11/2007 29,000,000
9.80 lssue price .
30% stock dividends Common 1 Parvalus 8/6/2008 43,000,198
40% stock dividends Common 1 Parvalue 8/3/2009 73,660,476
Piacement SSS Commen 1 Parvalue 11/13/2009 7,500,000
5.80 Issue price
Increase Comman 350,000,000 1 9/7/2010
Increase Preferred 50,000,000 1 97772010
40% stock dividends Common 1 10/20/201C 107,664,266
30% stock dividends Common 1 5/6/2011 113,047,475
Increase Common 1,750,000,000 1 4/23/2012
50% stock dividends. Common 1 442672012 244,936,203
CSC Acquisitions : Common 1 Parvalue 9/6/2012 171,250,798
1.01  issue price
Placements Common 1 Parvalue 3/11/2013 130,000,000
9.40 [ssue price
30% stock dividends Common 1 611072013 329,717,816
Payment for PPHI subscription Common 1 Parvalue 10/8/2013 63,000,000
5.10 Issue price
ssuance Preferred 1 Parvalue 9/21/2010 5,000,000
100 Issue price
Redeemed freasury shares Treasury Shares 1 12/20/2013 ( 5,000,000)
Issuance Preferred 1 Parvalue 12/20/2013 5,000,000
lssuance Preferred 1 Parvalue 12M18/2015 20,000,000
100  Issue price
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 5/31/2016 { 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 6/13/2016 ( 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 6/21/2016 { 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 6/23/2016 ( 1,100,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 6/27/2016 ( 250,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 6/28/2016 ( 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 6/30/2016 ( 900,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 7HI2016 ( 897,700)
Redeemed treasury shares commen 1 71472016 ( 1,900)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 71512016 ( 4398,900)
Redeemed treasury shares Commeon 1 712016 { 228,400)
Radeemed treasury shares Cammaon 1 77872016 { 2,650,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 7H112016 ¢ 4,001,700)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 7H242016 { 2,000,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 711412016 { 3,000,000)

(Amounts carried forward) 2,550,000,000 P1.436.248.632
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Type of Stock No. of Shares issue/Offer Price . Date of Issued and
Transaction Common ar Preferred Reqistered and Par Value Approval Outstanding
{Amounts brought forward) 2,550,000,000 P1,436.248.632
Redeemed treasury shares Caommon 1 711572016 ( 3,600,700 )
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 7/19/2016 ( 1,000,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 712212016 ( 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 8/1/2076 ( 150,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 8212016 | 203,600)
Redeemed treasury shares Common i 8/5/20186 ( 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 81172016 ( 200,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Commen 1 8/12/2016 ( 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 1 8/18/2016 ( 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 8/19/2016 ( 1,400,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Caommon 1 8/23/2016 ( 200,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 1 8/26/2016 { 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 1 8/30/2016 ( 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 4 8/31/2016 ( 287,300)
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 1 9M72016 { 700,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Caommon 1 9/2/2016 | 760,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 a/6/2016 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 9f7/2016 ( 200,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 9/8/2016 ( 298,800)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 9/912016 ( 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Commaon 1 9/13/2016 ( 500,000
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 91812016 ( 1,000,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Commeon 1 97202016 ¢ 300,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 9/21/2016 { 600,000 )
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 9/23/2016 { 200,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 9/26/2016 { 100,000 )
Redeemed treasury shares Commaon 1 9/27/2016 { 386,600)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 9/28/2016 { 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 10/3/2016 1,020,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 10/4/2016 ( 700,000)
Redeemed freasury shares Common 1 10/5/2016 ( 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 1 10/6/2016 ( 600,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 10/7/20186 ( 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Commgeh 1 10M0/2016 ( 650,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Commen 1 1012720186 ( 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 1 10M3/2016 ( 1,000,000 }
Redeemned treasury shares Cemmon 1 10/17/2016 { 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 10/20/2016 { 500,000)
Redeamed treasury shares Common 1 10/21/2016 ( 500,000)
Redeemed freasury shares Camman 1 1012412016 ( 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 10/26/2016 { 850,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Comman 1 10/27/2016 { 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11/2/2016 ( 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Commaon 1 11/7/20186 ( 300,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Commoen 1 1179720186 ( 300,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common i $1/10/2016 { 100,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11M6/2016 { 100,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Commaon 1 1417/2018 300,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 12/8/2018 ( 198,700)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 12/9/2016 (700,000}

Amounts carried forward) . 2,550,000,000 P1.406,233,932
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Type of Stock No, of Shares issue/Offer Price Date of Issued and
Transaction Comman gr Preferred Registered and Par Value Approval Qutstanding

{Amounts brought forward) 2.550,000.000 £1,406,233,932
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 121972016 { 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 12/20/2018 { 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1202172016 { 1,000,000 )
Redeemed treasury shares Comrmon 1 12/22/2018 ( 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1202372016 { 3,000,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1272772018 ( 513,100}
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 1 12/28/2016 ( 336,900}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11472017 ( 300,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Comrmon 1 1/5/2017 ( 18,800)
Redeemed treasury shares Commaon 1 /512017 ( 2(9,200)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1912017 ( 111,800)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11872017 ( 88,200)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1M0/2017 200,000

Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 111012017 ( 300,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11212017 | 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1/612017 { 93,800)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1/6/2017 2086,200)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 171272017 10,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11212017 | 125,500)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11272017 { 14,500)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11372017 ( 200,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 111172017 ( 3896,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Caommon 1 111172017 ( 107,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11172017 ( 183,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 171612017 ( 286,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 111772017 ( 200,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1/23/2017 ( 300,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 112472017 ( 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 1425/2017 ( 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Comman 1 112712017 ( 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Comman 1 W31R2017 | 300,000
Redeemed treasury shares Commani 1 21212017 { 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Cemman 1 21612017 ¢ 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 21672017 { 800,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Camman 1 2/23/2017 { 750,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 2/24/2017 ( 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Cammen 1 2/27/2017 ( 300,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 3/21/2017 ( 500,000}
Redesmed treasury shares Commoen 1 3232017 ( 187,100 )
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 3/2712017 { 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Comman 1 33172017 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 33172017 ( 1,000,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Cammon 1 31312017 ( 500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 4/12/2017 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 411812017 ( 500,000}
Redeemed treasury shares Cormmon 1 5132017 1,000,000}
Issuance Cammon 1 7Mi20%7 2,160,000

lssuance Commaon 1 TH12017 601,000

Sale of treasury shares Common 1 11/6/2017 70,193,400

Amounts carried forward) 2,550,000,000 P1.456,538.232
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Type of Stock No. of Shares |ssue/Qffer Price Date of Issued and
Transaction Common or Preferred Registered and Par Value Approval Qutstanding
(Amounts brought forward) 2,550.000,000 P1.456.538,232
Issuance Common 1 5/23/2018 73,000
issuance Cammon 1 6/30/2018 2,128,000
Redeemed freasury shares Common 1 gM2/2618 {  25,000,000)
issuance Commeon 1 9/30/2018 447,000
Redeemed treasury shares Carmmon 1 11/21/2018 { 3,500,000)
Redeemed treasury shares Common 1 11/21/2018 { 2,500,000)
{ssuance Preferred 1 Parvalue 12/5/2018 2,000,000
1,000 Issue price
Issuance Common 1 12/31/2018 118,000
Redeemed treasury shares Treasury Shares 1 12/20/2018 { 5,000,000)
Total —.2,850,000,000 P1.425.304, 232

28.4 Additional Paid-in Capital

In 2018, the Parent Company issued 2.0 million of its preferred shares at P1,000.0 per share.
Premiums received in excess of the par value amounting to P1,998.0 million were recorded as part of
Additional Paid-in Capital account in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial position.

In addition, the Parent Company also redeemed 5,000.0 million shares at P100.0 per share for a total
consideration paid of P500.0 million. The payment in excess of the par value of the redeemed share
was recorded as reduction under the Additional Paid-in Capital account amounting to P425.0 miltion.

In 2018 and 2017, the Parent Company issued 2.8 milfion of its common shares at exercise price of

. P5.,88 per stock option resulting to an additional premium of P21.4 million and P12.8 million,
respectively (see Notes 28.1 and 28.7). The fair value of stock options exercised in 2018 and 2017,
which was previously recorded as part of Retained Earnings was reclassified to Additional Paid-in
Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position. The total amount reclassified from
Retained Eamings amounted to P8.4 million, which is computed at P3.05 per stock option.

In 2017, the Parent Company redeemed 70.2 million of its treasury shares at a total cost of P807.2 million.
Premiums received in excess of the cost of treasury shares amounting to P367.1 million were recorded
under Additiona! Paid-in Capital account in the 2017 consolidated statement of financial position

{see Note 28.1).

In 2015, the Parent Company issued 20.0 million of its preferred shares at P100.0 per share.
Premiums received in excess of the par value during the public offering amounting toP1 ,852.9 million
were recorded under Additional Paid-in Capital account in the 2015 consolidated statement of financial
position.

in 2013, the Parent Company issued 130.0 milfion of its common shares at P9.40 per share

and 63.0 million common shares at P5.10 per share. The excess of the par value for such subscriptions
amounting to P1,350.3 million was recorded as part of Additional Paid-in Capital account in the 2013
consolidated statement of changes in equity. In addition, direct cost of the share issuances amounting
to P34.1 million was deducted from the Additional Paid-in Capital account.

In 2012, the Parent Company issued 171.3 million shares in favor of UMRC in relation to the
share-for-share swap acquisition of CSC. The business combination under common control was
accounted for under pooling of interest-type method. The excess of par value of such issuance
amounted fo P1,248.9 million was recorded as part of the beginning balance of the Additional Paid-in
Capital account.

In 2010, the Parent Company issued 5.0 million of its preferred shares at P100 per share. The excess
of par value for such subscription amounting to P495.0 million was recorded as part of Additional
Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position. In addition, the excess of
the selling price over the acquisition cost of the treasury shares sold in 2010 also constitutes the
Additional Paid-in Capital account. The preferred shares issued in 2010 were redeemed on
December 20, 2013 and on the same date, the same share and value of preferred shares were
issued, except for the reduced rate.
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In 2009, the Social Security System has bought an initial 2.83% stake in the Parent Company
representing 7.5 million subscribed common shares for P42.0 million or at P5.60 per share.

The excess of par value for such subscription amounting to P34.5 million was recorded under Additional
Paid-in Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

In 2007, the Parent Company listed its shares of stock with PSE. Premiums received in excess of the
par value during the public offering amounting to P227.1 million were recorded under Additional Paid-in
Capital account in the consolidated statements of financial position.

28.5 Revaluation Reserves
The components and reconciliation of items of other comprehensive income presented in the

consolidated statements of changes in equity at their aggregate amount under Revaluation Reserves
account, are shown below.

Property, Defined
Plant and Benefit
Equipment Obligation Total
Balance as of January 1, 2018 P - P 2,306,049) (P 2,306,049)
Revaluation increment 1,219,846,043 - 1,219,846,043
Remeasurements of defined
post-employment
obligation - 34,393,933) ( 34,393,933)
Tax income (expense) ( 365,953,813} 10,318,180 ¢ 355,635,633)
Balance as of
December 31, 2018 P__ 853,892,230 (P___ 26.381,802) (P.... §27.510,428)
Balance as of January 1, 2017 P - (P 12,148,102) (P 12,148,102)
Remeasurements of defined
post-employment
obligation - 14,060,076 14,060,076
Tax expense - { 4.218,023) { 4.218,023)
Balance as of
December 31, 2017 P - (P 2,306,049} (P 2.306.049)

28.6 Retained Earnings

On January 26, 2018, the Parent Company's BOD approved the declaration and payment of common
share cash dividends of 15 centavos per share totalling to P214.7 million, record date of April 2, 2018.
A total of P194.9 million cash dividends were also declared and distributed to 2™ and 3™ tranche
preferred stockhalders in 2018. No stock dividends were declared and distributed in 2018.

On January 25, 2017, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration and payment of common
share cash dividends of 1 centavo per share totalling to P138.2 million, record date of March 30, 2017.
A total of P194.9 million cash dividends were also declared and distributed to 2" and 3 tranche
preferred stockholders in 2017. No stock dividends were declared and distributed in 2017.

On March 18, 2018, the Parent Company's BOD approved the declaration and payment of common
share cash dividends of 8 centavos per share totalling to P114.3 million, record date of April 5, 2016.
A total of P194.9 million cash dividends were also declared and distributed to 27 and 3 tranche
preferred stockholders in 2016. No stock dividends were declared and distributed in 20186.

On March 4, 2015, the Parent Company’s BOD approved the declaration and payment of common
share cash dividends of 5 centavos per share totaling to P71.5 million, record date as of

March 18, 2015. A total of P41.2 million cash dividends wére also declared and distributed to

2 tranche preferred stockholders in 2015. No stock dividends were declared and distributed

in 2015.
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On January 29, 2014, the BOD approved the declaration and payment of common share cash dividend
of 10 centavos per share totaling to P142.9 million to stockholders of record as of March 17, 2014. In
addition, total cash dividends declared and distributed to 2™ tranche preferred stockholders amounted
{o P41.2 million in 2014. No stock dividends were declared and distributed in 2014.

28.7 ESOP
On January 24, 2013, the Parent Company's BOD approved the ESOP for its eligible employees.

The initial offering date of the option was on July 1, 2616 and will vest five years from the date of grant.
Pursuant to this ESOP, on July 1, 2016, the Parent Company granted share options to certain key
executives to subscribe to 24.5 million common shares of the Parent Company equivalent to 2.2% of
the total issued shares, at an exercise price of P5.68 per share.

Stock options will be granted in two tranches until July 1. 2021. The allocation for Tranche 1 every
year is computed at 10.0% of the total available shares for exercise. Meanwhile, the allocation for
Tranche 2 is based on the forecasted assessment of the executives’ performance rating for five years.

The fair value of the option granted was estimated using a variation of the Black-Scholes valuation
model that takes into account factors specific to the ESOP. The following principal assumptions were
used in the valuation:

Life of the option 5 years
Current share price at grant date P 6.25
Exercise price at grant date P 5.68
Standard deviation of the rate of retumn 0.4
Risk-free interest rate 3.80%

The underlying exbected volatility was determined by reference to historical date of the Group’s
shares over a period of time consistent with the option life.

The underlying expected volatility was determined by reference to historical date of the Company's
shares over a period of time consistent with the option life.

A total of P7.2 million and P11.6 million share-hased executive compensation is recognized in 2018 and
2017, respectively, and presented as part of Employee benefits under Selling and Administrative
Expenses account in 2017 and 2016 consolidated statements of comprehensive income, respecively,
with a corresponding credit to Retained Earnings account.

28.8 Capital Management Objectives, Policies and Procedures
The Group’s capital management objectives are:

« To ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern; and,
« To provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing products and services commensurately
with the level of risk.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on thfa fape of
the consolidated statements of financial position. Capital for the reporting periods under review is
summarized as follows:

2017
{As restated -
2018 see Note 2.1[b]}
Total liabilities P 48,686,605,873 P 32,849,056,409
Total equity 15,973.672,857 11.683,537,505

Debt-to-equity ratio 3.0:10 28:1.0
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The increase of the total assets and liabilities in 2018 is 1) due to the business combinations, wherein
the Group acquired the assets and assumed the liabilities of the new subsidiaries acquired, 2} increase
in interest-beanng loans and borrowings utilized for the acquisition. The increase in equity is the net
effect business combination, revaluation of land under Property, Plant and Equipment and appraisal of
its investment properties and the net profit in 2018 less the cash dividend declared and paid during the
period for common shares.

The Group’s internal goal in capital management is to maintain a debi-to-equity structure ratio not in
excess of 2.7 to 1. All externally imposed key ratios have been complied with in all the years presented,
(see Note 17).

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e., equity and
financial liabilities. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid o
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

EPS were computed as follows:

2017
[As Restated -
2018 see Nate 2.1{h)] 2016
a) Net profit pertaining to
commaon shares P 2,455,907,552 P 1,521,422 847 P $02,5892,062
B) Net profit attributable to
commaon shares and
potential common shares 2,455,907,552 1,521,422 847 902,592,062
¢} Weighted average number of
outstanding common shares 1,424,576,265 1,372,487,454 1,410,964,421
d) Weighted average number of
outstanding common and
potential common shares 1,426,593,300 1,377,270,489 1,414,736,438
Basic EPS (alc) P 1.72 P 0.97 P 0.64
Diluted EPS (b/d) P 1.72 P 0,96 P 0,64

The potential dilutive common shares totalling 2,017,038, 4,783,035 and 3,772,017 shares in relation
to the unexercised share warranis were considered in the computation of diluted EPS in 2018, 2017
and 2016.

SEGMENT REPORTING
30.1 Business Segments

In identifying its operating segments, management generally follows the Group’s product and service
lines, which represent the main products and services provided by the Group, namely fuels and
lubricant sales (trading segment), depot and logistics services, shipping and cargo services and real
estate sales. These are also the bases of the Group in reporting its primary segment information.

(a) Trading segment is engaged in marketing, merchandising, purchasing, selling, dealing,
acquiring, disposing and-distribution of goods and wares such as but not limited fo petroleum
products (on wholesale basis), adhesives, glues, bonding agents, epoxy resins, lubricants and
other products.

(b) Depot and logistics services segment is engaged in operating of oil depots, storage facilities and
provides [ogistics services to various entities.
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(¢) Shipping and cargo services segment is engaged in hauling of petroleum products, operation of
inter-island going vessels for domestic trade, chartering in and out any such vessels and
providing complete marine services, either as principal or agent to ship owners, operators and
managers.

{d) Real estate segment is involved in real estate development, management and operations.
30.2 Segment Assets and Liabilities

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating
cash, receivables, inventories and property, ptant and equipment, and other assets, net of allowances
and provisiong, Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist principally of trade and
other payables, interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and other liabilities. Segment assets and
liabilities do not include deferred tax assets or liabilities.

30.3 Intersegment Transactions

Segment revenues, expenses and performance include sales and purchases between segments and
between geographical segments. Such sales and purchases are eliminated upon combination.

The tables presented in the succeeding page present revenue and profit information regarding
business segments of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 and certain asset
and liability information regarding industry segments as of December 31, 2018, 2017 and 2016

(in thousands).
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Sale of Goods. Fus) Service and Other Revenucs
Trading, Depot and Logisdes Shippin ¢ Gargo Services Real Estate Taotal
207 2018 2017 2018
{As Resmlod [As restitad fAs Ractawd | As Restaind
-see Nate sac Mote 2° soa Nota soo Nola
2018 21081 AT 2018 07 201§ 2018 2017 2015 2018 2017 2016 2018 22061 2.1ibl)

TOTAL REVENUES
Sales To eXTMAL SUSOMErs Paa, 235 182 P 14 072,366 P 29, 142 741 P 363768 P 469557 P 480,057 P - P~ P 628460 P 1508 P 1088 P - P 88,510,768 P 14 542,882 P 30,450,958
Imarsagmant sales. 20,139,519 _ 47802373 381407 209,985 53,126 2 = 853299 5731 ___ 7233 - 20,386,775 202,711 1,527.877
Tohi rovonues 108, 315 Ji1 _ 46252738 _ 30, Qz 579,759 g; 557 533,153 - - 1521459 18,538 42397 - 108,976,993 ns 745607 __TOTATAE
COSTS AND OTHER
OPERATING EXPENSES
Codl of e3fes z2nd sarvices exaluding

daprociaticn and amorization 102,895,503 45419830 26843570 38,174 437,601 408,583 - - 182921 36,434 486,302 - 163,850,191 45,903 783 29,076,754
Depracistion and amartization 1.047.964 £41.340 575 il 4,130 g, 45912 - = 360,060 il 7o = 1,058,749 £51 2]

03943572 _ 46261970 — 286,304 P T X R, = 23271 7124 470062 = 04946840 28754 343

SEGMENT OPERATING
PROFIT {LGSS) P 4425199 B 1091580 P 260408 (EenBfESSYP. 22086 DoBiZ08 B Breie o (Boc87.812) (FomcldSBS) {EefdBOT) Bt EnhBIROS] . dS30E30 B.1.958.943
ASSEFS AND LJARILITIES

Segment asaats P 70,099 484 P 47,427,350 P 564,207 P 493812 Poo- P - PooMs0s P 41ma2 P 74,075,852 P 48,332,094

Segrant lizbifitas 51,41045t 2488,783 421,481 363,152 - - 318,206 324,150 52.1%0,108 34,156,085
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30.4 Reconciliations

Presented below is a reconciliation of the Group’s segment information to the key financial information
presented in its consolidated financial statement (in thousands).

2017 2016
[As Resiated - [As Restated -
2018 see Note 2.1{b)] _see Note 2.1(b}]
Revenues
Tatal segment revenues P 108,976,993 P 48745693 P 32,078,785
Efimination of intersegment
revenues { 20,366,225) { 4.202,711) ( 1.627,827)
Revenues as reported
in profit or loss B._.88610.768 P 44542982 P . 30,450,958
Profit or loss
Segment operating
profit P 4,030,053 P 1000850 P 1,996,943
Fair value an investment
property 624,941 - -
Equity share in net income
(loss) in joint venture 7,342 - { 50,089)
Excess of fair value of
net assets acquired
over acquisition casts - 650,182 -
Other unallocated income 87.267 38,853 11.008
Operafing profit as reported
in profit or loss 4,749,603 2,677,885 1,960,880
Finance costs ( 1,449,248) ( 804,708} { 906,280)
Finance income 73375 56,313 207.688
Profit before tax as reported
in profit or loss P.. 3373730 P__ 1929400 P . 1262278
Assets
Segment assets P 71,078,852 P 48,333,094
Deferred tax assets — net 307,198 242,490
Elimination of intercompany
accounts { 6,566.058) 4.402.990)
Total assets reported in the
consolidated statements of
financial position P__64819992 P 44172594
Liabilities
Segment liabilities P 52,150,138 P 34,156,085
Deferred tax liabiliies — net 791,489 231,521
Elmination of intercompany
accounts { 4,095,308) ¢ 1,898.550)
Total liabilities as reported in the
consalidated statements of
financial position P 48846319 P 324800568

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
31.1 Capital Commitments

As of December 31, 2018, the Group has commitments of more than P8,000.0 million for expansion on
petroleum retail network;-depot, terminalling and1ogistics facilities, information technology infrastructure
and other major expansions related to its business development. The Group has a network of

600 operating retail service stations as of December 31, 2018. An additional of eight retail service
stations are under various stages of completion as of December 31, 2018.
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The Group plans to expand further its petroleum retail service stations and carry out its investments in
its subsidiaries to put up depot and terminalling facilities in strategic locations and complete its chain of
fogistical support to strengthen its foothold in the industry.

in addition, in view of PLPFs development and innovation to provide legal, safer and cheaper alternative
to the LPG refilled butane canisters, PLPI has entered in 2018 a purchase contract of around

P100.0 million capital commitments fo purchase Refillable Welded Stainless Steel (RWSS) LPG
cylinders. Further, starting 2017, PLPI has about P1.0 billion commitments for purchase of LPG
cylinders to augment its current operations and re-establish its market in the Luzon areas.

31.2 UnusedLCs

As of December 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Parent Company has unused LCs amounting to
P17,111.3 million and P8,652.3 million, respectively.

31.3 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessee
The Group is a lessee under several operating leases. The leases have ferms ranging from

5 t0 15 years, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates ranging from 3.00% to
10.00%. The future minimum rentals payable under these cancelable operating leases are presented

as follows:
2018 2017
Within one year P 502,525,573 P 371,674,361
After one year but not
more than five years 1,714,046,926 1,187,252 691
More than five years 2,376.914,724 1.554.982 467

P 4593487.223 P 311390051

Total rent expense for the years 2018, 2017 and 2016 amounted to P865.9 million, P654.1 million, and
P638.6 million, respectively (see Note 22).

31.4 Operating Lease Commitments — Group as Lessor

The Group is a lessor under several operating leases with third parties. The leases have terms
ranging from 1 to 5 years, with renewal options, and include annual escalation rates ranging

from 5.00% to 10.00%. The future minimum rentals receivables under these cancelable operating
leases are presented below.

2018 2017
Within one year P 97,563,919 P 87,237,539
After one year bui not
mare than five years 135,545,769 138,482,193
More than five years 3.545.631 23,917,284

P__236,685319 P _249637.016

Rent income in 2018, 2017 and 2016 amounting to P113.8 million, P91.6 million and P87.3 mitlion,
respectively, is presented as part of Rent Income in the consolidated statements of comprehensive
income.
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31.5 PFM'’s Franchise
PFM as Franchisee

PFM has area franchise agreement with FamilyMart Co. Ltd., whereby the latter will grant exclusive
rights to the PFM for operating the FamilyMart stores in the Philippines as an Area Franchisor using the
FamilyMart System for a period of ten years and six months, renewable at the option of the PFM.

The agreement provides for an initial franchise fee of US$1.0 million and royalty fees amounting to
1.00% of gross sales, exclusive of VAT, of all FamilyMart stores computed at the end of every month.
On January 2, 2013, the PFM paid the initial franchise fee amounting to P41.1 miilion.

On December 11, 2017, as part of the acquisition of PFM by the Parent Company, the franchise
agreement was renewed for ten years starting on ihe date of renewal at no additional cost to the PFM.
As of December 31, 2018, the carrying value of the franchise fee amounted to P18.5 million and is
presenied as part of Intangible Assets in the 2018 consolidated statement of financial position

(see Note 12).

Royalty expense recognized by the PEM in 2018 P12.79 milfion, and is presented under Selling and
Administrative Expenses in the 2018 consolidated statement of comprehensive income {see Note 22).
There are no outstanding payable in 2018 relating to the royalty.

PFM as Franchisor

In December 2014, PFM started entering into franchise agreements whereby, as an Area Franchisor,
the PFM grants exclusive rights to qualified persons and entities (Franchisees) to own and operate
FamilyMart store/s at locations in the Philippines approved by it. The agreement is for a term of five
years unless earlier terminated by either party and provides for a one-time franchise fee plus monthly
royalties to the PFM equivalent to a percentage of gross profit. Cash receipts of the franchised stores
from merchandise sales are initially deposited to the PFM. Deductions are made from this fund for the
cost of merchandise sales, share of the PFM on the store’s monthly gross profit and other costs.

The remaining balance is subsequently remitted to the franchisees.

One-time franchise fees, which pertain to the initial investment of the franchisees are also presented as
part of Non-trade Payables under Trade and Other Payables in the 2018 consolidated statement of
financial position until the PFM has performed initial services as franchisor as agreed under the
agreement. As of December 31, 2018, there are no outstanding liabilities. Revenues from franchise
fees amounted to P56.0 million is presented as part of Fuel service and other revenues in the 2018
consolidated statement of comprehensive income with the corresponding outstanding receivable from
the franchisees amounting to P14.7 million, presented as part of Non-trade Receivables under Trade
and Other Receivables in the 2018 consolidated financial statements.

31.6 Lawsuits

In the opinion of the Group's management and its legal counsel, the eventual liability under these
lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material or adverse effect on the Group’s consolidated financial
position and results of operations.

fa)  InMay 2011, the Bureau of Customs {BOC) filed before the Department of Justice (DOJ) a
complaint against the Group's President and Chief Executive Officer and other respondents for
alleged violation of Sections 3602, 2501{)(1} & (5), 1801, 1802 and 3604 of the Tariff and
Customs Code of the Philippines. In November 2012, the DOJ dismissed the case for lack of
probable cause against all respondents. In April 2013, the DOJ, upon motion for reconsideration
filed by the BOC, reversed its earlier resolution and recommended the filing of Criminal
Information against the respondents. Criminal Information for alleged violations of Section 3602,
in relation to Sections 3601, 2530 1 () & 5, 1801 and 3604 of the Tariff and Customs Code of the
Philippines were filed before the Regional Trial Courts (RTC) of Batangas and Davao City in
August 2013. Separately, in September and October 2013, RTC Batangas and Davao City,
respectively, have dismissed all charges-against the Parent Company’s President and Chief
Executive Officer.
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On October 7, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition of
Judge Ruben A. Galvez dated October 7, 2013 with RTC Batangas. On the other hand, on
November 15, 2013, the DOJ filed a Motion for Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition of
Judge George A. Omelio dated November 15, 2013 with RTC Davac. On December 6, 2013,
RTC Batangas issued an Order dated December 8, 2013 denying the DOJ’s Motion for
Reconsideration with Motion for Inhibition. On July 7, 2014, RTC Batangas issued a Certificate of
Finality of even date stating that its Order dated December 8, 2013 affirming the Order dated
September 17, 2013 is now final and executory since no appeal was filed.

On August 18, 2014, RTC Davao issued an order of even date denying the DOJ’s Mation for
Recaonsideration. The Office of the Solicitor General, on behalf of the People of the Philippines,
filed the Petition for Certiorari dated October 27, 2014 with the Court of Appeals seeking the
reversal of the Orders dated October 4, 2013 and August 18, 2014 issued by public respondents
Judges Omelio and Han, Loida S. Posadas-Kahulugan. On October 24, 2016, the Group
received the decision of the Court of Appeals denying the Petition for Certiorari dated October 27,
2014, On November 10, 2016, Mr. Uy received a copy of the Motion for Reconsideration filed
with the CA.

A Motion for Reconsideration filed by the DOJ and the BOC, seeking the reversal of the decision
dated 25 July 2014 of the Court of Appeals’ Special Former Special Tenth (10th) Division in the
Consolidated Petitions of Dennis Uy, docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 131702, and Jorlan Cabanes,
docketed as CA-G.R. SP No. 128740, with the Court of Appeals, which involve the same hasic
facts and issues as those raised in CA-G.R. SP No. 08500-MIN. On July 23, 2015, the Group
received a resolution denying the said Mation for Reconsideration.

On October 8, 2015, the SOJ and the BOC filed a Petition for Review on Certiorari with the SC,
seeking to set aside the Decision dated July 24, 2014 and Resolution dated .July 2, 2015 issued
by the CA. On October 12, 20186, the Court denied the Petition for Certiorari and further denied
petitioner's Motion for Reconsideration on January 25, 2017.

On April 4, 2017, the Group received a copy of the Petition for Review on Certiorari dated
March 27, 2017 filed by petitioner docketed as GR No. 229705 with the Supreme Court (SC),
Manifa, 3rd Division. As of December 31, 2017, the Group is awaiting for the SC’s issuance on
the resolution directing the Group to file Comment fo the Petition for Review.

A gualified theft case was filed against former crew of M/T Chelsea Denise Rodrigo Yana, et al
on June 29, 2015 with the RTC Branch 15 far taking and misappropriation of substantial portion
of the Group’s cargo consisting of 23,500.9 Liters of diesel worth P754,353 on June 26, 2015 at
the Davao Terminal. On January 20, 2017, the Court grants (1) Prosecution’s Motion far
Reconsideration that the testimony of Joel Sularte shall remain as part of the records of the case;
and (2) application of the accused to post bail amounting to P100.000. On February 8, 2017, a
Motion for Partial Reconsideration of the Court's order was filed by the Group seeking the
reversal of the approval of the application of the accused to post baik

Several grave coercion complaints were filed against Norman Navarro, et al., along with the
BOD of the Group (including Dennis Uy and Cherylyn Uy) for the closure of five Phoenix Fuel
Stations namely, Phoenix Bankeraohan, Cabaguio, Boulevard, Acacia and Panciano Stations.
On July 18 and 27, 2016, complaint was dismissed for Acacia, Ponciano and Bankerohan
Stations as respondent's action could not be considered unlawfui or illegal. On December 29,
2017, the Petition for Review was dismissed in a Jaint Resolution issued by the Regional
Director Janet Grace Fabrero.

Six separate cases of libel against the BOD of the Group and the Editors of newspapers as the
alleged authors/originators for an alleged libelous Notice posted in the Mindanao Daily Mirror/
Sunstar Davaa and ather local newspapers. On July 19, 2017, all cases and Mation for
Recaonsideration were dismissed in a resolution dated June 19, 2017.

Several cases of Grave Coerdion, Robbery and Libel were filed against the Sales Team of
South Mindanao and ather officers, including all the members of the BOD except for Domingo
T. Uy, Paul G. Dominguez and Caralina Inez Angela S. Reyes, in relation to the Parent
Company's closure and take-over of six Phoenix Fuel Stations in Davao City. To date, the
cases have been dismissed by the City Prosecutor’s office of Davao City.
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(h)  The Parent Company's Independent Director, Monico V. Jacob, in his capacity as then
Chairman of Petron Corporation, was impleaded in a case together with some government
officials for Violation of Republic Act 3019 otherwise known as the Anti-Graft and Corrupt
Practices Act involving tax credit payments. The case has been dismissed by the
Sandiganbayan, Fourth Division, Quezon City in a Resolution dated March 2, 2017.

Other court cases typical and customary in the course of the business operations of the Group such as
those, among others, involving collection, qualified theft and reckless imprudence have been filed by
and against the Group by and against its employees and/or third parties.

In the normal course of business, the Group makes various commitments and incurs certain
contingent liabilities that are not given recognition in the consolidated financial statement. As of
Decemnber 31, 2018 and 2017, the management believes that losses, if any, that may arise from
these commitments and contingencies will not have material effects on the consolidated financial
statemenits.

EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Joint Venture of the Parent Company

The Parent Company’s BOD has approved on January 31, 2019 for the Group to enter into joint
cooperation or venture with China National Offshore Qil Corporation (CNOOC) Gas and Power Group
for the operation and establishment of various liquefied natural gas {LNG)-related trades and services
under the LNG Integrated Hub Project in the Philippines. In addition, the BOD has approved to form
and organize a new and wholly-owned subsidiary or company and to invest corporate funds with
initial investment of P250.0 million for the LNG project, subject fo the approvatl of the stockholders
during the annual stockholders’ meeting of the Parent Company.
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P-H-Q-E-N-1-X Petroleumn Phitlppines, inc. and Subsidiarles
Financial Soundness Indicators

December 31, 2013
Amount Ratio
2007 2017
2048 {As Resiated) 208 {As Restated}
A) LIQUIDITY RATIOS
1 Curenl Ratio:
Gumrent Assels 37,259,777 423 24,905.751,632 14 12
Current Liabilities 33,843707.218 20,385,169,145 ) )
2 Quick Ratio;
Ctirrent Assels - Inveniories 26.124.283.137 12,489 514 553 08 0.6
Cument Liabities 33,842.707,218 20,385.168,145 "’ -
3 CashRatio:
Cash and Cash Equivalents 7.589,708,807 1,831,557 883 0.2 0.1
Current Liabifties 33,843,707 218 20.385,168,145 ) ’
B) SOLVENCY RATIOS
1 Solvency Ratio: )
Afler Tax Net Profit + Depeeciation 3.823.891,027 2.372.503.429 01 01
Long term fiabilities + Short term Liabilities 48 688 605,873 32482562 362 ) )
2  Debtio Eqity Ratio:
Totat Liabiliies 48 686605873 32,482.562,362 30 28
Equity 15.973,672.857 11,683,537,505
3 Debt Sesvice Coverage Ratio .
Net Operating income 5,776.042,188 3.543,006.920 23 29
Net Intefest Expense + Long-term repayments 2,473,903,173 1,230,719,493 ) -
C} ASSET TO EQUITY RATIO .
Totzl Assets 54.660.278.730 44,166,099.857 a0 58
Equity 15.973,672,857 11,683,537.505 l )
D) INTEREST RATE COVERAGE RATIO =" e
Eamings Before Interest and Taxes 4,719,295.870 mf.BZB.SEB 34 24
Interest Expense 1,376,954.786 GOIT 88 N :
E) PROFITABILITY RATIOS B~ 7
1 Gross Profit Margin: . T
Sales - Cost of Goods Sold 8,833 757843 @3.547,7’?3 : 0.4 04
Sales ’ 87,672.722,663 44,148,952,252 :
2 Return on Assets:
Met iIncome 2,767,141,709 0.0 0.0
Tolal Assets 64,660,278,730
3 Retun on BEquity:
Net Income: 2,767,141,709 02 041

Equity 15,573 .672.857




P-_H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
LIST OF SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
December 31, 2018

Schedule

Description Page
A Financial Assets 1
B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employess, Related Parties,
and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) 2
C Arnounts of Receivable from Related Parties which are Eliminated during
the Consolidation of Finangcial Statements 3
D Intangible Assefs - Other assels 4
E Long-Term Debt 5
F Indebtedness o Related Parties {Long-term loans from related Companies) NIA
G Guarantees of Securities of Other issuers N/A
H Capital Stock 6
1 Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration 7
J Mapping of the Organization Structure 8
K Schedule of Phifippine Financial Reporting Standards 9-12
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P-H-0-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule A - Financial Assets

December 31, 2018
l Description i Carrying Value | Fair Value 1
Loans and receivables: .
Cash and cash equivalents P 7.889708807 P 7.889,708,807
Trade and other receivables - net 11,363,226,589 11,363,226,589
Due from related parties 937,904,172 937,904,172
Construction bond 5,504,822 5,504,822
Restricted deposits 52,719,265 52,719,265

289,572,937 289,572,937

Refundable rental deposits

P 20,538,636,592 P 20,538,636,592

Notes:

1) Trade and other receivables excludes advances to suppliers and advances to subject to liquidation.
2) There are no other financial assets applicable to the group, except for loans and receivables.

3) Construction bond is included as part of Others under Prepayments and Other Current Assets.

4) Net of allowarice for impairment Josses of P634,396,128.
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P-H-0-C-N--X Petroleurn Philippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
‘Sehedube D - Intangible Asssts - Other Axsats
Decomber 31, 2018

ia Y

Deductions
Other changes
Descrigtion Boginning bt Ad i cost c""‘:‘"":‘"‘“’ mﬁ:”" additions Ending balance
Pen (deducticns)
| Other Non-Current assels
Goodmill P 3SH0EIEEE P 20176225 P - [ . - [ 4.418,842.831
Baskethal [ranchisa 176,861,860 . . - - 178,861,660
Computer softwars [icensas 54,287,230 28583038 ( AB.494.288 ) - 21673.225 94,029,205
Franichise . 22353 Mm5 - 850,844 23.300,689
Software cost 2,520,187 30,477,133 { £,509393) 7,052,509 73.839 23584655
Ohars 1282391 71700 { 108288 ) - - 1.225 805
TOTAL P 4205588058 P SOTEL13H (D 55,141,969 D - 22657808 P 4.747.847,625
Explansions: .
1 Addition o goodwil was due o tha acquisitions of Prikppine FamilyMart VS, inc. {PFM) and Action.Abie Inc. and Trink.Able Limited.

2 Doe 1o the acuition of PFM, the Group has addiicnal imangibie sset in the form of Franchise 2= a result of business combxnation.
3-Chamged (o cosl and expenses under Computer Softwara Licenses was due to amorizations of Inlangibia Assats,




P-HuO-E-N-1-X Petrobeum Phitippines, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Schedule E - Long-Term Dot

December 31, 2018
Amgunt Shown onaer

Tila ofissue &nd iype of abkgation m‘"m” mumm m:;’“mwﬁﬂ’ Tems

balanee shoat # refated balance shoe!
Instaltmen. ncies and loans payable
FPaso-denaminated
BDO Unibank, ing, 6.,000,000,000 850,000,000 4482.185032 Interest Faie of 4.677%, Sevan-pas lemm, maturing an August 7, 204
BDA Unibank, fnc. +.000,000,000 - 1.000,000,000  Interest rte of 7. 5884%, five yasr réom, motunng on, Auguel 18, 2021
EDO Unibank, Ing. 1,000,000,000 - 1.000,000.000 Interest rais of 5.7185%, matwing 6 Fovember 10. 2022
B0 Urihank, ine. 1.000,000.060 - 1.000,000.000 interes) rate of 5.7105%, matufing on Moveenber 10, 2022
Land Bank of the Phiippines 5,000,000 000 50,000,000 4.850,000,000 intarast e of 4.85%, Savenyasar i, maturing on July 4, 2026
Lzt Bk of the Phalippines 1,000.000,000 I.333.:33 ININIT  [neres ate of 7.009, thred-yoar lerm maturing on Novambar 3. 2020

l k & P 285732522 200.000 - Irrterest rares from 3. 75%, maturing on Apeil 30,2019

Phifipplne Nationg Bank 1.000,000 000 250,660,000 600.G00.000  Interet raie of $.30%, matuning an Apell 3, 2020
Phifippine Halional Bank 500,000,000 100,000,000 125000000 Inierest mts of £ 2106%. five-year fern, motuing on Janvary 2. 2021
Robinsons Bank Corparation 500.000,000 100,000.080 £00,000.000  Interosl raie of 5.50%, five-yea! 161, maturtng o October 3. 2020
Tolal Instatmant, noles 3nd lans payabis 19.385.732 977 1.483.533.333 13.550.620.165

TOTAL

P 19,385, 792922

P

148153803

p

13.590.80.148




Inc. and .

PHOENFNF
Schadule H - Caphal Sock
Dacambmr X1, 2018
Nurrber of shares held
u md::ru " o, "
Mumber of shares wacad reserved for aplions, Dirwctors, officers
Thte of lxstre sahoried mﬁ':nlhm warants, x Reletd partiay Joyses Others
batancs phestcantton | W OChr dghte
Preferred shares - P1 par vakn
Non-weging. son-parficipating.
non-comvortible it commian shares
bituedt and udstuning - 28,000,000 50,000,000 22,000,000 - . . 22,000.000
Cammon shares - P por value
2.500.000,000 1,402,304 292 TIZ1A40 123831 82T 1084251713

frmrod o oubstanding




P-H-O-E-N-I-X Petroleum Philippines, Inc.
Stella Hizon Reyes Road, Barrio Pampanga, Davao City
Reconciliation of Retained Eamings Availab!e for Dividend Declaration
December 31, 2018

UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS AS ADJUSTED TQ -
AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION, BEGINNING P 3,083,771,222
Net Profit based on the audited Statement of Comprehensive Income P 1,777,824,901

Less: Non-actualfunrealized income net of tax
Unrealized foreign exchange gain - net {except those atributable

to cash and cash equivalents 1,636,662
Other unrealized gains or adjustment to retained eamings as a result of
day one gain on financial instrurment 1,933,147
Add: Non-actual losses
Other unrealized loss or adjusiment to retained eamings as a result of
day one toss on financial instrument 2,223,674
314,860

Equity in net loss of joint venture net of tax

{ 1.031.274)

Subtotat
Net income actually camed during the period 1.776.793,627 1,776,793,627
AddNess:
Dividend declarations during the period;
Common shares cash dividends { 214,730_,735—_} ‘
Preférred shares ¢ash dividends (. 1ga910000) ¢ 409,640,735 )
Treasury shares g A {____ 344300000}
cai S -
UNAPPROPRIATED RETAINED EARNINGS, I - )

AS ADJUSTED, ENDING P 4118824114

Jed lid 9 Hdd 6l
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P-H-0-E-N-I.X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

Adopted by the Sceurities and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2018

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not
Applicuble

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements

Conceprual FFemewnotk Phase A: Objecrives and Quahitarive Characteristics

Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Finamcial Reporting Seandirds (PERS)

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

Amendmenrs oo RS [ Addiional Fxemptions for Fisse-time Adopters

PFRS1

Amendments 1o PFRS 1 Limired [semption froi ¢ ‘omiparative PRFRE 7 Disclosures foc
Figsr-time Adoprers

(Revised)

Amendments to PFRS 1: Sevenc [ypitinfarion and Remioval of Fixed Dae for
First-time Adopters

Amendmenrs t0 PFRE 12 Governmens Loans

Amendments-to PFRS 1: Dedetion of Shererem Exemprions

Shaze-based Payment

Amemlmenis to PERS 2: Vesting Condinions and Canedfations

PFRS 2

Amendmenrsto PERE 2: Group Cash-settled Share-based Pavment Transacrions

NNV NN S S s8] s

Amendments o PIRS Z: Classificalion and Menssement of Share.bascd Pavment ' 'mnsactions

PFRS 3

Business Combinations

{Revised)

Amendment to PERY Jr Remeasurement of Previewsly Hdld lmcmﬁ in 2 Joint Opuetion!
{effessive Janizary 1. 2019} - .

" P ) — S
asurance Contraces ~ 3 N

PFRS 4

Amendments to PAS 39 and PIRS 4: Financial Guaranree Contmacs

Amendments to PERS 4 Applying PI'RS 9, Financd Instriments, wigh PERS 4, Drsurance
Contracts = e 1

FFRS 5

Non-current Assers [eld for Sale and Discontinued Operations

PFRS 6

Ixplotarion far and Livalwarion of Mineral Resources

AU RS IS A AN

Titnancial Instrumentss Phselosores

o
Amendmenes to PFRS 7: Transiton ‘_'g

—
Amendments 1o PAS 39 and PERS 7: Reclassification of Linancigl Asset:

T

PFRS 7

Amendments to PAS 39 and PIRS 7 Rechssificarion of FinancilBAssets - Rffective Dateand
Teansinon

Amendments to PFRE 7t lmproving Disclosures about Financial lnseniments

Amendmicits o PEFRE 7: Disclosures — Teaansters of Pinandal Assets

Amendmenss to PERE 7: Disclosures — O ffserting Financizl Assers and Financial Liabilities

NOANIS S [N IS IS

Amiendment: s PERS 7: Mandatory Effective 1are of PFIRS 2 and Pransinon Disclosurcs

PFRS

Opérating Segmonis

\

PFRS 9

Financial Instruments (2014}

Y

Amendinents 1o PERY 9: Prepayment Featuees with Negatve Compensation?

{effective January 7. 2079;




P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPI NES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reparting Standards and Interpretations

Adopted by the Securitics and Exchange Commission and the

Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31,2018

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Adopted

Not
Adopted

Not

Applicable

Consolidared Financial Starements

Amendments to PERS 10: 'ransition Guidance

~

PFRS 10

Amendments to PFRS 10: Investment Enities

~

ot Joint Venruee* (ofacssve date deforred fndletiitedy)

Amendments to PERS 14 Sale or Confribution of Assers between an (nvetor and irs Associang

Amendments to PERS 102 Investment Hnriies — Applying the Consolidanion Hixception

oing Arrangemenis

Amendments 1o PERS 11: 1 ransifion Guidanee

PFRS 11

Amendments to PERS 11: Accoundng for Acquisitions of Farerests in Joint Operations

AN AN LN LS

Amendment o PFRS 1: Remeasurement of Previousl Held Interests in a Joint Operation”
[@ﬂ}r Janieary 1, 20095

Disclosure of Inferests in Other Bnaities

PFRS 12

Amendments to PFRS 12 Tansition Guidanee

Amendments o PFRS 12 Investmene lariges

Amendments 1o PEFRS 10; Tnvestment Entities — Applying the Consolidation lixeeprion

PFRS 13

Tiair Value Measurement

A ANEN LG LN

PFRS 14

Regulatory Deferral Aecounts

PFRS 15

Revenue from Congmacrs with Customers

~

PFRS5 16

1iases® fefetive January 1, 2019)

PFRS 17

Tasurance Contmcrs” (gg'?m‘w Tonaary 1. 2021)

Philippine A

ceounting Standards (PAS)

=
—-
=

Preseatation of Finandat Stiwemers

PAS1

Liguidation

Amendments o PAS 32 and PAS 1: Purable Financial [nstrument®md Obligations Ardsing or |

Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of {tems of Oither (.'omptchc@v_u Incatne i

Amendments to PAS T Disclosure Fmianve

PAS2

Inventories

Srzrement of Cash Flows

PAS7

Amendments ro PAS 70 Disclosure Ininiative

PAS 8

L) pPEdR

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting lisrinsates and Breoes

PAS 10

o
L

livents Afrer the Reporting Perol

e

AN AN AN AN A E N AN I N BN

PAS I

Construction Contracts

Income Taxes

~

PAS 12

Amendments ta PAS 12 - Deferred s Recovery of Underlying Assets

Amendments to PAS 12 - Recognitton of Defereed Tax Assets for Unamalizod Losses

ANEN

Amendment 10 1745 12 - Fax Comsequences of Dividends” {eifzctive fannary 1. 2019}

Peoperty, Plant and Hquipment

~

PAS 16

Amendments 1o PAS 16: Baarer Plants

LY

Amendments ro PAS 16: Clasification of Aceeprible Methods of Depreciation and

Amortizazion

LN

10



P-H-O-E-N-I-X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedulc of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

Adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Einancial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2018

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adopted | | Yot Mot
’ Adopted | Applicable
PAS 17 [Faases v
PAS 19 Bmployee Benefies 4
Revised) |3 mendmenes £0 PAS 19: Defined Benehi Plans - Tmplovee Contabusions v
PAS 20 Accounting for Government Cieanes and Disclosure of Govemment Assistance v
PAS 21 The liffects of Changes in Foreign lixchange Rates v
Amendments: Net Investment in g Fowign Opeaiton v
PAS 23 Borrowing Coses Vs
(Revised) | ygendment 1o PAS 23: Eligihiiny for Capitalization v
PAS 24 .
(Revised) Relared Parry Disclosures e
PAS 26 Accountng and iiépurring by Retiement Benefic Plans v
Separate Financial Srwmenrs v v
PAS 27
i st IPAS 27 o o NS
(Revised) Amendmints t PAS 27: Envestment Linrirics v
Amendments 1o PAS 27: Hauity Methaod in Sepasare Finandisl Statemenrs v
Insvestments i Assocites and Joinr Ventures v
Amendmerits e PIRS 10: Safe or Conraburion 6F Assets between an Tnvestor and its Associure| Y
oc loint N'enture® (gfitive dave deferred indefeniiely)
PAS _28 & Amendments to PAS 28: fnvestment Enrities - Applving the Consolidation Txception v
{Revise
' Amendmenr to PAS 28: Measarement of Investment in Associates ar Fair Value through Profic Y
of Loss
Amendment 1o PAS28: Long-terny Interest in \ssociares and Joine Venture® (efestive Janaary 1. v
2079} ] .
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hypednflationary Feonomies i fum v
Financial Isistruments: Presentation ; v
Amendments ko PAS 32 and PAS I Puttable $nancial Instrumenrs and Obligitions Adsing on 7
PAS 32 Ligurdation =
Amendiments to PAY 32 Clissification of Righs fssues e v
Amcadments to PAS 32: Offserting Financial Assete and FinaneialFiabilirie v
e
PAS 33 Liamings Por Share ~3 v
PAS 34 Latedm Financial Reporting = v
Impatement of Assers = L v
PAS 36 ‘ - PR
Amendment 1o PAS 36: Recoverble Amount Disclosures for Non-fagneial AN . -. v
PAS 37 Provisions, Contingenr Liabilites snd Contingent Assers = v
Inangible Assers v
PAS 38 Armendments 1o PAS 38: Clarification of Acceprable Methods of Depreciation and v
Amortization
Investment Propem v
PAS 40 " ‘
Amendment o PAS 40: Rechssification to and from Invesmeot Propery
. Apoeudture v
PAS 41 -
Amenibments ta PAS 41: Bearer Planes v




P-H-O-E-N-I.X PETROLEUM PHILIPPINES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Tnietpretations
Adopted by the Securitics and Exchange Commission and the
Financial Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2018

PHILIPPINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS Adoptea | N | Tt
pted | Applicabic
Philippine Interpretations - Intemational Financial Repording Intecpretations Committee (TFRI C)
IFRIC 1 Changes in Uxisting Decommissioning, Restoration amd Similar Lishilises** 4
IFRIC2 Membend Share in Co-operative lntites and Similar Instruments v
IFRIC 4 [Petermining Whetier an Armangement Congaing.a baase
IFRICS Right:‘v.t.() lfltcn.-?‘ts A ﬁsing fromm Dlecommissioning, Restoeation and Environmental
Rehabilitation Funds*~
[FRIC ¢ :2::2::::“ :t\risinp‘ from Pamiciparing in 2 Specific Marker - Waste Llectrical and Iilectronic y
TFRIC 7 I\.zj;ri\::ﬁ ;l_m Restatement Approach uader PAS 29, Financial Reporting in [ rpednfiationary P
IFRICY Reasscessment of Embodded Derdvanvest s
Amendments to Philippine: Inremprenarion HITRIC-2 and PAS 39 Embedded Denvatives™ v
IFRIC10  |intedim )inangial Reporting and Jmpaisment v
JFRIC 12 iSeivice Concossion Arrangements. v
PAS 19-- ‘e Limic on a Dcfined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Reguitemersts and theie v
IFRIC 14 Interction - ‘ _ ‘
a\me{xdm@'ts ta I‘hilipp'mc h‘l[!.“l']‘ll‘!.‘fﬂli()ll.\' TERIC - 14, |’tcp:l}ﬁ1&ﬂ§ ofa Minimum Funding v
Requiremicnt and their Intemction®! =
[tFRIC 16 |1iedpes of a Net lnvestment in 2 Forign Operation - ; 7
WWRIC17?  [Distributions of Nonwash Assers to Owners™ ; v
IFRIC1?  jlixdnmishing Fisancial Liabilires with Liguiry Instrumenes v
IFRIC20  |{Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Minc** \'5: B v
IFRIC21  {lovies . v
HFRIC 22 {Forcign Currency Transachons and Advance Considveiation '”:‘: 4
IFRIC23  jUncertainty Cver Income "lax "Treatments {effoctive fammar 1. 2@? } s
FPhilippine Imterpretations - Standing Inteqpretations Commiitce (SI€) !
SIC7 Introduction of the Fueo 5 o
SIC-10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation o Operating Activties s
SIC13 Foinly Conprofled Entitios - Non-Monetary Contributtons by Venrrees 4
SIC-15 Oypeeearing Leases - lacentives v
SIC.25 Income “Taxes - Changes in the Tax St of an Enrity of its Sharcholders** v
S1C-27 Fvaluating, the Substance nf I'ransactions bnvolving the Legal Fomm of a Lease "
SIC-20 Service Concession Amangements: Disclosures 4
SIC-31 Revenue - Barter Tansactions lavobdng Advertising Services™ v
SIC-32 Entangible Aseots - Web Site Coses v

* “These standards will be effcetive for perinds subsequent to 2018 and ase aot early adopted by the Group.

¥+ “These standards have been adoptad in the peepamtion of fnancial statements bue the Croup has ne significant eransactivos coverad
in both years presented.
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